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Approximate date of proposed public offering: From time to time after the effective date of this Registration Statement.

If any securities being registered on this form will be offered on a delayed or continuous basis in reliance on Rule 415 under the Securities
Act of 1933, other than securities offered in connection with a dividend reinvestment plan, check the following box. x

It is proposed that this filing will become effective (check appropriate box):

o when declared effective pursuant to section 8(c).

CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933
  

Title of Securities Being Registered  
Proposed Maximum

Aggregate Offering Price(1)  
Amount of

Registration Fee

Common Stock, $0.01 par value per share(2)(3)                   
Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value per share(2)           
Warrants(2)           
Subscription Rights(3)           
Debt Securities(4)           
Total(5)  $ 200,000,000(6)  $ 23,240(7) 

(1) Estimated pursuant to Rule 457(o) under the Securities Act of 1933 solely for the purpose of determining the registration fee. The proposed maximum offering
price per security will be determined, from time to time, by the Registrant in connection with the sale by the Registrant of the securities registered under this
Registration Statement.



(2) Subject to Note 6 below, there is being registered hereunder an indeterminate number of shares of common stock or preferred stock, or subscription rights to
purchase shares of common stock as may be sold, from time to time.

(3) Includes such indeterminate number of shares of common stock as may be issued upon, from time to time, conversion or exchange of other securities registered
hereunder, to the extent any such securities are, by their terms, convertible or exchangeable for common stock.

(4) Subject to Note 6 below, there is being registered hereunder an indeterminate number of debt securities as may be sold, from time to time. If any debt securities
are issued at an original issue discount, then the offering price shall be in such greater principal amount as shall result in an aggregate price to investors not to
exceed $200.0 million.

(5) Subject to Note 6 below, there is being registered hereunder an indeterminate number of warrants as may be sold, from time to time.

(6) In no event shall the aggregate offering price of all securities issued from time to time pursuant to the registration statement exceed $200.0 million.

(7) Prior to the initial filing of this registration statement, $150.0 million of securities remained registered and unsold (the “Unsold Securities”) pursuant to
registration statement No. 333-196704 (the “Prior Registration Statement”), which was initially filed by the Registrant on June 12, 2014. The Registrant
previously paid $19,320 in connection with the Prior Registration Statement to register the Unsold Securities. In connection with the registration of an additional
$50.0 million of securities (the “Additional Securities”), the prior filing fee of $19,320 was offset against the $23,240 filing fee associated with the total
maximum aggregate offering price of $200.0 million of securities (the “Maximum Aggregate Offering Price”) to be registered under this registration statement
pursuant to Rule 457(p). As a result, the additional $3,920 was previously paid in connection with this Registration Statement. If the Registrant sells any of the
Unsold Securities pursuant to the Prior Registration Statement after the date of the initial filing, and prior to the date of effectiveness, of this registration
statement, the Registrant will file a pre-effective amendment to this registration statement which will reduce the number of such unsold securities included on
this Registration Statement.

The Registrant hereby amends this Registration Statement on such date or dates as may be necessary to delay its effective date until
the Registrant shall file a further amendment which specifically states that this Registration Statement shall thereafter become effective
in accordance with Section 8(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 or until the Registration Statement shall become effective on such date as the
Securities and Exchange Commission, acting pursuant to said Section 8(a), may determine.

 

 

 



 

The purpose of this Pre-Effective Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form N-2 is to file exhibits to the
Registration Statement as set forth in Item 25(2) of Part C, and to incorporate by reference the preliminary prospectus filed with the
Registration Statement on Form N-2 filed on November 19, 2014 (SEC File No. 333-200375). Accordingly, this Pre-Effective
Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form N-2 consists only of a facing page to the registration statement, the
aforementioned preliminary prospectus incorporated by reference herein, this explanatory note and Part C of the Registration
Statement on Form N-2, including all exhibits identified as being filed herewith or incorporated by reference herein. This Pre-
Effective Amendment No. 1 does not modify any other part of the Registration Statement on Form N-2 included or incorporated by
reference into the aforementioned Registration Statement on Form N-2. As a result, the remainder of the contents of the
Registration Statement on Form N-2 previously filed are hereby incorporated by reference herein.

 



 

PART C — OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 25. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND EXHIBITS

1. Financial Statements

The following financial statements of OFS Capital Corporation (the “Registrant” or the “Company”) are included in Part A
“Information Required to be in the Prospectus” of the Registration Statement.

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

OFS Capital Corporation and Subsidiaries      
Unaudited Financial Statements      
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30, 2014 (unaudited) and December 31, 2013   F-2 
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014

(unaudited) and 2013 (unaudited)   F-3 
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets for the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014

(unaudited) and September 30, 2013 (unaudited)   F-4 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014 (unaudited)

and 2013 (unaudited)   F-5 
Consolidated Schedules of Investments as of September 30, 2014 (unaudited) and December 31, 2013   F-7 
Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements   F-16 
Audited Financial Statements      
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm   F-41 
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control Over Financial

Reporting   F-42 
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012   F-44 
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Year Ended December 31, 2013, the Period November 8,

2012 through December 31, 2012, the Period January 1, 2012 through November 7, 2012, and the
Year Ended December 31, 2011   F-45 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets for the Year Ended December 31, 2013, the Period
November 8, 2012 through December 31, 2012, the Period January 1, 2012 through November 7,
2012, and the Year Ended December 31, 2011   F-47 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Year Ended December 31, 2013, the Period November
8, 2012 through December 31, 2012, the Period January 1, 2012 through November 7, 2012, and the
Year Ended December 31, 2011   F-48 

Consolidated Schedules of Investments as of December 31, 2013 and 2012   F-52 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements   F-60 

2. Exhibits

(2) Exhibits
 

(a)(1)  Amended and Restated Certificate of Formation of OFS Capital, LLC(4)

(a)(2)  Form of Certificate of Incorporation of OFS Capital Corporation(4)

(a)(3)  Certificate of Correction to Certificate of Incorporation of OFS Capital Corporation(9)

(b)(1)  Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of OFS Capital, LLC(4)

(b)(2)  Form of Bylaws of OFS Capital Corporation(4)

(c)   Not applicable
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(d)   Form of Stock Certificate of OFS Capital Corporation(4)

(d)(1)  Form of Base Indenture(15)

(d)(2)  Statement of Eligibility of Trustee on Form T-1(1)

(d)(3)  Form of Warrant Agreement(2)

(d)(4)  Form of Subscription Agent Agreement(2)

(d)(5)  Form of Subscription Certificate(2)

(d)(6)  Form of Certificate of Designation(2)

(e)   Form of Dividend Reinvestment Plan(4)

(f)   Not applicable
(g)  

 
Form of Investment Advisory and Management Agreement between OFS Capital Corporation and OFS
Capital Management, LLC(8)

(h)(1)  Form of Equity Underwriting Agreement(1)

(h)(2)  Form of Debt Underwriting Agreement(2)

(i)   Not applicable
(j)   Form of Custody Agreement(4)

(k)(1)
 

Form of Administration Agreement between OFS Capital Corporation and OFS Capital Services,
LLC(4)

(k)(2)
 

Form of License Agreement between the OFS Capital Corporation and Orchard First Source Asset
Management, LLC(4)

(k)(3)

 

Loan and Security Agreement among MCF Capital Management LLC, OFS Capital WM, LLC, each of
the Class A Lenders from time to time party thereto, each of the Class B lenders from time to time party
thereto, Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, and Wells Fargo Delaware Trust Company, N.A., dated as of
September 28, 2010(3)

(k)(4)

 

Pledge Agreement made by OFS Capital, LLC, OFS Capital WM, LLC and OFS Funding, LLC in
favor of Wells Fargo Delaware Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee, for the benefit of the Secured Parties,
dated as of September 28, 2010(3)

(k)(5)

 

Account Control Agreement among OFS Capital WM, LLC, Wells Fargo Delaware Trust Company,
N.A., Wells Fargo Securities, LLC and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, dated as of September
28, 2010(3)

(k)(6)
 

Participation Agreement dated as of September 28, 2010, between OFS Funding, LLC and OFS Capital,
LLC(3)

(k)(7)
 

Loan Sale Agreement between OFS Capital, LLC, and OFS Capital WM, LLC, dated as of September
28, 2010(3)

(k)(8)
 

First Amendment to Loan Sale Agreement among OFS Capital WM, LLC and OFS Capital, LLC, dated
February 23, 2011(4)

(k)(9)

 

Amended and Restated Consent Procedures Letter among OFS Capital, LLC, OFS Capital WM, LLC,
Madison Capital Funding LLC, and MCF Capital Management LLC, dated February 23, 2011 (Loan
and Security Agreement — Exhibit L)(4)

(k)(10)
 

Form of Indemnification Agreement between OFS Capital Corporation and each of its directors and
executive officers(4)

(k)(11)
 

Form of Registration Rights Agreement between OFS Capital Corporation and Orchard First Source
Asset Management, LLC(6)

(k)(12)
 

Second Amended and Restated Consent Procedures Letter among OFS Capital, LLC, OFS Capital WM,
LLC, Madison Capital Funding LLC, and MCF Capital Management LLC, dated March 30, 2012(5)

(k)(13)

 

Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Consent Procedures Letter among OFS Capital, LLC,
OFS Capital WM, LLC, Madison Capital Funding LLC, and MCF Capital Management LLC, dated
September 28, 2012(7)
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(k)(14)

 

First Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement among OFS Capital WM, LLC, MCF Capital
Management LLC, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, Madison Capital Funding LLC, Wells
Fargo Securities, LLC, and Wells Fargo Delaware Trust Company, N.A., dated November 27, 2010(7)

(k)(15)

 

Second Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement among OFS Capital WM, LLC, MCF Capital
Management LLC, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, Madison Capital Funding LLC, Wells
Fargo Securities, LLC, and Wells Fargo Delaware Trust Company, N.A., dated January 26, 2011(7)

 
(k)(16)

 

Third Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement among OFS Capital WM, LLC, MCF Capital
Management LLC, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, Madison Capital Funding LLC, Wells
Fargo Securities, LLC, and Wells Fargo Delaware Trust Company, N.A., dated September 28, 2012(7)

(k)(17)

 

Fourth Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement among OFS Capital WM, LLC, MCF Capital
Management LLC, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, Madison Capital Funding LLC, Wells
Fargo Securities, LLC, and Wells Fargo Delaware Trust Company, N.A., dated January 22, 2013(10)

(k)(18)

 

Fifth Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement among OFS Capital WM, LLC, MCF Capital
Management LLC, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, and Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, dated
April 3, 2013(11)

(k)(19)

 

Sixth Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement among OFS Capital WM, LLC, MCF Capital
Management LLC, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, and Wells
Fargo Delaware Trust Company, N.A., dated November 22, 2013(12)

(k)(20)

 

Seventh Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement among OFS Capital WM, LLC, MCF Capital
Management LLC, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, and Wells
Fargo Delaware Trust Company, N.A., dated January 17, 2014(14)

(k)(21)

 

Eighth Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement among OFS Capital WM, LLC, MCF Capital
Management LLC, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, and Wells
Fargo Delaware Trust Company, N.A., dated July 24, 2014(14)

(l)    Opinion and Consent of Sutherland Asbill & Brennan LLP(14)

(m)   Not applicable
(n)(1)  Consent of McGladrey LLP(15)

(n)(2)  Report of McGladrey LLP(15)

(o)    Not applicable
(p)    Not applicable
(q)    Not applicable
(r)    Joint Code of Ethics of OFS Capital Corporation and OFS Advisor(13)

(s)(1)  Form of Prospectus Supplement For Common Stock Offerings(2)

(s)(2)  Form of Prospectus Supplement For Preferred Stock Offerings(2)

(s)(3)  Form of Prospectus Supplement For Debt Offerings(2)

(s)(4)  Form of Prospectus Supplement For Rights Offerings(2)

(s)(5)  Form of Prospectus Supplement For Warrant Offerings(2)

(1) To be filed by amendment.

(2) Filed herewith.

(3) Filed previously in connection with the Company’s registration statement on Form N-2 Pre-Effective Amendment No. 2 (File
No. 333-166363) filed on October 5, 2010.

(4) Filed previously in connection with the Company’s registration statement on Form N-2 Pre-Effective Amendment No. 3 (File
No. 333-166363) filed on March 18, 2011.

(5) Filed previously in connection with the Company’s registration statement on Form N-2 Pre-Effective Amendment No. 6 (File
No. 333-166363) filed on May 3, 2012.
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(6) Filed previously in connection with the Company’s registration statement on Form N-2 Pre-Effective Amendment No. 7 (File
No. 333-166363) filed on July 24, 2012.

(7) Filed previously in connection with the Company’s registration statement on Form N-2 Pre-Effective Amendment No. 8 (File
No. 333-166363) filed on October 19, 2012.

(8) Filed previously in connection with the Company’s registration statement on Form N-2 Pre-Effective Amendment No. 9 (File
No. 333-166363) filed on October 24, 2012.

(9) Filed previously in connection with the Company’s annual report on Form 10-K filed on March 26, 2013.

(10)Filed previously as part of the Current Report on Form 8-K of the Company, filed on January 23, 2013.

(11)Filed previously in connection with the Company’s annual report on Form 10-K filed on March 17, 2014.

(12)Filed previously as part of the Current Report on Form 8-K of the Company, filed on November 26, 2013.

(13)Filed previously in connection with the Company’s registration statement on Form N-2 (File No. 333-196704) filed on June 12,
2014.

(14)Filed previously in connection with Pre-Effective Amendment No. 1 to the Company’s registration statement on Form N-2
(333-196704) filed on July 24, 2014.

(15)Filed previously in connection with the Company’s registration statement on Form N-2 (333-200376) filed on November 19,
2014.

ITEM 26. MARKETING ARRANGEMENTS

The information contained under the heading “Plan of Distribution” on this Registration Statement is incorporated herein by
reference and any information concerning any underwriters for a particular offering will be contained in the prospectus supplement
related to that offering.

ITEM 27. OTHER EXPENSES OF ISSUANCE AND DISTRIBUTION
 

SEC registration fee  $ 23,240 
FINRA filing fee   30,500 
NASDAQ Global Select Market listing fee   * 
Printing and postage   * 
Legal fees and expenses   * 
Accounting fees and expenses   * 
Miscellaneous   * 

Total  $ * 

* To be provided by pre-effective amendment.

Note:All listed amounts are estimates, except for the SEC registration fee and FINRA filing fee.

Item 28. Persons Controlled by or Under Common Control

The following entities are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company:

• OFS Capital WM, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company.

• OFS Funding, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company.

• OFS SBIC I GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company.

• OFS SBIC I, LP, a Delaware limited liability company.

ITEM 29. NUMBER OF HOLDERS OF SECURITIES

The following table sets forth the number of record holders of the Registrant’s common stock at September 30, 2014.
 

Title of Class  
Number of

Record Holders
Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share   2  
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ITEM 30. INDEMNIFICATION

The information contained under the heading “Description of Our Capital Stock” is incorporated herein by reference.

As permitted by Section 102 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, or the DGCL, the Registrant has
adopted provisions in its certificate of incorporation, as amended, that limit or eliminate the personal liability of its directors for a
breach of their fiduciary duty of care as a director. The duty of care generally requires that, when acting on behalf of the
corporation, directors exercise an informed business judgment based on all material information reasonably available to them.
Consequently, a director will not be personally liable to the Registrant or its shareholders for monetary damages or breach of
fiduciary duty as a director, except for liability for: any breach of the director’s duty of loyalty to the Registrant or its shareholders;
any act or omission not in good faith or that involves intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law; any act related to
unlawful stock repurchases, redemptions or other distributions or payment of dividends; or any transaction from which the director
derived an improper personal benefit. These limitations of liability do not affect the availability of equitable remedies such as
injunctive relief or rescission.

The Registrant’s certificate of incorporation and bylaws provides that all directors, officers, employees and agents of the
registrant shall be entitled to be indemnified by us to the fullest extent permitted by the DGCL, subject to the requirements of the
1940 Act. Under Section 145 of the DGCL, the Registrant is permitted to offer indemnification to its directors, officers, employees
and agents.

Section 145(a) of the DGCL provides, in general, that a corporation shall have the power to indemnify any person who was or
is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil,
criminal, administrative or investigative (other than an action by or in the right of the corporation), because the person is or was a
director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer,
employee or agent of any other enterprise. Such indemnity may be against expenses (including attorneys’ fees), judgments, fines
and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by the person in connection with such action, suit or proceeding, if
the person acted in good faith and in a manner the person reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the
corporation and if, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, the person did not have reasonable cause to believe the
person’s conduct was unlawful.

Section 145(b) of the DGCL provides, in general, that a corporation shall have the power to indemnify any person who was or
is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action or suit by or in the right of the
corporation to procure a judgment in its favor because the person is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation
or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of any other enterprise, against any
expenses (including attorneys’ fees) actually and reasonably incurred by the person in connection with the defense or settlement of
such action or suit if the person acted in good faith and in a manner the person reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the
best interests of the corporation, except that no indemnification shall be made in respect of any claim, issue or matter as to which
such person shall have been adjudged to be liable to the corporation unless and only to the extent that the Court of Chancery or the
court in which such action or suit was brought shall determine upon application that, despite the adjudication of liability but in view
of all the circumstances of the case, such person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity for such expenses which the Court of
Chancery or such other court shall deem proper.

Section 145(g) of the DGCL provides, in general, that a corporation shall have the power to purchase and maintain insurance on
behalf of any person who is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation or is or was serving at the request of the
corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of any other enterprise, against any liability asserted against the person in any
such capacity, or arising out of the person’s status as such, regardless of whether the corporation would have the power to
indemnify the person against such liability under the provisions of the law. The Registrant carries liability insurance for the benefit
of its directors and officers (other than with respect to claims resulting from the willful misfeasance, bad faith, gross negligence or
reckless disregard of the duties involved in the conduct of his or her office) on a claims-made basis.
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The investment management agreement provides that, absent willful misfeasance, bad faith or gross negligence in the
performance of its duties or by reason of the reckless disregard of its duties and obligations, the Advisor and its officers, managers,
agents, employees, controlling persons, members and any other person or entity affiliated with it are entitled to indemnification
from the Registrant for any damages, liabilities, costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and amounts reasonably
paid in settlement) arising from the rendering of the Advisor’s services under the investment management agreement or otherwise
as an investment adviser of the Registrant.

The Administration Agreement provides that, absent willful misfeasance, bad faith or negligence in the performance of its
duties or by reason of the reckless disregard of its duties and obligations, the Administrator and its officers, manager, agents,
employees, controlling persons, members and any other person or entity affiliated with it are entitled to indemnification from the
Registrant for any damages, liabilities, costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and amounts reasonably paid in
settlement) arising from the rendering of the Administrator’s services under the Administration Agreement or otherwise as
administrator for the Registrant.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling
persons of the Registrant pursuant to the provisions described above, or otherwise, the Registrant has been advised that in the
opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act
and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the
Registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling person in the successful defense of an action suit or
proceeding) is asserted by a director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the Registrant
will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate
jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is again public policy as expressed in the Act and will be governed by
the final adjudication of such issue.

The Registrant has agreed to indemnify the underwriters against specified liabilities for actions taken in their capacities as such,
including liabilities under the Securities Act.

ITEM 31. BUSINESS AND OTHER CONNECTIONS OF INVESTMENT ADVISER

A description of any other business, profession, vocation or employment of a substantial nature in which OFS Advisor, and
each managing director, director or executive officer of OFS Advisor, is or has been during the past two fiscal years, engaged in for
his or her own account or in the capacity of director, officer, employee, partner or trustee, is set forth in Part A of this Registration
Statement in the sections entitled “Management.” Additional information regarding the OFS Advisor and its officers and directors
is set forth in its Form ADV, as filed with the SEC (File No. 801-71366), and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 32. LOCATION OF ACCOUNTS AND RECORDS

All accounts, books and other documents required to be maintained by Section 31(a) of the 1940 Act, and the rules thereunder
are maintained at the offices of:

(1) OFS Capital Corporation, 10 S. Wacker Drive, Suite 2500, Chicago, IL, 60606;

(2) the transfer agent, American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC, 6201 15th Avenue, Brooklyn, NY 11219;

(3) the custodian, U.S. Bank National Association, One Federal Street, 3rd Floor, Boston, MA 02110; and

(4) OFS Capital Management, LLC, 10 S. Wacker Drive, Suite 2500, Chicago, IL, 60606.

ITEM 33. MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Not applicable.
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ITEM 34. UNDERTAKINGS

The Registrant undertakes:

1. to suspend the offering of shares until the prospectus is amended if (a) subsequent to the effective date of its registration
statement, the net asset value declines more than ten percent from its net asset value as of the effective date of the
registration statement or (b) the net asset value increases to an amount greater than the net proceeds (if applicable) as stated
in the prospectus.

2. Not applicable.

3. in the event that the securities being registered are to be offered to existing stockholders pursuant to warrants or rights, and
any securities not taken by shareholders are to be reoffered to the public, to supplement the prospectus, after the expiration
of the subscription period, to set forth the results of the subscription offer, the transactions by the underwriters during the
subscription period, the amount of unsubscribed securities to be purchased by underwriters, and the terms of any subsequent
underwriting thereof. Registrant further undertakes that if any public offering by the underwriters of the securities being
registered is to be made on terms differing from those set forth on the cover page of the prospectus, the Registrant shall file a
post-effective amendment to set forth the terms of such offering.

4.

a. to file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this registration
statement:

i. to include any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act;

ii. to reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the registration statement (or the most
recent post-effective amendment thereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in
the information set forth in the registration statement; and

iii. to include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the registration
statement or any material change to such information in the registration statement.

b. to file, in connection with any offering of securities, a post-effective amendment to the registration statement under Rule
462(d) to include as an exhibit a legal opinion regarding the valid issuance of any shares of common stock being sold.

c. that, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act, each such post-effective amendment shall be
deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of the securities at
that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof;

d. to remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which remain
unsold at the termination of the offering;

e. that, for the purpose of determining liability under the Securities Act to any purchaser, if the Registrant is subject to Rule
430C, each prospectus filed pursuant to Rule 497(b), (c), (d) or (e) under the Securities Act as part of a registration
statement relating to an offering, other than prospectus filed in reliance on Rule 430A under the Securities Act, shall be
deemed to be part of and included in the registration statement as of the date it is first used after effectiveness, provided,
however, that no statement made in a registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement or
made in a document incorporated or deemed incorporated by reference into the registration statement or prospectus that
is part of the registration statement will, as to a purchaser with a time of contract of sale prior to such first use, supersede
or modify any statement that was made in the registration statement or prospectus that was part of the registration
statement or made in any such document immediately prior to such date of first use.
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f. that for the purpose of determining liability of the Registrant under the Securities Act to any purchaser in the initial
distribution of securities, the undersigned Registrant undertakes that in a primary offering of securities of the
undersigned Registrant pursuant to this registration statement, regardless of the underwriting method used to sell the
securities to the purchaser, if the securities are offered or sold to such purchaser by means of any of the following
communications, the undersigned Registrant will be a seller to the purchaser and will be considered to offer or sell such
securities to the purchaser:

i. any preliminary prospectus or prospectus of the undersigned Registrant relating to the offering required to be filed
pursuant to Rule 497 under the Securities Act;

ii. the portion of any advertisement pursuant to Rule 482 under the Securities Act relating to the offering containing
material information about the undersigned Registrant or its securities provided by or on behalf of the undersigned
Registrant; and

iii. any other communication that is an offer in the offering made by the undersigned Registrant to the purchaser.

g. to file a post-effective amendment to the registration statement, and to suspend any offers or sales pursuant the
registration statement until such post-effective amendment has been declared effective under the 1993 Act, in the event
the shares of the Registrant are trading below its net asset value and either (a) the Registrant receives, or has been
advised by its independent registered accounting firm that it will receive, an audit report reflecting substantial doubt
regarding the Registrant’s ability to continue as a going concern or (b) the Registrant has concluded that a fundamental
change has occurred in its financial position or results of operations and

5.

a. that for the purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act, the information omitted from the form of
prospectus filed as part of a registration statement in reliance upon Rule 430A and contained in the form of prospectus
filed by the Registrant under Rule 497(h) under the Securities Act shall be deemed to be part of the Registration
Statement as of the time it was declared effective; and

b. that for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act, each post-effective amendment that contains a
form of prospectus shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the
offering of the securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.

6. Not applicable.

7. to not seek to sell shares under a prospectus supplement to the registration statement, or a post-effective amendment to the
registration statement, of which the prospectus forms a part (the “current registration statement”) if the cumulative dilution
to the Registrant’s net asset value (“NAV”) per share arising from offerings from the effective date of the current registration
statement through and including any follow-on offering would exceed 15% based on the anticipated pricing of such follow-
on offering. This limit would be measured separately for each offering pursuant to the current registration statement by
calculating the percentage dilution or accretion to aggregate NAV from that offering and then summing the anticipated
percentage dilution from each subsequent offering. If the Registrant files a new post-effective amendment, the threshold
would reset.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, the Registrant has duly caused this Registration Statement on Form
N-2 to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in Chicago, Illinois, on the 15th day of December,
2014.

OFS CAPITAL CORPORATION

By:/S/ BILAL RASHID

Name: Bilal Rashid
Title:  Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this Registration Statement has been signed by the following
persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated. This document may be executed by the signatories hereto on any number of
counterparts, all of which constitute one and the same instrument.

  
Signature  Title  Date
/s/ Bilal Rashid
Bilal Rashid  

Director and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)  

December 15, 2014

*
Glenn R. Pittson  

Director
 

December 15, 2014

*
Marc Abrams  

Director
 

December 15, 2014

*
Robert J. Cresci  

Director
 

December 15, 2014

*
Elaine E. Healy  

Director
 

December 15, 2014

/s/ Jeffrey A. Cerny
Jeffrey A. Cerny  

Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)  

December 15, 2014

*
Bei Zhang  

Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)  

December 15, 2014

* Signed by Bilal Rashid pursuant to a power of attorney signed by each individual and filed with this Registration Statement on
November 19, 2014.

C-9



 
Exhibit (d)(3)

 
FORM OF WARRANT AGREEMENT

 
WARRANT AGREEMENT

 
BY AND BETWEEN

 
OFS CAPITAL CORPORATION

 
AND

 
[ ]

 
Agreement made as of , between OFS CAPITAL CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation, with offices at 10 S. Wacker Drive, Suite 2500, Chicago,

Illinois 60606 (“Company”), and [      ], a corporation, with offices at (“Warrant Agent”).
 
WHEREAS, the Company is engaged in a public offering (“Public Offering”) of and warrants (“Warrants”) to public investors, each of such Warrants

evidencing the right of the holder thereof to purchase [describe securities issuable upon exercise] (“Securities”), for $ , subject to adjustment as described
herein; and

 
WHEREAS, the Company has filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission a Registration Statement on Form N-2, No. 333- (“Registration

Statement”), for the registration, under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (“Act”), of, among other securities, the Warrants and the Securities issuable
upon exercise of the Warrants; and

 
WHEREAS, the Company desires the Warrant Agent to act on behalf of the Company, and the Warrant Agent is willing to so act, in connection with the

issuance, registration, transfer, exchange, redemption and exercise of the Warrants; and
 
WHEREAS, the Company desires to provide for the form and provisions of the Warrants, the terms upon which they shall be issued and exercised and

the respective rights, limitation of rights and immunities of the Company, the Warrant Agent and the holders of the Warrants; and
 
WHEREAS, all acts and things have been done and performed which are necessary to make the Warrants, when executed on behalf of the Company and

countersigned by or on behalf of the Warrant Agent, as provided herein, the valid, binding and legal obligations of the Company, and to authorize the
execution and delivery of this Agreement.

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements herein contained, the parties hereto agree as follows:

 
1. Appointment of Warrant Agent. The Company hereby appoints the Warrant Agent to act as agent for the Company for the Warrants, and the Warrant Agent
hereby accepts such appointment and agrees to perform the same in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.
 
2. Warrants.

 
2.1. Form of Warrant. Each Warrant shall be issued to its holder in registered form, and each such holder’s Warrants shall be represented by a certificate

(a “Warrant Certificate”) in substantially the form of Exhibit A hereto, the provisions of which are incorporated herein and shall be signed by, or bear the
facsimile signature of, the Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer, Treasurer or the Secretary of the Company. In the event the person whose
facsimile signature has been placed upon any Warrant Certificate shall have ceased to serve in the capacity in which such person signed the Warrant before
such Warrant is issued, it may be issued with the same effect as if he or she had not ceased to hold such office at the date of issuance.

 
2.2. Effect of Countersignature. Unless and until countersigned by the Warrant Agent pursuant to this Agreement, a Warrant shall be invalid and of no

effect and may not be exercised by the holder thereof.
 
2.3. Registration.

 
2.3.1. Warrant Register. The Warrant Agent shall maintain books (“Warrant Register”), for the registration of original issuance and the registration of

transfer of the Warrants. Upon the initial issuance of the Warrants, the Warrant Agent shall issue and register the Warrants in the names of the respective
holders thereof in such denominations and otherwise in accordance with instructions delivered to the Warrant Agent by the Company.

 
2.3.2. Registered Holder. Prior to due presentment for registration of transfer of any Warrant, the Company and the Warrant Agent may deem and

treat the person in whose name such Warrant shall be registered upon the Warrant Register (“registered holder”) as the absolute owner of such Warrant and of
each Warrant represented thereby (notwithstanding any notation of ownership or other writing on the Warrant Certificate made by anyone other than the
Company or the Warrant Agent), for the purpose of any exercise thereof, and for all other purposes, and neither the Company nor the Warrant Agent shall be
affected by any notice to the contrary.
 

 



 

  
3. Terms and Exercise of Warrants.

 
3.1. Warrant Price. Each Warrant shall, when countersigned by the Warrant Agent, entitle the registered holder thereof, subject to the provisions of such

Warrant and of this Warrant Agreement, to purchase from the Company the number of Securities stated therein, at the price of $ per Security, subject to the
adjustments provided in Section 4 hereof and in the last sentence of this Section 3.1. The term “Warrant Price” as used in this Warrant Agreement refers to the
price per share at which Common Stock may be purchased at the time a Warrant is exercised. The Company in its sole discretion may lower the Warrant Price
at any time prior to the Expiration Date for a period of not less than ten (10) business days.

 
3.2. Duration of Warrants. A Warrant may be exercised only during the period (“Exercise Period”) commencing on , and terminating at 5:00 p.m., New

York City time on the date fixed for redemption of the Warrants as provided in Section 6 of this Agreement (“Expiration Date”). Except with respect to the
right to receive the Redemption Price (as set forth in Section 6 hereunder), each Warrant not exercised on or before the Expiration Date shall become void,
and all rights thereunder and all rights in respect thereof under this Agreement shall cease at the close of business on the Expiration Date. The Company in its
sole discretion may extend the duration of the Warrants by delaying the Expiration Date; provided, that the Company shall provide notice to registered holders
of the Warrants of any such extension of twenty (20) days or more.

 
3.3. Exercise of Warrants.

 
3.3.1. Payment. Subject to the provisions of the Warrant Certificate and this Warrant Agreement, a Warrant may be exercised by the registered holder

thereof by surrendering the Warrant Certificate, countersigned by the Warrant Agent, at the office of the Warrant Agent, or, if applicable, at the office of its
successor as Warrant Agent with the subscription form, as set forth in the Warrant Certificate, duly executed, and by paying in full the Warrant Price for each
Security as to which the Warrant is exercised and any and all applicable taxes due in connection with the exercise of the Warrant, the exchange of the Warrant
for Securities, and the issuance of the Securities, as follows:

 
 a. in cash;

 
 b. by certified or official bank check payable to the order of the Company;

 
3.3.2. Issuance of Certificates. As soon as practicable after the exercise of any Warrants and the clearance of the funds in payment of the Warrant

Price, the Company shall issue to the registered holder of such Warrants in book entry form the number of Securities to which such holder is entitled,
registered in such name or names as may be directed by him, her or it, and if the holder of such Warrants shall not have exercised all Warrants held by such
holder, a new countersigned Warrant Certificate will be issued for the remaining Warrants. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company shall not be obligated
to deliver any securities pursuant to the exercise of a Warrant and shall have no obligation to settle such Warrant exercise unless a registration statement under
the Act with respect to the Securities is effective. In the event that a registration statement with respect to the Securities underlying a Warrant is not effective
under the Act, the holder of such Warrant shall not be entitled to exercise such Warrant and such Warrant may have no value and expire worthless. In no event
shall the Company be required to net cash settle the warrant exercise. Warrants may not be exercised by, or securities issued to, any registered holder in any
state in which such exercise would be unlawful.

 
3.3.3. Valid Issuance. All equity Securities issued upon the proper exercise of a Warrant in conformity with this Agreement shall be validly issued,

fully paid and nonassessable. All debt Securities issued upon the proper exercise of a warrant in conformity with this Agreement shall be the valid, binding
and legal obligation of the Company enforceable against the Company in accordance with their terms, subject to the effect of any applicable bankruptcy,
insolvency (including, without limitation, all laws relating to fraudulent transfers, preferences or similar laws), reorganization, moratorium similar laws or
other now and hereafter in effect relating to or affecting enforcement of creditors’ rights generally, any fraudulent transfer, preference or similar law, general
principles of equity and the discretion of the court or other body before which any proceeding therefor may be brought and the unenforceability under certain
circumstances under law or court decisions of provisions providing for the indemnification of, or contribution to, a party with respect to a liability where such
indemnification or contribution is contrary to public policy.

 
3.3.4. Date of Issuance. Each person in whose name any such certificate for shares of Common Stock is issued shall be deemed for all purposes to

have become the holder of record of such shares on the date on which the Warrant was surrendered and payment of the Warrant Price was made; provided,
however, that, if the date of such surrender and payment is a date when the stock transfer books of the Company are closed, such person shall be deemed to
have become the holder of such shares at the close of business on the next succeeding date on which such stock transfer books are open.
 
4. Adjustments.

 
4.1. Stock Dividends – Split-Ups. If after the date hereof, and subject to the provisions of Section 4.6 below, the number of outstanding shares of

Securities is increased by a dividend payable in Securities, by a split of Securities, or by any other similar event, then, on the effective date of such dividend,
split-up or similar event, the number of Securities issuable on exercise of each Warrant shall be increased in proportion to such increase in outstanding
Securities.

 
4.2. Aggregation of Securities. If after the date hereof, and subject to the provisions of Section 4.6, the number of outstanding Securities is decreased by a

consolidation, combination, reverse split or reclassification of Securities or any other similar event, then, on the effective date of such consolidation,
combination, reverse split, reclassification or similar event, the number of Securities issuable on exercise of each Warrant shall be decreased in proportion to
such decrease in outstanding Securities.

 
4.3. Adjustments in Exercise Price. Whenever the number of Securities purchasable upon the exercise of the Warrants is adjusted, as provided in Section

4.1 and 4.2 above, the Warrant Price shall be adjusted (to the nearest cent) by multiplying such Warrant Price immediately prior to such adjustment by a
fraction (x) the numerator of which shall be the number of Securities purchasable upon the exercise of the Warrants immediately prior to such adjustment, and
(y) the denominator of which shall be the number of Securities so purchasable immediately thereafter.

 

 



 

 
4.4. Replacement of Securities upon Reorganization, etc. In case of any reclassification or reorganization of the outstanding Securities (other than a

change covered by Section 4.1 or 4.2 hereof or that solely affects the par value, if any, of such Securities), or in the case of any merger or consolidation of the
Company with or into another corporation (other than a consolidation or merger in which the Company is the continuing corporation and that does not result
in any reclassification or reorganization of the outstanding Securities), or in the case of any sale or conveyance to another corporation or entity of the assets or
other property of the Company as an entirety or substantially as an entirety in connection with which the Company is dissolved, the Warrant holders shall
thereafter have the right to purchase and receive, upon the basis and upon the terms and conditions specified in the Warrants and in lieu of the Securities
immediately theretofore purchasable and receivable upon the exercise of the rights represented thereby, the kind and amount of shares of stock or other
securities or property (including cash) receivable upon such reclassification, reorganization, merger or consolidation, or upon a dissolution following any such
sale or transfer, that the Warrant holder would have received if such Warrant holder had exercised his, her or its Warrant(s) immediately prior to such event;
and if any reclassification also results in a change in Securities covered by Section 4.1 or 4.2, then such adjustment shall be made pursuant to Sections 4.1,
4.2, 4.3 and this Section 4. 4. The provisions of this Section 4.4 shall similarly apply to successive reclassifications, reorganizations, mergers or
consolidations, sales or other transfers.

 
4.5. Notices of Changes in Warrant. Upon every adjustment of the Warrant Price or the number of Securities issuable upon exercise of a Warrant, the

Company shall give written notice thereof to the Warrant Agent, which notice shall state the Warrant Price resulting from such adjustment and the increase or
decrease, if any, in the number of Securities purchasable at such price upon the exercise of a Warrant, setting forth in reasonable detail the method of
calculation and the facts upon which such calculation is based. Upon the occurrence of any event specified in Sections 4.1, 4.2, 4.3 or 4.4, then, in any such
event, the Company shall give written notice to each Warrant holder, at the last address set forth for such holder in the warrant register, of the record date or
the effective date of the event. Failure to give such notice, or any defect therein, shall not affect the legality or validity of such event.

 
4.6. No Fractional Securities. Notwithstanding any provision contained in this Warrant Agreement to the contrary, the Company shall not issue fractional

Securities upon exercise of Warrants. If, by reason of any adjustment made pursuant to this Section 4, the holder of any Warrant would be entitled, upon the
exercise of such Warrant, to receive a fractional interest in a Security, the Company shall, upon such exercise, round up or down to the nearest whole number
the number of Securities to be issued to the Warrant holder.

 
4.7. Form of Warrant Certificate. The form of Warrant Certificate need not be changed because of any adjustment pursuant to this Section 4, and Warrants

issued after such adjustment may state the same Warrant Price and the same number of Securities as is stated in the Warrants initially issued pursuant to this
Agreement. However, the Company may at any time in its sole discretion make any change in the form of Warrant Certificate that the Company may deem
appropriate and that does not affect the substance thereof, and any Warrant Certificate thereafter issued or countersigned, whether in exchange or substitution
for an outstanding Warrant Certificate or otherwise, may be in the form as so changed.
 
5. Transfer and Exchange of Warrants.

 
5.1. Registration of Transfer. The Warrant Agent shall register the transfer, from time to time, of any outstanding Warrant upon the Warrant Register,

upon surrender of the Warrant Certificate representing such Warrant, for transfer, properly endorsed with signatures properly guaranteed and accompanied by
appropriate instructions for transfer. Upon any such transfer, a new Warrant Certificate representing an equal aggregate number of Warrants shall be issued
and the old Warrant Certificate shall be cancelled by the Warrant Agent. The Warrants so cancelled shall be delivered by the Warrant Agent to the Company
from time to time upon request.

 
5.2. Procedure for Surrender of Warrant Certificates. Warrant Certificates may be surrendered to the Warrant Agent, together with a written request for

exchange or transfer, and thereupon the Warrant Agent shall issue in exchange therefor one or more new Warrant Certificates as requested by the registered
holder of the Warrants so surrendered, representing an equal aggregate number of Warrants represented by such Warrant Certificate; provided, however, that
in the event that a Warrant Certificate surrendered for transfer bears a restrictive legend, the Warrant Agent shall not cancel such Warrant Certificate and issue
new Warrant Certificate(s) in exchange therefor until the Warrant Agent has received an opinion of counsel for the Company stating that such transfer may be
made and indicating whether the new Warrant Certificate(s) must also bear a restrictive legend.

 
5.3. Fractional Warrants. The Warrant Agent shall not be required to effect any registration of transfer or exchange which would result in the issuance of a

warrant certificate for a fraction of a Warrant.
 
5.4. Service Charges. No service charge shall be made for any exchange or registration of transfer of Warrants.
 
5.5. Warrant Execution and Countersignature. The Warrant Agent is hereby authorized to countersign and to deliver, in accordance with the terms of this

Agreement, the Warrant Certificates required to be issued pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5, and the Company, whenever required by the Warrant
Agent, shall supply the Warrant Agent with Warrant Certificates duly executed on behalf of the Company for such purpose.
 
6. Redemption.

 
6.1. Redemption. Not less than all of the outstanding Warrants may be redeemed, at the option of the Company, at any time while they are exercisable and

prior to their expiration, at the office of the Warrant Agent, upon the notice referred to in Section 6.2, at the price of $0.001 per Warrant (“Redemption
Price”), provided that [describe redemption criteria].

 

 



 

 
6.2. Date Fixed for, and Notice of, Redemption. In the event the Company shall elect to redeem all of the Warrants, the Company shall fix a date for the

redemption. Notice of redemption shall be mailed by first class mail, postage prepaid, by the Company not less than thirty (30) days prior to the date fixed for
redemption to the registered holders of the Warrants to be redeemed at their last addresses as they shall appear on the registration books. Any notice mailed in
the manner herein provided shall be conclusively presumed to have been duly given whether or not the registered holder received such notice.

 
6.3. Exercise After Notice of Redemption. The Warrants may be exercised in accordance with Section 3.3.1 of this Agreement at any time after notice of

redemption shall have been given by the Company pursuant to Section 6.2 hereof and prior to the time and date fixed for redemption. On and after the
redemption date, the record holder of the Warrants shall have no further rights except to receive, upon surrender of the Warrants, the Redemption Price.
 
7. Other Provisions Relating to Rights of Holders of Warrants.

 
7.1. No Rights as Shareholder. A Warrant does not entitle the registered holder thereof to any of the rights of a shareholder of the Company, including,

without limitation, the right to receive dividends, or other distributions, exercise any preemptive rights to vote or to consent or to receive notice as
shareholders in respect of the meetings of shareholders or the election of directors of the Company or any other matter.

 
7.2. Lost, Stolen, Mutilated or Destroyed Warrants. If any Warrant Certificate is lost, stolen, mutilated or destroyed, the Company and the Warrant Agent

may on such terms as to indemnity or otherwise as they may in their discretion impose (which shall, in the case of a mutilated Warrant, include the surrender
thereof), issue a new Warrant Certificate of like denomination, tenor and date as the Warrant Certificate so lost, stolen, mutilated or destroyed. Any such new
Warrant Certificate shall constitute a substitute contractual obligation of the Company, whether or not the allegedly lost, stolen, mutilated or destroyed
Warrant Certificate shall be at any time enforceable by anyone.

 
7.3. Reservation of Securities. The Company shall at all times reserve and keep available a number of its authorized but unissued Securities that will be

sufficient to permit the exercise in full of all outstanding Warrants issued pursuant to this Agreement.
 
8. Concerning the Warrant Agent and Other Matters.

 
8.1. Payment of Taxes. The Company shall from time to time promptly pay all taxes and charges that may be imposed upon the Company or the Warrant

Agent in respect of the issuance or delivery of shares of Common Stock upon the exercise of Warrants, but the Company shall not be obligated to pay any
transfer taxes in respect of the Warrants or such shares.

 
8.2. Resignation, Consolidation or Merger of Warrant Agent.

 
8.2.1. Appointment of Successor Warrant Agent. The Warrant Agent, or any successor to it hereafter appointed, may resign its duties and be

discharged from all further duties and liabilities hereunder after giving sixty (60) days’ notice in writing to the Company. If the office of the Warrant Agent
becomes vacant by resignation or incapacity to act or otherwise, the Company shall appoint in writing a successor Warrant Agent in place of the Warrant
Agent. If the Company shall fail to make such appointment within a period of thirty (30) days after it has been notified in writing of such resignation or
incapacity by the Warrant Agent or by the holder of the Warrant (who shall, with such notice, submit his Warrant for inspection by the Company), then the
holder of any Warrant may apply to the Supreme Court of the State of New York for the County of New York for the appointment of a successor Warrant
Agent at the Company’s cost. Any successor Warrant Agent, whether appointed by the Company or by such court, shall be a corporation organized and
existing under the laws of the State of New York, in good standing and having its principal office in the Borough of Manhattan, The City and State of New
York, and authorized under such laws to exercise corporate trust powers and subject to supervision or examination by federal or state authority. After
appointment, any successor Warrant Agent shall be vested with all the authority, powers, rights, immunities, duties and obligations of its predecessor Warrant
Agent with like effect as if originally named as Warrant Agent hereunder, without any further act or deed. If for any reason it becomes necessary or
appropriate, the predecessor Warrant Agent shall execute and deliver, at the expense of the Company, an instrument transferring to such successor Warrant
Agent all the authority, powers and rights of such predecessor Warrant Agent hereunder; and upon request of any successor Warrant Agent, the Company
shall make, execute, acknowledge and deliver any and all instruments in writing for more fully and effectually vesting in and confirming to such successor
Warrant Agent all such authority, powers, rights, immunities, duties and obligations.

 
8.2.2. Notice of Successor Warrant Agent. In the event a successor Warrant Agent shall be appointed, the Company shall give notice thereof to the

predecessor Warrant Agent and the transfer agent for the Securities not later than the effective date of any such appointment.
 
8.2.3. Merger or Consolidation of Warrant Agent. Any corporation into which the Warrant Agent may be merged or with which it may be

consolidated or any corporation resulting from any merger or consolidation to which the Warrant Agent shall be a party shall be the successor Warrant Agent
under this Agreement without any further act.

 
8.3. Fees and Expenses of Warrant Agent.

 
8.3.1. Remuneration. The Company agrees to pay the Warrant Agent reasonable remuneration for its services as such Warrant Agent hereunder and

shall reimburse the Warrant Agent upon demand for all expenditures that the Warrant Agent may reasonably incur in the execution of its duties hereunder.
 

 



 

 
8.3.2. Further Assurances. The Company agrees to perform, execute, acknowledge and deliver or cause to be performed, executed, acknowledged

and delivered all such further and other acts, instruments and assurances as may reasonably be required by the Warrant Agent for the carrying out or
performing of the provisions of this Agreement.

 
8.4. Liability of Warrant Agent.

 
8.4.1. Reliance on Company Statement. Whenever in the performance of its duties under this Warrant Agreement, the Warrant Agent shall deem it

necessary or desirable that any fact or matter be proved or established by the Company prior to taking or suffering any action hereunder, such fact or matter
(unless other evidence in respect thereof be herein specifically prescribed) may be deemed to be conclusively proved and established by a statement signed by
the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer or Chairman of the Board of the Company and delivered to the Warrant Agent. The Warrant Agent may
rely upon such statement for any action taken or suffered in good faith by it pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement.

 
8.4.2. Indemnity. The Warrant Agent shall be liable hereunder only for its own negligence, willful misconduct or bad faith. The Company agrees to

indemnify the Warrant Agent and save it harmless against any and all liabilities, including judgments, costs and reasonable counsel fees, for anything done or
omitted by the Warrant Agent in the execution of this Agreement except as a result of the Warrant Agent’s negligence, willful misconduct or bad faith.

 
8.4.3. Exclusions. The Warrant Agent shall have no responsibility with respect to the validity of this Agreement or with respect to the validity or

execution of any Warrant (except its countersignature thereof); nor shall it be responsible for any breach by the Company of any covenant or condition
contained in this Agreement or in any Warrant; nor shall it be responsible to make any adjustments required under the provisions of Section 4 hereof or
responsible for the manner, method or amount of any such adjustment or the ascertaining of the existence of facts that would require any such adjustment; nor
shall it by any act hereunder be deemed to make any representation or warranty as to the authorization or reservation of any shares of Common Stock to be
issued pursuant to this Agreement or any Warrant or as to whether any shares of Common Stock will when issued be valid and fully paid and nonassessable.

 
8.5. Acceptance of Agency. The Warrant Agent hereby accepts the agency established by this Agreement and agrees to perform the same upon the terms

and conditions herein set forth and, among other things, shall account promptly to the Company with respect to Warrants exercised and concurrently account
for, and pay to the Company, all moneys received by the Warrant Agent for the purchase of shares of Common Stock through the exercise of Warrants.
 
9. Miscellaneous Provisions.

 
9.1. Successors. All the covenants and provisions of this Agreement by or for the benefit of the Company or the Warrant Agent shall bind and inure to the

benefit of their respective successors and assigns.
 
9.2. Notices. Any notice, statement or demand authorized by this Warrant Agreement to be given or made by the Warrant Agent or by the holder of any

Warrant to or on the Company shall be sufficiently given when so delivered if by hand or overnight delivery or if sent by certified mail or private courier
service within five (5) days after deposit of such notice, postage prepaid, addressed (until another address is filed in writing by the Company with the Warrant
Agent), as follows:
 
OFS Capital Corporation
10 S. Wacker Drive
Suite 2500
Chicago, IL 60606
Attn: Chief Financial Officer

 
Any notice, statement or demand authorized by this Agreement to be given or made by the holder of any Warrant or by the Company to or on the Warrant

Agent shall be sufficiently given when so delivered if by hand or overnight delivery or if sent by certified mail or private courier service within five (5) days
after deposit of such notice, postage prepaid, addressed (until another address is filed in writing by the Warrant Agent with the Company), as follows:
 
with a copy in each case to:
 
Sutherland Asbill & Brennan LLP
700 6th Street, NW
Suite 700
Washington, D.C. 20001
Attn: Cynthia M. Krus
 
and

 
9.3. Applicable law. The validity, interpretation, and performance of this Agreement and of the Warrants shall be governed in all respects by the laws of

the State of New York. The Company hereby agrees that any action, proceeding or claim against it arising out of or relating in any way to this Agreement
shall be brought and enforced in the courts of the State of New York or the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York, and
irrevocably submits to such jurisdiction, which jurisdiction shall be exclusive. The Company hereby waives any objection to such exclusive jurisdiction and
that such courts represent an inconvenient forum. Any such process or summons to be served upon the Company may be served by transmitting a copy
thereof by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed to it at the address set forth in Section 9.2 hereof. Such mailing
shall be deemed personal service and shall be legal and binding upon the Company in any action, proceeding or claim.
 

 



 

 
9.4. Persons Having Rights under this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement expressed and nothing that may be implied from any of the provisions

hereof is intended, or shall be construed, to confer upon, or give to, any person or corporation other than the parties hereto and the registered holders of the
Warrants and, for the purposes of Section 9.2 hereof, any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this Warrant Agreement or of any covenant, condition,
stipulation, promise or agreement hereof. All covenants, conditions, stipulations, promises and agreements contained in this Warrant Agreement shall be for
the sole and exclusive benefit of the parties hereto and their successors and assigns and of the registered holders of the Warrants.

 
9.5. Examination of the Warrant Agreement. A copy of this Agreement shall be available at all reasonable times at the office of the Warrant Agent in the

Borough of Manhattan, The City and State of New York, for inspection by the registered holder of any Warrant. The Warrant Agent may require any such
holder to submit his Warrant for inspection by it.

 
9.6. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of original or facsimile counterparts and each of such counterparts shall for all

purposes be deemed to be an original, and all such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same instrument.
 
9.7. Effect of Headings. The Section headings herein are for convenience only and are not part of this Warrant Agreement and shall not affect the

interpretation thereof.
 
9.8. Amendments. This Agreement may be amended by the parties hereto without the consent of any registered holder for the purpose of curing any

ambiguity, or of curing, correcting or supplementing any defective provision contained herein or adding or changing any other provisions with respect to
matters or questions arising under this Agreement as the parties may deem necessary or desirable and that the parties deem shall not to materially and
adversely affect the interest of the registered holders. All other modifications or amendments, including any amendment to increase the Warrant Price or
shorten the Exercise Period, shall require the written consent of the registered holders of a majority of the then outstanding Warrants. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the Company may lower the Warrant Price or extend the duration of the Exercise Period pursuant to Sections 3.1 and 3.2, respectively, without the
consent of the registered holders.

 
9.9. Relationship. This Agreement does not constitute an agreement for a partnership or joint venture among the parties. The Warrant Agent shall act

hereunder as agent of the Company solely to the limited extent set forth in this Agreement, but shall not assume any fiduciary duties to, or have any rights,
power or authority on behalf of, the Company or any of its affiliates, equity holders or creditors or of any other person or entity not expressly set forth in this
Agreement. Any duties of the Warrant Agent arising out of its engagements pursuant to this Agreement shall be owed solely to the Company. No party shall
make any commitments with third parties that are binding on any other party without such other party’s prior written consent, and none of the Warrant Agent,
employees, or representatives or contractors of the Warrant Agent shall be deemed to be employees of the Company or any of its affiliates.

 
9.10. Third Party Beneficiaries. Except as explicitly stated elsewhere in this Agreement, nothing under this Agreement is intended or shall be construed to

give any rights, benefits, remedies or claims under or by reason of this Agreement or any part thereof to anyone other than the Warrant Agent and the
Company, and the duties and responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Warrant Agent and the
Company.
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been duly executed by the parties hereto as of the day and year first above written.
 

 OFS CAPITAL CORPORATION
  
 By:  
  Name:
  Title:
   
 [ ]  
   
 By:  
  Name:
  Title:
   
 [ ]  
   
 By:  
  Name:
  Title:
 

 



 

  
EXHIBIT A

 
Form of Warrant Certificate

 
THE WARRANTS REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE ARE SUBJECT TO CERTAIN RESTRICTIONS

ON TRANSFER DESCRIBED BELOW
 

[Form of Face of Warrant Certificate]
 

No. W-   Warrants
 

VOID AFTER 5:00 p.m. NEW YORK CITY TIME on  ,  
 

WARRANT CERTIFICATE FOR PURCHASE OF [SECURITIES] OF
 

OFS Capital Corporation
 
THIS CERTIFIES THAT, for value received or registered assigns (the “Registered Holder”) is the owner of the number of warrants (“Warrants”)

specified above. Each Warrant initially entitles the Registered Holder to purchase, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Warrant Certificate and
the Warrant Agreement (as hereinafter defined), [describe securities issuable upon exercise] (“Securities”), of OFS CAPITAL CORPORATION, a Delaware
corporation (the “Company”), at any time during the Exercise Period (as hereinafter defined), upon the presentation and surrender of this Warrant Certificate
with the Subscription Form on the reverse hereof duly executed, at the corporate office of as Warrant Agent, or its successor (the “Warrant Agent”),
accompanied by payment of $ (the “Purchase Price”) in lawful money of the United States of America in cash or by official bank or certified check made
payable to OFS Capital Corporation.

 
This Warrant Certificate and each Warrant represented hereby are issued pursuant to and are subject in all respects to the terms and conditions set forth in

the Warrant Agreement (the “Warrant Agreement”) dated  ,   by and between the Company and the Warrant Agent. The board of directors of the Company
retains the right to amend the Warrant Agreement in its discretion, subject to certain restrictions set forth in the Warrant Agreement.

 
In the event of certain contingencies provided for in the Warrant Agreement, the Purchase Price or the number of Securities subject to purchase upon the

exercise of each Warrant represented hereby are subject to modifications or adjustment.
 
Each Warrant represented hereby is exercisable at the option of the Registered Holder, but no fractional shares of Common Stock will be issued.

However, if the Registered Holder exercises all the Warrants then owned by the Registered Holder, the Company shall pay to such Registered Holder in lieu
of the issuance of any fractional shares of Common Stock that is otherwise payable, an amount in cash based on the market value of the Common Stock on
the last trading day prior to the date of exercise of the Warrants. In the case of the exercise of less than all the Warrants represented hereby, the Company shall
cancel this Warrant Certificate upon the surrender hereof and shall execute and deliver a new Warrant Certificate or Warrant Certificates of like tenor, which
the Warrant Agent shall countersign, for the balance of such Warrants.

 
The term “Exercise Period” shall mean the period commencing on  , and terminating at 5:00 p.m., New York City time on the date fixed for redemption

of the Warrants as provided in Section 6 of the Warrant Agreement.
 
The Company shall not be obligated to deliver any Securities pursuant to the exercise of this Warrant unless a registration statement under the Securities

Act of 1933, as amended, with respect to such securities is then effective. This Warrant shall not be exercisable by a Registered Holder in any state where
such exercise would be unlawful.

 
This Warrant Certificate is exchangeable, upon the surrender hereof by the Registered Holder at the corporate office of the Warrant Agent, for a new

Warrant Certificate or Warrant Certificates of like tenor representing an equal aggregate number of Warrants, each of such new Warrant Certificates to
represent such number of Warrants as shall be designated by such Registered Holder at the time of such surrender.
 

Prior to due presentment for registration of transfer of any Warrant represented hereby, the Registered Holder shall not be entitled to any rights of a
shareholder of the Company, including, without limitation, the right to vote or to receive dividends or other distributions, and shall not be entitled to receive
any notice of any proceedings of the Company, except as provided in the Warrant Agreement.

 
Prior to due presentment for registration of transfer of any Warrant, the Company and the Warrant Agent may deem and treat the Registered Holder as the

absolute owner of this Warrant Certificate and of each Warrant represented hereby (notwithstanding any notations of ownership or writing hereon made by
anyone other than a duly authorized officer of the Company or the Warrant Agent), for the purpose of any exercise thereof, and for all other purposes, and
neither the Company nor the Warrant Agent shall be affected by any notice to the contrary.

 
This Warrant Certificate shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York.
 

 



 

 
This Warrant Certificate is not valid unless countersigned by the Warrant Agent.
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Warrant Certificate to be duly executed, manually or in facsimile by its officer thereunto duly

authorized and a facsimile of its corporate seal to be imprinted hereon.
 

 OFS CAPITAL CORPORATION
  
 By:  
  Name:
  Title:
 
Dated:    
 
 [Seal]
 
COUNTERSIGNED:  
  
[ ], as  
Warrant Agent  
  
By:   
 Name:  
 Title:  
 

 



 

  
[Form of Reverse of Warrant Certificate]

 
NOTICE OF ELECTION TO EXERCISE

 
To Be Executed by the Registered Holder

in Order to Exercise Warrants
 
THE UNDERSIGNED REGISTERED HOLDER hereby irrevocably elects to exercise   Warrants represented by this Warrant Certificate, and to purchase

the securities issuable upon the exercise of such Warrants, and requests that certificates for such securities shall be issued in the name of:
 

 

 
(PLEASE INSERT NAME AND SOCIAL SECURITY OR OTHER IDENTIFYING NUMBER)

 
and be delivered to:

 
  
  
  
  
(please print or type name and address)  
 
and if such number of Warrants shall not be all the Warrants evidenced by this Warrant Certificate, that a new Warrant Certificate for the balance of such
Warrants be registered in the name of, and delivered to, the Registered Holder at the address stated below.

 
The undersigned represents that the exercise of the Warrants evidenced hereby was solicited by a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority.

If not solicited by a FINRA member firm, please write “unsolicited” in the space below. Unless otherwise indicated by listing the name of another FINRA
member firm, it will be assumed that the exercise was solicited by [ ].

 
  
(Name of FINRA Member)  
  
  
 

Dated:_  
  
  
Address  
  
Taxpayer Identification Number  
  
Signature Guaranteed  
  
 

 



 

  
ASSIGNMENT

 
To Be Executed by the Registered Holder in Order to Assign Warrants

 
For value received (and, for any transfers prior to 5:00 p.m. New York City time on _, _, hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto:
 

 

 
(please insert name and social security or other identifying number of transferee)

 
  
  
  
  
(please print or type name and address)  

 
of the Warrants represented by this Warrant Certificate, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints Attorney to transfer this Warrant Certificate on

the books of the Company, with full power of substitution in the premises.
 

Dated: X  
 Signature Guaranteed  
   
   

 
THE SIGNATURE TO THE ASSIGNMENT OR THE SUBSCRIPTION FORM MUST CORRESPOND TO THE NAME AS WRITTEN UPON THE

FACE OF THIS WARRANT CERTIFICATE IN EVERY PARTICULAR, WITHOUT ALTERATION OR ENLARGEMENT OR ANY CHANGE
WHATSOEVER, AND MUST BE GUARANTEED BY AN ELIGIBLE INSTITUTION (AS DEFINED IN RULE 17Ad-15 UNDER THE SECURITIES
AND EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934) WHICH MAY INCLUDE A COMMERCIAL BANK OR TRUST COMPANY, SAVINGS ASSOCIATION, CREDIT
UNION OR A MEMBER FIRM OF THE AMERICAN STOCK EXCHANGE, NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE, PACIFIC STOCK EXCHANGE OR
MIDWEST STOCK EXCHANGE.
  

 

 
 

 



 
Exhibit (d)(4)

 
FORM OF SUBSCRIPTION AGENT AGREEMENT

 
SUBSCRIPTION AGENT AGREEMENT

BY AND BETWEEN
OFS CAPITAL CORPORATION

and
[ ]

 
This Subscription Rights Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made as of between OFS CAPITAL CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation (the

“Company”), and [ ] (the “Subscription Agent”), and relates to the base prospectus included in the Registration Statement on Form N-2, File No. 333-200376,
filed by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 19, 2014, as amended by any amendment filed with respect thereto (the
“Registration Statement”) and any supplemental prospectus (together with the base prospectus, the “Prospectus”). Capitalized terms not otherwise defined
herein shall have the meanings given to them in the Subscription Certificate (as defined below).

 
WHEREAS, the Company proposes to make a subscription offer by issuing subscription certificates in the form designated by the Company

(“Subscription Certificates”) to shareholders of record (the “Record Date Shareholders”) of its common stock, par value $0.01 per share (“Common Stock”),
as of a record date specified by the Company (the “Record Date”) in the Prospectus, pursuant to which each Record Date Shareholder, or any transferee of a
Record Date Shareholder (such Record Date Shareholders and transferees thereof, the “Rights Holders”) shall have certain rights (the “Rights”) to subscribe
for shares of Common Stock, as described in and upon such terms as are set forth in the Prospectus, a final copy of which has been or, upon availability shall
promptly be, delivered to the Subscription Agent; and

 
WHEREAS, the Company wishes the Subscription Agent to perform certain acts on behalf of the Company, and the Subscription Agent is willing to so

act, in connection with the distribution of the Subscription Certificates and the issuance and exercise of the Rights, all upon the terms and conditions set forth
herein.

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual agreements set forth herein, each of the parties agrees as follows:

 
1. Appointment. 

 
The Company hereby appoints the Subscription Agent to act as subscription and distribution agent in connection with the distribution of Subscription

Certificates and the issuance and exercise of the Rights (the “Offering”) in accordance with the terms set forth in the Agreement, and the Subscription Agent
hereby accepts such appointment.

 
2. Form and Execution of Subscription Certificates. 

 
Each Subscription Certificate shall be irrevocable and transferable upon the terms and conditions set forth in the Prospectus. The Subscription Agent shall

maintain a register of Subscription Certificates and of the Rights Holders.
 

3. Rights and Issuance of Subscription Certificates. 
 

 A. Each Subscription Certificate shall evidence the Rights of the Rights Holders therein named to purchase Common Stock upon the terms and
conditions therein set forth.
 

 

B. Upon the written advice of the Company, signed by any of its duly authorized officers, as to the Record Date, the Subscription Agent shall, from a
list of the Record Date Shareholders to be prepared by the Subscription Agent, prepare and record Subscription Certificates in the names of such
Record Date Shareholders, setting forth the number of Rights to subscribe for shares of Common Stock calculated on the basis of one Right for each
shares of Common Stock recorded on the books in the name of each such Record Date Shareholder as of the Record Date. No fractional Rights shall
be issued. Each Subscription Certificate shall be dated as of the Record Date and shall be executed manually or by facsimile signature of a duly
authorized officer of the Subscription Agent.
 

 

C. Upon receipt of such written advice, signed as aforesaid, as to the effective date of the Registration Statement, the Subscription Agent shall
promptly countersign and deliver the Subscription Certificates, together with a copy of the Prospectus, instruction letter and any other documents as
the Company deems necessary or appropriate, to all Record Date Shareholders with record addresses in the United States (including its territories
and possessions and the District of Columbia). Delivery shall be by first class mail (without registration or insurance).
 

 

D. The Subscription Agent shall mail a copy of the Prospectus, instruction letter, a special notice and such other documents as the Company may deem
necessary or appropriate, if any, but not Subscription Certificates to Record Date Shareholders whose record addresses are outside the United States
(including its territories and possessions and the District of Columbia) (“Foreign Record Date Shareholders”). Those Record Date Shareholders
having a registered address outside the United States (who shall only receive copies of the Prospectus, instruction letter and such other documents as
the Company may deem necessary or appropriate, if any) delivery shall be by air mail (without registration or insurance) or by first class mail
(without registration or insurance) to those Record Date Shareholders having an APO or FPO address. The Rights to which such Subscription
Certificates relate shall be held by the Subscription Agent for such Foreign Record Date Shareholders’ accounts until instructions are received to
exercise, sell or transfer such Rights.
 

 



 

 
 
 

 
E. The Subscription Agent shall perform their respective duties hereunder in accordance with the terms and provisions of the Fee and Service Schedule

attached hereto as Exhibit B, and shall act at all times in accordance with the description of the offering and the Subscription Agent’ duties set forth
herein and in the Prospectus.
 

4. [Over-Subscription Privilege. 
 
If any shares of Common Stock available for purchase pursuant to the Rights offering are not subscribed for by Rights Holders pursuant to the Basic

Subscription, the Subscription Agent shall allot such shares to Rights Holders who have properly subscribed for such shares pursuant to an over-subscription
privilege on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Prospectus, including as to proration. In addition, any Rights Holder other than a Record
Date Shareholder who exercises Rights is entitled to subscribe for any Remaining Shares that are not otherwise subscribed for by Record Date Shareholders
pursuant to their over-subscription privilege, on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Prospectus, including as to proration. We refer to these
over-subscription privileges as the “Over-Subscription Privilege.”]

 
5. Exercise. 

 

 

A. Rights Holders may acquire shares of Common Stock by delivery to the Subscription Agent no later than 5:00 pm on the Expiration Date, as defined
below, or on any extended Expiration Date, of (i) a properly completed and duly executed Subscription Certificate and a money order or check or
bank draft drawn on a bank or branch located in the United States and payable to “ ” for an amount equal to the number of shares of Common Stock
subscribed for pursuant to the Basic Subscription [and the Over-Subscription Privilege] multiplied by the Estimated Subscription Price, each as
defined in the Subscription Certificate (the “Exercise Price”); or (ii) a Notice of Guaranteed Delivery guaranteeing delivery of (A) a properly
completed and duly executed Subscription Certificate and (B) a money order or check or bank draft drawn on a bank or branch located in the United
States and payable to “ ” for an amount equal to the Exercise Price. Payment must be made in U.S. dollars. For the purposes of the Prospectus and
this Agreement, “Business Day” shall mean any day on which trading is conducted on The NASDAQ Global Select Market.
 

 
B. The Offering shall terminate, on such date as the Company shall designate to the Subscription Agent in writing (the “Expiration Date”). For the

purpose of determining the time of the exercise of any Rights, delivery of any materials to the Subscription Agent shall be deemed to occur when
such materials are received by the Subscription Agent specified in the Prospectus.
 

 

C. Within ten Business Days following the Expiration Date (the “Confirmation Date”), the Subscription Agent shall send to each exercising Rights
Holder (or, if rights are held by Cede & Co. or any other depository or nominee, to Cede & Co. or such other depository or nominee, as applicable) a
confirmation showing (i) the number of shares purchased pursuant to the Basic Subscription; [(ii) the number of shares, if any, acquired pursuant to
the Over-Subscription Privilege;] (iii) the per share and total purchase price for such shares; and (iv) any additional amount payable to the Company
by such Rights Holder or any excess to be refunded by the Company to such Rights Holder, in each case based on the Subscription Price as
determined on the Expiration Date, [along with a letter explaining the allocation of shares of Common Stock pursuant to the Over-Subscription
Privilege, if applicable].
 

 

D. Any additional payment required from an exercising Rights Holder must be received by the Subscription Agent within ten Business Days after the
Confirmation Date and any excess payment to be refunded by the Company to an exercising Rights Holder shall be mailed by the Subscription
Agent as promptly as practicable after the Confirmation Date and, in no event, later than ten Business Days after the Confirmation Date. If a Rights
Holder does not make timely payment of any additional amounts due in accordance with this Section 4, the Subscription Agent shall consult with
the Company in accordance with Section 5 as to the appropriate action to be taken. The Subscription Agent shall not issue shares of Common Stock
for shares of Common Stock subscribed for until payment in full therefor has been received by the Subscription Agent, including clearance of
checks and payment pursuant to Notices of Guaranteed Delivery.
 

 

E. As soon as practicable after the exercise of any Rights and the clearance of the funds in payment of the Exercise Price, the Company shall issue to
the Rights Holder in book entry form the number of full shares of Common Stock to which such holder is entitled upon exercise of the Rights,
registered in such name or names as may be directed by him, her or it, and if the Rights Holder shall not have exercised all Rights held by such
holder, a new Subscription Certificate for such number of Rights as were not exercised.
 

6. Validity of Subscriptions. 
 
Irregular, incomplete or unpaid subscriptions not otherwise covered by specific instructions herein shall be submitted to an appropriate officer of the

Company and handled in accordance with his or her instructions. Such instructions shall be reasonably documented by the Subscription Agent indicating,
among other things, the instructing officer and the date thereof.

 
7. Delivery of Shares. 

 
The Subscription Agent shall deliver Statements of Holding reflecting new shares of Common Stock purchased pursuant to the Basic Subscription [and,

if applicable, those shares purchased pursuant to the exercise of the Over-Subscription Privilege] as soon as practicable after the Expiration Date, after all
allocations have been effected and full payment for such shares has been received and cleared.

 

 



 

 
 
 
8. Holding Proceeds of Rights Offering. 

 

 

A. All proceeds received by the Subscription Agent from Rights Holders in respect of the exercise of Rights pursuant to the Basic Subscription [and the
Over-Subscription Privilege] shall be held by the Subscription Agent on behalf of the Company in a segregated account (the “Account”). Interest
shall accrue for the benefit of the Company at and not for the benefit of the Subscription Agent or any Rights Holders, on funds held in the Account
pending disbursement in the manner described in Section 4 above.
 

 
B. The Subscription Agent shall deliver all proceeds received in respect of the exercise of Rights, other than those to be refunded to exercising Rights

Holders pursuant to Section 4 above, to the Company as promptly as practicable, but in no event later than one Business Day after the Confirmation
Date.
 

 C. The Company acknowledges that the bank accounts maintained by in connection with the services provided under this Agreement shall be in its
name, in a segregated account and held in trust for the benefit of the Company.
 

9. Reports. 
 
Daily, during the period commencing on the date of mailing the Subscription Certificates until and including the Confirmation Date, the Subscription

Agent shall report by telephone, facsimile or electronic mail to a designated representative(s) of the Company, as instructed by such designated representative,
the following information:

 
 (i) the names of all Rights Holders exercising Rights pursuant to the Basic Subscription [and the Over-Subscription Privilege];

 

 (ii) the total number of Rights exercised by each Rights Holder during the immediately preceding day pursuant to the Basic Subscription [and the
Over-Subscription Privilege];

 

 (iii) the total number of Rights verified to be in proper form for exercise, rejected for exercise and being processed, and all payments received in
connection therewith;

 

 (iv) with respect to the Dealer Managers and each soliciting dealer, the number of Rights exercised on forms indicating the Dealer Manager or such
soliciting dealer, as the case may be, as the broker-dealer with respect to such exercise; and

 
 (v) such other information as may be reasonably requested by the Company or such designated representative;

 
The Subscription Agent shall report by telephone, facsimile or electronic mail, as instructed by such designated representative, not later than 5:00 p.m.,

New York City time, on the first business day following the Expiration Date, (i) the total number of Rights exercised by each Rights Holder pursuant to the
Basic Subscription [and the Over-Subscription Privilege and shares of Common Stock related thereto], (ii) the total number of Rights verified to be in proper
form for exercise, rejected for exercise and being processed, and all payments received in connection therewith, (iii) with respect to the Dealer Managers and
each soliciting dealer, the number of Rights exercised on forms indicating the Dealer Manager or such soliciting dealer, as the case may be, as the broker-
dealer with respect to such exercise, and (iv) any such other information as may be reasonably requested by the Company or such designated representative.

 
In addition, the Subscription Agent shall perform the services set forth in Exhibit A.

 
10. Loss or Mutilation. 

 
If any Subscription Certificate is lost, stolen, mutilated or destroyed, the Subscription Agent may, on such terms as will serve to indemnify and protect the

Company and the Subscription Agent as the Subscription Agent may in its reasonable discretion impose on the relevant Rights Holder (which shall, in the
case of a mutilated Subscription Certificate, include the surrender and cancellation thereof), issue a new Subscription Certificate to such Rights Holder of like
denomination in substitution for the Subscription Certificate so lost, stolen, mutilated or destroyed.

 
11. Compensation for Services. 

 
The Company agrees that it shall pay to the Subscription Agent compensation for their respective services hereunder in accordance with the Fee and

Service Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit B. The Company further agrees that it shall reimburse the Subscription Agent for its reasonable, documented out-
of-pocket expenses incurred in the performance of its respective duties as such; provided, however, that the Company shall not be required to reimburse the
Subscription Agent for any such expenses incurred which exceed $ in the aggregate without its prior written consent.

 
12. Instructions, Indemnification and Limitation of Liability. 

 
The Subscription Agent undertakes the respective duties and obligations imposed by this Agreement upon the following terms and conditions:

 

 

A. The Subscription Agent shall be entitled to rely upon any instructions or directions furnished to it by an officer of the Company listed on the
attached Schedule A (an “Appropriate Officer”). Without limiting the generality of the foregoing or any other provision of this Agreement, each
Agent, in connection with its duties hereunder, shall not be under any duty or obligation to inquire into the validity or invalidity or authority or lack
thereof of any instruction or direction from an Appropriate Officer of the Company and which such Agent reasonably believes to be genuine.
 

 



 

 
 
 

 

B. The Company shall indemnify the Subscription Agent and its partners, directors, officers, managers, employees, attorneys and representatives
against, and hold them harmless from, all liability and expense for any claim, action, suit, proceeding or investigation (each, a “Claim”) against
any such party that arises out of or in connection with the services described in this Agreement to be performed by the Subscription Agent or the
instructions or directions furnished to the Subscription Agent relating to this Agreement by an Appropriate Officer of the Company; provided that
the Company shall not be so obligated for any liability or expense (i) which shall arise out of the gross negligence, bad faith or willful misconduct
of the Subscription Agent or the partners, directors, officers, managers, employees, attorneys or representatives of the Subscription Agent or (ii)
for any liability or expense arising out of a settlement of any Claim unless such settlement has been made with the prior written consent of the
Company.

 
Promptly after the receipt by the Subscription Agent of notice of any Claim, the Subscription Agent shall notify the Company thereof in writing. In no case
shall the Company be liable under this Section 12 to the extent it is materially prejudiced by failure of any indemnified party to deliver prompt notice of any
Claim. The Company shall be entitled to participate at its own expense in the defense of any Claim, and, if it so elects at any time after receipt of such notice,
it may assume the defense of any suit brought to enforce any Claim. For the purposes of this Section 12, the term “liability and expense” shall include all
reasonable costs and expenses, including, but not limited to, reasonable counsel fees (including one local counsel, if necessary) and disbursements, paid or
incurred in investigating or defending against any such claim, demand, action, suit, proceeding or investigation.

 

 

C. The Subscription Agent shall at all times act in good faith and agree to use its commercially reasonable efforts to insure the accuracy of all
services provided under this Agreement and shall indemnify and hold the Company and its subsidiaries and other affiliates and their respective
partners, directors, officers, managers, employees, attorneys and representatives harmless from and against any and all liability and expenses
directly or indirectly arising out of or in connection with the services described in this Agreement to be performed by the Subscription Agent or
the instructions or directions furnished to the Subscription Agent relating to this Agreement by an Appropriate Officer of the Company; provided
that the Subscription Agent shall not be so obligated for any liability or expense which shall arise out of the gross negligence, bad faith or willful
misconduct of the Company or the partners, directors, officers, managers, employees, attorneys or representatives of the Company.

 
13. Assignment/Delegation. 

 

 A. Except as provided in Section 14(B) below, neither this Agreement nor any rights or obligations hereunder may be assigned or delegated by any
party without the prior written consent of the other parties.

 

 

B. The Subscription Agent may, without further consent on the part of the Company, subcontract with other parties for such systems, processing,
telephone and mailing services and post-exchange activities as may be required from time to time; provided, however, that (i) the Subscription
Agent shall be as fully responsible to the Company for the acts and omissions of any subcontractor in the same manner and to the same extent as it
is for its own acts and omissions, and (ii) no such subcontracting shall relieve the Subscription Agent of any of its obligations hereunder.

 
14. Relationship/Third Party Beneficiaries. 

 
This Agreement does not constitute an agreement for a partnership or joint venture among the parties. The Subscription Agent shall act hereunder as

agent of the Company solely to the limited extent set forth in this Agreement, but shall not assume any fiduciary duties to, or have any rights, power or
authority on behalf of, the Company or any of its affiliates, equity holders or creditors or of any other person or entity not expressly set forth in this
Agreement. Any duties of the Subscription Agent arising out of its engagements pursuant to this Agreement shall be owed solely to the Company. No party
shall make any commitments with third parties that are binding on any other party without such other party’s prior written consent, and none of the
Subscription Agent, employees, or representatives or contractors of the Subscription Agent shall be deemed to be employees of the Company or any of its
affiliates.

 
Except as explicitly stated elsewhere in this Agreement, nothing under this Agreement is intended or shall be construed to give any rights, benefits,

remedies or claims under or by reason of this Agreement or any part thereof to anyone other than the Subscription Agent and the Company, and the duties and
responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Subscription Agent and the Company.

 
15. Force Majeure. 

 
In the event any party is unable to perform its obligations under the terms of this Agreement because of acts of God, strikes, terrorist acts, equipment or

transmission failure or damage reasonably beyond its control or other cause reasonably beyond its control, such party shall not be liable for damages to any
other party resulting from such failure to perform or otherwise from such causes. Performance under this Agreement shall resume when the affected party or
parties are able to perform substantially its or their duties.
 
16. Consequential Damages. 

 
No party to this Agreement shall be liable to any other party for any consequential, indirect, penal, special or incidental damages under any provisions of

this Agreement or for any consequential, indirect, penal, special or incidental damages arising out of any act or failure to act hereunder even if that party has
been advised of or has foreseen the possibility of such damages.

 

 



 

 
 
 
17. Severability. 

 
If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid, unlawful or unenforceable, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions

shall not in any way be affected or impaired.
 

18. Captions. 
 
The captions and descriptive headings herein are for the convenience of the parties only. They do not in any way modify, amplify, alter or give full notice

of the provisions hereof.
 

19. Confidentiality. 
 

 

A. Under this Agreement, each party shall have access to certain confidential information belonging to the other parties, which information shall
include nonpublic information pertaining to the disclosing party, its parent, subsidiaries, affiliates, employees, customers, representatives and
vendors (including without limitation information furnished prior to the date of this Agreement) furnished by or on behalf of the disclosing party
or its representatives to the receiving party, directly or indirectly, by any means (“Confidential Information”).

 

 

B. Each of the parties acknowledges that except as necessary for any party to perform its respective obligations under the Agreement: (i) all
Confidential Information is confidential; (ii) all Confidential Information is proprietary to the disclosing party; (iii) it shall keep all Confidential
Information confidential and shall not disclose the same; (iv) it shall use Confidential Information only as required by this Agreement; (v) it shall
not create a list or other compilation containing any Confidential Information for any purpose other than to perform its obligations under this
Agreement; and (vi) except as expressly provided for herein, it shall not provide, directly or indirectly, the Confidential Information to any other
person or entity for any purpose.

 

 C. Each of the parties acknowledges that this Agreement shall be filed by the Company as an exhibit to the Registration Statement and that the
contents of this Agreement will be accessible to the public.

 

 
D. In the event that any party receives a request or becomes legally compelled to disclose any Confidential Information belonging to any other party,

such party shall provide the other party with prompt notice of such request (provided such notice is not otherwise prohibited by applicable law or
court order) and shall disclose only that portion of the Confidential Information that it is legally obligated to disclose.

 
20. Term and Termination. 

 
The Agreement shall remain in effect until the earlier of (i) thirty (30) days after the Expiration Date; (ii) it is terminated by the Company, on the one

hand, or the Subscription Agent with respect to the service provided by such Subscription Agent, on the other, upon a material breach of this Agreement by
the other which remains uncured for fifteen (15) days after written notice of such breach has been provided to such other party; or (iii) thirty (30) days’
written notice has been provided by the Company, on the one hand, or the Subscription Agent, on the other. Upon termination of the Agreement, the
Subscription Agent shall retain a copy of all canceled Subscription Certificates and related documentation as required by applicable law; all documentation
and information related to the services performed under the Agreement shall be promptly delivered to the Company.

 
21. Notices. 

 
Until further notice in writing by any party hereto to the other parties, all written reports, notices and other communications between any Subscription

Agent, on the one hand, and the Company, on the other, required or permitted hereunder shall be delivered or mailed by first class mail, postage prepaid,
facsimile or overnight courier guaranteeing next day delivery, addressed as follows:

 
If to the Company, to:
OFS Capital Corporation
10 S. Wacker Drive
Suite 2500
Chicago, IL 60606
Attn: Chief Financial Officer

 
With a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to:
Sutherland Asbill & Brennan LLP
700 6th Street, NW
Suite 700
Washington, DC 20001
Attn: Cynthia M. Krus
 
If to the Subscription Agent, to:

 

 



 

 
22. Survival. 

 
The provisions of Paragraphs 12, 14-19, and 24-28 shall survive any termination, for any reason, of this Agreement.

 
23. Merger of Agreement. 

 
This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the transactions contemplated hereby and supersedes any prior

agreement with respect to the subject matter hereof, whether oral or written.
 

24. Amendment. 
 
No term or provision of this Agreement may be amended, changed, altered or modified except by written instrument executed by the each of the parties

to this Agreement.
 
The Subscription Agent may, without the consent or concurrence of the Rights Holders in whose names Subscription Certificates are registered but with

the prior written consent of the Company, by supplemental agreement or otherwise, make any change or correction in a Subscription Certificate that it shall
have been advised by counsel (who may be counsel for the Company) is appropriate to cure any ambiguity or to correct any defective or inconsistent
provision or clerical omission or mistake or manifest error therein or herein contained, and which shall not be inconsistent with the provisions of the
Subscription Certificate except insofar as any such change may confer additional rights upon the Rights Holder.

 
25. Extension; Waiver. 

 
At any time, each of the parties hereto may, to the extent legally allowed, (i) extend the time for, or waive, the performance of any of the covenants,

obligations or agreements of the other parties hereto, (ii) waive any inaccuracies or breaches in the representations and warranties contained herein or in any
certificate delivered by another party pursuant hereto or (iii) waive compliance with any of the conditions of another party contained in this Agreement. Any
agreement on the part of any of the parties hereto to any such extension or waiver shall be valid only if set forth in a written instrument signed by the party or
parties against whom such extension or waiver is to be enforced. Any waiver of any term or condition shall not be construed as a waiver of any subsequent
breach or a subsequent waiver of the same term or condition, or as a waiver of any other term or condition, of this Agreement. The failure of any of the parties
hereto to assert any of its rights under this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of such rights or any other rights.

 
26. Jurisdiction. 

 
Each of the parties hereto: (i) irrevocably and unconditionally submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of

New York or, if such court does not have jurisdiction, the New York State Supreme Court in the Borough of Manhattan, The City of New York, in any action
arising out of or relating to this Agreement, (ii) agrees that all claims in respect of the action may be heard and determined in any such court and (iii) agrees
not to bring any action arising out of or relating to this Agreement in any other court.

 
In any such action, each of the parties hereto irrevocably and unconditionally waives and agrees not to assert by way of motion, as a defense or otherwise,

any claims that it is not subject to the jurisdiction of the above court, that such action is brought in an inconvenient forum or that the venue of such action is
improper. Each of the parties hereto also agrees that any final and nonappealable judgment against a party hereto in connection with any action shall be
conclusive and binding on such party and that such award or judgment may be enforced in any court of competent jurisdiction, either within or outside of the
United States. A certified or exemplified copy of such award or judgment shall be conclusive evidence of the fact and amount of such award or judgment.

 
Without limiting the foregoing, each party hereto agrees that service of process on such party at the address provided in Section 24 shall be deemed

effective service of process on such party.
 

27. Waiver of Jury Trial. 
 
Each of the parties hereto irrevocably waives any and all right to trial by jury in any action, proceeding or counterclaim (whether based upon contract, tort

or otherwise) in any way arising out of or relating to this Agreement.
 

28. Governing Law. 
 
This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York.

 
29. Counterparts. 

 
This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts (including by facsimile or electronic transmission), each of which shall be deemed an

original and all of which together shall be considered one and the same agreement.
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their respective officers, hereunto duly authorized, as of the
day and year first above written.
 

 



 

 
 OFS CAPITAL CORPORATION
 
 By:  
   
 Name:  
   
 Title:  
 
 [SUBSCRIPTION AGENT]
 
 By:  
   
 Name:  
   
 Title:  
  

 



 

  
EXHIBIT A

ADDITIONAL SERVICES
TO BE PERFORMED BY SUBSCRIPTION AGENT

 
 •  Advance Review of Offering Materials—Review and comment on all Offering materials in advance of final printing and dissemination.

 
 •  Financial Printer—Work directly with the financial printer, providing format suggestions and delivery instructions.

 
 •  Financial Public Relations—Assist in the preparation and placement of advertisements/tombstones in newspapers (at prevailing market rates).

 

 •  Bank and Broker Communications and Mailings—Survey the bank and brokerage communities to obtain material requirements and to ensure that
they are aware of the Offering. Coordinate the mailing of the Offering materials to them for forwarding to their beneficial owners.

 
 •  Registered Holder Mailings—Coordinate the mailing of the Offering materials to registered holders.

 

 •  Incoming Telephone Calls—Set up a toll-free telephone number to enable security holders and their advisors to call with questions. Keep a record of
all incoming calls and notify the appropriate individual at the Company upon the receipt of calls outside the normal course.

 

 •  Outgoing Telephone Calls—As requested by the Company, initiate follow-up calls to a targeted group of security holders in order to maximize
participation in the Offering.

 

 •  Depositary Communications—Initiate and maintain communications with the Company’s Depositary and the reorganization departments of bank and
brokerage firms to monitor the progress of the Offering.

 

 •  Progress Updates—Inform the Company of security holder comments and reactions to the Offering, and gauge the expected level of participation in
the Offering. Track shifts in the ownership of shares through the use of Depository Trust Company (DTC) listings, and analyze those shifts.

 

 

 
 
 



 
Exhibit (d)(5)

 
FORM OF SUBSCRIPTION CERTIFICATE

 
[Form of Subscription Certificate]

 
THIS OFFER EXPIRES AT 5:00 P.M.,

NEW YORK CITY TIME, ON , * 
 

OFS CAPITAL CORPORATION
 

SUBSCRIPTION RIGHTS FOR COMMON STOCK
 
Each registered holder of this Subscription Certificate (a “Rights Holder”) is entitled to the number of transferable subscription rights (each, a “Right”)

to subscribe for the number of shares of common stock, par value $0.001 per share (“Common Stock”), of OFS Capital Corporation, a Delaware corporation
(the “Company”), as specified herein, on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Company’s prospectus supplement dated , and the
accompanying prospectus dated , (collectively, the “Prospectus”), which are incorporated herein by reference. Pursuant to the rights offering described in the
Prospectus (the “Offering”), each shareholder owning Common Stock of the Company as of [ , ] (such date, the “Record Date” and, such shareholder, a
“Record Date Shareholder”) is entitled to receive Right[s] for each share[s] of Common Stock owned on the Record Date. [The Company will not issue any
fractional Rights.] Each Rights Holder is entitled to subscribe for share[s] of Common Stock for each Right held by such Rights Holder (the “Basic
Subscription”) at the subscription price (the “Subscription Price”), to be calculated as described in the Prospectus. The Rights may be exercised at any time
during the subscription period, which commences on , and ends at 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on , , unless extended by the Company in its sole discretion
(the “Expiration Date”). Set forth below is the number of Rights evidenced by this Subscription Certificate that the Rights Holder is entitled to exercise
pursuant to the Basic Subscription.

 
[If any shares of Common Stock available for purchase in the Offering are not subscribed for by Rights Holders pursuant to the Basic Subscription

(“Remaining Shares”), a Record Date Shareholder that has exercised fully its Rights pursuant to the Basic Subscription may subscribe for a number of
Remaining Shares, on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Prospectus, including as to pro-ration.] [In addition, any Rights Holder other than
a Record Date Shareholder who exercises Rights is entitled to subscribe for any Remaining Shares that are not otherwise subscribed for by Record Date
Shareholders pursuant to their over-subscription privilege, on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Prospectus, including as to pro-ration.]
[We refer to these over-subscription privileges as the “Over-Subscription Privilege.”]

 
 

 
* Unless extended by the Company in its sole discretion.
  

[THE RIGHTS ARE TRANSFERABLE
 
The Rights are transferable until , or, if the Offering is extended, until . The Rights are expected to be listed for trading on The NASDAQ Global Select

Market under the symbol “[   ]” until and including , (or, if the Offering is extended, until , ). Rights Holders who do not wish to exercise any or all of
their Rights may instruct the Subscription Agent (as defined below) to sell any Rights they do not intend to exercise themselves through or to a dealer
manager. Subscription Certificates representing the Rights to be sold through or to a dealer manager must be received by the Subscription Agent on or before ,
(or, if the Offering is extended, prior to the extended Expiration Date).]
 
Control No:
 
Cusip No.:
 
Rights Represented by this Subscription
Certificate:
 
Maximum Shares Available for Purchase
Pursuant to the Basic Subscription:
 

[THE OFFERING IS TERMINABLE BY THE COMPANY
 
The Company reserves the right to terminate the Offering prior to delivery of Common Stock.]

 
ESTIMATED SUBSCRIPTION PRICE

 
The estimated subscription price (the “Estimated Subscription Price”) is $ per share of Common Stock. [See also “Method of Exercise of Rights”

below.]
 

THE SUBSCRIPTION PRICE
 
The Subscription Price for the shares of Common Stock to be issued pursuant to the Offering will be [insert price or formula].

 

 



 

  
SAMPLE CALCULATION FOR A RECORD DATE SHAREHOLDER WHO OWNS SHARES BASIC SUBSCRIPTION RIGHT ( -FOR- )

 
No. of shares held on the Record Date: ÷ = Rights

( Right[s] for every share[s] of Common Stock held on the Record Date)
 

No. of shares of Common Stock issued assuming full exercise of Basic Subscription:
× = new shares of Common Stock

 
Total payment based on the Estimated Subscription Price: shares × $ = $

 
METHOD OF EXERCISE OF RIGHTS

 
To exercise your Rights, [ ] (the “Subscription Agent”), must receive, in the manner specified herein, at or prior to 5:00 P.M., New York City Time, on , ,

unless extended by the Company in its sole discretion, either (A) a properly completed and duly executed Subscription Certificate and a money order or check
or bank draft drawn on a bank or branch located in the United States and payable to “ ” for an amount equal to the number of shares of Common Stock
subscribed for pursuant to the Basic Subscription [and the Over-Subscription Privilege] multiplied by the Estimated Subscription Price; or (B) a Notice of
Guaranteed Delivery guaranteeing delivery of (i) a properly completed and duly executed Subscription Certificate and (ii) a money order or check or bank
draft drawn on a bank or branch located in the United States and payable to “ ” for an amount equal to the number of shares of Common Stock subscribed for
pursuant to the Basic Subscription [and the Over-Subscription Privilege] multiplied by the Estimated Subscription Price (which certificate and full payment
must then be delivered at or prior to 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the third business day after the Expiration Date or, if the Offering is extended, at or
prior to 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the third business day after the extended Expiration Date). Payment must be made in U.S. dollars.

 
The method of delivery of this Subscription Certificate and the payment of the Estimated Subscription Price and, if required, any additional payment is at

the election and risk of the Rights Holder, but if sent by mail it is recommended that the Subscription Certificate and payment be sent by registered mail,
properly insured, with return receipt requested, and that a sufficient number of days be allowed to ensure delivery to the Subscription Agent and clearance of
payment prior to 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the Expiration Date, as it may be extended, or the date guaranteed payments are due under a Notice of
Guaranteed Delivery (as applicable). Because uncertified personal checks may take at least five business days to clear, you are strongly urged to pay, or
arrange for payment, by means of certified or cashier’s check or money order.

 
[Because Rights Holders must only pay the Estimated Subscription Price per share to exercise their Rights pursuant to the Offering and the Subscription

Price may be higher or lower than the Estimated Subscription Price [(and because a Rights Holder may not receive all the shares for which they subscribe
pursuant to the Over-Subscription Privilege)], Rights Holders may receive a refund or be required to pay an additional amount equal to the difference between
the Estimated Subscription Price and the Subscription Price, multiplied by the total number of shares for which they have subscribed and been issued
[(including pursuant to the Over-Subscription Privilege)]. Any additional payment required from a Rights Holder must be received by the Subscription Agent
within ten business days after the confirmation date in order to receive all the shares of Common Stock subscribed for. Any excess payment to be refunded by
the Company to a Rights Holder will be mailed by the Subscription Agent as promptly as practicable. No interest will be paid on any amounts refunded.]

 
[Stock certificates will not be issued for shares of the Company’s Common Stock offered in the Offering. Shareholders who are record owners will have

the shares they acquire credited to their account with the Company’s transfer agent. Shareholders whose Common Stock is held by a nominee will have the
shares they acquire credited to the account of such nominee holder.]

 
A Rights Holder exercising Rights will have no right to rescind their subscription after receipt of their payment for shares or a Notice of Guaranteed

Delivery by the Subscription Agent[, except as described in the Prospectus]. [Rights may be transferred in the same manner and with the same effect as with a
negotiable instrument payable to specific persons, by duly completing this Subscription Certificate. Rights Holders should be aware that if they choose to
exercise, assign, transfer or sell only part of their Rights, they may not receive a new Subscription Certificate in sufficient time to exercise, assign, transfer or
sell the remaining Rights evidenced thereby.]

 
To subscribe for shares of Common Stock pursuant to the Basic Subscription, please complete line “A” and Section 1 below. [To subscribe for shares of

Common Stock pursuant to the Over-Subscription Privilege, please complete lines “A” and “B” and Section 1 below.]
 
[If you want the Subscription Agent to attempt to sell any of your unexercised Rights, check box “D” below and complete Section 1 below. If you want a

new Subscription Certificate evidencing any unexercised Rights delivered to you, check box “E” below and indicate the address to which the shares should be
delivered in Section 1 below. If you want some or all of your unexercised rights transferred to a designated transferee, or to a bank or broker to sell for you,
check box “F” below and complete Section 2 below.]

 
FOR A MORE COMPLETE DESCRIPTION OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE OFFERING, PLEASE REFER TO THE PROSPECTUS,

WHICH IS INCORPORATED HEREIN BY REFERENCE. COPIES OF THE PROSPECTUS ARE AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST FROM THE
INFORMATION AGENT, [ ], TOLL-FREE AT [ ].
 

 



 

 
A. Basic Subscription

 
× $ = $ 
(No. of Shares) (Estimated Subscription Price)

 
[B. Over-Subscription Privilege*

 
× $ = $ 
 
(No. of Shares) (Estimated Subscription Price)]

 
[C.] Total Amount Enclosed = $ 
 
[*If a Rights Holder is a Record Date Shareholder, the Over-Subscription Privilege may only be exercised if its Basic Subscription is exercised in full.]
 
SECTION 1. TO SUBSCRIBE: I acknowledge that I have received the Prospectus for the Offering and I hereby irrevocably subscribe for the number of
shares of Common Stock indicated as the total of A [and B] above upon the terms and conditions specified in the Prospectus and incorporated by reference
herein. I understand and agree that I will be obligated to pay an additional amount if the Subscription Price as determined on the Expiration Date, as it may be
extended, is in excess of the Estimated Subscription Price. I hereby agree that if I fail to pay in full for the shares of Common Stock for which I have
subscribed, the Company may exercise any of the remedies provided for in the Prospectus.
 
[TO SELL: If I have checked the box on line D, I authorize the sale of Rights by the Subscription Agent according to the procedures described in the
Prospectus.]

 
 

Signature(s) of Subscriber(s)
[
 
 

Address for delivery of certificate representing unexercised Rights
 
If permanent change of address, check here ☐ 

 
Daytime telephone number ( )  
  
Evening telephone number ( )  
  
Email address:                                                   ]
 
Please complete all applicable information and return to:
 
Any questions regarding this Subscription Certificate and the Offering may be directed to the Information Agent, [ , LLC], toll free at [ ].
 
[D. Sell any unexercised Rights]
 
[E. Deliver a certificate representing   unexercised Rights to the address in Section 1]
 
[F. Transfer Rights to the transferee designated in Section 2]
 
[SECTION 2. TO TRANSFER RIGHTS (Per Line F): For value received,   of the Rights represented by this Subscription Certificate are assigned to:

 
 

(Print full name of Assignee and Social Security Number)
 
 
 

(Print full address)
 

 



 

  
 

(Signature(s) of Assignor(s))
 
The signature(s) on the Subscription Certificate must correspond with the name(s) of the registered holder(s) exactly as it appears on the Subscription
Certificate without any alteration or change whatsoever. In the case of joint registered holders, each person must sign the Subscription Certificate in
accordance with the foregoing. If you sign the Subscription Certificate in your capacity as a trustee, executor, administrator, guardian, attorney-in-fact, agent,
officer of a corporation or other fiduciary or representative, you must indicate the capacity in which you are signing when you sign and, if requested by the
Subscription Agent in its sole and absolute discretion, you must present to the Subscription Agent satisfactory evidence of your authority to sign in that
capacity.
 
The signature must be guaranteed by an Eligible Guarantor Institution, as that term is defined in Rule 17Ad-15 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, which may include: (a) a commercial bank or trust company; (b) a member firm of a domestic stock exchange; or (c) a savings bank or credit union.

 
Signature (name of bank or firm):  

 

  
 
Guaranteed by (signature/title):  ]
 
BY FIRST CLASS MAIL ONLY: BY OVERNIGHT DELIVERY:

 
DELIVERY OF THIS SUBSCRIPTION CERTIFICATE TO AN ADDRESS OTHER THAN AS SET

FORTH ABOVE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A VALID DELIVERY.
 

 

 
 

 
 



 
Exhibit (d)(6)

 
CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATION OF

SERIES [ ] PREFERRED STOCK
$0.01 PAR VALUE OF

OFS CAPITAL CORPORATION
 

 

 
Pursuant to Section 151 of the

General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware
 

 

 
OFS Capital Corporation (the “Company”), a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware, certifies that pursuant to the

authority contained in its Certificate of Incorporation, as amended from time to time (the “Certificate of Incorporation”), and in accordance with the
provisions of Section 151 of the DGCL, the Board of Directors has duly approved and adopted the following resolution on [ ], 20[ ] (the “Resolution”):

 
RESOLVED, that pursuant to the authority vested in the Board of Directors by the Certificate of Incorporation, and as set forth in Section 151 of the

DGCL, the Board of Directors does hereby designate, create, authorize and provide for the issue of a series of [ ] shares of Series [ ] Preferred Stock, $0.01
par value per share, having the designations, preferences, relative, participation, optional and other special rights and the qualifications, limitations and
restrictions thereof that are set forth in the Certificate of Incorporation and in this Resolution as follows:

 
(a) Definitions.
 
As used in this Certificate of Designation, the following terms shall have the following meanings (with terms defined in the singular having comparable

meanings when used in the plural and vice versa), unless the context otherwise requires:
 
“1940 Act” means the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.
 
“1940 Act Majority” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in paragraph (e)(6) hereof.
 
“Affiliate” of any Person means any other Person directly or indirectly controlling or controlled by or under direct or indirect common control with such

Person. For the purposes of this definition, “control” when used with respect to any Person has the meaning specified in Rule 12b-2 under the Exchange Act;
and the terms “controlling” and “controlled” have meanings correlative to the foregoing.

 
“Board of Directors” means the board of directors of the Company.
 
“Business Day” means each Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday and Friday which is not a day on which banking institutions in the Borough of

Manhattan, The City of New York, New York are authorized or obligated by law or executive order to close or a day on which securities are not traded on
NASDAQ or other market or exchange on which the Company’s securities are traded.

 
“Capital Stock” means any and all shares, interests, rights to purchase, warrants, participations or other equivalents of or interests in (however

designated) stock issued by the Company.
 
“Certificate of Designation” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in the recitals hereof.
 
“Certificate of Incorporation” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in the recitals hereof.
 
“Company” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in the recitals hereof.

 
“Common Stock” means the common stock, par value $0.01 per share, of the Company now or hereafter authorized to be issued.
 
“Consideration” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in paragraph (h)(1) hereof.
 
“DGCL” means the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware.
 
“Dividend Payment Date” shall mean [ ], [ ], [ ] and [ ] of each year, commencing on [ ], 20[ ]; provided that if any such Dividend Payment Date would

otherwise occur on a day that is not a Business Day, such Dividend Payment Date shall instead be (and any dividend payable on Series [ ] Preferred Stock on
such Dividend Payment Date shall instead be payable on) the immediately succeeding Business Day.

 
“Dividend Period” shall mean the period commencing on and include a Dividend Payment Date (other than the initial Dividend Period, which shall

commence on and include the Original Issue Date of the Series [ ] Preferred Stock) and shall end on and include the calendar day next preceding the next
Dividend Payment Date.

 
“Dividend Rate” means [ ]% per annum.
 
“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.
 

 



 

 
“Holder” means a holder of shares of Series [ ] Preferred Stock, as reflected in the stock records of the Company.
 
“Issue Date” means [—].
 
“Liquidation” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in paragraph (d) hereof.
 
“NASDAQ” means The NASDAQ Global Select Market.
 
“Person” means any individual, company, partnership, limited liability company, joint venture, association, joint stock company, trust, unincorporated

organization, government or agency or political subdivision thereof or any other entity.
 
“Resolution” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in the recitals hereof.
 
“Series [ ] Liquidation Preference” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in paragraph (d) hereof.
 
“Series [ ] Preferred Stock” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in paragraph (b) hereof.
 
“Voting Period” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in paragraph (e)(2) hereof.
 
“Voting Stock” means Capital Stock of the class or classes pursuant to which the Holders thereof have the general voting power under ordinary

circumstances (determined without regard to any classification of directors) to elect directors of the Company (irrespective of whether or not at the time
Capital Stock of any other class or classes shall have or might have voting power by reason of the happening of any contingency).

 
(b) Designation.
 
The shares of the Series shall be designated “Series [ ] Preferred Stock” (the “Series [ ] Preferred Stock”), and the number of shares constituting the

Series shall be [ ], $0.01 par value per share.
 
(c) Ranking.
 
With respect to rights to participate in distributions or payments in the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, the Series [ ]

Preferred Stock shall rank [ ].
 

(d) Liquidation Preference.
 
(1) Upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, whether voluntary or involuntary (a “Liquidation”), the Holders of the shares of

Series [ ] Preferred Stock shall be entitled to be paid (before any distribution or payment is made upon any shares of Common Stock), an amount equal to $[ ]
per share of Series [ ] Preferred Stock, representing the liquidation preference per share of the Series [ ] Preferred Stock (the “Series [ ] Liquidation
Preference”); provided, if upon Liquidation, the available funds and assets to be distributed among the Holders of Series [ ] Preferred Stock shall be
insufficient to permit payment in full to the Holders of Series [ ] Preferred Stock of the Series [ ] Liquidation Preference, then the entire available funds and
assets of the Company upon Liquidation shall be distributed ratably among such Holders in proportion to the full respective Series [ ] Liquidation Preference
to which they are entitled.

 
(2) If there are any available funds or assets of the Company upon Liquidation remaining after the payment or distribution to the Holders of the Series [ ]

Preferred Stock of their full preferential amounts described above, all such remaining available funds and assets shall be distributed:
 
(A) [Describe payment priority provisions]
 
(B) Then, with respect to all remaining available funds and assets of the Company upon Liquidation after payment pursuant to the foregoing clauses (d)

(1) and (d)(2), among the holders of then outstanding Common Stock, pro rata, according to the number of shares of Common Stock held by such holders.
 
(e) Voting Rights.
 
(1) Except for matters which do not require the vote of Holders of the Series [ ] Preferred Stock under the 1940 Act and except as otherwise provided in

the Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws, herein or as otherwise required by applicable law, (1) each Holder of Series [ ] Preferred Stock shall be entitled to
one vote for each share of Series [ ] Preferred Stock held on each matter submitted to a vote of shareholders of the Company, and (2) the holders of
outstanding Series [ ] Preferred Stock and shares of Common Stock shall vote together as a single class on all matters submitted to shareholders; provided,
however, that the Holders of outstanding shares of Series [ ] Preferred Stock shall be entitled, as a class, to the exclusion of the holders of shares of all other
classes of stock of the Company, to elect [two] Directors of the Company at all times. Subject to the foregoing rights of the Holders of the Series [ ] Preferred
Stock, the identity and class (if the Board of Directors is then classified) of the nominees for such Directors may be fixed by the Board of Directors. Subject
to paragraph (e)(2), the holders of outstanding shares of Common Stock and Series [ ] Preferred Stock, voting together as a single class, shall elect the balance
of the Directors.

 

 



 

 
(2) During any period in which any one or more of the conditions described below shall exist (such period being referred to herein as a “Voting Period”),

the number of Directors constituting the Board of Directors shall automatically increase by the smallest number that, when added to the two Directors elected
exclusively by the holders of the shares of Series [ ] Preferred Stock would constitute a majority of the Board of Directors as so increased by such smallest
number; and the holders of the shares of Series [ ] Preferred Stock shall be entitled, voting as a class on a one-vote-per-share basis (to the exclusion of the
holders of all other securities and classes of shares of the Company), to elect such smallest number of additional Directors, together with the two Directors
that such holders are in any event entitled to elect. A Voting Period shall commence:
 
(i) if at the close of business on any Dividend Payment Date accumulated dividends (whether or not earned or declared) on the shares of Series [ ] Preferred
Stock equal to at least two full years’ dividends shall be due and unpaid; or
 
(ii) if at any time holders of any shares of Series [ ] Preferred Stock are entitled under the 1940 Act to elect a majority of the Directors of the Company.
 
Upon the termination of a Voting Period, the voting rights described in paragraph (e)(2) shall cease, subject always, however, to the revesting of such voting
rights in the holders of shares of the Series [ ] Preferred Stock upon the further occurrence of the events described in this paragraph (e)(2).

 
(3) As soon as practicable after the accrual of any right of the holders of the shares of Series [ ] Preferred Stock to elect additional Directors as described

in paragraph (e)(2), the Company shall call a special meeting of such holders, and mail a notice of such special meeting to such holders, such meeting to be
held not less than [ ] nor more than [ ] calendar days after the date of mailing of such notice. If the Company fails to send such notice or if a special meeting is
not called at the expense of the Company, it may be called by any such holder on like notice. The record date for determining the holders entitled to notice of
and to vote at such special meeting shall be the close of business on the fifth Business Day preceding the day on which such notice is mailed. At any such
special meeting and at each meeting of holders of shares of the Series [ ] Preferred Stock held during a Voting Period at which Directors are to be elected,
such holders, voting as a separate class (to the exclusion of the holders of all other classes of Capital Stock and other securities of the Company), shall be
entitled to elect the number of Directors prescribed in paragraph (e)(2).

 
(4) The terms of office of all persons who are Directors of the Company at the time of a special meeting of Holders of the Series [ ] Preferred Stock and

holders of other shares of any other preferred stock to elect Directors shall continue, notwithstanding the election at such meeting by the Holders of the Series
[ ] Preferred Stock and such holders of other shares of preferred stock of the number of Directors that they are entitled to elect, and the persons so elected by
such holders, together with the two incumbent Directors elected by such holders and the remaining incumbent Directors, shall constitute the duly elected
Directors of the Company.

 
(5) Simultaneously with the termination of a Voting Period, the terms of office of the additional Directors elected by the Holders of the Series [ ]

Preferred Stock and holders of other shares of preferred stock pursuant to paragraph (e)(2) shall terminate, the number of Directors constituting the Board of
Directors shall decrease accordingly, the remaining Directors shall constitute the Directors of the Company and the voting rights of such holders to elect
additional Directors pursuant to paragraph (e)(2) shall cease, subject to the provisions of the last sentence of paragraph (e)(2).

 
(6) So long as any of the shares of Series [ ] Preferred Stock are outstanding, the Company will not, without the affirmative vote of the holders of a

majority of the outstanding shares of Series [ ] Preferred Stock determined with reference to a “majority of outstanding voting securities” as that term is
defined in Section 2(a)(42) of the 1940 Act (a “1940 Act Majority”), voting as a separate class:

 
(i) amend, alter or repeal any of the preferences, rights or powers of the Series [ ] Preferred Stock so as to affect materially and adversely such preferences,
rights or powers, [(for purposes of the foregoing, no matters shall be deemed to adversely affect any right, preference or power unless such matter (i) alters or
abolishes any preferential right of the Series [ ] Preferred Stock; (ii) creates, alters or abolishes any right in respect of redemption of the Series [ ] Preferred
Stock; or (iii) creates or alters (other than to abolish) any restriction on transfer applicable to the Series [ ] Preferred Stock)];
 
(ii) create, authorize or issue shares of any class of Capital Stock ranking senior to or on a parity with the Series [ ] Preferred Stock with respect to the
payment of dividends or the distribution of assets, or any securities convertible into, or warrants or similar rights to purchase, acquire or receive, such shares
of Capital Stock ranking senior to or on a parity with the Series [ ] Preferred Stock or reclassify any authorized shares of Capital Stock of the Company into
any shares ranking senior to or on a parity with the Series [ ] Preferred Stock (except that, notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board of Directors, without the
vote or consent of the holders of the shares of Series [ ] Preferred Stock may from time to time authorize, create and classify, and the Company, to the extent
permitted by the 1940 Act, may from time to time issue, shares or series of preferred stock ranking on a parity with the Series [ ] Preferred Stock with respect
to the payment of dividends and the distribution of assets upon dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the affairs of the Company, and may authorize,
reclassify and/or issue any additional Series [ ] Preferred Stock, including shares previously purchased or redeemed by the Company); provided that any such
class of Capital Stock shall be created, authorized or issued only to the extent permitted by the 1940 Act);

 
(7) The affirmative vote of the holders of a 1940 Act Majority of the outstanding shares of Series [ ] Preferred Stock, voting as a separate class, shall be

required to approve any plan of reorganization (as such term is used in the 1940 Act) adversely affecting such shares or any action requiring a vote of security
holders of the Company under Section 13(a) of the 1940 Act.

 
(8) Unless otherwise required by law, Holders of Series [ ] Preferred Stock shall not have any relative rights or preferences or other special rights other

than those specifically set forth herein. The Holders of Series [ ] Preferred Stock shall have no rights to cumulative voting.
 
(9) The foregoing voting provisions will not apply with respect to the Series [ ] Preferred Stock if, at or prior to the time when a vote is required, such

shares have been (i) redeemed or (ii) called for redemption and sufficient funds shall have been deposited in trust to effect such redemption.
 

 



 

 
(f) Business Day.
 
If any payment shall be required by the terms hereof to be made on a day that is not a Business Day, such payment shall be made on the immediately

succeeding Business Day.
 
(g) Dividends. 
 
Holders of the Series [ ] Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive, on each share of Series [ ] Preferred Stock, dividends with respect to each Dividend

Period (1) in an amount equal to the Dividend Rate on the Series [ ] Liquidation Preference per share of Series [ ] Preferred Stock. Dividends payable at the
Dividend Rate shall begin to accrue and be cumulative from the Issue Date. No full dividends and distributions will be declared or paid on the Series [ ]
Preferred Stock for any dividend Period, or a part of a Dividend Period, unless the full cumulative dividends and distributions due through the most recent
Dividend Payment Dates for all outstanding shares of the Series [ ] Preferred Stock have been, or contemporaneously are, declared and paid through the most
recent Dividend Payment Date. If full cumulative dividends and distributions due have not been paid on all outstanding preferred stock of any series, any
dividends and distributions being declared and paid on preferred stock will be declared and paid as nearly pro rata as possible in proportion to the respective
amounts of dividends and distributions accumulated but unpaid on the shares of each such series of preferred stock on the relevant dividend payment date. No
holders of preferred stock will be entitled to any dividends and distributions in excess of full cumulative dividends and distributions as provided in the
Certificate of Designations.

 
Dividends that are payable on the Series [ ] Preferred Stock on any Dividend Payment Date shall be payable to Holders of record of the Series [ ]

Preferred Stock as they appear on the stock register of the Company on the record date for such dividend, which shall be the date 15 days prior to the
applicable Dividend Payment Date.

 
Dividends payable at the Dividend Rate on the Series [ ] Preferred Stock in respect of any Dividend Period shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day

year consisting of twelve 30-day months. The amount of dividends payable at the Dividend Rate on the Series [ ] Preferred Stock on any date prior to the end
of a Dividend Period, and for the initial Dividend Period, shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months, and actual
days elapsed over a 30-day month.

 
Cash dividends shall be paid only to the extent the Company has assets legally available for such payment and the Board of Directors, or an authorized

committee thereof, declares a dividend payable. Dividends not paid in cash shall be added to the Series [ ] Liquidation Preference.
 
The Company shall not make declare any dividend (other than a dividend payable in Common Stock) or other distribution on the Common Stock or

purchase any Common Stock unless at the time of the declaration of such dividend or distribution or at the time of any such purchase the Company has an
asset coverage of at least 200%, as computed in accordance with the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, after deducting the amount of such
dividend, distribution or purchase price.

 
(h) Amendments Without Consent of Holders.
 
Without the consent of any Holders, the Company, when authorized by resolution of the Board of Directors may amend or modify these terms of the

Series [ ] Preferred Stock to cure any ambiguity, correct or supplement any provision herein which may be inconsistent with any other provision herein, make
any other provisions with respect to matters or questions arising under these terms of the Series [ ] Preferred Stock that are not inconsistent with the
provisions herein.

 
(i) Status of Acquired Shares.
 
Shares of Series [ ] Preferred Stock that are redeemed or otherwise acquired by the Company shall be returned to the status of authorized but unissued

shares of Series [ ] Preferred Stock, until reclassified by the Board of Directors.
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, OFS Capital Corporation has caused this Certificate to be duly executed by its duly authorized officer as of this [ ]th day of [
].

 
 OFS CAPITAL CORPORATION
  
 By:  
  Name:
  Title:

 

 

 
 

 



 
Exhibit (h)(2)

 
$ Aggregate Principal Amount % [Senior]1 Notes Due 20

 
OFS Capital Corporation

 
FORM OF UNDERWRITING AGREEMENT

 
Ladies and Gentlemen:
 
OFS Capital Corporation, a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), OFS Capital Management, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the

“Advisor”), and OFS Capital Services, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “Administrator”), confirm their agreement with each of the
Underwriters listed on Schedule I hereto (collectively, the “Underwriters”), for whom are acting as representatives (in such capacity, the
“Representatives”), with respect to the sale by the Company of $ aggregate principal amount of % [Senior] Notes due 2024 (the “[Senior] Securities”) and
the purchase by the Underwriters, acting severally and not jointly, of the respective aggregate principal amount of [Senior] Securities set forth opposite the
names of the Underwriters in Schedule I hereto. The Company also proposes to issue and sell to the several Underwriters not more than an additional $
aggregate principal amount of % [Senior] Notes due 20 (the “Additional [Senior] Securities”) if and to the extent that the Representatives shall have
determined to exercise, on behalf of the Underwriters, the right to purchase such Additional [Senior] Securities granted to the Underwriters in Section 2
hereof. The [Senior] Securities and the Additional [Senior] Securities are hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Securities.”

 
The Securities will be issued under an indenture dated as of , 20 (the “Base Indenture”), as supplemented by the Supplemental Indenture to be dated as

of , 20 (the “Supplemental Indenture” and, together with the Base Indenture, the “Indenture”), between the Company and U.S. Bank, National Association,
as trustee (the “Trustee”). The Securities will be issued to Cede & Co. as nominee of the Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) pursuant to a blanket letter of
representations (the “DTC Agreement”), to be dated on or prior to the Closing Date (as defined herein), between the Company and DTC.

 
The Company has entered into an investment advisory agreement, dated as of November 7, 2012, with the Advisor (the “Investment Advisory

Agreement”). The Company has entered into an administrative agreement, dated as of November 7, 2012, with the Administrator (the “Administration
Agreement”). The Company has entered into a license agreement, dated as of November 7, 2012, with Orchard First Source Asset Management, LLC, under
which the Advisor is a third-party beneficiary (the “License Agreement” and, collectively with the Administration Agreement and Investment Advisory
Agreement, the “Company Agreements”). In addition, the Company has adopted a dividend reinvestment plan (the “Dividend Reinvestment Plan”)
pursuant to which holders of the Common Stock shall have their dividends automatically reinvested in additional shares of Common Stock unless they elect
to receive such dividends in cash.

 
The Advisor has entered into a staffing agreement, dated as of November 7, 2012, with Orchard First Source capital, Inc. (“OFSC”) (the “Staffing

Agreement”).
 
 

1 Notes will be denominated as “senior notes” if we have subordinated debt outstanding at issuance.
 

 



 

 
The Company has filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) a registration statement on Form N-2 (No. 333- ), as

amended, and a related prospectus for the registration of the Securities and certain of the Company’s other securities under the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended (the “Securities Act”), and the related rules and regulations of the Commission thereunder (the “Securities Act Rules and Regulations”). The
registration statement, as it may have heretofore been amended at the time it became effective, including, all documents filed as a part thereof, and including
the information (if any) deemed to be part of the registration statement at the time of effectiveness pursuant to Rule 430C and Rule 497 under the Securities
Act, and any post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act is hereinafter referred to as the “Registration Statement;” the
prospectus, dated as of , 20 , included in the Registration Statement at the time it became effective on , 20 , (including the information, if any, deemed to be
part of the Registration Statement at the time of effectiveness pursuant to Rule 430C and Rule 497 under the Securities Act) is hereinafter referred to as the
“Base Prospectus”; the preliminary prospectus supplement dated , 20 , filed with the Commission pursuant to Rule 497 under the Securities Act, is
hereinafter referred to as the “Preliminary Prospectus Supplement” (and together with the Base Prospectus, the “Preliminary Prospectus”); the prospectus
supplement to be filed with the Commission pursuant to Rule 497 under the Securities Act after the execution and delivery of this Agreement is hereinafter
referred to as the “Prospectus Supplement” (and together with the Base Prospectus, the “Prospectus”).

 
The Indenture has been qualified under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 (the “1939 Act”).
 
As used in this Agreement, the term “Applicable Time” means p.m. (New York City time) on the date hereof or such other time as agreed by the

Company and the Representatives.
 
1.          Agreements to Sell and Purchase. 
 

(a)          The Company hereby agrees to sell to the Underwriters, and each Underwriter, upon the basis of the representations, warranties and
covenants herein contained, but subject to the conditions hereinafter stated, agrees to purchase, severally and not jointly, from the Company the
aggregate principal amount of Securities set forth opposite the name of each Underwriter on Schedule A hereof, plus any additional aggregate principal
amount of Securities which such Underwriter may become obligated to purchase pursuant to the provisions of this Section 1, at a price of % of the
aggregate principal amount thereof (“Purchase Price”).

 
(b)          On the basis of the representations and warranties contained in this Agreement, and subject to its terms and conditions, the Company

agrees to sell to the Underwriters the Additional [Senior] Securities, and the Underwriters shall have the right to purchase, severally and not jointly, up
to an additional $ aggregate principal amount of Securities at the Purchase Price (without giving effect to any accrued interest from the Closing Date to
the relevant Option Closing Date). The Representatives may exercise this right on behalf of the Underwriters in whole or from time to time in part by
giving written notice not later than 30 (thirty) days after the date of this Agreement. Any exercise notice shall specify the aggregate principal amount of
Additional [Senior] Securities to be purchased by the Underwriters and the date on which such aggregate principal amount of Additional [Senior]
Securities are to be purchased. Each purchase date must be at least one business day after the written notice is given and may not be earlier than the
closing date for the [Senior] Securities nor later than ten business days after the date of such notice. Additional [Senior] Securities may be purchased as
provided in Section 6 hereof solely for the purpose of covering over-allotments made in connection with the offering of the [Senior] Securities. On each
day, if any, that Additional [Senior] Securities are to be purchased (an “Option Closing Date”), each Underwriter agrees, severally and not jointly, to
purchase the aggregate principal amount of Additional [Senior] Securities that bears the same proportion to the total aggregate principal amount of
Additional [Senior] Securities to be purchased on such Option Closing Date as the aggregate principal amount of [Senior] Securities set forth in
Schedule A hereto opposite the name of such Underwriter bears to the total aggregate principal amount of [Senior] Securities.

 
2.           Payment and Delivery. 
 

(a)          Payment for the [Senior] Securities shall be made to the Company by the wire transfer of immediately available funds to the order of the
Company against delivery of such Securities through the facilities of DTC for the respective accounts of the several Underwriters at a.m., New York
City time, on , 20 , or at such other time on the same or such other date, no later than three business days after the date of this Agreement as the
Underwriters and the Company may agree upon in writing. The time and date of such payment are hereinafter referred to as the “Closing Date.”

 
(b)          Payment for any Additional [Senior] Securities shall be made to the Company by the wire transfer of immediately available funds to the

order of the Company against delivery of such Additional [Senior] Securities through the facilities of DTC for the respective accounts of the several
Underwriters at  a.m., New York City time, on the date specified in the corresponding notice described in Section 1 or at such other time on the same or
on such other date, in any event not later than , 20 , as shall be designated in writing by the Representatives.

 

 



 

 
(c)          The [Senior] Securities and the Additional [Senior] Securities shall be transferred electronically and registered in such names and in

such denominations as the Representatives shall request in writing not later than one full business day prior to the Closing Date or the applicable Option
Closing Date, as the case may be. The Securities shall be delivered through the facilities of DTC.

 
3.           Public Offering of Securities. 
 

(a)          The Underwriters advise the Company that they propose to make a public offering of their respective portions of the Securities as soon
after this Agreement has been executed and delivered as in its judgment is advisable.

 
(b)          The Company is further advised by you that the Securities are to be offered to the public initially at 100% of the aggregate principal

amount thereof plus accrued interest, if any, from the date of issuance (the “Public Offering Price”) and to certain dealers selected by the
Representatives at a price that represents a concession not in excess of 2.0% under the Public Offering Price, and the Underwriters may allow, and the
dealers may reallow, a discount not in excess of 1.2% under the Public Offering Price.

 
4.          Representations and Warranties.
 

(a)          The Company represents and warrants to and agrees with, and the Advisor and the Administrator, jointly and severally, represent and
warrant to and agree with, each Underwriter as of the date hereof, the Applicable Time, as of the Closing Date and as of any Option Closing Date (if
any), that:

 
(i)          The Company meets the requirements for use of Form N-2 under the Securities Act and the Securities Act Rules and Regulations.

At the time the Registration Statement became effective, the Registration Statement complied in all material respects with the requirements of the
Securities Act and the Securities Act Rules and Regulations and did not include any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading; the Preliminary Prospectus together with the pricing
terms and other information set forth on Schedule B hereto, all considered together (collectively, the “General Disclosure Package”), complied,
as of its date, in all material respects, with the requirements of the Securities Act and the Securities Act Rules and Regulations, and the General
Disclosure Package, as of the Applicable Time, did not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; the Prospectus, as of the date of the
Prospectus Supplement, will comply in all material respects with the requirements of the Securities Act and the Securities Act Rules and
Regulations, and the Prospectus, as of the date of the Prospectus Supplement, the Closing Date and any Option Closing Date (as defined herein),
did not and will not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the
light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; provided, however, that the representations and warranties in this
subsection shall not apply to statements in or omissions from the Registration Statement, the General Disclosure Package or Prospectus or any
amendments or supplements thereto made in reliance upon and in conformity with information relating to any Underwriter furnished to the
Company in writing by any Underwriter expressly for use in the Registration Statement, the General Disclosure Package or Prospectus, it being
understood and agreed that the only such information furnished by any Underwriter consists of the following information in the Prospectus
Supplement furnished on behalf of each Underwriter: the third paragraph under the caption “Underwriting—Commissions and Discounts”, the
first and second paragraphs under the caption “Underwriting—Price Stabilizations, Short Positions” and the sixth paragraph under the caption
“Other Relationships.”

 
(ii)         the Registration Statement has been declared effective by the Commission and any Rule 462(b) Registration Statement will have

become effective upon filing, no stop order suspending the effectiveness of the Registration Statement or any Rule 462(b) Registration Statement
has been issued by the Commission and no proceedings for that purpose have been instituted or are pending or, to the knowledge of the Company,
are contemplated or threatened by the Commission and the Company has complied to the Commission’s satisfaction with any request on the part
of the Commission for additional information.

 

 



 

 
(iii)        The Company has elected to be regulated by the Commission as a business development company under the Investment Company

Act of 1940, as amended (the “Investment Company Act”), and has not withdrawn that election, and the Commission has not ordered that such
election be withdrawn nor to the best of the Company’s knowledge have proceedings to effectuate such withdrawal been initiated or threatened by
the Commission. All required action has or will have been taken under the Securities Act and the Securities Act Rules and Regulations, the
Investment Company Act and any state securities laws to make the public offering and the issuance and sale of the Securities by the Company,
and the provisions of the Company’s articles of incorporation and bylaws comply as to form in all material respects with the requirements of the
Investment Company Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

 
(iv)        BDO USA, LLP, whose reports on the consolidated financial statements of the Company and the consolidated Subsidiaries are

filed with the Commission as part of each of the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus, are, and were during the
periods covered by such reports, independent public accountants within the meaning of, and as required by, the Securities Act, the Securities Act
Regulations and the Investment Company Act and are registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board.

 
(v)         The financial statements, including the notes thereto, included in each of the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus

and the Prospectus present fairly the consolidated financial position of the entities to which such financial statements relate (the “Covered
Entities”) as of the dates indicated and the consolidated results of operations and changes in financial position and cash flows of the Covered
Entities for the periods specified; such financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles as
applied in the United States and on a consistent basis during the periods involved (except as otherwise noted therein and in accordance with
Regulation S-X promulgated by the Commission); the financial statement schedules, if any, included in the Registration Statement and the
amounts in both the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus under the caption “Selected Financial and Other Information” fairly present the
information shown therein and have been compiled on a basis consistent with the financial statements included in the Registration Statement, the
Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus; no other financial statements or supporting schedules are required to be included in the Registration
Statement, Preliminary Prospectus or the Prospectus.

 
(vi)        Any statistical and market-related data included in the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus are

based on or derived from sources that the Company believes to be reliable and accurate, and the Company has obtained the written consent to the
use of such data from such sources to the extent required.

 
(vii)       The Company (A) has been duly incorporated and is validly existing as a corporation in good standing under the laws of the State

of Delaware, has full corporate power and authority to conduct its business as described in the General Disclosure Package and the Prospectus;
(B) has full power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement, the Indenture, the Securities and the DTC Agreement and to consummate
the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby; and (C) is duly licensed or qualified to do business as a foreign corporation and in good
standing in the State of [insert foreign qualifications] and these are the only jurisdictions where the Company is required to be qualified or
licensed or in good standing except where the failure to be so qualified or licensed or to be in good standing would not result in a material adverse
effect upon the financial condition, business or results of operations of the Company (“Material Adverse Effect”).

 
(viii)      Each Subsidiary is a legal entity duly organized and validly existing and in good standing under the laws of its respective

jurisdiction of organization, with requisite power and authority to own, lease or operate its properties and to conduct its business as described in
the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus.

 

 



 

 
(ix)         The Company and the Subsidiaries have good and marketable title in fee simple to all real property, if any, and good title to all

personal property owned by them, in each case free and clear of all liens, security interests, pledges, charges, encumbrances, mortgages and
defects, except such as are disclosed in the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus or such as do not materially and
adversely affect the value of such property and do not interfere with the use made or proposed to be made of such property by the Company and
the Subsidiaries; and any real property and buildings held under lease by the Company or any Subsidiary are held under valid, existing and
enforceable leases, with such exceptions as are disclosed in the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus or are not
material and do not interfere with the use made or proposed to be made of such property and buildings by the Company or such Subsidiary.

 
(x)          Each of the Company and the Subsidiaries owns or possesses adequate licenses or other rights to use all patents, trademarks,

service marks, trade names, copyrights, software and design licenses, trade secrets, other intangible property rights and know-how (collectively
“Intellectual Property”), as are necessary to entitle the Company and each Subsidiary to conduct the Company’s or such Subsidiary’s business
described in both the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus, except where the failure to own, license or have such right would not reasonably
be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect; and neither the Company nor any such Subsidiary has received written notice of any infringement
of or conflict with (and the Company does not know of any such infringement of or conflict with) asserted rights of others with respect to any
Intellectual Property which would reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

 
(xi)         Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is, or with the giving of notice or lapse of time or both would be, in default or

violation with respect to its charter or bylaws or governing documents. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is, or with the giving of
notice or lapse of time or both would be, in default in the performance or observance of any obligation, agreement, covenant or condition
contained in any indenture, mortgage, deed of trust, loan agreement, lease or other agreement or instrument to which the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries is a party or by which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is bound or to which any of the properties or assets of the Company or
any of its Subsidiaries is subject, or in violation of any statutes, laws, ordinances or governmental rules or regulations or any orders or decrees to
which it is subject (collectively, the “Agreements and Instruments”) except for such defaults that would not result in a Material Adverse Effect;

 
(xii)        The Company has an authorized capitalization as set forth in both the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus under the caption

“Capitalization,” at the date indicated, as of the Applicable Time, at the Closing Date, and each Option Closing Date (if any); all of the issued and
outstanding shares of capital stock of the Company and each Subsidiary (as defined below) have been duly and validly authorized and issued and
are fully paid and non-assessable, and have not been issued in violation of or subject to any preemptive right, resale right, right of first refusal or
other similar right of shareholders arising by operation of law, under the certificate of incorporation, bylaws, or other governing document
(collectively, the “Charter Documents”) of the Company or such Subsidiary, as applicable, under any agreement to which the Company or such
Subsidiary, as applicable, is a party or otherwise; except as disclosed in both the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus, all of the capital
stock, partnership interests or membership interests of any of the Company’s subsidiaries, as such term is defined under the Securities Act (each
such entity a “Subsidiary” and collectively, the “Subsidiaries”), are directly or indirectly owned of record and beneficially by the Company, free
and clear of all liens, encumbrances, equities or claims; except as disclosed in both the Preliminary Prospectus and Prospectus, there are no
outstanding (x) securities or obligations of the Company convertible into or exchangeable for any capital stock of the Company, (y) warrants,
rights or options to subscribe for or purchase from the Company or any such Subsidiary any such capital stock, partnership interest, or
membership interest or any such convertible or exchangeable securities or obligations, or (z) obligations of the Company or any such Subsidiary
to issue or sell any shares of capital stock, partnership interest, or membership interest, any such convertible or exchangeable securities or
obligation, or any such warrants, rights or options.

 

 



 

 
(xiii)       The shareholders of the Company have no preemptive rights with respect to the Securities and none of the outstanding shares of

capital stock of the Company have been issued in violation of any preemptive rights of any security holder. The Securities have been duly
authorized by all requisite corporate action on the part of the Company for the issuance and sale of the Securities to the Underwriters pursuant to
this Agreement and, when the Securities are issued and delivered by the Company and authenticated by the Trustee pursuant to the provisions of
this Agreement and the Indenture relating thereto, against payment of the consideration set forth in this Agreement, on the Closing Date and any
Option Closing Date such Securities will be valid and legally binding obligations of the Company enforceable in accordance with their terms,
except as the enforcement thereof may be subject to the effect of (i) bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other similar laws now
or thereafter in effect relating to creditors’ rights generally and (ii) general principles of equity and the discretion of the court before which any
proceeding therefor may be brought, and will be entitled to the benefits of the Indenture relating thereto; and the Securities and the Indenture
conform in all material respects to the statements thereto contained in the General Disclosure Package and the Prospectus.

 
(xiv)      Subsequent to the respective dates as of which information is given in each of the Registration Statement, the Preliminary

Prospectus and the Prospectus, and except as may be otherwise stated in such documents, there has not been (i) any event, circumstance or
change that has had, or would reasonably be expected to have, a Material Adverse Effect, (ii) any transaction, other than in the ordinary course of
business, which is material to the Company and the Subsidiaries taken as a whole, contemplated or entered into by the Company or any
Subsidiary, (iii) any obligation, contingent or otherwise, directly or indirectly incurred by the Company or any Subsidiary, other than in the
ordinary course of business, which would reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect, or (iv) any dividend or distribution of any
kind declared, paid or made by the Company on any class of its capital stock, or any purchase by the Company of any of its outstanding capital
stock.

 
(xv)       There is no pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened action, suit or proceeding, legal or governmental, to which

the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is a party, before or by any court or governmental agency or body, that is required to be described in the
General Disclosure Package or the Prospectus and is not so described.

 
(xvi)      The descriptions in each of the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus of the legal or governmental

proceedings, contracts, leases and other legal documents therein described present fairly the information required to be described therein by the
Securities Act and the Securities Act Regulations, and there are no legal or governmental proceedings, contracts, leases, or other documents of a
character required to be described in each of the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus or the Prospectus or to be filed as exhibits to
the Registration Statement that are not described or filed as required by the Securities Act or the Securities Act Regulations; all agreements
between the Company or any of the Subsidiaries and third parties expressly referenced in both the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus are
legal, valid and binding obligations of the Company or such Subsidiary, enforceable against the Company or such Subsidiary, as applicable, in
accordance with their respective terms, except to the extent enforceability may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium
or similar laws affecting creditors’ rights generally and by general equitable principles 

 
(xvii)     There are no contracts, agreements or understandings of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries that are required to be filed as

exhibits to the Registration Statement by the Securities Act or by the Securities Act Rules and Regulations that have not been so filed or
incorporated by reference therein as permitted by the Securities Act Rules and Regulations.

 
(xviii)    This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the Company.
 
(xix)       The Base Indenture has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the Company and constitutes a valid and binding

agreement of the Company, enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms, except as the enforcement thereof may be subject to
(i) bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other similar laws now or hereafter in effect relating to creditors’ rights generally and
(ii) general principles of equity and the discretion of the court before which any proceeding thereof may be brought.

 
(xx)        The Supplemental Indenture has been duly authorized, and, on the Closing Date, will be executed and delivered by the Company

and, when executed and delivered by the Trustee, will constitute a valid and binding obligation of the Company, enforceable against the Company
in accordance with its terms, except as the enforcement thereof may be subject to (i) bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other
similar laws now or hereafter in effect relating to creditors’ rights generally and (ii) general principles of equity and the discretion of the court
before which any proceeding therefor may be brought.

 

 



 

 
(xxi)       The DTC Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the Company and is a valid and binding obligation of

the Company, enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms, except as the enforcement thereof may be subject to (i) bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other similar laws now or thereafter in effect relating to creditors’ rights generally and (ii) general
principles of equity and the discretion of the court before which any proceeding therefor may be brought.

 
(xxii)      The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement, the Indenture, the Securities and the DTC Agreement and the

consummation of the transactions contemplated herein and therein and in the General Disclosure Package and the Prospectus (including the
issuance and sale of the Securities and the use of the proceeds from the sale of the Securities as described in the General Disclosure Package and
the Prospectus under the caption “Use of Proceeds”) and compliance by the Company with its obligations hereunder and thereunder do not and
will not, whether with or without the giving of notice or passage of time or both, conflict with or result in a breach or violation of any of the terms
and provisions of, constitute a default or Repayment Events (as defined below) under, or result in the creation or imposition of any lien, charge or
encumbrance upon any properties or assets of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries pursuant to, the Agreements and Instruments, except for
such conflicts, breaches, defaults or Repayment Events that would not result in a Material Adverse Effect, nor will such action result in any
violation of the Company’s or any of its Subsidiaries’ charter, bylaws or other organizational documents, or any order, law, statute, rule,
regulation, judgment, order, writ or decree of any government, government instrumentality or court, domestic or foreign, having jurisdiction over
the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or any of their respective assets, properties or operations. As used herein, a “Repayment Event” means
any event or condition which gives the holder of any note, debenture or other evidence of indebtedness (or any person acting on such holder’s
behalf) the right to require the repurchase, redemption or repayment of all or a portion of such indebtedness by the Company or any of the
Subsidiaries.

 
(xxiii)     No (i) approval, authorization, consent or order of or filing with any federal, state, local or foreign governmental or regulatory

commission, board, body, authority or agency, (ii) authorization, approval, vote or other consent of any holder of securities of the Company or
any creditor of the Company, or (iii) waiver or consent under any material agreement is required in connection with the Company’s execution,
delivery and performance of this Agreement, its consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, and its sale and delivery of
the Securities, other than (A) such as have been obtained, or will have been obtained at the Closing Date or the relevant Option Closing Date, as
the case may be, under the Securities Act, the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), the Investment Company Act,
the Advisers Act and the rules and regulations of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. (“FINRA”), (B) such approvals as have been
obtained in connection with the approval of the listing of the Securities on [name of exchange], subject to official notice of issuance, and (C) any
necessary qualification under the securities or blue sky laws of the various jurisdictions in which the Securities are being offered by the
Underwriters.

 
(xxiv)    This Agreement complies as to form in all material respects with all applicable provisions of the Investment Company Act.
 
(xxv)     Except as disclosed in the Registration Statement, the General Disclosure Package and the Prospectus there are no contracts,

agreements or understandings between the Company and any person granting such person the right to require the Company to file a registration
statement under the Securities Act with respect to any securities of the Company or to require the Company to include such securities with the
Securities registered pursuant to the Registration Statement.

 
(xxvi)    There are no material restrictions, limitations or regulations with respect to the ability of the Company or its Subsidiaries to invest

its assets as described in the Registration Statement, the General Disclosure Package or the Prospectus, other than as described therein.
 

 



 

 
(xxvii)   Any third-party statistical and market-related data included in the Registration Statement, the General Disclosure Package or the

Prospectus are based on or derived from sources that the Company believes to be reliable and accurate.
 
(xxviii)    The Company has received clearance to apply for the listing of the Securities on the [name of exchange].
 
(xxix)      Except as disclosed in the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus, each of the Company and the Subsidiaries has all necessary

licenses, permits, authorizations, accreditations, certifications, consents and approvals and has made all necessary filings required under any
Legal Requirement, and has obtained all necessary licenses, permits, authorizations, accreditations, certifications, consents and approvals from
other persons required in order to conduct their respective businesses as described in both the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus, except
to the extent that any failure to have any such licenses, permits, authorizations, accreditations, certifications, consents or approvals to make any
such filings or to obtain any such licenses, permits, authorizations, accreditations, certifications, consents or approvals would not, individually or
in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect; neither the Company nor any of the Subsidiaries is in violation of, or
in default under, or has received any notice regarding a possible violation of, default under, or revocation of, any such license, permit,
authorization, accreditation, certification, consent or approval or any federal, state, local or foreign law, regulation or rule or any decree, order or
judgment applicable to the Company or any of the Subsidiaries the effect of which would reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse
Effect; and no such license, permit, authorization, accreditation, certification, consent or approval contains a materially burdensome restriction
that is not adequately disclosed in both the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus.

 
(xxx)        No relationship, direct or indirect, exists between or among the Company or any of the Subsidiaries on the one hand, and the

directors, officers, shareholders, customers or suppliers of the Company or any of the Subsidiaries on the other hand, which is required by the
Securities Act and the Securities Act Regulations to be described in the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus
and which is not so described.

 
(xxxi)      Except as otherwise disclosed in both the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus, there are no outstanding loans, extensions of

credit or advances or guarantees of indebtedness by the Company or any Subsidiary to or for the benefit of any of the officers, directors or
affiliates of the Company or any Subsidiary or any of the members of the families of any of them.

 
(xxxii)     Except with respect to the Underwriters or as disclosed in the General Disclosure Package and the Prospectus, the Company has

not incurred any liability for any finder’s fees or similar payments in connection with the issuance and sale the Securities.
 
(xxxiii)    The Company has not taken, and will not take, directly or indirectly, any action which is designed to or which has constituted, or

which might reasonably be expected to cause or result in, stabilization or manipulation of the price of any security of the Company to facilitate
the sale or resale of the Securities.

 
(xxxiv)     Except as described in the General Disclosure Package and the Prospectus, since [ ], 2012, the Company has been organized and

operated, and currently is organized and operated, in conformance with the requirements to be taxed as a regulated investment company (“RIC”)
under Subchapter M of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”).

 
(xxxv)      Except as otherwise disclosed in each of the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus, neither the

Company nor any Subsidiary has any off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent obligations), or any other
similar relationships with unconsolidated entities or other persons.

 
(xxxvi)     The Company’s current business operations and investments are in compliance in all material respects with the provisions of the

Investment Company Act applicable to BDCs and, after giving effect to the issuance and sale of the [Senior] Securities and the Additional
[Senior] Securities, will be in compliance in all material respects with the Investment Company Act.

 

 



 

 
(xxxvii)    Except as disclosed in the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus, no director of the Company is an “interested person” (as

defined in the Investment Company Act) of the Company or an “affiliated person” (as defined in the Investment Company Act) of any
Underwriter listed in Schedule I hereto.

 
(xxxviii)    The Company has adopted and implemented written policies and procedures reasonably designed to prevent violation of the

Federal Securities Laws (as that term is defined in Rule 38a-1 under the Investment Company Act) by the Company, including policies and
procedures that provide oversight of compliance by each investment advisor, administrator and transfer agent of the Company.

 
(xxxix)     The Company maintains insurance (issued by insurers of recognized financial responsibility) against such losses and risks and in

such amounts as are prudent and customary in the businesses in which it is engaged; all policies of insurance insuring the Company or its
business, assets, employees, officers and directors, including the Company’s directors and officers errors and omissions insurance policy and its
fidelity bond required by Rule 17g-1 under the Investment Company Act, are in full force and effect; the Company is in compliance with the
terms of such policies and fidelity bond in all material respects; and there are no claims by the Company under any such policies or fidelity bond
as to which any insurance company is denying liability or defending under a reservation of rights clause; the Company has not been refused any
insurance coverage sought or applied for; and the Company has no reason to believe that it will not be able to renew its existing insurance
coverage and fidelity bond as and when such coverage and fidelity bond expires or to obtain similar coverage and fidelity bond from similar
insurers as may be necessary to continue its business at a cost that would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect, whether
or not arising from transactions in the ordinary course of business, except as set forth in or contemplated in the Registration Statement, the
Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus.

 
(xl)         The provisions of the corporate charter and by-laws of the Company and the investment objective, policies and restrictions

described in the Registration Statement, the General Disclosure Package and the Prospectus are not inconsistent with the requirements of the
Investment Company Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder applicable to a business development company, and the
provisions of the organizational documents of each of the Subsidiaries and the operations of each of the Subsidiaries allow the Company to be in
compliance in all material respects with the requirements of the Investment Company Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder
applicable to a business development company.

 
(xli)        The Company maintains a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that: (i) transactions

are executed in accordance with management’s general or specific authorizations and with the investment objectives, policies and restrictions of
the Company and the applicable requirements of the Investment Company Act and the Code; (ii) transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles as applied in the United States to calculate net
asset value, to maintain asset accountability and to maintain compliance in all material respects with books and records requirements under the
Investment Company Act; (iii) access to assets is permitted only in accordance with management’s general or specific authorization; and (iv) the
recorded accountability for assets is compared with the existing assets at reasonable intervals and appropriate action is taken with respect to any
differences.

 
(xlii)      The Company has established and maintains disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-14 and 15d-

14 under the Exchange Act) designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits
under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the Commission’s rules and forms,
and is accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management, including its principal executive officers or officers and principal financial
officer or officers, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding disclosure.

 

 



 

 
(xliii)     The Company and its officers and directors, in their capacities as such, are in compliance in all material respects with the

applicable provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.
 
(xliv)      None of the Company or any of its affiliates (i) is required to register as a “broker” or “dealer” in accordance with the provisions

of the Exchange Act, or the rules and regulations thereunder (the “Exchange Act Regulations”), or (ii) directly, or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, controls or has any other association or affiliation with (within the meaning of Article I of the By-laws of FINRA) any member
firm of FINRA.

 
(xlv)        Except as disclosed in the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus, the Company (i) does not have any material lending or

other relationship with any bank or lending affiliate of a Representative and (ii) does not intend to use any of the proceeds from the sale of the
Shares hereunder to repay any outstanding debt owed to any affiliate of a Representative.

 
(xlvi)      None of the Company, the Advisor, the Administrator or, to the knowledge of the Company, the Advisor or the Administrator, any

officer, director, agent or employee purporting to act on behalf of the Company, any Subsidiary, the Advisor or the Administrator, has at any time,
directly or indirectly, (i) made any contributions to any candidate for political office, or failed to disclose fully any such contributions, in violation
of law, (ii) made any payment to any state, federal or foreign governmental officer or official, or other person charged with similar public or
quasi-public duties, other than payments required or allowed by applicable law (including the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977, as amended
(the “FCPA”)), (iii) engaged in any transactions or maintained any bank account on behalf of the Company or a Subsidiary or used any corporate
funds except for transactions, bank accounts and funds which have been and are reflected in the normally maintained books and records of the
Company and each Subsidiary, (iv) violated any provision of the FCPA, or (v) made any other unlawful payment.

 
(xlvii)     None of the Company, the Advisor or the Administrator or, to the Company’s knowledge, any affiliates or any director, officer,

agent or employee of, or other person associated with or acting on behalf of, the Company, the Advisor or the Administrator is currently subject
to any United States sanctions administered by the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the United States Treasury Department (“OFAC”); and the
Company will not directly or indirectly use the proceeds of the offering, or lend, contribute or otherwise make available such proceeds to any
entity, partner or joint venturer or other person or entity for the purpose of financing the activities of any person currently subject to any United
States sanctions administered by OFAC.

 
(xlviii)    the operations of the Company are and have been conducted at all times in compliance with applicable financial recordkeeping

and reporting requirements of the Currency and Foreign Transactions Reporting Act of 1970, as amended, the Money Laundering Control Act of
1986, as amended, the Bank Secrecy Act, as amended, the United and Strengthening of America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to
Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act (USA PATRIOT Act) of 2001, and any other money laundering statutes of all applicable jurisdictions, the
rules and regulations thereunder and any related or similar rules, regulations or guidelines, issued, administered or enforced by any Governmental
Authority (collectively, the “Money Laundering Laws”), except for any such non-compliance as would not, individually or in the aggregate,
reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect, and no action, suit or proceeding by or before any Governmental Authority or any
arbitrator involving the Company with respect to the Money Laundering Laws is pending or, to the Company’s knowledge, threatened.

 
(xlix)      The Company’s wholly-owned, small business investment company subsidiary, OFS SBIC I, LP. has been organized and operated

as, and currently is organized and operated, in material conformance with the requirements of the Small Business Investment Act of 1958 and the
rules and regulations promulgated thereunder applicable to small business investment companies.

 
(l)          The Subsidiaries of the Company do not have employees or employ personnel.
 

(b)          Any certificate signed by any officer of the Company delivered to the Representatives or to counsel for the Underwriters pursuant to or
in connection with this Agreement shall be deemed a representation and warranty by the Company to the Underwriters as to the matters covered
thereby.

 

 



 

 
5.           Representations and Warranties of the Advisor and the Administrator:
 
The Advisor and the Administrator, jointly and severally, represent and warrant to, and agree with, each Underwriter as follows:
 

(a)          the Advisor is a limited liability company duly formed and is validly existing in good standing under the laws of the state of Delaware,
with the requisite limited liability company power and authority to own, lease and operate its properties and to conduct its business as described in the
Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus, and is duly qualified to transact business and is in good standing under the laws
of each jurisdiction which requires such qualification, except where the failure to be so qualified or in good standing would not reasonably be expected
to have a Material Adverse Effect. The Administrator is a limited liability company duly formed and is validly existing in good standing under the laws
of the state of Delaware, with the requisite limited liability company power and authority to own, lease and operate its properties and to conduct its
business as described in the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus, and is duly qualified to transact business and is in
good standing under the laws of each jurisdiction which requires such qualification, except where the failure to be so qualified or in good standing
would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect;

 
(b)          the Advisor is duly registered with the Commission as an investment adviser under the Advisers Act and is registered with the

appropriate state authority in all states in which it needs to be registered; the Advisor is not prohibited by the Advisers Act, the Investment Company
Act or any state statute from acting under the Investment Advisory Agreement, as contemplated by the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus; there
does not exist any proceeding, or to the Advisor’s knowledge, any facts or circumstances the existence of which could lead to any proceeding which
might materially and adversely affect the registration of the Advisor with the Commission or any applicable state regulatory authority

 
(c)          the Advisor has or had the requisite limited liability company power and authority to enter into this Agreement, the Investment Advisory

Agreement and the Staffing Agreement and to accept the benefits under the License Agreement, and the Administrator had the requisite limited liability
company power and authority to enter into this Agreement and the Administration Agreement; the execution and delivery of, and the performance by
the Advisor of its obligations under, this Agreement, the Investment Advisory Agreement and the License Agreement have been duly and validly
authorized by the Advisor, and the execution and delivery of, and the performance by the Administrator of its obligations under this Agreement and the
Administration Agreement have been duly and validly authorized by the Administrator; and this Agreement, the Investment Advisory Agreement and
the License Agreement have been duly executed and delivered by the Advisor and this Agreement and the Administration Agreement have been duly
executed and delivered by the Administrator, and each such agreement constitutes the valid and legally binding agreement of the Advisor or
Administrator, as applicable, enforceable against the Advisor or Administrator in accordance with its terms, except as rights to indemnity and
contribution hereunder may be limited by federal or state securities laws and subject to the qualification that the enforceability of the Advisor’s
obligations hereunder and thereunder, and the Administrator’s obligations hereunder and thereunder, may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization, moratorium and other laws relating to or affecting creditors’ rights generally and by general equitable principles;

 
(d)          each of the Advisor and Administrator has the financial, human and other resources available to it necessary for the performance of its

services and obligations as contemplated in the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus and under this Agreement, as applicable;
 
(e)          no action, suit or proceeding by or before any court or governmental agency, authority or body or any arbitrator involving each of the

Advisor or the Administrator or their property is pending or, to the knowledge of the Advisor and the Administrator, threatened that (i) is required to be
described in the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus that is not so described as required, (ii) would reasonably be expected to have a material
adverse effect on the ability of the Advisor or the Administrator, as the case may be, to fulfill its obligations hereunder or under the Investment
Advisory Agreement, the License Agreement or the Administration Agreement, as applicable, or (iii) would reasonably be expected to have a material
adverse effect on the condition (financial or otherwise), prospects, earnings, business or properties of the Advisor or the Administrator, whether or not
arising from transactions in the ordinary course of business (an “Advisor/Administrator Material Adverse Effect”), except as set forth in or
contemplated in the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus;

 

 



 

 
(f)          neither the Advisor nor the Administrator is in breach of, or in default under (nor has any event occurred which with notice, lapse of

time, or both would constitute a breach of, or default under or give the holder of any indebtedness (or a person acting on such holder’s behalf) the right
to require the repurchase, redemption or repayment of all or part of such indebtedness under), its respective Charter Documents or in the performance or
observance of any obligation, agreement, covenant or condition contained in any contract, license, indenture, mortgage, deed of trust, bank loan or
credit agreement or other agreement or instrument to which the Advisor or the Administrator is a party or by which any of them or their respective
properties is bound or affected, except for such breaches or defaults which would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have
an Advisor/Administrator Material Adverse Effect;

 
(g)          since the respective dates as of which information is given in the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus, except as otherwise stated

therein, (i) there has been no event, circumstance or change that has had, or would reasonably be expected to have an Advisor/Administrator Material
Adverse Effect; and (ii) there have been no transactions entered into by the Advisor or Administrator, which are material to the Advisor or
Administrator, as the case may be, other than those in the ordinary course of its business as described in the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus;

 
(h)          each of the Advisor and the Administrator possesses all licenses, certificates, permits and other authorizations issued by the appropriate

federal, state or foreign regulatory authorities necessary to conduct its business in the manner described in the Preliminary Prospectus and the
Prospectus, and neither of the Advisor nor the Administrator has received any notice of proceedings relating to the revocation or modification thereof,
except where the failure to possess any such licenses, certificates, permits or other authorizations, or the revocation or modification thereof, would not,
individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have an Advisor/Administrator Material Adverse Effect and would not reasonably be
expected to have a material adverse effect on the transactions contemplated by this Agreement;

 
(i)          there are no actions, suits, arbitrations, claims, proceedings, inquiries or investigations pending or, to the knowledge of the Advisor or the

Administrator, threatened against the Advisor or the Administrator, or any of their respective properties, or to the knowledge of the Advisor or the
Administrator, their respective directors, officers or affiliates, at law or in equity, or before or by any Governmental Authority, in each case which
would reasonably be expected to result in a judgment, decree, award or order having an Advisor/Administrator Material Adverse Effect;

 
(j)          each of the Advisor and the Administrator owns or possesses adequate licenses or other rights to use all patents, trademarks, service

marks, trade names, copyrights, software and design licenses, trade secrets, other intangible property rights and know-how (collectively
“Advisor/Administrator Intellectual Property”), as are necessary to entitle the Advisor and the Administrator to conduct the Advisor’s and the
Administrator’s business described in both the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus, except where the failure to own, license or have such right
would not reasonably be expected to have an Advisor/Administrator Material Adverse Effect; and neither the Advisor nor the Administrator has
received written notice of any infringement of or conflict with (and neither the Advisor nor the Administrator knows of any such infringement of or
conflict with) asserted rights of others with respect to any Advisor/Administrator Intellectual Property which would reasonably be expected to have an
Advisor/Administrator Material Adverse Effect;

 
(k)          no (i) approval, authorization, consent or order of or filing with any federal, state, local or foreign governmental or regulatory

commission, board, body, authority or agency, (ii) authorization, approval, vote or other consent of any holder of securities of the Advisor or the
Administrator or any creditor of the Advisor or the Administrator, or (iii) waiver or consent under any material agreement is required in connection with
the Advisor’s and the Administrator’s execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement, to the extent a party thereto, the consummation of the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement, and the sale and delivery of the Securities, other than (A) such as have been obtained, or will have been
obtained at the Closing Date or the relevant Option Closing Date, as the case may be, under the Securities Act, the Exchange Act, the Investment
Company Act, the Advisers Act and the rules and regulations of FINRA, (B) such approvals as have been obtained in connection with the approval of
the listing of the Securities on [name of exchange], subject to official notice of issuance, and (C) any necessary qualification under the securities or blue
sky laws of the various jurisdictions in which the Securities are being offered by the Underwriters;

 

 



 

 
(l)          Each of the Advisor and the Administrator owns or leases or has access to all properties and assets as are necessary to the conduct of its

operations as presently conducted;
 
(m)          neither the execution, delivery or performance by the Advisor of this Agreement, the Investment Advisory Agreement or the License

Agreement, or the execution, delivery or performance by the Administrator of this Agreement or the Administration Agreement, nor the consummation
of the transactions herein or therein contemplated, nor the fulfillment of the terms hereof or thereof conflict with, result in a breach or violation of, or
imposition of any lien, charge or encumbrance upon any property or assets of the Advisor or Administrator, as applicable, pursuant to, (i) the Charter
Documents of the Advisor or Administrator, as applicable, (ii) the terms of any indenture, contract, lease, mortgage, deed of trust, note agreement, loan
agreement or other agreement, obligation, condition, covenant or instrument to which the Advisor or Administrator, as applicable, is a party or bound or
to which its property is subject, or (iii) any statute, law, rule, regulation, judgment, order or decree applicable to the Advisor or Administrator, as
applicable, of any court, regulatory body, administrative agency, governmental body, arbitrator or other authority having jurisdiction over the Advisor
or Administrator, as applicable, or any of their respective properties, except in the case of clauses (ii) and (iii) where such breach or violation, either
singly or in the aggregate, would not reasonably be expected to have an Advisor/Administrator Material Adverse Effect;

 
(n)          neither the Advisor nor the Administrator has taken, directly or indirectly, any action designed to, or that would constitute or that might

reasonably be expected to cause or result in, under the Exchange Act or otherwise, stabilization or manipulation of the price of any security of the
Company to facilitate the sale or resale of the Securities and neither the Advisor nor the Administrator is aware of any such action taken or to be taken
by any affiliates of the Advisor or the Administrator;

 
(o)          the operations of the Advisor or the Administrator are and have been conducted at all times in compliance with applicable Money

Laundering Laws, except for any such non-compliance as would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material
Adverse Effect, and no action, suit or proceeding by or before any court or governmental agency, authority or body or any arbitrator involving the
Advisor or the Administrator with respect to the Money Laundering Laws is pending or, to the knowledge of the Advisor or the Administrator,
threatened;

 
(p)          the Advisor maintains a system of internal controls sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that (i) transactions effectuated by it under

the Investment Advisory Agreement are executed in accordance with its management’s general or specific authorization and (ii) access to the
Company’s assets is permitted only in accordance with its management’s general or specific authorization;

 
(q)          the Administrator maintains a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that (i) transactions for

which it has bookkeeping and record keeping responsibility under the Administration Agreement are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of the
Company’s financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and to maintain accountability for the Company’s assets
and (ii) the recorded accountability for such assets is compared with existing assets at reasonable intervals and appropriate action is taken with respect
to any differences;

 
(r)          the description of each of the Advisor and the Administrator and its business, and the statements attributable to the Advisor and the

Administrator, in each of the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus did not and will not contain an untrue statement of
a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were
made, not misleading; 

 
(s)          neither the Advisor nor the Administrator is, and after giving effect to the offering and sale of Securities and the application of the

proceeds thereof as described in the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus will be, required to register as an
“investment company” (as defined in the Investment Company Act); 

 

 



 

 
(t)          each of the Advisor and the Administrator maintains insurance (issued by insurers of recognized financial responsibility) of the types and

in the amounts generally deemed adequate for their respective businesses and consistent with insurance coverage maintained by similar companies in
similar businesses, including, but not limited to, insurance covering real and personal property owned or leased by the Advisor and the Administrator
against theft, damage, destruction, acts of vandalism and all other risks customarily insured against, all of which insurance is in full force and effect;
and

 
(u)          Any certificate signed by any officer of the Advisor or the Administrator and delivered to the Underwriters or to counsel for the

Underwriters shall be deemed a representation and warranty by the Advisor or the Administrator, as applicable, to the Underwriters as to matters
covered thereby.

 
6.           Certain Covenants of the Company, the Advisor and the Administrator:
 
The Company hereby agrees, and the Advisor and the Administrator jointly and severally agree, with each Underwriter:
 

(a)          To notify the Underwriters promptly following the issuance by the Commission of any stop order suspending the effectiveness of the
Registration Statement or the initiation of any proceedings for that purpose, and the suspension of the qualification of the Securities for offering or sale
in any jurisdiction. The Company will make every reasonable effort to prevent the issuance of any stop order described in this subsection hereunder
and, if any such stop order is issued, to use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain the lifting thereof at the earliest possible moment, and to advise
the Underwriters promptly of any examination pursuant to Section 8(e) of the Securities Act or of the Company becoming the subject of a proceeding
under Section 8A of the Securities Act in connection with any offering of the Securities.

 
(b)          That if, at the time this Agreement is executed and delivered, it is necessary for a post-effective amendment to the Registration

Statement to be declared effective before the offering of the Securities may commence, the Company will endeavor to cause such post-effective
amendment to become effective as soon as possible and will advise the Representatives promptly and, if requested by the Representatives, will confirm
such advice in writing, when such post-effective amendment has become effective.

 
(c)          To furnish, upon request and without charge, to the Underwriters a signed copy of the Registration Statement (including exhibits thereto)

and for delivery to each other Underwriter a conformed copy of the Registration Statement (without exhibits thereto) and to furnish to you in New York
City, without charge, prior to 10:00 a.m. New York City time on the business day next succeeding the date of this Agreement and during the period
mentioned in Section 6(d) below, as many copies of the Preliminary Prospectus and Prospectus and any supplements and amendments thereto or to the
Registration Statement as you may reasonably request.

 
(d)          Before amending or supplementing the Registration Statement or the Prospectus, to furnish to you a copy of each such proposed

amendment or supplement and not to file any such proposed amendment or supplement to which you reasonably object in writing within two business
days after receipt, and to file with the Commission within the applicable period specified in Rule 497 under the Securities Act any prospectus required
to be filed pursuant to such Rule.

 
(e)          To advise the Underwriters promptly of the happening of any event or development known to the Company within the Prospectus

Delivery Period which, in the judgment of the Company or in the reasonable opinion of the Representatives or counsel for the Underwriters, (i) would
require the making of any change in the Preliminary Prospectus or the Prospectus so that the Preliminary Prospectus or the Prospectus would not
include an untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in
the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, or (ii) would make it necessary to amend or supplement the Preliminary
Prospectus or the Prospectus in order to comply with any law and, in each case, during such time, to promptly prepare and furnish to the
Representatives copies of the proposed amendment or supplement before filing any such amendment or supplement with the Commission and thereafter
promptly furnish at the Company’s own expense to the Underwriters and to dealers, copies in such quantities and at such locations as the
Representatives may from time to time reasonably request of an appropriate amendment or supplement to the Preliminary Prospectus or the Prospectus
so that the Preliminary Prospectus or the Prospectus as so amended or supplemented will not when it (or in lieu thereof the notice referred to in Rule
173(a) of the Securities Act Regulations) is so delivered, include an untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, or so that the Preliminary Prospectus or the
Prospectus will comply with applicable law.

 

 



 

 
(f)          To use commercially reasonable efforts to furnish such information as may be required and otherwise to cooperate with the Underwriters

in qualifying the Securities for offering and sale under the securities or blue sky laws of such jurisdictions (both domestic and foreign) as the
Representatives may designate and to maintain such qualifications in effect as long as requested by the Representatives for the distribution of the
Securities; provided, however, that the Company shall not be required to qualify as a foreign corporation, to subject itself to taxation or to consent to the
service of process under the laws of any such jurisdiction (except service of process with respect to the offering and sale of the Securities).

 
(g)          For a period of days from the date of this Agreement, to not, without the prior consent of the Representatives, directly or indirectly sell,

offer to sell, enter into any agreement to sell, or otherwise dispose of, any debt securities of the Company which are substantially similar to the
Securities or securities convertible into such debt securities which are substantially similar to the Securities.

 
(h)          To apply the net proceeds received by the Company from the sale of the Securities sold by it as set forth under “Use of Proceeds” in the

General Disclosure Package and the Prospectus.
 
(i)          To maintain, as appropriate, directors and officers liability insurance in an amount deemed advisable by the Company in its reasonable

discretion.
 
(j)          To use its best efforts to maintain its status as a business development company under the Investment Company Act, except unless

authorized by the vote of a majority of the outstanding voting securities of the Company as defined by the Investment Company Act.
 
(k)          To use its best efforts to conform with the applicable requirements to be treated as a regulated investment company under Subchapter M

of the Code for so long as the Company is a business development company under the Investment Company Act.
 
(l)          Not to, and to use its best efforts to cause its officers, directors and affiliates not to, (i) take, directly or indirectly, prior to termination of

the underwriting syndicate contemplated by this Agreement, any action designed to stabilize or manipulate the price of any security of the Company, or
which may cause or result in, or which might in the future reasonably be expected to cause or result in, the stabilization or manipulation of the price of
any security of the Company, to facilitate the sale or resale of any of the Securities or (ii) sell, bid for, purchase or pay anyone (other than the
Underwriters) any compensation for soliciting purchases of the Securities.

 
(m)          To timely file such reports pursuant to the 1934 Act as are necessary in order to make generally available to its securityholders as soon

as practicable an earnings statement for the purposes of, and to provide to the Underwriters the benefits contemplated by, the last paragraph of Section
11(a) of the Securities Act.

 
(n)          To cooperate with the Representatives and use its commercially reasonable efforts to permit the Securities to be eligible for clearance

and settlement through the facilities of DTC.
 
(o)          To use its commercially reasonable efforts to effect, within 30 days of the Closing Date, the listing of the Securities on [name of

exchange].
 

 



 

 
(p)          Whether or not the transactions contemplated in this Agreement are consummated or this Agreement is terminated, to pay or cause to be

paid all expenses incident to the performance of its obligations under this Agreement, including: (i) the fees, disbursements and expenses of counsel for
the Company and the Company’s accountants in connection with the registration and delivery of the Securities under the Securities Act and all other
fees or expenses in connection with the preparation and filing of the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus Supplement and the Prospectus,
and any amendments and supplements to any of the foregoing, including all printing costs associated therewith, and the mailing and delivering of
copies thereof to the Underwriters, in the quantities hereinabove specified, (ii) the printing and delivery to the Underwriters of this Agreement, the
Indenture, the DTC Agreement and such other documents as may be required in connection with the offering, purchase, sale, issuance and delivery of
the certificates for the Securities (iii) all costs and expenses related to the transfer and delivery of the Securities to the Underwriters, including any
transfer or other taxes payable thereon, (iv) the cost of printing or producing any Blue Sky memo in connection with the offer and sale of the Securities
under state securities laws and all expenses in connection with the qualification of the Securities for offer and sale under state securities laws, including
filing fees and the reasonable fees and disbursements of counsel for the Underwriters in connection with such qualification and in connection with the
Blue Sky memorandum, (v) all filing fees and the reasonable fees and disbursements of counsel to the Underwriters incurred in connection with the
review and qualification of the offering of the Securities by FINRA, if any, (vi) any fees charged by the rating agencies for the rating of the Securities,
(vii) the cost of printing certificates representing the Securities, (viii) the fees and expenses incurred in connection with listing the Securities on the
[name of exchange], (ix) the fees and expenses of the trustee and any transfer agent, registrar or depositary in connection with the issuance of the
Securities, (x) the costs and expenses of the Company relating to investor presentations on any “road show” undertaken in connection with the
marketing of the offering of the Securities, including, without limitation, expenses associated with the production of road show slides and graphics, fees
and expenses of any consultants engaged in connection with the road show presentations with the prior approval of the Company, travel and lodging
expenses of the representatives and officers of the Company and any such consultants, and, with the prior approval of the Company, the cost of any
aircraft chartered in connection with the road show and (xi) all other costs and expenses incident to the performance of the obligations of the Company
hereunder for which provision is not otherwise made in this Section. It is understood, however, that except as provided in this Section and in Section 8,
entitled “Indemnification and Contribution,” the Underwriters will pay all of their costs and expenses, including fees and disbursements of their
counsel, stock transfer taxes payable on resale of any of the Securities by them and any advertising expenses connected with any offers they may make.

 
7.          Conditions of the Underwriters’ Obligations; Additional Covenants.
 
The obligations of the Underwriters hereunder to purchase Securities at the Closing Date or on each Option Closing Date, as applicable, are subject to

the accuracy of the representations and warranties on the part of the Company hereunder as of the Applicable Time and at the Closing Date, and on each
Option Closing Date, as applicable, the performance by the Company of its obligations hereunder and to the satisfaction of the following further conditions at
the Closing Date or on each Option Closing Date, as applicable:

 
(a)          The Company shall furnish to the Underwriters at the Closing Date and on each Option Closing Date (i) an opinion of Sutherland Asbill

& Brennan, LLP, counsel for the Company, addressed to the Underwriters and dated the Closing Date and such Option Closing Date, substantially in
the form in Exhibit B.

 
(b)          The Representatives shall have received from BDO USA, LLP letters dated, respectively: (i) the date of the Preliminary Prospectus as

most recently amended or supplemented immediately prior to the Applicable Time; (ii) the date of this Agreement; (iii) the Closing Date; and (iv) each
Option Closing Date (if any), and addressed to the Representatives, in form and substance satisfactory to the Representatives, containing statements and
information of the type specified in AU Section 634 “Letters for Underwriters and Certain other Requesting Parties” issued by the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants with respect to the financial statements, including any pro forma financial statements, and certain financial information of
the Company included in the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus, and such other matters customarily covered by
comfort letters issued in connection with registered public offerings; provided, however, that the letters delivered at the Closing Date and each Option
Closing Date (if any) shall use a “cut-off” date no more than three business days prior to such date of the Preliminary Prospectus, the Closing Date or
such Option Closing Date, as the case may be.

 
(c)          No amendment or supplement to the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus or the Prospectus shall have been filed to which

the Underwriters shall have reasonably objected in writing.
 
(d)          Prior to the Closing Date and each Option Closing Date: (i) no stop order suspending the effectiveness of the Registration Statement or

any order preventing or suspending the use of the Preliminary Prospectus or the Prospectus shall have been issued, and no proceedings for such purpose
shall have been initiated or threatened, by the Commission, and no suspension of the qualification of the Securities for offering or sale in any
jurisdiction, or the initiation or threatening of any proceedings for any of such purposes, has occurred; and (ii) all requests for additional information on
the part of the Commission shall have been complied with to the reasonable satisfaction of the Representatives.

 
(e)          All filings with the Commission required by Rule 497 under the Securities Act to have been filed by the Closing Date shall have been

made within the applicable time period prescribed for such filing by such Rule 497;
 
(f)          On the Closing Date, the Company and the Trustee shall have executed and delivered the Indenture (including the Second Supplemental

Indenture).
 

 



 

 
(g)          On or prior to the Closing Date, the Company shall have executed and delivered the DTC Agreement.
 
(h)          Between the time of execution of this Agreement and the Closing Date or the relevant Option Closing Date, there shall not have been

any Material Adverse Effect or Advisor/Administrator Material Adverse Effect;
 
(i)          The Securities shall have been approved for listing on [name of exchange], subject to official notice of issuance;
 
(j)          FINRA shall not have raised any objection with respect to the fairness and reasonableness of the underwriting terms and arrangements;
 
(k)          The Company will have delivered, at the Closing Date and on each Option Closing Date, to the Underwriters a certificate of the

Company signed on its behalf by its Chief Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer, to the effect that:
 

(i)          The representations and warranties of the Company in this Agreement are true and correct, as if made on and as of the Closing
Date or any Option Closing Date, as applicable, and the Company has complied with all the agreements and satisfied all the conditions on its part
to be performed or satisfied at or prior to the Closing Date or any Option Closing Date, as applicable;

 
(ii)         no stop order suspending the effectiveness of the Registration Statement or any post-effective amendment thereto has been issued

and no proceedings for that purpose have been instituted or are pending or threatened under the Securities Act;
 
(iii)         to the best of the signers’ knowledge, after reasonable investigation, when the Registration Statement became effective and at all

times subsequent thereto up to the Closing Date or any Option Closing Date, as applicable, the representations and warranties in Sections 4(a)(i)
and (ii) were true and correct; and

 
(iv)        subsequent to the respective dates as of which information is given in the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and

the Prospectus, there has not been (a) any Material Adverse Effect, (b) any transaction that is material to the Company considered as one
enterprise, except transactions entered into in the ordinary course of business, (c) any change in the capital stock or outstanding indebtedness of
the Company that is material to the Company considered as one enterprise, (d) any dividend or distribution of any kind declared, paid or made on
the capital stock of the Company or any Subsidiary, or (e) any loss or damage (whether or not insured) to the property of the Company or any
Subsidiary which has been sustained or will have been sustained which has a Material Adverse Effect.

 
(l)          The Company shall have furnished to the Underwriters such other documents and certificates as to the accuracy and completeness of any

statement in the Registration Statement, the Preliminary Prospectus and the Prospectus, the representations, warranties and statements of the Company
contained herein, and the performance by the Company of its covenants contained herein, and the fulfillment of any conditions contained herein, as of
the Closing Date or any Option Closing Date, as the Underwriters may reasonably request.

 
8.           Indemnification and Contribution.
 

(a)          The Company agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless each Underwriter and any person who controls any Underwriter within the
meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act or Section 20 of the Exchange Act, and the respective directors, officers, employees and agents of each
Underwriter, from and against any loss, expense, liability, damage or claim (including the reasonable cost of investigation) which, jointly or severally,
any such Underwriter or controlling person may incur under the Securities Act, the Exchange Act or otherwise, insofar as such loss, expense, liability,
damage or claim arises out of or is based upon (i) any untrue statement or alleged untrue statement of a material fact contained in the Registration
Statement (or any amendment or part thereof), the Preliminary Prospectus or the Prospectus, (ii) any omission or alleged omission to state a material
fact required to be stated in any such Registration Statement, or necessary to make the statements made therein not misleading, (iii) any omission or
alleged omission from any such Preliminary Prospectus or Prospectus of a material fact necessary to make the statements made therein, in the light of
the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, or (iv) any untrue statement or alleged untrue statement of any material fact contained
in the Roadshow Material; except in each case of (i), (ii), (iii) and (iv) above insofar as any such loss, expense, liability, damage or claim arises out of or
is based upon any untrue statement or alleged untrue statement or omission or alleged omission of a material fact contained in and in conformity with
written information furnished to the Company by an Underwriter through the Representatives specifically for use in the Registration Statement (or any
amendment thereto), the part of the Registration Statement that constitutes the Statement of Eligibility and Qualification under the 1939 Act (Form T-1)
of the Trustee under the Indenture, the Prospectus or any amendment or supplement thereto, it being understood and agreed that the only such
information furnished by any Underwriter consists of the information described as such in subsection (b) below. The indemnity agreement set forth in
this Section 8(a) shall be in addition to any liability which the Company may otherwise have.

 

 



 

 
If any action is brought against an Underwriter or controlling person in respect of which indemnity may be sought against the Company pursuant

to the foregoing paragraph, such Underwriter shall promptly notify the Company in writing of the institution of such action, and the Company shall
assume the defense of such action, including the employment of counsel and payment of expenses; provided, however, that any failure or delay to so
notify the Company will not relieve the Company of any obligation hereunder, except to the extent that its ability to defend is actually impaired by such
failure or delay. Such Underwriter or controlling person shall have the right to employ its or their own counsel in any such case, but the fees and
expenses of such counsel shall be at the expense of such Underwriter or such controlling person unless the employment of such counsel shall have been
authorized in writing by the Company in connection with the defense of such action, or the Company shall not have employed counsel to have charge
of the defense of such action within a reasonable time after delivery of notice of such action or such indemnified party or parties shall have reasonably
concluded (based on the advice of counsel) that there may be defenses available to it or them which are different from or additional to those available to
the Company (in which case the Company shall not have the right to direct the defense of such action on behalf of the indemnified party or parties), in
any of which events such fees and expenses shall be borne by the Company and paid as incurred (it being understood, however, that the Company shall
not be liable for the expenses of more than one separate firm of attorneys for the Underwriters or controlling persons in any one action or series of
related actions in the same jurisdiction (other than local counsel in any such jurisdiction) representing the indemnified parties who are parties to such
action). Anything in this paragraph to the contrary notwithstanding, the Company shall not be liable for any settlement of any such claim or action
effected without its consent.

 
(b)           Each Underwriter agrees, severally and not jointly, to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Company, the Company’s directors, the

Company’s officers that signed the Registration Statement, and any person who controls the Company within the meaning of Section 15 of the
Securities Act or Section 20 of the Exchange Act, from and against any loss, expense, liability, damage or claim (including the reasonable cost of
investigation) which the Company or any such person may incur under the Securities Act, the Exchange Act or otherwise, insofar as such loss, expense,
liability, damage or claim arises out of or is based upon (i) any untrue statement or alleged untrue statement of a material fact contained in the
Registration Statement (or any amendment or part thereof), the Preliminary Prospectus or Prospectus, (ii) any omission or alleged omission to state a
material fact required to be stated in any such Registration Statement, or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading, or (iii) any omission
or alleged omission from any such Preliminary Prospectus or Prospectus of a material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, but in each case only insofar as such untrue statement or alleged untrue statement or
omission or alleged omission was made in such Registration Statement, Preliminary Prospectus or Prospectus in reliance upon and in conformity with
information furnished in writing by or on behalf of the Underwriters through the Representatives to the Company expressly for use therein. [The
following statements under the caption “Underwriting” beginning on page of the Preliminary Prospectus: (A) the third paragraph on page ; and (B) the
paragraph on page of the Preliminary Prospectus beginning with “[t]he representatives of the underwriters may engage …” until and including the last
bullet of that paragraph ending with “… at which a stabilizing bid is made” on page of the Preliminary Prospectus (and the corresponding sections of
the Prospectus, to the extent such statements relate to the Underwriters) constitute the only information furnished by or on behalf of any Underwriter
through the Representatives to the Company for purposes of Section 4(a)(ii), Section 4(a)(x) and this Section 8.]

 

 



 

 
If any action is brought against the Company or any such person in respect of which indemnity may be sought against any Underwriter pursuant

to the foregoing paragraph, the Company or such person shall promptly notify the Representatives in writing of the institution of such action, and the
Representatives, on behalf of the Underwriters, shall assume the defense of such action, including the employment of counsel and payment of expenses;
provided, however, that any failure or delay to so notify the Representatives will not relieve the Representatives or any Underwriter of any obligation
hereunder, except to the extent that the Representatives’ ability to defend is actually impaired by such failure or delay. The Company or such person
shall have the right to employ its own counsel in any such case, but the fees and expenses of such counsel shall be at the expense of the Company or
such person unless the employment of such counsel shall have been authorized in writing by the Representatives in connection with the defense of such
action or the Representatives shall not have employed counsel to have charge of the defense of such action within a reasonable time after delivery of
notice of such action or such indemnified party or parties shall have reasonably concluded (based on the advice of counsel) that there may be defenses
available to it or them which are different from or additional to those available to the Underwriters (in which case the Representatives shall not have the
right to direct the defense of such action on behalf of the indemnified party or parties), in any of which events such fees and expenses shall be borne by
such Underwriter and paid as incurred (it being understood, however, that the Underwriters shall not be liable for the expenses of more than one
separate firm of attorneys in any one action or series of related actions in the same jurisdiction (other than local counsel in any such jurisdiction)
representing the indemnified parties who are parties to such action). Anything in this paragraph to the contrary notwithstanding, no Underwriter shall be
liable for any settlement of any such claim or action effected without the written consent of the Representatives.

 
(c)          If the indemnification provided for in this Section 8 is unavailable or insufficient to hold harmless an indemnified party under

subsections (a) and (b) of this Section 8 in respect of any losses, expenses, liabilities, damages or claims referred to therein, then each applicable
indemnifying party, in lieu of indemnifying such indemnified party, shall contribute to the amount paid or payable by such indemnified party as a result
of such losses, expenses, liabilities, damages or claims (i) in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative benefits received by the Company
and the Underwriters from the offering of the Shares or (ii) if (but only if) the allocation provided by clause (i) above is not permitted by applicable law,
in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect not only the relative benefits referred to in clause (i) above but also the relative fault of the Company and
of the Underwriters in connection with the statements or omissions which resulted in such losses, expenses, liabilities, damages or claims, as well as
any other relevant equitable considerations. The relative benefits received by the Company and the Underwriters shall be deemed to be in the same
proportion as the total proceeds from the offering (net of underwriting discounts and commissions but before deducting expenses) received by the
Company bear to the underwriting discounts and commissions received by the Underwriters, in each case as set forth in the table on the cover page of
the Prospectus. The relative fault of the Company and of the Underwriters shall be determined by reference to, among other things, whether the untrue
statement or alleged untrue statement of a material fact or omission or alleged omission relates to information supplied by the Company or by the
Underwriters and the parties’ relative intent, knowledge, access to information and opportunity to correct or prevent such statement or omission. The
amount paid or payable by a party as a result of the losses, claims, damages and liabilities referred to above shall be deemed to include any legal or
other fees or expenses reasonably incurred by such party in connection with investigating or defending any claim or action.

 
(d)          The Company and the Underwriters agree that it would not be just and equitable if contribution pursuant to this Section 8 were

determined by pro rata allocation (even if the Underwriters were treated as one entity for such purpose) or by any other method of allocation which does
not take account of the equitable considerations referred to in subsection (c)(i) and, if applicable, subsection (c)(ii), above. Notwithstanding the
provisions of this Section 8, no Underwriter shall be required to contribute any amount in excess of the underwriting discounts and commissions
applicable to the Shares purchased by such Underwriter. No person guilty of fraudulent misrepresentation (within the meaning of Section 11(f) of the
Securities Act) shall be entitled to contribution from any person who was not guilty of such fraudulent misrepresentation. The Underwriters’ obligations
to contribute pursuant to this Section 8 are several in proportion to their respective underwriting commitments and not joint.
 

 



 

 
9.    Termination of Agreement. 

 
(a)          The obligations of the Underwriters under this Agreement may be terminated at any time on or prior to the Closing Date, by notice given

to the Company if, prior to the delivery and payment for the Securities there shall have occurred (i) any change, or any development or event involving
a prospective change, in the condition (financial or otherwise), results of operations, business, net worth, or properties of the Company and its
Subsidiaries taken as a whole which, in the judgment of the Representatives, is material and adverse and makes it impractical or inadvisable to market
the Securities; (ii) any change in U.S. or international financial, political or economic conditions or currency exchange rates or exchange controls the
effect of which is such as to make it, in the judgment of the Representatives, impractical to market or to enforce contracts for the sale of the Securities,
whether in the primary market or in respect of dealings in the secondary market; (iii) any suspension or material limitation of trading in securities
generally on the NYSE, the American Stock Exchange or the Nasdaq, or any setting of minimum or maximum prices for trading on such exchange;
(iv) any suspension of trading of any securities of the Company on any exchange or in the over-the-counter market; (v) any banking moratorium
declared by any U.S. federal or New York authorities; (vi) any major disruption of settlements of securities, payment, or clearance services in the
United States; or (vii) any attack on, outbreak or escalation of hostilities or act of terrorism involving the United States, any declaration of war by
Congress or any other national or international calamity or emergency if, in the judgment of the Representatives, the effect of any such attack, outbreak,
escalation, act, declaration, calamity or emergency is such as to make it impractical or inadvisable to market the Securities or to enforce contracts for
the sale of the Securities.

 
(b)          If the Representatives elect to terminate this Agreement as provided in this Section 8, the Company and the Underwriters shall be

notified promptly by telephone, promptly confirmed by facsimile.
 
(c)           If the sale to the Underwriters of the Securities, as contemplated by this Agreement, is not carried out by the Underwriters for any

reason permitted under this Agreement or if such sale is not carried out because the Company shall be unable to comply in all material respects with
any of the terms of this Agreement, the Company shall not be under any obligation or liability under this Agreement (except to the extent provided in
Section 6(p) and Section 11 hereof) and the Underwriters shall be under no obligation or liability to the Company under this Agreement (except to the
extent provided in Section 11 hereof) or to one another hereunder.

 
10.          Default of Underwriters.
 

(a)          If any Underwriter shall default at the Closing Date or on any Option Closing Date in its obligation to take up and pay for the Securities
to be purchased by it under this Agreement on such date, the Representatives shall use reasonable efforts, within 36 hours after such default, to make
arrangements for one or more of the non-defaulting Underwriters, or any other underwriters, to purchase all, but not less than all, of the Securities
which such Underwriter shall have agreed but failed to take up and pay for (the “Defaulted Securities”). If, during such 36-hour period, the
Representatives shall not have made such arrangements, then the Company shall be entitled to a further period of 36 hours within which to make
arrangements for another party or parties satisfactory to you to purchase the Defaulted Securities. Absent the completion of such arrangements within
such 36-hour period, (i) if the total number of Defaulted Securities does not exceed 10% of the total number of Securities to be purchased on such date,
each non-defaulting Underwriter shall take up and pay for (in addition to the number of Securities which it is otherwise obligated to purchase on such
date pursuant to this Agreement) the portion of the total number of Securities agreed to be purchased by the defaulting Underwriter on such date in the
proportion that its underwriting obligations hereunder bears to the underwriting obligations of all non-defaulting Underwriters; and (ii) if the total
number of Defaulted Securities exceeds 10% of the total number of Securities to be purchased on such date, the Representatives may terminate this
Agreement by notice to the Company, without liability of any party to any other party except that the provisions of Subsection 6(p) and Section 8 hereof
shall at all times be effective and shall survive such termination.

 
(b)           Without relieving any defaulting Underwriter from its obligations hereunder, the Company agrees with the non-defaulting Underwriters

that it will not sell any Securities hereunder on such date unless all of the Securities to be purchased on such date are purchased on such date by the
Underwriters (or by substituted underwriters selected by the Representatives with the approval of the Company or selected by the Company with the
approval of the Representatives).

 

 



 

 
(c)           If a new underwriter or underwriters are substituted for a defaulting Underwriter in accordance with the foregoing provision, the

Company or the non-defaulting Underwriters shall have the right to postpone the Closing Date or the relevant Option Closing Date for a period not
exceeding five business days in order that any necessary changes in the Registration Statement and Prospectus and other documents may be effected.

 
(d)           The term “Underwriter” as used in this Agreement shall refer to and include any underwriter substituted under this Section 10 with the

same effect as if such substituted underwriter had originally been named in this Agreement.
 

11.         Survival of Certain Representations and Obligations.
 
The indemnity and contribution agreements contained in Section 8 and the covenants, warranties and representations of the Company contained in

Section 4, Section 6 and Subsection 6(p) of this Agreement and the warranties and representations of the Advisor and the Administrator contained in Section
4, Section 5 and Section 6 shall remain in full force and effect regardless of any investigation made by or on behalf of any Underwriter, or any person who
controls any Underwriter within the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act or Section 20 of the Exchange Act, and the respective directors, officers,
employees and agents of each Underwriter or by or on behalf of the Company, its directors and officers, or any person who controls the Company within the
meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act or Section 20 of the Exchange Act, and shall survive any termination of this Agreement or the sale and delivery
of the Shares. The Company and each Underwriter agree promptly to notify the others of the commencement of any litigation or proceeding against it and, in
the case of the Company, against any of the Company’s officers and directors, in connection with the sale and delivery of the Shares, or in connection with the
Registration Statement or Prospectus.

 
12.          Duties
 
 Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to create a partnership, joint venture or agency relationship between the parties. The Underwriters

undertake to perform such duties and obligations only as expressly set forth herein. Such duties and obligations of the Underwriters with respect to the
Securities shall be determined solely by the express provisions of this Agreement, and the Underwriters shall not be liable except for the performance of such
duties and obligations with respect to the Securities as are specifically set forth in this Agreement. The Company acknowledges and agrees that: (i) the
purchase and sale of the Securities pursuant to this Agreement, including the determination of the public offering price of the Securities and any related
discounts and commissions, is an arm’s-length commercial transaction between the Company, on the one hand, and the several Underwriters, on the other
hand, and the Company is capable of evaluating and understanding and understands and accepts the terms, risks and conditions of the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement; (ii) in connection with each transaction contemplated hereby and the process leading to such transaction each Underwriter is
and has been acting solely as a principal and is not the financial advisor, agent or fiduciary of the Company or its affiliates, shareholders, creditors or
employees or any other party; (iii) no Underwriter has assumed or will assume an advisory, agency or fiduciary responsibility in favor of the Company with
respect to any of the transactions contemplated hereby or the process leading thereto (irrespective of whether such Underwriter has advised or is currently
advising the Company on other matters); and (iv) the several Underwriters and their respective affiliates may be engaged in a broad range of transactions that
involve interests that differ from those of the Company and that the several Underwriters have no obligation to disclose any of such interests. The Company
acknowledges that the Underwriters disclaim any implied duties (including any fiduciary duty), covenants or obligations arising from the Underwriters’
performance of the duties and obligations expressly set forth herein. The Company hereby waives and releases, to the fullest extent permitted by law, any
claims that the Company may have against the several Underwriters with respect to any breach or alleged breach of agency or fiduciary duty.

 
13.          Notices:
 
Except as otherwise herein provided, all statements, requests, notices and agreements shall be in writing or by telegram and, if to the Underwriters, shall

be sufficient in all respects if delivered to the Representatives in care of [•], Attention: , with a copy to; if to the Company, shall be sufficient in all respects if
delivered to the Company at the offices of the Company at 10 S. Wacker Drive, Suite 2500, Chicago Illinois, 60606, Attention: Chief Executive Officer.

 

 



 

 
 14.          Governing Law; Headings:

 
THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAWS OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF

NEW YORK, WITHOUT REGARD TO CONFLICTS OF LAWS PRINCIPLES. The section headings in this Agreement have been inserted as a matter of
convenience of reference and are not a part of this Agreement.

 
15.           Parties at Interest:
 
The Agreement herein set forth has been and is made solely for the benefit of the Underwriters, the Company and the controlling persons, directors and

officers referred to in Section 8 and Section 11 hereof, and their respective successors, assigns, executors and administrators. No other person, partnership,
association or corporation (including a purchaser, as such purchaser, from any of the Underwriters) shall acquire or have any right under or by virtue of this
Agreement.

 
16.          Counterparts and Facsimile Signatures:
 
 This Agreement may be signed by the parties in counterparts which together shall constitute one and the same agreement among the parties. A

facsimile signature shall constitute an original signature for all purposes. 
 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]
 

 



 

 
If the foregoing correctly sets forth the understanding among the Company, the Advisor and the Administrator on the one hand, and the Underwriters on

the other, please so indicate in the space provided below for the purpose, whereupon this Agreement shall constitute a binding agreement among the
Company, the Advisor and the Administrator on the one hand, and each of the Underwriters on the other.

 
 
  Very truly yours,
   
  OFS CAPITAL CORPORATION
   
 By:  
   By:
   Title:
    
 OFS CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC
   
 By:  
   By:
   Title:
    
 OFS CAPITAL SERVICES, LLC
   
 By:  
   By:
   Title:
 

Accepted and agreed to as
of the date first above written:  
  
[•], For themselves and as Representatives of 

the other Underwriters named on Schedule I
hereto.

 

   
By:   
  By:  
  Title:  

 
[Signature Page to the Underwriting Agreement]

 

 



 
Exhibit (s)(1)

 
This preliminary prospectus supplement relates to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, but the
information in this preliminary prospectus supplement is not complete and may be changed. This preliminary prospectus supplement and the
accompanying prospectus are not an offer to sell and are not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer and sale is
not permitted.

 
Subject to Completion

Preliminary Prospectus Supplement dated , 20
 

[FORM OF PRELIMINARY PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT TO BE USED IN
CONJUNCTION WITH FUTURE COMMON STOCK OFFERINGS]1

 
PRELIMINARY PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT
(to Prospectus dated             , 20     )

 

Shares
 

OFS Capital Corporation
 

Common Stock
 

 

 
We are an externally managed, non-diversified, closed-end management investment company that has elected to be treated as a business development

company under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, or the 1940 Act. Our investment objective is to provide our shareholders with both current
income and capital appreciation primarily through debt investments and, to a lesser extent, equity investments.

 
We are offering for sale              shares of our common stock. We have granted the underwriters a     -day option to purchase up to additional shares of

our common stock at the public offering price, less the underwriting discounts and commissions.
 
Substantially all of the debt securities in which we invest are below investment grade debt securities and are often referred to as “high yield” or “junk”

securities. Exposure to below investment grade securities involves certain risk, and those securities are viewed as having predominately speculative
characteristics with respect to the issuer’s capacity to pay interest and repay principal. A material amount of our debt investments contain floating interest rate
provisions that may make it more difficult for the borrowers to make debt repayments. Further, our debt investments generally will not pay down principal
during their term, which could result in a substantial loss to us if the portfolio company is unable to refinance or repay the debt at maturity.

 
Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol “OFS.” On         , the last reported sales price on the NASDAQ

Global Select Market for our common stock was $ per share. We are required to determine the net asset value per share of our common stock on a quarterly
basis. Our net asset value per share of our common stock as of       was $   .

 
We qualify as an emerging growth company, as that term is used in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (the “JOBS Act”). An emerging

growth company may take advantage of specified reduced reporting and other burdens that are otherwise applicable generally to public companies. However,
we are choosing to “opt out” of such extended transition period, and as a result, we will comply with new or revised accounting standards on the relevant
dates on which adoption of such standards is required for non-emerging growth companies. Our decision to opt out of the extended transition period for
complying with new or revised accounting standards is irrevocable.

 
 

1 In addition to the sections outlined in this form of prospectus supplement, each prospectus supplement actually used in connection with an offering
conducted pursuant to the registration statement to which this form of prospectus supplement is attached will be updated to include such other information as
may then be required to be disclosed therein pursuant to applicable law or regulation as in effect as of the date of each such prospectus supplement, including,
without limitation, information particular to the terms of each security offered thereby and any related risk factors or tax considerations pertaining thereto.
This form of prospectus supplement is intended only to provide a rough approximation of the nature and type of disclosure that may appear in any actual
prospectus supplement used for the purposes of offering securities pursuant to the registration statement to which this form of prospectus supplement is
attached, and is not intended to and does not contain all of the information that would appear in any such actual prospectus supplement, and should not be
used or relied upon in connection with any offer or sale of securities.

 

 



 

 
Investing in our common stock involves a high degree of risk, including credit risk and the risk of the use of leverage. Before buying any shares

of our common stock, you should read the discussion of the material risks of investing in our common stock in “Risk Factors” in the accompanying
prospectus.

 
Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities, or

determined if this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal
offense.

 
Please read this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus before investing and keep it for future reference. It contains important

information about us that a prospective investor ought to know before investing in our securities. We file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy
statements and other information about us with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The information is available free of charge by contacting Investor
Relations of OFS Capital Corporation, 10 S. Wacker Drive, Suite 2500, Chicago, IL 60606, or by calling us at (847) 734-2000 or on our website at
www.ofscapital.com. The Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC, maintains a website at www.sec.gov where such information is available without
charge. Information contained on our website is not incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement, and you should not consider information
contained on our website to be part of this prospectus supplement.

 
  Per Share   Total  
Public Offering Price  $   $  
Sales Load (Underwriting Discounts and Commissions)  $   $  
Proceeds to us (before expenses)(1)(2)  $   $  
 
(1) We will incur approximately $            of estimated expenses, excluding the sales load, in connection with this offering. Our shareholders will bear such
expenses, including the sales load.
 
(2) To the extent that the underwriters sell more than             shares of our common stock, the underwriters have the option to purchase up to an additional
            shares of our common stock at the public offering price, less the sales load, within  days of the date of this prospectus supplement. If the underwriters
exercise this option in full, the total public offering price, sales load and proceeds to us will be $            , $ and $            , respectively.
 
The underwriters expect to deliver the shares on or about             , 20     . 

 
The date of this prospectus supplement is        , 20    
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ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

 
You should rely only on the information contained in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. Neither we nor the

underwriters have authorized any other person to provide you with different information from that contained in this prospectus supplement or the
accompanying prospectus. If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent information, you should not rely on it. This prospectus supplement
and the accompanying prospectus do not constitute an offer to sell, or a solicitation of an offer to buy, any shares of our common stock by any person
in any jurisdiction where it is unlawful for that person to make such an offer or solicitation or to any person in any jurisdiction to whom it is
unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation. The information contained in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus is
complete and accurate only as of their respective dates, regardless of the time of their delivery or sale of our common stock. This prospectus
supplement supersedes the accompanying prospectus to the extent it contains information different from or additional to the information in that
prospectus.

 
This document is in two parts. The first part is this prospectus supplement, which describes the terms of this offering of common stock and also adds to

and updates information contained in the accompanying prospectus. The second part is the accompanying prospectus, which gives more general information
and disclosure. To the extent the information contained in this prospectus supplement differs from the information contained in the accompanying prospectus,
the information in this prospectus supplement shall control. Please carefully read this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus together with
any exhibits and the additional information described under “Available Information” before you make an investment decision.
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PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT SUMMARY

 
This summary highlights some of the information in this prospectus supplement. It is not complete and may not contain all of the information that you

may want to consider before investing in our securities. Throughout this prospectus supplement, we refer to OFS Capital Corporation and its consolidated
subsidiaries as the “Company,” “we,” “us” or “our;” OFS Capital Management, LLC as “OFS Advisor” or the “Advisor;” and OFS Capital Services, LLC
as “OFS Services” or the “Administrator.”
 
OFS Capital Corporation

 
We are an externally managed, closed-end, non-diversified management investment company formed in March 2001. Our investment objective is to

provide our shareholders with both current income and capital appreciation primarily through debt investments and, to a lesser extent, equity investments.
Our investment strategy focuses primarily on investments in middle-market companies in the United States. We use the term “middle-market” to refer to
companies which may exhibit one or more of the following characteristics: number of employees between 150 and 2,000; revenues between $15 million and
$300 million; annual earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, or EBITDA, between $3 million and $50 million; generally, private
companies owned by private equity firms or owners/operators; and enterprise value between $10 million and $500 million. For additional information about
how we define the middle-market, see “The Company — Investment Criteria/Guidelines” in the accompanying prospectus.

 
In connection with our initial public offering, or IPO, on November 7, 2012, we converted from a limited liability company to a corporation, as a result of

which the sole membership interest held by Orchard First Source Asset Management, LLC, or OFSAM, prior to the conversion was exchanged for 2,912,024
shares of our common stock. In connection with our IPO, we elected to be treated as a business development company, or BDC, under the 1940 Act. On
November 14, 2012, we completed our IPO, selling 6,666,667 shares of our common stock at a public offering price of $15 per share and raising $100
million in gross proceeds. We incurred approximately $6.2 million of sales load and $5.8 million of offering related costs in connection with our IPO. We
utilized approximately $90 million of our IPO proceeds to pay down the senior secured revolving credit facility, which OFS Capital WM, LLC, or OFS
Capital WM, our wholly owned subsidiary, entered into with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., or Wells Fargo, and Madison Capital Funding LLC, a subsidiary of
New York Life Investments, or Madison Capital, to finance its business.

 
As of September 30, 2014, our investment portfolio consisted of outstanding loans of approximately $262.7 million in aggregate principal amount in 57

portfolio companies, of which $123.2 million in aggregate principal amount was held by OFS SBIC I, LP (formerly known as Tamarix Capital Partners,
L.P.), or SBIC I LP, our wholly-owned SBIC subsidiary, in 18 portfolio companies. As of that date, 88% of our investment portfolio was comprised of senior
secured loans, 7% of subordinated loans and 5% of equity investments, at fair value.

 
As of September 30, 2014, our net asset value was approximately $137.1 million, or approximately $14.22 per share.
 
While our investment strategy focuses primarily on middle-market companies in the United States, including senior secured loans, which includes first-

lien, second-lien and unitranche loans as well as subordinated loans and, to a lesser extent, warrants and other minority equity securities, we also may invest
up to 30% of our portfolio in opportunistic investments of non-eligible portfolio companies. Specifically, as part of this 30% basket, we may consider
investments in investment funds that are operating pursuant to certain exceptions to the 1940 Act and in advisers to similar investment funds, as well as in
debt of middle-market companies located outside of the United States and debt and equity of public companies that do not meet the definition of eligible
portfolio companies because their market capitalization of publicly traded equity securities exceeds the levels provided for in the 1940 Act.

 
Our investment strategy includes SBIC I LP, which received a small business investment company, or SBIC, license from the U.S. Small Business

Administration, or SBA, in May 2012. On December 4, 2013, we received approval from the SBA to acquire all of the limited partnership interests in SBIC I
LP and all of the ownership interests of its general partner, OFS SBIC I GP, LLC (formerly known as Tamarix Capital G.P. LLC), or SBIC I GP, that were
owned or subscribed for by other persons (the “SBIC Acquisitions”, or the “Tamarix Acquisitions”). We acquired the interests on December 4, 2013, which
resulted in SBIC I LP becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary. The transaction was finalized in January 2014. For additional information on the acquisition of
SBIC I LP and SBIC I GP, see our consolidated financial statements and the related notes thereto included in the accompanying prospectus. The SBIC license
allows SBIC I LP to receive SBA-guaranteed debenture funding, subject to the issuance of a leverage commitment by the SBA and other customary
procedures. SBA leverage funding is subject to SBIC I LP’s payment of certain fees to the SBA, and the ability of SBIC I LP to draw on the leverage
commitment is subject to its compliance with SBA regulations and policies, including an audit by the SBA. For additional information regarding the
regulation of SBIC I LP, see “Regulation  — Small Business Investment Company Regulations” in the accompanying prospectus.
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On November 26, 2013, we received an exemptive order from the SEC to permit us to exclude the debt of SBIC I LP guaranteed by the SBA from the

definition of senior securities in the statutory 200% asset coverage ratio under the 1940 Act, allowing for greater capital deployment.
 
Our investment activities are managed by OFS Capital Management, LLC, or OFS Advisor, and supervised by our board of directors, a majority of whom

are independent of us, OFS Advisor and its affiliates. Under the investment advisory and management agreement between us and OFS Advisor, or the
Investment Advisory Agreement, we have agreed to pay OFS Advisor an annual base management fee based on the average value of our total assets (other
than cash and cash equivalents and certain non-cash items resulting from the SBIC Acquisitions but including assets purchased with borrowed amounts and
including assets owned by any consolidated entity) as well as an incentive fee based on our investment performance. On May 5, 2014, OFS Advisor agreed
to reduce its base management fee by two-thirds for the nine months commencing April 1, 2014 and ending December 31, 2014. For additional information
regarding the fees paid to OFS Advisor, see “Management and Other Agreements — Investment Advisory Agreement” in the accompanying prospectus.

 
We have also entered into an administration agreement, or Administration Agreement, with OFS Capital Services, LLC, or OFS Services, our

Administrator. Under our Administration Agreement, we have agreed to reimburse OFS Services for our allocable portion (subject to the review and approval
of our independent directors) of overhead and other expenses incurred by OFS Services in performing its obligations under the Administration Agreement.

 
As a BDC, we must not acquire any assets other than “qualifying assets” specified in the 1940 Act unless, at the time the acquisition is made, at least 70%

of our total assets are qualifying assets (with certain limited exceptions). Qualifying assets include investments in “eligible portfolio companies.” Under the
relevant SEC rules, the term “eligible portfolio company” includes all private companies, companies whose securities are not listed on a national securities
exchange, and certain public companies that have listed their securities on a national securities exchange and have a market capitalization of less than $250
million, in each case organized in the United States.

 
We are permitted to borrow money from time to time within the levels permitted by the 1940 Act (which generally allows us to incur leverage for up to

50% of our asset base). We may borrow money when the terms and conditions available are favorable to do so and are aligned with our investment strategy
and portfolio composition. The use of borrowed funds or the proceeds from issuing our preferred stock to make investments would have its own specific
benefits and risks, and all of the costs of borrowing funds or issuing preferred stock would be borne by holders of our common stock.

 
We have elected to be treated for tax purposes as a regulated investment company, or RIC, under Subchapter M of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, or

the Code. To qualify as a RIC, we must, among other things, meet certain source-of-income and assets diversification requirements. Pursuant to these
elections, we generally will not have to pay corporate-level taxes on any income we distribute to our shareholders.

 
On September 28, 2010, OFS Capital WM entered into a $180.0 million secured revolving credit facility (as amended from time to time, the “OFS

Capital WM Credit Facility”) with Wells Fargo and Madison Capital, with the Class A lenders (initially Wells Fargo) providing up to $135.0 million in Class
A loans (“Class A Facility”) and the Class B lenders (initially Madison Capital) providing up to $45.0 million in Class B loans (“Class B Facility”). The OFS
Capital WM Credit Facility is secured by all current and future eligible loans acquired by OFS Capital WM. The loan facilities with Wells Fargo and
Madison Capital had five- and six-year terms, respectively, and both facilities provided a one-year option for extension upon the approval of the lenders. The
loan facilities had a reinvestment period of two years after the closing date of the OFS Capital WM Credit Facility, which could be extended by one year with
the consent of each lender. Outstanding borrowings on the loan facilities were limited to the lesser of (1) $180.0 million and (2) the borrowing base as
defined by the OFS Capital WM Credit Facility loan documents. OFS Capital WM is obligated to pay interest on the outstanding loans on each quarterly
payment date. The Class B Facility was terminated in January 2013. In connection with the closing of the OFS Capital WM Credit Facility, OFS Capital WM
incurred financing costs of approximately $3.5 million were deferred and amortized over the term of OFS Capital WM Credit Facility. As a result of the
amendments to OFS Capital WM Credit Facility in 2012 (“WM 2012 Credit Facility Amendments”), we have substantial additional input into certain key
management decisions with respect to OFS Capital WM’s portfolio companies, including decisions with respect to amendments to or modifications of the
investments in these entities, or noticing or waiving of defaults or accelerating portfolio loans.

 
As a result of certain amendments through July 24, 2014, the OFS Capital WM Credit Facility’s borrowing base was adjusted and the minimum equity

requirement was lowered from $65.0 million to $35.0 million, resulting in additional liquidity for the Company. In addition, the maximum facility was
reduced from $180.0 million to $125.0 million.
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On November 18, 2014, OFS Capital WM elected to further reduce the maximum borrowing capacity on the OFS Capital WM Credit Facility from

$125.0 million to $100.0 million.
 
Organizational Structure

 
 
About OFS and Our Adviser

 
OFS (which refers to the collective activities and operations of OFSAM and its subsidiaries and certain affiliates) is an investment platform focused on

meeting the capital needs of middle-market companies. OFS is the successor to First Source Financial Inc., which was founded in 1995 as a joint venture
between Dominion Capital, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Dominion Resources, Inc., or Dominion, and Household Commercial Financial Services Inc.,
a unit of Household International, or Household. Household sold its interest in First Source Financial Inc. to Dominion in 1997. In 2003, Orchard Paladin
Management, LLC, our predecessor, acquired from Dominion a portfolio of performing and non-performing loans of approximately $625 million in
aggregate commitment amount, plus additional investments in equity securities. Shortly thereafter, in 2004, Orchard Paladin Management, LLC acquired
Dominion’s interest in First Source Financial Inc. Most of the loan workouts and special situations investments managed by our senior managers since 2003
involved loans in the portfolio acquired from Dominion and loans acquired as a result of the purchase of Dominion’s interest in First Source Financial Inc.

 
As of September 30, 2014, OFS had 35 full-time employees and one part-time employee. OFS is headquartered in Chicago, Illinois, with additional

offices in New York, New York and Los Angeles, California.
 
Our investment activities are managed by OFS Advisor, our investment adviser. OFS Advisor is responsible for sourcing potential investments,

conducting research and diligence on potential investments and equity investors, analyzing investment opportunities, structuring our investments and
monitoring our investments and portfolio companies on an ongoing basis. OFS Advisor is a subsidiary of OFSAM, our parent company prior to the
completion of our IPO, and is a registered investment adviser under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, or the Advisers Act.

 
Our relationship with OFS Advisor is governed by and dependent on the Investment Advisory Agreement and may be subject to conflicts of interest. We

have entered into the Investment Advisory Agreement, pursuant to which OFS Advisor provides us with advisory services in exchange for a base
management fee and incentive fee. See “Management and Other Agreements — Investment Advisory Agreement” in the accompanying prospectus for a
discussion of the base management fee and incentive fee payable by us to OFS Advisor. The base management fee is based on our total assets (other than
cash and cash equivalents and the intangible asset and goodwill resulting from the SBIC Acquisitions but including assets purchased with borrowed amounts
and including assets owned by any consolidated entity) and, therefore, OFS Advisor will benefit when we incur debt or use leverage. Our board of directors
is charged with protecting our interests by monitoring how OFS Advisor addresses these and other conflicts of interest associated with its management
services and compensation. While our board of directors is not expected to review or approve each borrowing or incurrence of leverage, our independent
directors will periodically review OFS Advisor’s services and fees as well as its portfolio management decisions and portfolio performance.
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OFS Advisor has entered into a staffing agreement, or the Staffing Agreement, with Orchard First Source Capital, Inc., or OFSC, a wholly-owned

subsidiary of OFSAM. With the exception of Richard Ressler, OFSC employs all of OFS’s investment professionals. Under the Staffing Agreement, OFSC
will make experienced investment professionals available to OFS Advisor and provide access to the senior investment personnel of OFS and its affiliates.
The Staffing Agreement provides OFS Advisor with access to deal flow generated by OFS and its affiliates in the ordinary course of their businesses and
commits the members of OFS Advisor’s investment committee to serve in that capacity. As our investment adviser, OFS Advisor is obligated to allocate
investment opportunities among us and any other clients fairly and equitably over time in accordance with its allocation policy.

 
OFS Advisor capitalizes on the significant deal origination and sourcing, credit underwriting, due diligence, investment structuring, execution, portfolio

management and monitoring experience of OFS’s professionals. The senior management team of OFS, including Bilal Rashid, Jeff Cerny and Mark Hauser,
provides services to OFS Advisor. These managers have developed a broad network of contacts within the investment community, averaging over 20 years of
experience investing in debt and equity securities of middle-market companies. In addition, these managers have gained extensive experience investing in
assets that will constitute our primary focus and have expertise in investing across all levels of the capital structure of middle-market companies.

 
OFS Advisor’s investment committee, or the Advisor Investment Committee, which is comprised of Richard Ressler (Chairman), Jeffrey Cerny, Peter

Fidler, Mark Hauser, Bilal Rashid, and Peter Rothschild, is responsible for our overall asset allocation decisions, as well as approval of all investments made
by us directly or through OFS Capital WM. Certain members of the Advisor Investment Committee perform a similar role for other investments managed by
OFS and its affiliates.

 
The investment committee for SBIC I LP, or the SBIC Investment Committee (and, together with the Advisor Investment Committee, the Investment

Committees), which is comprised of Peter Fidler, Mark Hauser, Glenn Pittson, and Peter Rothschild, is responsible for approval of all of investments made by
SBIC I LP. Any investment decision on the part of SBIC I LP requires the unanimous approval of the SBIC Investment Committee.
 
Our Administrator

 
OFS Services, an affiliate of OFS Advisor, provides the administrative services necessary for us to operate. OFS Services furnishes us with officers and

their staffs, office facilities and equipment, necessary software licenses and subscriptions and clerical, bookkeeping and recordkeeping services at such
facilities. OFS Services oversees our financial reporting as well as prepares our reports to shareholders and all other reports and materials required to be filed
with the SEC or any other regulatory authority. OFS Services also manages the determination and publication of our net asset value and the preparation and
filing of our tax returns and generally monitors the payment of our expenses and the performance of administrative and professional services rendered to us
by others. OFS Services may retain third parties to assist in providing administrative services to us.
 
Market Opportunity

 
Our investment strategy is focused primarily on investments in middle-market companies in the United States. We find the middle-market attractive for

the following reasons:
 
Large Target Market.  We believe that these middle-market companies represent a significant growth segment of the U.S. economy and often require

substantial capital investments to grow.
 
Specialized Lending Requirements with High Barriers to Entry.  We believe that several factors render many U.S. financial institutions ill-suited to lend

to U.S. middle-market companies. As a result, middle-market companies historically have been served by a limited segment of the lending community. As a
result of the unique challenges facing lenders to middle-market companies, there are high barriers to entry that a new lender must overcome.

 
Robust Demand for Debt Capital.  We believe that private equity firms have significant committed but uncalled capital, a large portion of which is still

available for investment in the United States.
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Competitive Strengths and Core Competencies

 
Deep Management Team Experienced in All Phases of Investment Cycle and Across All Levels of the Capital Structure.  We are managed by OFS

Advisor, which has access through the Staffing Agreement with OFSC to the resources and expertise of OFS’s investment professionals. As of September 30,
2014, OFS’s credit and investment professionals (including all investment committee members) employed by OFSC had an average of over 15 years of
investment experience with strong institutional backgrounds.

 
Significant Investment Capacity.  The net proceeds of equity and debt offerings and borrowing capacity under our credit facilities will provide us with a

substantial amount of capital available for deployment into new investment opportunities in our targeted asset class.
 
Scalable Infrastructure Supporting the Entire Investment Cycle.  We believe that our loan acquisition, origination and sourcing, underwriting,

administration and management platform is highly scalable (that is, it can be expanded on a cost efficient basis within a timeframe that meets the demands of
business growth). Our platform extends beyond origination and sourcing and includes a regimented credit monitoring system. We believe that our careful
approach, which involves ongoing review and analysis by an experienced team of professionals, should enable us to identify problems early and to assist
borrowers before they face difficult liquidity constraints.

 
Extensive Loan Sourcing Capabilities.  OFS Advisor gives us access to the deal flow of OFS. We believe OFS’s 19-year history as a middle-market

lending platform and its market position make it a leading lender to many sponsors and other deal sources, especially in the currently under-served lending
environment, and we have extensive relationships with potential borrowers and other lenders.

 
Structuring with a High Level of Service and Operational Orientation.  We provide client-specific and creative financing structures to our portfolio

companies. Based on our experience in lending to and investing in middle-market companies, we believe that the middle-market companies we target, as well
as sponsor groups we may pursue, require a higher level of service, creativity and knowledge than has historically been provided by other service providers
more accustomed to participating in commodity-like loan transactions.

 
Rigorous Credit Analysis and Approval Procedures.  OFS Advisor utilizes the established, disciplined investment process of OFS for reviewing lending

opportunities, structuring transactions and monitoring investments. Using OFS’s disciplined approach to lending, OFS Advisor seeks to minimize credit
losses through effective underwriting, comprehensive due diligence investigations, structuring and, where appropriate, the implementation of restrictive debt
covenants.
 
Structure of Investments

 
We anticipate that our loan portfolio will continue to contain investments of the following types:
 
First-Lien Senior Secured Loans.  First-lien senior secured loans comprise a significant portion of our investment portfolio.
 
Senior Secured Unitranche Loans.  Unitranche loans are loans that combine both senior and subordinated debt into one loan under which the borrower

pays a single blended interest rate that is intended to reflect the relative risk of the secured and unsecured components.
 
Second-lien Senior Secured Loans.  We obtain security interests in the assets of these portfolio companies as collateral in support of the repayment of

such loans. This collateral typically takes the form of second-priority liens on the assets of a portfolio company, and we may enter into an intercreditor
agreement with the holders of the portfolio company’s first-lien senior secured debt.

 
Unsecured Subordinated (“Mezzanine”) Loans.  We structure these investments as unsecured, subordinated loans that typically provide for relatively

high, fixed interest rates that provide us with significant current interest income.
 
Warrants and Other Minority Equity Securities.  In some cases, we will also acquire a minority equity interest in the portfolio company in connection

with making a loan, or receive nominally priced warrants or options to buy a minority equity interest in the portfolio company in connection with making a
loan. As a result, as a portfolio company appreciates in value, we may achieve additional investment return from our equity interest.
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General Structuring Considerations.  We tailor the terms of each investment to the facts and circumstances of the transaction and the prospective

portfolio company, negotiating a structure that protects our rights and manages our risk while creating incentives for the portfolio company to achieve its
business plan and improve its operating results.

 
We expect to hold most of our investments to maturity or repayment, but we may sell some of our investments earlier if a liquidity event occurs, such as a

sale, recapitalization or worsening of the credit quality of the portfolio company.
 
Conflicts of Interests

 
Subject to certain 1940 Act restrictions on co-investments with affiliates, OFS Advisor will offer us the right to participate in investment opportunities

that it determines are appropriate for us in view of our investment objective, policies and strategies and other relevant factors. Such offers will be subject to
the exception that, in accordance with OFS Advisor’s allocation policy, we might not participate in each individual opportunity but will, on an overall basis,
be entitled to participate fairly and equitably with other entities managed by OFS Advisor and its affiliates.

 
To the extent that we compete with entities managed by OFS Advisor or any of its affiliates for a particular investment opportunity, OFS Advisor will

allocate investment opportunities across the entities for which such opportunities are appropriate, consistent with (a) its internal allocation policy, (b) the
requirements of the Advisers Act, and (c) certain restrictions under the 1940 Act and rules thereunder regarding co-investments with affiliates. OFS
Advisor’s allocation policy is intended to ensure that we may generally share fairly and equitably with other investment funds or other investment vehicles
managed by OFS Advisor or its affiliates in investment opportunities that OFS Advisor determines are appropriate for us in view of our investment objective,
policies and strategies and other relevant factors, particularly those involving a security with limited supply or involving differing classes of securities of the
same issuer that may be suitable for us and such other investment funds or other investment vehicles. Under this allocation policy, if two or more investment
vehicles with similar or overlapping investment strategies are in their investment periods, an available opportunity will be allocated based on the provisions
governing allocations of such investment opportunities in the relevant organizational, offering or similar documents, if any, for such investment vehicles. In
the absence of any such provisions, OFS Advisor will consider the following factors and the weight that should be given with respect to each of these factors:

 
 • investment guidelines and/or restrictions, if any, set forth in the applicable organizational, offering or similar documents for the investment vehicles;
   
 • risk and return profile of the investment vehicles;
   
 • suitability/priority of a particular investment for the investment vehicles;
   
 • if applicable, the targeted position size of the investment for the investment vehicles;
   
 • level of available cash for investment with respect to the investment vehicles;
   
 • total amount of funds committed to the investment vehicles; and
   
 • the age of the investment vehicles and the remaining term of their respective investment periods, if any.

 
In situations where co-investment with such other accounts is not permitted or appropriate, such as when there is an opportunity to invest in different

securities of the same issuer, OFS Advisor will need to decide which account will proceed with the investment. The decision by OFS Advisor to allocate an
opportunity to another entity could cause us to forego an investment opportunity that we otherwise would have made. See “Related-Party Transactions and
Certain Relationships” in the accompanying prospectus
 
Corporate Information

 
Our principal executive offices are located at 10 S. Wacker Drive, Suite 2500, Chicago, IL, 60606, and our telephone number is (847) 734-2000. Our

corporate website is located at http://www.ofscapital.com. Information on our website is not incorporated into or a part of this prospectus supplement.
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Implications of Being an Emerging Growth Company

 
We qualify as an emerging growth company, as that term is used in the JOBS Act. An emerging growth company may take advantage of specified

reduced reporting and other burdens that are otherwise applicable generally to public companies. These provisions include:
 

 • An exemption from the auditors attestation requirement in the assessment of the emerging growth company’s internal control over financial reporting
under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “Sarbanes-Oxley Act”);

   
 • No non-binding advisory votes on executive compensation or golden parachute arrangements; and
   
 • Reduced financial statement and executive compensation requirements.

 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, we have complied with Section 404(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act regarding auditor attestation for the fiscal year ended

December 31, 2013.
 
In addition, Section 107 of the JOBS Act also provides that an emerging growth company can take advantage of the extended transition period provided

in Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), for complying with new or revised accounting standards. However, we
are choosing to “opt out” of such extended transition period, and as a result, we will comply with new or revised accounting standards on the relevant dates
on which adoption of such standards is required for non-emerging growth companies. Our decision to opt out of the extended transition period for complying
with new or revised accounting standards is irrevocable.

 
We could remain an emerging growth company for up to five years, or until the earliest of (a) the last day of the first fiscal year in which our annual gross

revenues exceed $1 billion, (b) the date that we become a “large accelerated filer” as defined in Rule 12b-2 under the Exchange Act, which would occur if
the market value of our common stock that is held by non-affiliates exceeds $700 million as of the last business day of our most recently completed second
fiscal quarter, or (c) the date on which we have issued more than $1 billion in non-convertible debt during the preceding three year period.
 
Risks

 
Investing in our securities may be speculative and involves certain risks relating to our structure and our investment objective that you should consider

before deciding whether to invest. Certain of these risks are referenced below:
 
Capital markets are currently functional, but may experience periods of disruption and instability, which could have a negative impact on our business

and operations.
 
There are numerous risks relating to our business, including credit losses on our investments, the risk of loss associated with leverage, illiquidity and

valuation uncertainties in our investments, possible lack of appropriate investments, the lack of experience in operating a BDC of our investment adviser and
our dependence on such investment adviser.

 
There are also numerous risks relating to our investments, including the risky nature of the securities in which we invest, the subordinated nature of select

investments, our potential lack of control over our portfolio companies, our limited ability to invest in public or foreign companies and the potential
incentives in our investment adviser to invest more speculatively than it would if it did not have an opportunity to earn incentive fees.

 
We also have various risks relating to our status as a BDC, including limitations on raising additional capital, failure to qualify as a BDC and loss of tax

status as a RIC. In addition, SBIC I LP has the risk of losing its SBIC status.
 
There are also risks relating to this offering, including volatility in our stock price and the anti-takeover effect of certain provisions in our certificate of

incorporation.
 
See “Risk Factors” beginning on page 16 of the of the accompanying prospectus for a more detailed discussion of these and other material risks you

should carefully consider before deciding to invest in our securities.
 

S-8



 

 
THE OFFERING

 
Common Stock Offered by us

 
                 shares, excluding                  shares of common stock issuable pursuant to the option to purchase
additional shares granted to the underwriters.

  
Common Stock Outstanding Prior to

This Offering  
                 shares.

  
Common Stock Outstanding After This

Offering  
                 shares, excluding                  shares of common stock issuable pursuant to the option to purchase
additional shares granted to the underwriters.

  
Use of Proceeds

 

We plan to use the net proceeds from the sale of our securities pursuant to this prospectus supplement and the
accompanying prospectus for new investments in portfolio companies in accordance with our investment
objective and strategies described in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus and for
general working capital purposes. We will also pay operating expenses, including advisory and administrative
fees and expenses, and may pay other expenses such as due diligence expenses of potential new investments,
from the net proceeds from the sale of our securities pursuant to this prospectus supplement and the
accompanying prospectus. Proceeds not immediately used for new investments will be invested in cash, cash
equivalents, U.S. government securities and other high-quality investments that mature in one year or less
from the date of the investment. These securities may have lower yields than the types of investments we
would typically make in accordance with our investment objective and, accordingly, may result in lower
distributions, if any during such period. See "Use of Proceeds" in this prospectus supplement.

  
NASDAQ Global Select Market

Symbol  
“OFS”

  
Investment Advisory Fees

 

We pay OFS Advisor a fee for its services under the Investment Advisory Agreement consisting of two
components—a base management fee and an incentive fee. The base management fee is calculated at an
annual rate of 1.75% of our total assets (other than cash and cash equivalents and goodwill and intangible
assets relating to the SBIC Acquisitions but including assets purchased with borrowed amounts and including
assets owned by any consolidated entity). On May 5, 2014, OFS Advisor agreed to reduce its base
management fee by two-thirds for the nine months commencing April 1, 2014 and ending December 31, 2014.
Accordingly, the effective annual base management fee for the 2014 fiscal year will be equal to or less than
50% of the 1.75% required by our Investment Advisory Agreement with OFS Advisor, or not greater than
0.875%. The incentive fee consists of two parts.
 
The first part is calculated and payable quarterly in arrears and equals 20.0% of our “pre-incentive fee net
investment income” for the immediately preceding quarter, subject to a preferred return, or “hurdle,” and a
“catch up” feature.
 
The second part is determined and payable in arrears as of the end of each calendar year in an amount equal to
20.0% of our realized capital gains, if any, on a cumulative basis from inception through the end of the year,
computed net of all realized capital losses and unrealized capital depreciation on a cumulative basis, less the
aggregate amount of any previously paid capital gain incentive fees. The incentive fee is determined on a
consolidated basis and, as such, will apply to the operations of Tamarix LP and OFS Capital WM if and for so
long as their financial statements are consolidated with ours. See “Management and Other Agreements—
Investment Advisory Agreement” in the accompanying prospectus.

   
Administrator

 

We reimburse OFS Services under an administration agreement (the “Administration Agreement”) for our
allocable portion (subject to the review and approval of our board of directors) of overhead and other
expenses, including furnishing us with office facilities and equipment and providing clerical, bookkeeping,
record-keeping, necessary software licenses and subscriptions and other administrative services at such
facilities. To the extent that OFS Services outsources any of its functions, we will pay the fees associated with
such functions on a direct basis without incremental profit to OFS Services. See “Management and Other
Agreements—Administration Agreement” in the accompanying prospectus.
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Distributions

 

To the extent that we have income available, we intend to make quarterly distributions to our shareholders for
the first four full quarters subsequent to this offering and then make monthly distributions thereafter. Our
monthly shareholder distributions, if any, will be determined by our Board of Directors on a quarterly basis.
Any distribution to our shareholders will be declared out of assets legally available for distribution.
Distributions in excess of current and accumulated earnings and profits will be treated as a non-taxable return
of capital, which is a return of a portion of a shareholder’s original investment in our common stock, to the
extent of an investor’s basis in our stock and, assuming that an investor holds our stock as a capital asset,
thereafter as a capital gain. Generally, a non-taxable return of capital will reduce an investor’s basis in our
stock for federal tax purposes, which will result in higher tax liability when the stock is sold. See
“Distributions” in the accompanying prospectus.

  
Taxation

 

We have elected to be treated, and intend to continue to qualify, as a RIC under the Code. As a RIC, we
generally will not have to pay corporate-level U.S. federal income taxes on any net ordinary income or capital
gains that we distribute to our shareholders. To maintain RIC tax treatment, we must distribute at least 90% of
our net ordinary income and net short-term capital gains in excess of our net long-term capital losses, if any.
See “Distributions” and “Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations” in the accompanying prospectus.

  
Dividend Reinvestment Plan

 

We have adopted a dividend reinvestment plan for our shareholders, which is an “opt out” dividend
reinvestment plan. Under this plan, if we declare a cash dividend or other distribution, our shareholders who
have not opted out of our dividend reinvestment plan will have their cash distribution automatically reinvested
in additional shares of our common stock, rather than receiving the cash distribution. If a shareholder opts out,
that shareholder will receive cash dividends or other distributions. Shareholders who receive dividends and
other distributions in the form of shares of common stock generally are subject to the same U.S. federal tax
consequences as shareholders who elect to receive their distributions in cash; however, since their cash
dividends will be reinvested, such shareholders will not receive cash with which to pay any applicable taxes
on reinvested dividends. See “Dividend Reinvestment Plan” in the accompanying prospectus.

  
Trading at a Discount

 

Shares of closed-end investment companies, including business development companies, frequently trade at a
discount to their net asset value. We are not generally able to issue and sell our common stock at a price below
our net asset value per share unless we have shareholder approval. The risk that our shares may trade at a
discount to our net asset value is separate and distinct from the risk that our net asset value per share may
decline. We cannot predict whether our shares will trade above, at or below net asset value. See “Risk Factors”
in the accompanying prospectus.

  
License Agreement

 

We have entered into a license agreement with OFSAM, under which OFSAM has agreed to grant us a non-
exclusive, royalty-free license to use the name “OFS.” For a description of the license agreement, see
“Management and Other Agreements—License Agreement” in the accompanying prospectus.

  
Leverage

 

We expect to continue to use leverage to make investments. As a result, we may continue to be exposed to the
risks of leverage, which include that leverage may be considered a speculative investment technique. The use
of leverage magnifies the potential for gain and loss on amounts we invest and therefore, indirectly, increases
the risks associated with investing in shares of our common stock. See “Risk Factors” in the accompanying
prospectus.

  
Certain Anti-Takeover Provisions

 

Our charter and bylaws, as well as certain statutory and regulatory requirements, contain certain provisions
that may have the effect of discouraging a third-party from making an acquisition proposal for us. These anti-
takeover provisions may inhibit a change in control in circumstances that could give the holders of our
common stock the opportunity to realize a premium over the market price for our common stock. See
“Description of Our Capital Stock” in the accompanying prospectus.

   
Available Information

 

We have filed with the SEC a registration statement on Form N-2, of which the accompanying prospectus is a
part, under the Securities Act. This registration statement contains additional information about us and the
shares of our common stock being offered by this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus.
After the completion of this offering, we will be required to file periodic reports, current reports, proxy
statements and other information with the SEC. This information will be available at the SEC’s public
reference room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549 and on the SEC’s website at
http://www.sec.gov. Information on the operation of the SEC’s public reference room may be obtained by
calling the SEC at (800) SEC-0330.
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We maintain a website at http://www.ofscapitalcorp.com and intend to make all of our periodic and current
reports, proxy statements and other information available, free of charge, on or through our website.
Information on our website is not incorporated into or part of this prospectus supplement. You may also obtain
such information free of charge by contacting us in writing at 10 S. Wacker Drive, Suite 2500, Chicago,
Illinois 60606, Attention: Investor Relations.
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FEES AND EXPENSES

 
The following table is intended to assist you in understanding the costs and expenses that you will bear directly or indirectly. We caution you that some

of the percentages indicated in the table below are estimates and may vary. Except where the context suggests otherwise, whenever this prospectus
supplement contains a reference to fees or expenses paid by “us,” “the Company” or “OFS Capital,” or that “we” will pay fees or expenses, you will
indirectly bear such fees or expenses as an investor in OFS Capital.

 
Shareholder transaction expenses:     

Sales load (as a percentage of offering price)    
%
(1)

Offering expenses (as a percentage of offering price)    
%
(2)

Dividend reinvestment plan expenses    
%
(3)

Total shareholder transaction expenses (as a percentage of offering price)   % 
Annual expenses (as a percentage of net assets attributable to common stock):     

Base management fee payable under Investment Advisory Agreement   3.46
%
(4)

Loan management fee payable   0.50
%
(5)

Incentive fees payable under Investment Advisory Agreement   0.43
%
(6)

Interest payments on borrowed funds   2.92
%
(7)

Other expenses   3.31

%
(8)
(9)

Acquired fund fees and expenses   —%(10) 

Total annual expenses   10.62

%
(4)
(9)

 
 

(1) Represents the commission with respect to the shares of our common stock being sold in this offering, which we will pay to                  in connection
with sales of shares of our common stock effected by              in this offering.

 
(2) The offering expenses of this offering are estimated to be approximately $            .

 
(3) The expenses of the dividend reinvestment plan are included in “other expenses.” For additional information, see “Dividend Reinvestment Plan” in the

accompanying prospectus.
 

(4) Commencing November 1, 2013 through March 31, 2014, our base management fee, under the Investment Advisory Agreement was 1.75% per year of
our total assets (other than cash and cash equivalents and goodwill and intangible assets relating to the SBIC Acquisitions but including assets
purchased with borrowed amounts and including assets owned by any consolidated entity). On May 5, 2014, OFS Advisor agreed to reduce its base
management fee by two-thirds for the nine months commencing April 1, 2014 and ending December 31, 2014. Accordingly, the effective annual base
management fee for the 2014 fiscal year will be equal to or less than 50% of the 1.75% required by our Investment Advisory Agreement with OFS
Advisor, or not greater than 0.875%. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the above table assumes that the base management fee is 1.75% per annum in all
cases, and does not reflect the reduction in place for the balance of 2014. We may from time to time decide it is appropriate to change the terms of the
agreement. Under the 1940 Act, any material change to our Investment Advisory Agreement must be submitted to shareholders for approval. See
“Management and Other Agreements — Investment Advisory Agreement” in the accompanying prospectus.
The 3.46% fee reflected in the table is calculated by determining the ratio that the base management fee bears to our net assets attributable to common
stock (rather than our total assets). The estimate of our base management fee referenced in the table is based on our total assets (other than cash and
cash equivalents and goodwill and intangible assets relating to the SBIC Acquisitions but including assets purchased with borrowed money and assets
of any consolidated entity) as of September 30, 2014.

 
(5) Represents the management fee OFS Capital WM pays to MCF Capital Management LLC, which is the loan manager and also an affiliated entity of

Madison Capital (“Loan Manager”).
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(6) Assumes an incentive fee of $149 thousand, which was calculated based on our statement of operations for the three months ended September 30, 2014,

except that the base management fee was assumed to be 1.75% per annum. For the three months ended September 30, 2014, we incurred an actual
incentive fee expense of $723 thousand, which was $574 thousand higher than the incentive fee expense we would have incurred assuming our base
management fee rate was at 1.75% per annum. Notwithstanding the reduced base management fee in the second quarter of 2014, we did not incur any
incentive fee expense for the first and second quarters of 2014, however, based on the increase in investments and investment income we began
incurring incentive fee expense in third quarter of 2014. For the three months ended September 30, 2014, we incurred an actual base management fee
expense of $370 thousand, which would have been $1.1 million assuming our base management fee rate was at 1.75% per annum. For more detailed
information about incentive fees related to capital gains incurred by us that are not payable to the Advisor under the terms of the Investment
Management Agreement, please see Note 4 to our consolidated financial statements for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 as well as Note 5 to
our consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2013, included in the accompanying prospectus.

The incentive fee consists of two parts:

The first, payable quarterly in arrears, equals 20.0% of our pre-incentive fee net investment income initially calculated based on values at the closing of
this offering (including income that is accrued but not yet received in cash), subject to a 2.0% quarterly (8.0% annualized) hurdle rate and a “catch-up”
provision measured as of the end of each calendar quarter. Under this provision, in any calendar quarter, OFS Advisor receives no incentive fee until
our pre-incentive fee net investment income equals the hurdle rate of 2.0% but then receives, as a “catch-up,” 100% of our pre-incentive fee net
investment income with respect to that portion of such pre-incentive fee net investment income, if any, that exceeds the hurdle rate but is less than
2.5%. The effect of this provision is that, if pre-incentive fee net investment income exceeds 2.5% in any calendar quarter, OFS Advisor will receive
20.0% of our pre-incentive fee net investment income as if a hurdle rate did not apply.

The hurdle rate is fixed at 2.0% quarterly (8% annualized), which means that, if interest rates rise, it will be easier for our pre-incentive fee net
investment income to surpass the hurdle rate, which could lead to the payment of fees to OFS Advisor in an amount greater than expected. There is no
accumulation of amounts on the hurdle rate from quarter to quarter and accordingly there is no clawback of amounts previously paid if subsequent
quarters are below the quarterly hurdle rate and there is no delay of payment if prior quarters are below the quarterly hurdle rate.

The second part, payable annually in arrears, equals 20.0% of our realized capital gains on a cumulative basis as of the closing of this offering through
the end of the year, if any (or upon the termination of the Investment Advisory Agreement, as of the termination date), computed net of all realized
capital losses and unrealized capital depreciation on a cumulative basis, less the aggregate amount of any previously paid capital gain incentive fees.
The incentive fee is determined on a consolidated basis and, as such, will apply to the operations of SBIC I LP and OFS Capital WM if and for so long
as their financial statements are consolidated with ours. See “Management and Other Agreements — Investment Advisory Agreement” in the
accompanying prospectus.

 
(7) Interest payments on borrowed funds represents an estimate of our annualized interest expenses based on actual interest and credit facility expenses

incurred for the nine months ended September 30, 2014. Under the OFS Capital WM Credit Facility, our wholly-owned subsidiary, OFS Capital WM,
had debt in the amount of $84.8 million outstanding as of September 30, 2014. In addition, at September 30, 2014, SBIC I LP had SBA debentures
payable in the amount of $61.4 million.

We may borrow additional funds from time to time to make investments to the extent we determine that the economic situation is conducive to doing
so. We also anticipate that SBIC I LP will incur additional leverage which has been approved by the SBA. Our shareholders will bear directly or
indirectly the costs of borrowings under any debt instruments we may enter into.

  
(8) Includes our overhead expenses, including payments under the Administration Agreement based on our allocable portion of overhead and other

expenses incurred by OFS Services. See “Management and Other Agreements — Administration Agreement” in the accompanying prospectus. These
expenses are based on estimated amounts for the current fiscal year.

 
(9) Estimated.

 
(10) Our shareholders indirectly bear the expenses of underlying funds or other investment vehicles that would be investment companies under section 3(a)

of the 1940 Act but for the exceptions to that definition provided for in sections 3(c)(1) and 3(c)(7) of the 1940 Act (“Acquired Funds”) in which we
invest. We do not currently invest in underlying funds or other investment companies.

Example

The following example demonstrates the projected dollar amount of total cumulative expenses over various periods with respect to a hypothetical
investment in our common stock. In calculating the following expense amounts, we have assumed we would have no additional leverage and that our annual
operating expenses would remain at the levels set forth in the table above. The expense amounts assume an annual base management fee 1.75% for each year.
Transaction expenses are included in the following example.

  1 year   3 years   5 years   10 years  
You would pay the following expenses on a $1,000 investment, assuming a
5% annual return  $ 106  $ 301  $ 473  $ 821 
You would pay the following expenses on a $1,000 investment, assuming a
5% annual return from realized capital gains  $ 106  $ 318  $ 501  $ 860 
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The foregoing table is to assist you in understanding the various costs and expenses that an investor in our common stock will bear directly or indirectly.

While the example assumes, as required by the SEC, a 5% annual return, our performance will vary and may result in a return greater or less than 5%. The
incentive fee under the Investment Advisory Agreement, which, assuming a 5% annual return, would either not be payable or have an insignificant impact on
the expense amounts shown above, is not included in the example. In addition, while the example assumes reinvestment of all dividends and distributions at
net asset value, if our board of directors authorizes and we declare a cash dividend, participants in our dividend reinvestment plan who have not otherwise
elected to receive cash will receive a number of shares of our common stock, determined by dividing the total dollar amount of the dividend payable to a
participant by the market price per share of our common stock at the close of trading on the valuation date for the dividend. See “Dividend Reinvestment
Plan” in the accompanying prospectus for additional information regarding our dividend reinvestment plan.

 
This example and the expenses in the table above should not be considered a representation of our future expenses, and actual expenses

(including the cost of debt, if any, and other expenses) may be greater or less than those shown.
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

 
In addition to factors previously identified elsewhere in this prospectus supplement and in the accompanying prospectus, including the “Risk Factors”

section of the accompanying prospectus, the following factors, among others, could cause actual results to differ materially from forward-looking statements
or historical performance:

 
 • the introduction, withdrawal, success and timing of business initiatives and strategies;
   
 • changes in political, economic or industry conditions, the interest rate environment or financial and capital markets, which could result in changes in

the value of our assets;
   
 • the relative and absolute investment performance and operations of our investment adviser;
   
 • the impact of increased competition;
   
 • the impact of future acquisitions and divestitures;
   
 • the unfavorable resolution of legal proceedings;
   
 • our business prospects and the prospects of our portfolio companies;
   
 • the impact, extent and timing of technological changes and the adequacy of intellectual property protection;
   
 • the impact of legislative and regulatory actions and reforms and regulatory, supervisory or enforcement actions of government agencies relating to us

or OFS Advisors;
   
 • the ability of OFS Advisors to identify suitable investments for us and to monitor and administer our investments;
   
 • our contractual arrangements and relationships with third parties;
   
 • any future financings by us;
   
 • the ability of OFS Advisors to attract and retain highly talented professionals;
   
 • fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates; and
   
 • the impact of changes to tax legislation and, generally, our tax position.

 
This prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, and other statements that we may make, may contain forward-looking statements with

respect to future financial or business performance, strategies or expectations. Forward-looking statements are typically identified by words or phrases such as
“trend,” “opportunity,” “pipeline,” “believe,” “comfortable,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “current,” “intention,” “estimate,” “position,” “assume,” “potential,”
“outlook,” “continue,” “remain,” “maintain,” “sustain,” “seek,” “achieve” and similar expressions, or future or conditional verbs such as “will,” “would,”
“should,” “could,” “may” or similar expressions.

 
Forward-looking statements are subject to numerous assumptions, risks and uncertainties, which change over time. Forward-looking statements speak

only as of the date they are made, and we assume no duty to and do not undertake to update forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements do
not meet the safe harbor for forward-looking statements pursuant to Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Act or Section
21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in forward-looking statements and future results
could differ materially from historical performance.
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CAPITALIZATION

 
The following table sets forth our capitalization as of             , 20 :

 
 •  on an actual basis; and

 
 •  on an as adjusted basis to give effect to the sale of              shares of our common stock in this offering at an assumed public offering price of $        

per share (the last reported closing price of our common stock on                 , 20 ), after deducting the estimated underwriting discounts and
commissions of approximately $         and estimated offering expenses of approximately $         payable by us.

 
You should read this table together with “Use of Proceeds” and financial statements and related notes thereto included elsewhere in this prospectus

supplement and the accompanying prospectus.
 

  
As of
, 20  

  Actual   
As Adjusted
(unaudited)  

  (in thousands)  
Assets:         
Cash and cash equivalents  $    $   
Investments at fair value         
Other assets         
Total assets  $   $  
         
Liabilities:         
SBA-guaranteed debentures payable  $   $  
Revolving line of credit  $   $  
Other liabilities  $   $  
 

        

Total liabilities  $   $  
Net assets  $   $  
         
Shareholders’ equity:         
Preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share, 2,000,000 shares authorized, 0 shares issued and outstanding         
Common stock, par value $0.01 per share; 100,000,000 shares authorized,              shares outstanding  $   $  
Capital in excess of par value  $   $  
     

    

Total shareholders’ equity  $   $  
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USE OF PROCEEDS

 
We intend to use the net proceeds from the sale of our securities for general corporate purposes, which include investing in debt and equity securities,

repayment of any outstanding indebtedness, acquisitions and other general corporate purposes.
 
We anticipate that substantially all of the net proceeds from any offering of our securities will be used as described above within twelve months, but in no

event longer than two years, depending on the availability of attractive opportunities and market conditions. However, there can be no assurance that we will
be able to achieve this goal.

 
Pending such uses and investments, we will invest the remaining net proceeds primarily in cash, cash equivalents, U.S. government securities or high-

quality debt securities maturing in one year or less from the time of investment. The management fee payable by us to our investment adviser will not be
reduced while our assets are invested in such securities. Our ability to achieve our investment objective may be limited to the extent that the net proceeds of
any offering, pending full investment, are held in lower yielding short-term instruments.
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UNDERWRITING

 
are acting as representatives of the underwriters named below. Subject to the terms and conditions stated in the underwriting agreement

dated the date of this prospectus supplement, each underwriter named below has severally agreed to purchase, and we have agreed to sell to that underwriter,
the number of shares set forth opposite that underwriter’s name.

 

Underwriter  
Number of

Shares  
     
     
     

Total    
 
The underwriting agreement provides that the underwriters’ obligations are several, which means that each underwriter is required to purchase a

specific number of shares of our common stock, but it is not responsible for the commitment of any other underwriter. The underwriting agreement provides
that the underwriters’ several obligations to purchase our common stock are subject to approval of legal matters by counsel and the satisfaction of other
conditions. These conditions include, among others, the continued accuracy of representations and warranties made by us in the underwriting agreement,
delivery of legal opinions and the absence of material adverse changes in our assets, business or prospects after the date of this prospectus supplement. The
underwriters are obligated to purchase all the shares of common stock in the offering if any are purchased, other than those covered by the underwriters’
option to purchase additional shares of our common stock described below.

 
The representatives of the underwriters have advised us that the underwriters propose to offer the common stock directly to the public at the public

offering prices listed on the cover page of this prospectus supplement and to selected dealers, who may include the underwriters, at the public offering price
less a selling concession not in excess of $ per share for the common stock. After the completion of the offering, the underwriters may change the offering
price and other selling terms.

 
The following table summarizes the underwriting discounts and commissions that we (or, in certain circumstances, OFS Advisor) will pay to the

underwriters in connection with this offering. These amounts are shown assuming both no exercise and full exercise of the underwriters’ option to purchase
additional shares of common stock.

 
  Total  

  
Price Per

Share   No Exercise   Full Exercise(2) 
Public offering price  $   $   $  
Underwriting discount(1)  $   $   $  

 
 

(1) The underwriters have agreed to waive the underwriting discounts and commissions on the sale of       shares of our common stock to certain investors
with whom we or our affiliates have an existing relationship.

 (2) If the underwriters exercise their option to purchase additional shares of our common stock, OFS Advisor has agreed to pay the sales load attributable to
those additional shares.

 
We estimate that the total expenses of the offering, including registration, filing and listing fees, printing fees, blue sky fees and legal, accounting and

transfer agent expenses, and roadshow expenses, but excluding underwriting discounts and commissions, will be approximately $  million. The underwriters
may, from time to time, engage in transactions with and perform services for us and our affiliates in the ordinary course of their business.

 
Our common stock has been approved for listing on The Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol “OFS.”
 
We, each of the members of OFS Advisor’s investment committee, and each of our officers and directors, has agreed, for a period of days after the date

of this prospectus supplement, and OFSAM has agreed, for a period of two years after the date of this prospectus supplement, not to, directly or indirectly:
(a) offer, sell, agree to offer or sell, solicit offers to purchase, grant any call option or purchase any put option with respect to, pledge, borrow or otherwise
dispose of any shares of, our common stock, or any securities convertible into, or exercisable or exchangeable for our common stock, and (b) establish or
increase any put equivalent position or liquidate or decrease any call equivalent position with respect to our common stock, or otherwise enter into any swap,
derivative or other transaction or arrangement that transfers to another, in whole or in part, any economic consequences of ownership of our common stock,
whether or not such transaction would be settled by delivery of common stock or other securities, in cash or otherwise, without, in each case, the prior written
consent of the representatives, subject to certain specified exceptions.
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The restricted period described above is subject to extension under limited circumstances. In the event either: (a) during the last days of the applicable

restricted period, we issue an earnings results or material news or a material event relating to us occurs; or (b) before the expiration of the applicable restricted
period, we announce that we will release earnings results during the -day period following the last day of the applicable period, the “lock up” restrictions
described above will, subject to limited exceptions, continue to apply until the expiration of the -day period beginning on the date of the release of the
earnings results or the occurrence of material news or a material event.

 
We have granted to the underwriters an option to purchase up to an aggregate of additional shares of common stock, exercisable at the public offering

price less the underwriting discount and commissions. The underwriters may exercise this option solely to purchase additional shares of our common stock at
any time until days after the date of the underwriting agreement. To the extent the option is exercised, each underwriter will be committed, so long as the
conditions of the underwriting agreement are satisfied, to purchase a number of additional shares proportionate to that underwriter’s initial commitment as
indicated in the table at the beginning of this section.

 
We have agreed to indemnify the underwriters against liabilities related to the offering, including liabilities under the Securities Act and liabilities

arising from breaches of the representations and warranties contained in the underwriting agreement, and to contribute to payments that the underwriters may
be required to make for these liabilities.

 
The representatives of the underwriters may engage in over-allotment transactions, stabilizing transactions, syndicate covering transactions, penalty

bids and passive market making or purchases for the purpose of pegging, fixing or maintaining the price of our common stock in accordance with Regulation
M under the Exchange Act.

 

 

•  Over-allotment transactions involve sales by the underwriters of shares in excess of the number of shares the underwriters are obligated to
purchase, which creates a syndicate short position. The short position may be either a covered short position or a naked short position. In a
covered short position, the number of shares over-allotted by the underwriters is not greater than the number of shares that they may purchase in
the over-allotment option. In a naked short position, the number of shares involved is greater than the number of shares in the over-allotment
option. The underwriters may close out any short position by exercising their over-allotment option and/or purchasing shares in the open market.

 
 •  Stabilizing transactions permit bids to purchase the underlying security as long as the stabilizing bids do not exceed a specific maximum.

 

 

•  Syndicate covering transactions involve purchases of our common stock in the open market after the distribution has been completed to cover
syndicate short positions. In determining the source of shares to close out the short position, the underwriters will consider, among other things,
the price of shares available for purchase in the open market as compared to the price at which they may purchase shares through the over-
allotment option. If the underwriters sell more shares than could be covered by the over-allotment option, a naked short position, the position can
only be closed out by buying shares in the open market. A naked short position is more likely to be created if the underwriters are concerned that
there could be downward pressure on the prices of the shares in the open market after pricing that could adversely affect investors who purchase
in the offering.

 

 •  Penalty bids permit the representative to reclaim a selling concession from a syndicate member when the common stock originally sold by the
syndicate member is purchased in a stabilizing or syndicate covering transaction to covers syndicate short positions.

 

 •  In passive market making, market makers in the common stock who are underwriters or prospective underwriters may, subject to limitations,
make bids for or purchase shares of our common stock until the time, if any, at which a stabilizing bid is made.

 
These stabilizing transactions, syndicate covering transactions and penalty bids may have the effect of raising or maintaining the market price of our

common stock or preventing or hindering a decline in the market price of our common stock. As a result, the price of our common stock may be higher than
the prices that might otherwise exist in the open market. These transactions may be effected on The NASDAQ Global Market or otherwise and, if
commenced, may be discontinued at any time.

 
Neither we nor any of the underwriters make any representation or prediction as to the direction or magnitude of any effect that the transactions

described above may have on the price of our common stock. In addition, neither we nor any of the underwriters make any representations that the
representatives of the underwriters will engage in these stabilizing transactions or that any such transaction, once commenced, will not be discontinued
without notice.

 
A prospectus in electronic format may be made available on the websites or through other online services maintained by one or more of the

underwriters. In those cases, prospective investors may view offering terms online and, depending upon the particular underwriter, prospective investors may
be allowed to place orders online. The underwriters may agree with us to allocate a number of shares for sale to online brokerage account holders. Any such
allocations for online distributions will be made by the representative on the same basis as other allocations. Other than the prospectus in electronic format,
the information on any underwriter’s website and any information contained in any other website maintained by an underwriter is not part of this prospectus
supplement or the registration statement of which this prospectus supplement forms a part, has not been approved and/or endorsed by us or any underwriter in
its capacity as underwriter and should not be relied upon by investors.
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The principal business addresses of the representatives are: .

 
Discretionary Sales

 
Each of the underwriters may arrange to sell common shares offered hereby in certain jurisdictions outside the United States, either directly or through

affiliates, where they are permitted to do so.
 
[Describe any other specific transactions and compensation related thereto to the extent required to be disclosed by applicable law or regulation.]
 
[Insert applicable legends for jurisdictions in which offers and sales may be made.]
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LEGAL MATTERS

 
Certain legal matters in connection with the securities offered hereby will be passed upon for us by Sutherland Asbill & Brennan LLP, Washington,

District of Columbia. Certain legal matters in connection with the securities offered hereby will be passed upon for the underwriters by             ,            
,             ..

 
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

 
 
[Include information regarding OFS Capital Corporation’s independent registered public accounting firm to the extent required to be disclosed by applicable
law or regulation.]

 
AVAILABLE INFORMATION

 
We have filed with the SEC a registration statement on Form N-2, together with all amendments and related exhibits, under the Securities Act, with

respect to our securities offered by this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. The registration statement contains additional information
about us and our securities being offered by this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus.

 
We will file with or submit to the SEC periodic and current reports, proxy statements and other information meeting the informational requirements of the

Exchange Act. You may inspect and copy these reports, proxy statements and other information, as well as the registration statement and related exhibits and
schedules, at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549-0102. You may obtain information on the operation of the
Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at (800) SEC-0330. We maintain a website at http://www.ofscapitalcorp.com and make all of our periodic and
current reports, proxy statements and other publicly filed information available, free of charge, on or through our website. Information contained on our
website is not incorporated into this prospectus supplement, and you should not consider information on our website to be part of this prospectus supplement.
You may also obtain such information by contacting us in writing at 10 S. Wacker Drive, Suite 2500, Chicago, IL, 60606, Attention: Investor Relations. The
SEC maintains a website that contains reports, proxy and information statements and other information we file with the SEC at www.sec.gov. Copies of these
reports, proxy and information statements and other information may also be obtained, after paying a duplicating fee, by electronic request at the following e-
mail address: publicinfo@sec.gov, or by writing the SEC’s Public Reference Section, 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549-0102.
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[            ] Shares
 

OFS Capital Corporation
 

Common Stock
 

 

 
PRELIMINARY PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

 
 

 

 
[Underwriters]

 

 



Exhibit (s)(2)
 

This preliminary prospectus supplement relates to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, but the
information in this preliminary prospectus supplement is not complete and may be changed. This preliminary prospectus supplement and the
accompanying prospectus are not an offer to sell and are not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer and sale is
not permitted.

 
 [FORM OF PRELIMINARY PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT TO BE USED IN

CONJUNCTION WITH FUTURE PREFERRED STOCK OFFERINGS](1)

 
PRELIMINARY PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT
(to Prospectus dated                 , 20    )

 
                                                                             Shares

 
OFS Capital Corporation

Series  Preferred Stock
Liquidation Preference $  Per Share

 
 

 
We are an externally managed, non-diversified, closed-end management investment company that has elected to be treated as a business development

company under the Investment Company Act of 1940, or the 1940 Act. Our investment objective is to provide our shareholders with both current income and
capital appreciation primarily through debt investments and, to a lesser extent, equity investments.

 
We are offering for sale              shares of our preferred stock. We have granted the underwriters a -day option to purchase up to additional shares of our

preferred stock at the public offering price, less the underwriting discounts and commissions.
 

[Add relevant disclosure depending on whether preferred shares are listed or not.]
 
Substantially all of the debt securities in which we invest are below investment grade debt securities and are often referred to as “high yield” or “junk”

securities. Exposure to below investment grade securities involves certain risk, and those securities are viewed as having predominately speculative
characteristics with respect to the issuer’s capacity to pay interest and repay principal. A material amount of our debt investments contain floating interest rate
provisions that may make it more difficult for the borrowers to make debt repayments. Further, our debt investments generally will not pay down principal
during their term, which could result in a substantial loss to us if the portfolio company is unable to refinance or repay the debt at maturity.

 
We qualify as an emerging growth company, as that term is used in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (the “JOBS Act”). An emerging

growth company may take advantage of specified reduced reporting and other burdens that are otherwise applicable generally to public companies. However,
we are choosing to “opt out” of such extended transition period, and as a result, we will comply with new or revised accounting standards on the relevant
dates on which adoption of such standards is required for non-emerging growth companies. Our decision to opt out of the extended transition period for
complying with new or revised accounting standards is irrevocable.

 
Investing in our securities involves a high degree of risk, including credit risk and the risk of the use of leverage. Before buying any of our

securities, you should read the discussion of the material risks of investing in our securities in “Supplementary Risk Factors” in this prospectus
supplement and “Risk Factors” in the accompanying prospectus.
 
 

(1) In addition to the sections outlined in this form of prospectus supplement, each prospectus supplement actually used in connection with an offering
conducted pursuant to the registration statement to which this form of prospectus supplement is attached will be updated to include such other information as
may then be required to be disclosed therein pursuant to applicable law or regulation as in effect as of the date of each such prospectus supplement, including,
without limitation, information particular to the terms of each security offered thereby and any related risk factors or tax considerations pertaining thereto.
This form of prospectus supplement is intended only to provide a rough approximation of the nature and type of disclosure that may appear in any actual
prospectus supplement used for the purposes of offering securities pursuant to the registration statement to which this form of prospectus supplement is
attached, and is not intended to and does not contain all of the information that would appear in any such actual prospectus supplement, and should not be
used or relied upon in connection with any offer or sale of securities.

 



 

 
 

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities, or
determined if this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal
offense.

 
Please read this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus before investing and keep it for future reference. It contains important

information about us that a prospective investor ought to know before investing in our securities. We file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy
statements and other information about us with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The information is available free of charge by contacting Investor
Relations of OFS Capital Corporation, 10 S. Wacker Drive, Suite 2500, Chicago, IL 60606, or by calling us at (847) 734-2000 or on our website at
www.ofscapital.com. The Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC, maintains a website at www.sec.gov where such information is available without
charge. Information contained on our website is not incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement, and you should not consider information
contained on our website to be part of this prospectus supplement. 

 
  Per Share  Total  
Public Offering Price  $   $   
Sales Load (Underwriting Discounts and Commissions)  $   $   
Proceeds to us (before expenses) (1)(2)  $   $   

 
(1) We will incur approximately $[  ] of estimated expenses, excluding the sales load, in connection with this offering. Our shareholders will bear such
expenses, including the sales load.
 
(2) To the extent that the underwriters sell more than [            ] shares of our preferred stock, the underwriters have the option to purchase up to an additional
[            ] shares of our preferred stock at the public offering price, less the sales load, within [ ] days of the date of this prospectus supplement. If the
underwriters exercise this option in full, the total public offering price, sales load and proceeds to us will be $            , $ and $            , respectively.

 
The underwriters expect to deliver the shares on or about                 , 20    .

 
                , 20
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ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

 
You should rely only on the information contained in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. Neither we nor the

underwriters have authorized any other person to provide you with different information from that contained in this prospectus supplement or the
accompanying prospectus. If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent information, you should not rely on it. This prospectus supplement
and the accompanying prospectus do not constitute an offer to sell, or a solicitation of an offer to buy, any shares of our preferred stock by any
person in any jurisdiction where it is unlawful for that person to make such an offer or solicitation or to any person in any jurisdiction to whom it is
unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation. The information contained in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus is
complete and accurate only as of their respective dates, regardless of the time of their delivery or sale of our preferred stock. This prospectus
supplement supersedes the accompanying prospectus to the extent it contains information different from or additional to the information in that
prospectus.

 
This document is in two parts. The first part is this prospectus supplement, which describes the terms of this offering of preferred stock and also adds to

and updates information contained in the accompanying prospectus. The second part is the accompanying prospectus, which gives more general information
and disclosure. To the extent the information contained in this prospectus supplement differs from the information contained in the accompanying prospectus,
the information in this prospectus supplement shall control. Please carefully read this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus together with
any exhibits and the additional information described under “Available Information” before you make an investment decision.

 

 



 

 

 
PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT SUMMARY

 
This summary highlights some of the information in this prospectus supplement. It is not complete and may not contain all of the information that you

may want to consider before investing in our securities. Throughout this prospectus supplement, we refer to OFS Capital Corporation and its
consolidated subsidiaries as the “Company,” “we,” “us” or “our;” OFS Capital Management, LLC as “OFS Advisor” or the “Advisor;” and OFS
Capital Services, LLC as “OFS Services” or the “Administrator.”

 
OFS Capital Corporation
 

We are an externally managed, closed-end, non-diversified management investment company formed in March 2001. Our investment objective is to
provide our shareholders with both current income and capital appreciation primarily through debt investments and, to a lesser extent, equity
investments. Our investment strategy focuses primarily on investments in middle-market companies in the United States. We use the term “middle-
market” to refer to companies which may exhibit one or more of the following characteristics: number of employees between 150 and 2,000; revenues
between $15 million and $300 million; annual earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, or EBITDA, between $3 million and $50
million; generally, private companies owned by private equity firms or owners/operators; and enterprise value between $10 million and $500 million.
For additional information about how we define the middle-market, see “The Company — Investment Criteria/Guidelines” in the accompanying
prospectus.

 
In connection with our initial public offering, or IPO, on November 7, 2012, we converted from a limited liability company to a corporation, as a

result of which the sole membership interest held by Orchard First Source Asset Management, LLC, or OFSAM, prior to the conversion was exchanged
for 2,912,024 shares of our common stock. In connection with our IPO, we elected to be treated as a business development company, or BDC, under the
1940 Act. On November 14, 2012, we completed our IPO, selling 6,666,667 shares of our common stock at a public offering price of $15 per share and
raising $100 million in gross proceeds. We incurred approximately $6.2 million of sales load and $5.8 million of offering related costs in connection with
our IPO. We utilized approximately $90 million of our IPO proceeds to pay down the senior secured revolving credit facility, which OFS Capital WM,
LLC, or OFS Capital WM, our wholly owned subsidiary, entered into with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., or Wells Fargo, and Madison Capital Funding LLC,
a subsidiary of New York Life Investments, or Madison Capital, to finance its business.

 
As of September 30, 2014, our investment portfolio consisted of outstanding loans of approximately $262.7 million in aggregate principal amount in

57 portfolio companies, of which $123.2 million in aggregate principal amount was held by OFS SBIC I, LP (formerly known as Tamarix Capital
Partners, L.P.), or SBIC I LP, our wholly-owned SBIC subsidiary, in 18 portfolio companies. As of that date, 88% of our investment portfolio was
comprised of senior secured loans, 7% of subordinated loans and 5% of equity investments, at fair value.

 
As of September 30, 2014, our net asset value was approximately $137.1 million, or approximately $14.22 per share.
 
While our investment strategy focuses primarily on middle-market companies in the United States, including senior secured loans, which includes

first-lien, second-lien and unitranche loans as well as subordinated loans and, to a lesser extent, warrants and other minority equity securities, we also
may invest up to 30% of our portfolio in opportunistic investments of non-eligible portfolio companies. Specifically, as part of this 30% basket, we may
consider investments in investment funds that are operating pursuant to certain exceptions to the 1940 Act and in advisers to similar investment funds, as
well as in debt of middle-market companies located outside of the United States and debt and equity of public companies that do not meet the definition
of eligible portfolio companies because their market capitalization of publicly traded equity securities exceeds the levels provided for in the 1940 Act.

 
Our investment strategy includes SBIC I LP, which received a small business investment company, or SBIC, license from the U.S. Small Business

Administration, or SBA, in May 2012. On December 4, 2013, we received approval from the SBA to acquire all of the limited partnership interests in
SBIC I LP and all of the ownership interests of its general partner, OFS SBIC I GP, LLC (formerly known as Tamarix Capital G.P. LLC), or SBIC I GP,
that were owned or subscribed for by other persons (the “SBIC Acquisitions”, or the “Tamarix Acquisitions”). We acquired the interests on December 4,
2013, which resulted in SBIC I LP becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary. The transaction was finalized in January 2014. For additional information on
the acquisition of SBIC I LP and SBIC I GP, see our consolidated financial statements and the related notes thereto included in the accompanying
prospectus. The SBIC license allows SBIC I LP to receive SBA-guaranteed debenture funding, subject to the issuance of a leverage commitment by the
SBA and other customary procedures. SBA leverage funding is subject to SBIC I LP’s payment of certain fees to the SBA, and the ability of SBIC I LP
to draw on the leverage commitment is subject to its compliance with SBA regulations and policies, including an audit by the SBA. For additional
information regarding the regulation of SBIC I LP, see “Regulation  — Small Business Investment Company Regulations” in the accompanying
prospectus.
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On November 26, 2013, we received an exemptive order from the SEC to permit us to exclude the debt of SBIC I LP guaranteed by the SBA from the
definition of senior securities in the statutory 200% asset coverage ratio under the 1940 Act, allowing for greater capital deployment.

 
Our investment activities are managed by OFS Capital Management, LLC, or OFS Advisor, and supervised by our board of directors, a majority of

whom are independent of us, OFS Advisor and its affiliates. Under the investment advisory and management agreement between us and OFS Advisor, or
the Investment Advisory Agreement, we have agreed to pay OFS Advisor an annual base management fee based on the average value of our total assets
(other than cash and cash equivalents and certain non-cash items resulting from the SBIC Acquisitions but including assets purchased with borrowed
amounts and including assets owned by any consolidated entity) as well as an incentive fee based on our investment performance. On May 5, 2014, OFS
Advisor agreed to reduce its base management fee by two-thirds for the nine months commencing April 1, 2014 and ending December 31, 2014. For
additional information regarding the fees paid to OFS Advisor, see “Management and Other Agreements — Investment Advisory Agreement” in the
accompanying prospectus.

 
We have also entered into an administration agreement, or Administration Agreement, with OFS Capital Services, LLC, or OFS Services, our

Administrator. Under our Administration Agreement, we have agreed to reimburse OFS Services for our allocable portion (subject to the review and
approval of our independent directors) of overhead and other expenses incurred by OFS Services in performing its obligations under the Administration
Agreement.

 
As a BDC, we must not acquire any assets other than “qualifying assets” specified in the 1940 Act unless, at the time the acquisition is made, at least

70% of our total assets are qualifying assets (with certain limited exceptions). Qualifying assets include investments in “eligible portfolio companies.”
Under the relevant SEC rules, the term “eligible portfolio company” includes all private companies, companies whose securities are not listed on a national
securities exchange, and certain public companies that have listed their securities on a national securities exchange and have a market capitalization of less
than $250 million, in each case organized in the United States.

 
We are permitted to borrow money from time to time within the levels permitted by the 1940 Act (which generally allows us to incur leverage for up to

50% of our asset base). We may borrow money when the terms and conditions available are favorable to do so and are aligned with our investment strategy
and portfolio composition. The use of borrowed funds or the proceeds from issuing our preferred stock to make investments would have its own specific
benefits and risks, and all of the costs of borrowing funds or issuing preferred stock would be borne by holders of our common stock.

 
We have elected to be treated for tax purposes as a regulated investment company, or RIC, under Subchapter M of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,

or the Code. To qualify as a RIC, we must, among other things, meet certain source-of-income and assets diversification requirements. Pursuant to these
elections, we generally will not have to pay corporate-level taxes on any income we distribute to our shareholders.

 
On September 28, 2010, OFS Capital WM entered into a $180.0 million secured revolving credit facility (as amended from time to time, the “OFS

Capital WM Credit Facility”) with Wells Fargo and Madison Capital, with the Class A lenders (initially Wells Fargo) providing up to $135.0 million in
Class A loans (“Class A Facility”) and the Class B lenders (initially Madison Capital) providing up to $45.0 million in Class B loans (“Class B Facility”).
The OFS Capital WM Credit Facility is secured by all current and future eligible loans acquired by OFS Capital WM. The loan facilities with Wells Fargo
and Madison Capital had five- and six-year terms, respectively, and both facilities provided a one-year option for extension upon the approval of the
lenders. The loan facilities had a reinvestment period of two years after the closing date of the OFS Capital WM Credit Facility, which could be extended
by one year with the consent of each lender. Outstanding borrowings on the loan facilities were limited to the lesser of (1) $180.0 million and (2) the
borrowing base as defined by the OFS Capital WM Credit Facility loan documents. OFS Capital WM is obligated to pay interest on the outstanding loans
on each quarterly payment date. The Class B Facility was terminated in January 2013. In connection with the closing of the OFS Capital WM Credit
Facility, OFS Capital WM incurred financing costs of approximately $3.5 million were deferred and amortized over the term of OFS Capital WM Credit
Facility. As a result of the amendments to OFS Capital WM Credit Facility in 2012 (“WM 2012 Credit Facility Amendments”), we have substantial
additional input into certain key management decisions with respect to OFS Capital WM’s portfolio companies, including decisions with respect to
amendments to or modifications of the investments in these entities, or noticing or waiving of defaults or accelerating portfolio loans.

 
As a result of certain amendments through July 24, 2014, the OFS Capital WM Credit Facility’s borrowing base was adjusted and the minimum equity

requirement was lowered from $65.0 million to $35.0 million, resulting in additional liquidity for the Company. In addition, the maximum facility was
reduced from $180.0 million to $125.0 million.
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On November 18, 2014, OFS Capital WM elected to further reduce the maximum borrowing capacity on the OFS Capital WM Credit Facility from
$125.0 million to $100.0 million.

 
Organizational Structure
  

 
About OFS and Our Adviser
 

OFS (which refers to the collective activities and operations of OFSAM and its subsidiaries and certain affiliates) is an investment platform focused on
meeting the capital needs of middle-market companies. OFS is the successor to First Source Financial Inc., which was founded in 1995 as a joint venture
between Dominion Capital, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Dominion Resources, Inc., or Dominion, and Household Commercial Financial Services
Inc., a unit of Household International, or Household. Household sold its interest in First Source Financial Inc. to Dominion in 1997. In 2003, Orchard
Paladin Management, LLC, our predecessor, acquired from Dominion a portfolio of performing and non-performing loans of approximately $625 million
in aggregate commitment amount, plus additional investments in equity securities. Shortly thereafter, in 2004, Orchard Paladin Management, LLC
acquired Dominion’s interest in First Source Financial Inc. Most of the loan workouts and special situations investments managed by our senior managers
since 2003 involved loans in the portfolio acquired from Dominion and loans acquired as a result of the purchase of Dominion’s interest in First Source
Financial Inc.

 
As of September 30, 2014, OFS had 35 full-time employees and one part-time employee. OFS is headquartered in Chicago, Illinois, with additional

offices in New York, New York and Los Angeles, California.
 
Our investment activities are managed by OFS Advisor, our investment adviser. OFS Advisor is responsible for sourcing potential investments,

conducting research and diligence on potential investments and equity investors, analyzing investment opportunities, structuring our investments and
monitoring our investments and portfolio companies on an ongoing basis. OFS Advisor is a subsidiary of OFSAM, our parent company prior to the
completion of our IPO, and is a registered investment adviser under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, or the Advisers Act.
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Our relationship with OFS Advisor is governed by and dependent on the Investment Advisory Agreement and may be subject to conflicts of interest.
We have entered into the Investment Advisory Agreement, pursuant to which OFS Advisor provides us with advisory services in exchange for a base
management fee and incentive fee. See “Management and Other Agreements — Investment Advisory Agreement” in the accompanying prospectus for a
discussion of the base management fee and incentive fee payable by us to OFS Advisor. The base management fee is based on our total assets (other than
cash and cash equivalents and the intangible asset and goodwill resulting from the SBIC Acquisitions but including assets purchased with borrowed
amounts and including assets owned by any consolidated entity) and, therefore, OFS Advisor will benefit when we incur debt or use leverage. Our board of
directors is charged with protecting our interests by monitoring how OFS Advisor addresses these and other conflicts of interest associated with its
management services and compensation. While our board of directors is not expected to review or approve each borrowing or incurrence of leverage, our
independent directors will periodically review OFS Advisor’s services and fees as well as its portfolio management decisions and portfolio performance.

 
OFS Advisor has entered into a staffing agreement, or the Staffing Agreement, with Orchard First Source Capital, Inc., or OFSC, a wholly-owned

subsidiary of OFSAM. With the exception of Richard Ressler, OFSC employs all of OFS’s investment professionals. Under the Staffing Agreement, OFSC
will make experienced investment professionals available to OFS Advisor and provide access to the senior investment personnel of OFS and its affiliates.
The Staffing Agreement provides OFS Advisor with access to deal flow generated by OFS and its affiliates in the ordinary course of their businesses and
commits the members of OFS Advisor’s investment committee to serve in that capacity. As our investment adviser, OFS Advisor is obligated to allocate
investment opportunities among us and any other clients fairly and equitably over time in accordance with its allocation policy.

 
OFS Advisor capitalizes on the significant deal origination and sourcing, credit underwriting, due diligence, investment structuring, execution,

portfolio management and monitoring experience of OFS’s professionals. The senior management team of OFS, including Bilal Rashid, Jeff Cerny and
Mark Hauser, provides services to OFS Advisor. These managers have developed a broad network of contacts within the investment community, averaging
over 20 years of experience investing in debt and equity securities of middle-market companies. In addition, these managers have gained extensive
experience investing in assets that will constitute our primary focus and have expertise in investing across all levels of the capital structure of middle-
market companies.

 
OFS Advisor’s investment committee, or the Advisor Investment Committee, which is comprised of Richard Ressler (Chairman), Jeffrey Cerny, Peter

Fidler, Mark Hauser, Bilal Rashid, and Peter Rothschild, is responsible for our overall asset allocation decisions, as well as approval of all investments
made by us directly or through OFS Capital WM. Certain members of the Advisor Investment Committee perform a similar role for other investments
managed by OFS and its affiliates.

 
The investment committee for SBIC I LP, or the SBIC Investment Committee (and, together with the Advisor Investment Committee, the Investment

Committees), which is comprised of Peter Fidler, Mark Hauser, Glenn Pittson, and Peter Rothschild, is responsible for approval of all of investments made
by SBIC I LP. Any investment decision on the part of SBIC I LP requires the unanimous approval of the SBIC Investment Committee.

 
Our Administrator
 

OFS Services, an affiliate of OFS Advisor, provides the administrative services necessary for us to operate. OFS Services furnishes us with officers and
their staffs, office facilities and equipment, necessary software licenses and subscriptions and clerical, bookkeeping and recordkeeping services at such
facilities. OFS Services oversees our financial reporting as well as prepares our reports to shareholders and all other reports and materials required to be
filed with the SEC or any other regulatory authority. OFS Services also manages the determination and publication of our net asset value and the
preparation and filing of our tax returns and generally monitors the payment of our expenses and the performance of administrative and professional
services rendered to us by others. OFS Services may retain third parties to assist in providing administrative services to us.

 
Market Opportunity
 

Our investment strategy is focused primarily on investments in middle-market companies in the United States. We find the middle-market attractive for
the following reasons:

 
Large Target Market.  We believe that these middle-market companies represent a significant growth segment of the U.S. economy and often require

substantial capital investments to grow.
 
Specialized Lending Requirements with High Barriers to Entry.  We believe that several factors render many U.S. financial institutions ill-suited to

lend to U.S. middle-market companies. As a result, middle-market companies historically have been served by a limited segment of the lending
community. As a result of the unique challenges facing lenders to middle-market companies, there are high barriers to entry that a new lender must
overcome.

 
Robust Demand for Debt Capital.  We believe that private equity firms have significant committed but uncalled capital, a large portion of which is still

available for investment in the United States.
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Competitive Strengths and Core Competencies
 

Deep Management Team Experienced in All Phases of Investment Cycle and Across All Levels of the Capital Structure.  We are managed by OFS
Advisor, which has access through the Staffing Agreement with OFSC to the resources and expertise of OFS’s investment professionals. As of September
30, 2014, OFS’s credit and investment professionals (including all investment committee members) employed by OFSC had an average of over 15 years of
investment experience with strong institutional backgrounds.

 
Significant Investment Capacity.  The net proceeds of equity and debt offerings and borrowing capacity under our credit facilities will provide us with

a substantial amount of capital available for deployment into new investment opportunities in our targeted asset class.
 
Scalable Infrastructure Supporting the Entire Investment Cycle.  We believe that our loan acquisition, origination and sourcing, underwriting,

administration and management platform is highly scalable (that is, it can be expanded on a cost efficient basis within a timeframe that meets the demands
of business growth). Our platform extends beyond origination and sourcing and includes a regimented credit monitoring system. We believe that our
careful approach, which involves ongoing review and analysis by an experienced team of professionals, should enable us to identify problems early and to
assist borrowers before they face difficult liquidity constraints.

 
Extensive Loan Sourcing Capabilities.  OFS Advisor gives us access to the deal flow of OFS. We believe OFS’s 19-year history as a middle-market

lending platform and its market position make it a leading lender to many sponsors and other deal sources, especially in the currently under-served lending
environment, and we have extensive relationships with potential borrowers and other lenders.

 
Structuring with a High Level of Service and Operational Orientation.  We provide client-specific and creative financing structures to our portfolio

companies. Based on our experience in lending to and investing in middle-market companies, we believe that the middle-market companies we target, as
well as sponsor groups we may pursue, require a higher level of service, creativity and knowledge than has historically been provided by other service
providers more accustomed to participating in commodity-like loan transactions.

 
Rigorous Credit Analysis and Approval Procedures.  OFS Advisor utilizes the established, disciplined investment process of OFS for reviewing

lending opportunities, structuring transactions and monitoring investments. Using OFS’s disciplined approach to lending, OFS Advisor seeks to minimize
credit losses through effective underwriting, comprehensive due diligence investigations, structuring and, where appropriate, the implementation of
restrictive debt covenants.

 
Structure of Investments
 

We anticipate that our loan portfolio will continue to contain investments of the following types:
 
First-Lien Senior Secured Loans.  First-lien senior secured loans comprise a significant portion of our investment portfolio.
 
Senior Secured Unitranche Loans.  Unitranche loans are loans that combine both senior and subordinated debt into one loan under which the borrower

pays a single blended interest rate that is intended to reflect the relative risk of the secured and unsecured components.
 
Second-lien Senior Secured Loans.  We obtain security interests in the assets of these portfolio companies as collateral in support of the repayment of

such loans. This collateral typically takes the form of second-priority liens on the assets of a portfolio company, and we may enter into an intercreditor
agreement with the holders of the portfolio company’s first-lien senior secured debt.

 
Unsecured Subordinated (“Mezzanine”) Loans.  We structure these investments as unsecured, subordinated loans that typically provide for relatively

high, fixed interest rates that provide us with significant current interest income.
 
Warrants and Other Minority Equity Securities.  In some cases, we will also acquire a minority equity interest in the portfolio company in connection

with making a loan, or receive nominally priced warrants or options to buy a minority equity interest in the portfolio company in connection with making a
loan. As a result, as a portfolio company appreciates in value, we may achieve additional investment return from our equity interest.
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General Structuring Considerations.  We tailor the terms of each investment to the facts and circumstances of the transaction and the prospective
portfolio company, negotiating a structure that protects our rights and manages our risk while creating incentives for the portfolio company to achieve its
business plan and improve its operating results.

 
We expect to hold most of our investments to maturity or repayment, but we may sell some of our investments earlier if a liquidity event occurs, such

as a sale, recapitalization or worsening of the credit quality of the portfolio company.
 

Conflicts of Interests
 

Subject to certain 1940 Act restrictions on co-investments with affiliates, OFS Advisor will offer us the right to participate in investment opportunities
that it determines are appropriate for us in view of our investment objective, policies and strategies and other relevant factors. Such offers will be subject to
the exception that, in accordance with OFS Advisor’s allocation policy, we might not participate in each individual opportunity but will, on an overall
basis, be entitled to participate fairly and equitably with other entities managed by OFS Advisor and its affiliates.

 
To the extent that we compete with entities managed by OFS Advisor or any of its affiliates for a particular investment opportunity, OFS Advisor will

allocate investment opportunities across the entities for which such opportunities are appropriate, consistent with (a) its internal allocation policy, (b) the
requirements of the Advisers Act, and (c) certain restrictions under the 1940 Act and rules thereunder regarding co-investments with affiliates. OFS
Advisor’s allocation policy is intended to ensure that we may generally share fairly and equitably with other investment funds or other investment vehicles
managed by OFS Advisor or its affiliates in investment opportunities that OFS Advisor determines are appropriate for us in view of our investment
objective, policies and strategies and other relevant factors, particularly those involving a security with limited supply or involving differing classes of
securities of the same issuer that may be suitable for us and such other investment funds or other investment vehicles. Under this allocation policy, if two
or more investment vehicles with similar or overlapping investment strategies are in their investment periods, an available opportunity will be allocated
based on the provisions governing allocations of such investment opportunities in the relevant organizational, offering or similar documents, if any, for
such investment vehicles. In the absence of any such provisions, OFS Advisor will consider the following factors and the weight that should be given with
respect to each of these factors:

 
• investment guidelines and/or restrictions, if any, set forth in the applicable organizational, offering or similar documents for the investment

vehicles;
 

• risk and return profile of the investment vehicles;
 

• suitability/priority of a particular investment for the investment vehicles;
 

• if applicable, the targeted position size of the investment for the investment vehicles;
 

• level of available cash for investment with respect to the investment vehicles;
 

• total amount of funds committed to the investment vehicles; and
 

• the age of the investment vehicles and the remaining term of their respective investment periods, if any.
 

In situations where co-investment with such other accounts is not permitted or appropriate, such as when there is an opportunity to invest in different
securities of the same issuer, OFS Advisor will need to decide which account will proceed with the investment. The decision by OFS Advisor to allocate an
opportunity to another entity could cause us to forego an investment opportunity that we otherwise would have made. See “Related-Party Transactions and
Certain Relationships” in the accompanying prospectus

 
Corporate Information
 

Our principal executive offices are located at 10 S. Wacker Drive, Suite 2500, Chicago, IL, 60606, and our telephone number is (847) 734-2000. Our
corporate website is located at http://www.ofscapital.com. Information on our website is not incorporated into or a part of this prospectus supplement.
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Implications of Being an Emerging Growth Company
 

We qualify as an emerging growth company, as that term is used in the JOBS Act. An emerging growth company may take advantage of specified
reduced reporting and other burdens that are otherwise applicable generally to public companies. These provisions include:

 
• An exemption from the auditors attestation requirement in the assessment of the emerging growth company’s internal control over financial

reporting under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “Sarbanes-Oxley Act”);
 

• No non-binding advisory votes on executive compensation or golden parachute arrangements; and
 

• Reduced financial statement and executive compensation requirements.
 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, we have complied with Section 404(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act regarding auditor attestation for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2013.

 
In addition, Section 107 of the JOBS Act also provides that an emerging growth company can take advantage of the extended transition period

provided in Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), for complying with new or revised accounting standards.
However, we are choosing to “opt out” of such extended transition period, and as a result, we will comply with new or revised accounting standards on the
relevant dates on which adoption of such standards is required for non-emerging growth companies. Our decision to opt out of the extended transition
period for complying with new or revised accounting standards is irrevocable.

 
We could remain an emerging growth company for up to five years, or until the earliest of (a) the last day of the first fiscal year in which our annual

gross revenues exceed $1 billion, (b) the date that we become a “large accelerated filer” as defined in Rule 12b-2 under the Exchange Act, which would
occur if the market value of our common stock that is held by non-affiliates exceeds $700 million as of the last business day of our most recently
completed second fiscal quarter, or (c) the date on which we have issued more than $1 billion in non-convertible debt during the preceding three year
period.

 
Risks
 

Investing in our securities may be speculative and involves certain risks relating to our structure and our investment objective that you should consider
before deciding whether to invest. Certain of these risks are referenced below:

 
Capital markets are currently functional, but may experience periods of disruption and instability, which could have a negative impact on our business

and operations.
 
There are numerous risks relating to our business, including credit losses on our investments, the risk of loss associated with leverage, illiquidity and

valuation uncertainties in our investments, possible lack of appropriate investments, the lack of experience in operating a BDC of our investment adviser
and our dependence on such investment adviser.

 
There are also numerous risks relating to our investments, including the risky nature of the securities in which we invest, the subordinated nature of

select investments, our potential lack of control over our portfolio companies, our limited ability to invest in public or foreign companies and the potential
incentives in our investment adviser to invest more speculatively than it would if it did not have an opportunity to earn incentive fees.

 
We also have various risks relating to our status as a BDC, including limitations on raising additional capital, failure to qualify as a BDC and loss of tax

status as a RIC. In addition, SBIC I LP has the risk of losing its SBIC status.
 
There are also risks relating to this offering, including volatility in our stock price and the anti-takeover effect of certain provisions in our certificate of

incorporation.
 
See “Risk Factors” beginning on page 16 of the of the accompanying prospectus for a more detailed discussion of these and other material risks you

should carefully consider before deciding to invest in our securities.
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SPECIFIC TERMS OF THE PREFERRED STOCK AND THE OFFERING

 
This prospectus supplement sets forth certain terms of our preferred stock that we are offering pursuant to this prospectus supplement and

supplements the accompanying prospectus that is attached to the back of this prospectus supplement. This section outlines the specific legal and financial
terms of our preferred stock. You should read this section together with the more general description of our preferred stock in this prospectus supplement
under the heading “Description of Preferred Stock” and in the accompanying prospectus under the headings “Description of Our Capital Stock — Preferred
Stock” and “Description of Our Preferred Stock” before investing in our preferred stock. Capitalized terms used in this prospectus supplement and not
otherwise defined shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the accompanying prospectus.

 
[Insert material terms of the preferred stock in tabular form to the extent required to be disclosed by applicable law or regulation.]
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FEES AND EXPENSES

 
The following table is intended to assist you in understanding the costs and expenses that you will bear directly or indirectly. We caution you that some

of the percentages indicated in the table below are estimates and may vary. Except where the context suggests otherwise, whenever this prospectus
supplement contains a reference to fees or expenses paid by “us,” “the Company” or “OFS Capital,” or that “we” will pay fees or expenses, you will
indirectly bear such fees or expenses as an investor in OFS Capital.
 
Shareholder transaction expenses:    
Sales load (as a percentage of offering price)    %(1)

Offering expenses (as a percentage of offering price)    %(2)

Dividend reinvestment plan expenses    %(3)

Total shareholder transaction expenses (as a percentage of offering price)    %
Annual expenses (as a percentage of net assets attributable to common stock):     
Base management fee payable under Investment Advisory Agreement   3.46%(4)

Loan management fee payable   0.50%(5)

Incentive fees payable under Investment Advisory Agreement   0.43%(6)

Interest payments on borrowed funds   2.92%(7)

Other expenses   3.31%(8)(9)

Acquired fund fees and expenses   —%(10)

Total annual expenses   10.62%(4)(9)

 
 

(1) Represents the commission with respect to the shares of our preferred stock being sold in this offering, which we will pay to in connection with sales
of shares of our preferred stock effected by in this offering.

 
(2) The offering expenses of this offering are estimated to be approximately $ .
 
(3) The expenses of the dividend reinvestment plan are included in “other expenses.” For additional information, see “Dividend Reinvestment Plan” in

the accompanying prospectus.
 
(4) Commencing November 1, 2013 through March 31, 2014, our base management fee, under the Investment Advisory Agreement was 1.75% per year

of our total assets (other than cash and cash equivalents and goodwill and intangible assets relating to the SBIC Acquisitions but including assets
purchased with borrowed amounts and including assets owned by any consolidated entity). On May 5, 2014, OFS Advisor agreed to reduce its base
management fee by two-thirds for the nine months commencing April 1, 2014 and ending December 31, 2014. Accordingly, the effective annual
base management fee for the 2014 fiscal year will be equal to or less than 50% of the 1.75% required by our Investment Advisory Agreement with
OFS Advisor, or not greater than 0.875%. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the above table assumes that the base management fee is 1.75% per annum
in all cases, and does not reflect the reduction in place for the balance of 2014. We may from time to time decide it is appropriate to change the terms
of the agreement. Under the 1940 Act, any material change to our Investment Advisory Agreement must be submitted to shareholders for approval.
See “Management and Other Agreements — Investment Advisory Agreement” in the accompanying prospectus.

 
The 3.46% fee reflected in the table is calculated by determining the ratio that the base management fee bears to our net assets attributable to
common stock (rather than our total assets). The estimate of our base management fee referenced in the table is based on our total assets (other than
cash and cash equivalents and goodwill and intangible assets relating to the SBIC Acquisitions but including assets purchased with borrowed money
and assets of any consolidated entity) as of September 30, 2014.

 
(5) Represents the management fee OFS Capital WM pays to MCF Capital Management LLC, which is the loan manager and also an affiliated entity of

Madison Capital (“Loan Manager”).
  

(6) Assumes an incentive fee of $149 thousand, which was calculated based on our statement of operations for the three months ended September 30,
2014, except that the base management fee was assumed to be 1.75% per annum. For the three months ended September 30, 2014, we incurred an
actual incentive fee expense of $723 thousand, which was $574 thousand higher than the incentive fee expense we would have incurred assuming
our base management fee rate was at 1.75% per annum. Notwithstanding the reduced base management fee in the second quarter of 2014, we did not
incur any incentive fee expense for the first and second quarters of 2014, however, based on the increase in investments and investment income we
began incurring incentive fee expense in third quarter of 2014. For the three months ended September 30, 2014, we incurred an actual base
management fee expense of $370 thousand, which would have been $1.1 million assuming our base management fee rate was at 1.75% per annum.
For more detailed information about incentive fees related to capital gains incurred by us that are not payable to the Advisor under the terms of the
Investment Management Agreement, please see Note 4 to our consolidated financial statements for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 as
well as Note 5 to our consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2013, included in the accompanying prospectus.
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The incentive fee consists of two parts:

 
The first, payable quarterly in arrears, equals 20.0% of our pre-incentive fee net investment income initially calculated based on values at the closing
of this offering (including income that is accrued but not yet received in cash), subject to a 2.0% quarterly (8.0% annualized) hurdle rate and a
“catch-up” provision measured as of the end of each calendar quarter. Under this provision, in any calendar quarter, OFS Advisor receives no
incentive fee until our pre-incentive fee net investment income equals the hurdle rate of 2.0% but then receives, as a “catch-up,” 100% of our pre-
incentive fee net investment income with respect to that portion of such pre-incentive fee net investment income, if any, that exceeds the hurdle rate
but is less than 2.5%. The effect of this provision is that, if pre-incentive fee net investment income exceeds 2.5% in any calendar quarter, OFS
Advisor will receive 20.0% of our pre-incentive fee net investment income as if a hurdle rate did not apply.

 
The hurdle rate is fixed at 2.0% quarterly (8% annualized), which means that, if interest rates rise, it will be easier for our pre-incentive fee net
investment income to surpass the hurdle rate, which could lead to the payment of fees to OFS Advisor in an amount greater than expected. There is
no accumulation of amounts on the hurdle rate from quarter to quarter and accordingly there is no clawback of amounts previously paid if
subsequent quarters are below the quarterly hurdle rate and there is no delay of payment if prior quarters are below the quarterly hurdle rate.

 
The second part, payable annually in arrears, equals 20.0% of our realized capital gains on a cumulative basis as of the closing of this offering
through the end of the year, if any (or upon the termination of the Investment Advisory Agreement, as of the termination date), computed net of all
realized capital losses and unrealized capital depreciation on a cumulative basis, less the aggregate amount of any previously paid capital gain
incentive fees. The incentive fee is determined on a consolidated basis and, as such, will apply to the operations of SBIC I LP and OFS Capital WM
if and for so long as their financial statements are consolidated with ours. See “Management and Other Agreements — Investment Advisory
Agreement” in the accompanying prospectus.

 
(7) Interest payments on borrowed funds represents an estimate of our annualized interest expenses based on actual interest and credit facility expenses

incurred for the nine months ended September 30, 2014. Under the OFS Capital WM Credit Facility, our wholly-owned subsidiary, OFS Capital
WM, had debt in the amount of $84.8 million outstanding as of September 30, 2014. In addition, at September 30, 2014, SBIC I LP had SBA
debentures payable in the amount of $61.4 million.
We may borrow additional funds from time to time to make investments to the extent we determine that the economic situation is conducive to doing
so. We also anticipate that SBIC I LP will incur additional leverage which has been approved by the SBA. Our shareholders will bear directly or
indirectly the costs of borrowings under any debt instruments we may enter into.

  
(8) Includes our overhead expenses, including payments under the Administration Agreement based on our allocable portion of overhead and other

expenses incurred by OFS Services. See “Management and Other Agreements — Administration Agreement” in the accompanying prospectus.
These expenses are based on estimated amounts for the current fiscal year.

 
(9) Estimated.
 
(10) Our shareholders indirectly bear the expenses of underlying funds or other investment vehicles that would be investment companies under section

3(a) of the 1940 Act but for the exceptions to that definition provided for in sections 3(c)(1) and 3(c)(7) of the 1940 Act (“Acquired Funds”) in
which we invest. We do not currently invest in underlying funds or other investment companies.

Example
 

The following example demonstrates the projected dollar amount of total cumulative expenses over various periods with respect to a hypothetical
investment in our common stock. In calculating the following expense amounts, we have assumed we would have no additional leverage and that our annual
operating expenses would remain at the levels set forth in the table above. The expense amounts assume an annual base management fee 1.75% for each year.
Transaction expenses are included in the following example.

 

  1 year   3 years   5 years   
10 

years  
You would pay the following expenses on a $1,000 investment,

assuming a 5% annual return  $ 106  $ 301  $ 473  $ 821 
You would pay the following expenses on a $1,000 investment,

assuming a 5% annual return from realized capital gains  $ 106  $ 318  $ 501  $ 860 
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The foregoing table is to assist you in understanding the various costs and expenses that an investor in our common stock will bear directly or indirectly.

While the example assumes, as required by the SEC, a 5% annual return, our performance will vary and may result in a return greater or less than 5%. The
incentive fee under the Investment Advisory Agreement, which, assuming a 5% annual return, would either not be payable or have an insignificant impact on
the expense amounts shown above, is not included in the example. In addition, while the example assumes reinvestment of all dividends and distributions at
net asset value, if our board of directors authorizes and we declare a cash dividend, participants in our dividend reinvestment plan who have not otherwise
elected to receive cash will receive a number of shares of our common stock, determined by dividing the total dollar amount of the dividend payable to a
participant by the market price per share of our common stock at the close of trading on the valuation date for the dividend. See “Dividend Reinvestment
Plan” in the accompanying prospectus for additional information regarding our dividend reinvestment plan.

 
This example and the expenses in the table above should not be considered a representation of our future expenses, and actual expenses

(including the cost of debt, if any, and other expenses) may be greater or less than those shown
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

 
In addition to factors previously identified elsewhere in this prospectus supplement and in the accompanying prospectus, including the “Risk Factors”

section of the accompanying prospectus, the following factors, among others, could cause actual results to differ materially from forward-looking statements
or historical performance:

 
• the introduction, withdrawal, success and timing of business initiatives and strategies;

 
• changes in political, economic or industry conditions, the interest rate environment or financial and capital markets, which could result in changes in

the value of our assets;
 

• the relative and absolute investment performance and operations of our investment adviser;
 

• the impact of increased competition;
 

• the impact of future acquisitions and divestitures;
 

• the unfavorable resolution of legal proceedings;
 

• our business prospects and the prospects of our portfolio companies;
 

• the impact, extent and timing of technological changes and the adequacy of intellectual property protection;
 

• the impact of legislative and regulatory actions and reforms and regulatory, supervisory or enforcement actions of government agencies relating to us
or OFS Advisors;

 
• the ability of OFS Advisors to identify suitable investments for us and to monitor and administer our investments;

 
• our contractual arrangements and relationships with third parties;

 
• any future financings by us;

 
• the ability of OFS Advisors to attract and retain highly talented professionals;

 
• fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates; and

 
• the impact of changes to tax legislation and, generally, our tax position.

 
This prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, and other statements that we may make, may contain forward-looking statements with

respect to future financial or business performance, strategies or expectations. Forward-looking statements are typically identified by words or phrases such as
“trend,” “opportunity,” “pipeline,” “believe,” “comfortable,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “current,” “intention,” “estimate,” “position,” “assume,” “potential,”
“outlook,” “continue,” “remain,” “maintain,” “sustain,” “seek,” “achieve” and similar expressions, or future or conditional verbs such as “will,” “would,”
“should,” “could,” “may” or similar expressions.

 
Forward-looking statements are subject to numerous assumptions, risks and uncertainties, which change over time. Forward-looking statements speak

only as of the date they are made, and we assume no duty to and do not undertake to update forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements do
not meet the safe harbor for forward-looking statements pursuant to Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Act or Section
21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in forward-looking statements and future results
could differ materially from historical performance.
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SUPPLEMENTARY RISK FACTORS

 
Investing in our preferred stock involves a number of significant risks. Before you invest in our preferred stock, you should be aware of various risks,

including those described below and those set forth in the accompanying prospectus. You should carefully consider these risk factors, together with all of the
other information included in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, before you decide whether to make an investment in our
preferred stock. The risks set out below are not the only risks we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or not presently deemed
material by us may also impair our operations and performance. If any of the following events occur, our business, financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows could be materially and adversely affected. In such case, our net asset value and the trading price of our common stock could decline, and you
may lose all or part of your investment. The risk factors described below, together with those set forth in the accompanying prospectus, are the principal risk
factors associated with an investment in us as well as those factors generally associated with an investment company with investment objectives, investment
policies, capital structure or trading markets similar to ours.

 
If we issue preferred stock, the net asset value and market value of our common stock will likely become more volatile.

 
We cannot assure you that the issuance of preferred stock would result in a higher yield or return to the holders of our common stock. The issuance

of preferred stock would likely cause the net asset value and market value of the common stock to become more volatile. If the dividend rate on the preferred
stock were to approach the net rate of return on our investment portfolio, the benefit of leverage to the holders of the common stock would be reduced. If the
dividend rate on the preferred stock were to exceed the net rate of return on our portfolio, the leverage would result in a lower rate of return to the holders of
common stock than if we had not issued preferred stock. Any decline in the net asset value of our investments would be borne entirely by the holders of
common stock. Therefore, if the market value of our portfolio were to decline, the leverage would result in a greater decrease in net asset value to the holders
of common stock than if we were not leveraged through the issuance of preferred stock. This greater net asset value decrease would also tend to cause a
greater decline in the market price for the common stock. We might be in danger of failing to maintain the required asset coverage of the preferred stock or of
losing our ratings, if any, on the preferred stock or, in an extreme case, our current investment income might not be sufficient to meet the dividend
requirements on the preferred stock. In order to counteract such an event, we might need to liquidate investments in order to fund a redemption of some or all
of the preferred stock. In addition, we would pay (and the holders of common stock would bear) all costs and expenses relating to the issuance and ongoing
maintenance of the preferred stock, including higher advisory fees if our total return exceeds the dividend rate on the preferred stock. Holders of preferred
stock may have different interests than holders of common stock and may at times have disproportionate influence over our affairs.

 
Holders of any preferred stock we might issue would have the right to elect members of our board of directors and class voting rights on certain matters.

 
Holders of any preferred stock we might issue, voting separately as a single class, would have the right to elect two members of our board of

directors at all times and in the event dividends become two full years in arrears would have the right to elect a majority of the directors until such arrearage is
completely eliminated. In addition, preferred shareholders have class voting rights on certain matters, including changes in fundamental investment
restrictions and conversion to open-end status, and accordingly can veto any such changes. Restrictions imposed on the declarations and payment of dividends
or other distributions to the holders of our common stock and preferred stock, both by the 1940 Act and by requirements imposed by rating agencies, if any,
or the terms of our credit facility, if any, might impair our ability to maintain our qualification as a RIC for federal income tax purposes. While we would
intend to redeem our preferred stock to the extent necessary to enable us to distribute our income as required to maintain our qualification as a RIC, there can
be no assurance that such actions could be effected in time to meet the tax requirements.

 
[Insert risk factors applicable to the preferred stock and any additional relevant risk factors not included in the base prospectus to the extent
required to be disclosed by applicable law or regulation.]

 

S-14



 

 
CAPITALIZATION

 
The following table sets forth our capitalization as of              , 20      :

 
• on an actual basis; and
 
• on an as adjusted basis to give effect to the sale of              shares of our preferred stock in this offering at an assumed public offering price of $        

per share (the last reported closing price of our preferred stock on                 , 20 ), after deducting the estimated underwriting discounts and
commissions of approximately $         and estimated offering expenses of approximately $         payable by us.

 
You should read this table together with “Use of Proceeds” and financial statements and related notes thereto included elsewhere in this prospectus

supplement and the accompanying prospectus.
 

  
As of

      , 20  

  Actual   
As Adjusted
(unaudited)  

  (in thousands)  
Assets:       
Cash and cash equivalents  $    $   
Investments at fair value         
Other assets         
Total assets  $    $   
 

        

Liabilities:         
SBA-guaranteed debentures payable  $    $   
7.125% Notes due 2021         
Other Liabilities         
Total liabilities  $    $   
Net assets  $    $   
 

        

Shareholders’ equity:         
Common stock, par value $0.01 per share; 100,000,000 shares authorized,              shares outstanding      $   
Capital in excess of par value      $   
Total shareholders’ equity      $   
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USE OF PROCEEDS

 
We estimate that we will receive net proceeds from the sale of the          shares of our preferred stock in this offering of approximately $         million, or

approximately $         million if the underwriters exercise their option to purchase additional shares in full (in each case using the last reported closing price of
our preferred stock on                 , 20 of $     per share), after deducting estimated offering expenses of approximately $ payable by us.

 
We intend to use the net proceeds from the sale of our securities for general corporate purposes, which include investing in debt and equity securities,

repayment of any outstanding indebtedness, acquisitions and other general corporate purposes.
 
We anticipate that substantially all of the net proceeds from any offering of our securities will be used as described above within twelve months, but in no

event longer than two years, depending on the availability of attractive opportunities and market conditions. However, there can be no assurance that we will
be able to achieve this goal.

 
Pending such uses and investments, we will invest the remaining net proceeds primarily in cash, cash equivalents, U.S. government securities or high-

quality debt securities maturing in one year or less from the time of investment. The management fee payable by us to our investment adviser will not be
reduced while our assets are invested in such securities. Our ability to achieve our investment objective may be limited to the extent that the net proceeds of
any offering, pending full investment, are held in lower yielding short-term instruments.
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RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND PREFERRED DIVIDENDS

 
[Insert information required by Item 503(d) of Regulation S-K at time of offering.]
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DESCRIPTION OF PREFERRED STOCK

 
This prospectus supplement sets forth certain terms of our preferred stock that we are offering pursuant to this prospectus supplement and the

accompanying prospectus. This section outlines the specific legal and financial terms of the preferred stock. You should read this section together with the
more general descriptions of the preferred stock in the accompanying prospectus under the headings “Description of Our Capital Stock — Preferred stock”
and “Description of Our Preferred Stock” in the accompanying prospectus before investing in our preferred stock. This summary is not necessarily complete
and is subject to and entirely qualified by reference to our charter and bylaws.

 
[Insert material terms of the preferred stock to the extent required to be disclosed by applicable law or regulation.]
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UNDERWRITING

 
[ ], [ ] and [ ] are acting as representatives of the underwriters named below. Subject to the terms and conditions stated in the underwriting agreement

dated the date of this prospectus supplement, each underwriter named below has agreed to purchase, and we have agreed to sell to that underwriter, the
number of shares set forth opposite the underwriter’s name.

 

Underwriter  
Number
of Shares  

    
    
Total    

 
The underwriters are committed to take and pay for all of the preferred shares being offered, if any are taken, other than the preferred shares covered

by the option described below unless and until this option is exercised.
 
If the underwriters sell more preferred shares than the total number set forth in the table above, the underwriters have an option to buy up to an

additional [         ] preferred shares from us. They may exercise that option for [   ] days. If any preferred shares are purchased pursuant to this option, the
underwriters will severally purchase preferred shares in approximately the same proportion as set forth in the table above.

 
The following table shows the per share and total underwriting discounts and commissions (sales load) to be paid to the underwriters by us. Such

amounts are shown assuming both no exercise and full exercise of the underwriters’ option to purchase [         ] additional preferred shares. This offering will
conform to the requirements set forth in Financial Industry Regulatory Authority Rule 2310. In compliance with such requirements, the underwriting
discounts and commissions in connection with the sale of securities will not exceed 10% of gross proceeds of this offering.

 
  No Exercise   Full Exercise  
       
Per Share  $    $   
         
Total  $    $   

 
Shares sold by the underwriters to the public will initially be offered at the public offering price set forth on the cover of this prospectus supplement.

Any shares sold by the underwriters to securities dealers may be sold at a discount of up to $            per share from the public offering price. If all the shares
are not sold at the initial offering price, the representatives may change the public offering price and the other selling terms. The offering of the shares by the
underwriters is subject to receipt and acceptance and subject to the underwriters’ right to reject any order in whole or in part.

 
We and each of our directors and officers has agreed that, for a period of days from the date of this Prospectus Supplement (the “Lock-up Period”),

such party will not, without the prior written consent of , and , on behalf of the underwriters, offer, pledge, sell, contract to sell or otherwise dispose of or
agree to sell or otherwise dispose of, directly or indirectly or hedge any shares or any securities convertible into or exchangeable for preferred shares,
provided, however, that we may issue and sell shares of common stock pursuant to our dividend reinvestment plan and other limited exceptions. , and in their
sole discretion may release any of the securities subject to these lock-up agreements at any time.

  
[Add relevant disclosure depending on whether preferred shares are listed or not.]

 
In connection with the offering, the underwriters may purchase and sell shares of preferred stock in the open market. These transactions may include

short sales, stabilizing transactions and purchases to cover positions created by short sales. Short sales involve the sale by the underwriters of a greater
number of shares than they are required to purchase in the offering. “Covered” short sales are sales made in an amount not greater than the underwriters’
option to purchase additional shares from us in the offering. The underwriters may close out any covered short position by either exercising their option to
purchase additional shares or purchasing shares in the open market. In determining the source of shares to close out the covered short position, the
underwriters will consider, among other things, the price of shares available for purchase in the open market as compared to the price at which they may
purchase additional shares pursuant to the option granted to them. “Naked” short sales are any sales in excess of such option. The underwriters must close out
any naked short position by purchasing shares in the open market. A naked short position is more likely to be created if the underwriters are concerned that
there may be downward pressure on the price of the preferred stock in the open market after pricing that could adversely affect investors who purchase in the
offering. Stabilizing transactions consist of various bids for or purchases of preferred stock made by the underwriters in the open market prior to the
completion of the offering.
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The underwriters may also impose a penalty bid. This occurs when a particular underwriter repays to the underwriters a portion of the underwriting

discount received by it because the representatives have repurchased shares sold by or for the account of such underwriter in stabilizing or short covering
transactions.

 
Purchases to cover a short position and stabilizing transactions, as well as other purchases by the underwriters for their own account, may have the

effect of preventing or retarding a decline in the market price of the company’s stock, and together with the imposition of the penalty bid, may stabilize,
maintain or otherwise affect the market price of the preferred stock. As a result, the price of the preferred stock may be higher than the price that otherwise
might exist in the open market. If these activities are commenced, they may be discontinued at any time. These transactions may be effected on the NASDAQ
Global Select Market, in the over-the-counter market or otherwise.

 
The underwriters do not expect sales to discretionary accounts to exceed five percent of the total number of shares offered.
 
We estimate that our share of the total expenses of the offering, excluding underwriting discounts and commissions, will be approximately $           ..

We will pay all of the expenses incurred by us in connection with this offering.
 
We have agreed to indemnify the several underwriters against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act of 1933.
 
The underwriters and their respective affiliates are full-service financial institutions engaged in various activities, which may include securities

trading, commercial and investment banking, financial advisory, investment management, investment research, principal investment, hedging, financing and
brokerage activities. Certain of the underwriters and their respective affiliates may, from time to time, perform various financial advisory and investment
banking services for the company, for which they will receive customary fees and expenses.

 
In the ordinary course of their various business activities, the underwriters and their respective affiliates may make or hold a broad array of

investments and actively trade debt and equity securities (or related derivative securities) and financial instruments (including bank loans) for their own
account and for the accounts of their customers and such investment and securities activities may involve securities and/or instruments of the issuer. The
underwriters and their respective affiliates may also make investment recommendations and/or publish or express independent research views in respect of
such securities or instruments and may at any time hold, or recommend to clients that they acquire, long and/or short positions in such securities and
instruments.

 
The principal business address of            ,          ,          , and .

  
Each of the underwriters may arrange to sell preferred shares offered hereby in certain jurisdictions outside the United States, either directly or

through affiliates, where they are permitted to do so.
 
[Describe any other specific transactions and compensation related thereto to the extent required to be disclosed by applicable law or regulation.]

 
[Insert applicable legends for jurisdictions in which offers and sales may be made.]
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LEGAL MATTERS

 
Certain legal matters in connection with the securities offered hereby will be passed upon for us by Sutherland Asbill & Brennan LLP, Washington,

District of Columbia. Certain legal matters in connection with the securities offered hereby will be passed upon for the underwriters by             ,            
,             ..

 
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

 
[Include information regarding OFS Capital Corporation’s independent registered public accounting firm to the extent required to be disclosed by applicable
law or regulation.]
 

AVAILABLE INFORMATION
 

We have filed with the SEC a registration statement on Form N-2, together with all amendments and related exhibits, under the Securities Act, with
respect to our securities offered by this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. The registration statement contains additional information
about us and our securities being offered by this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus.

 
We will file with or submit to the SEC periodic and current reports, proxy statements and other information meeting the informational requirements of the

Exchange Act. You may inspect and copy these reports, proxy statements and other information, as well as the registration statement and related exhibits and
schedules, at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549-0102. You may obtain information on the operation of the
Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at (800) SEC-0330. We maintain a website at http://www.ofscapitalcorp.com and make all of our periodic and
current reports, proxy statements and other publicly filed information available, free of charge, on or through our website. Information contained on our
website is not incorporated into this prospectus supplement, and you should not consider information on our website to be part of this prospectus supplement.
You may also obtain such information by contacting us in writing at 10 S. Wacker Drive, Suite 2500, Chicago, IL, 60606, Attention: Investor Relations. The
SEC maintains a website that contains reports, proxy and information statements and other information we file with the SEC at www.sec.gov. Copies of these
reports, proxy and information statements and other information may also be obtained, after paying a duplicating fee, by electronic request at the following e-
mail address: publicinfo@sec.gov, or by writing the SEC’s Public Reference Section, 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549-0102.
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PRELIMINARY PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT
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Exhibit (s)(3)

 
This preliminary prospectus supplement relates to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, but the
information in this preliminary prospectus supplement is not complete and may be changed. This preliminary prospectus supplement and the
accompanying prospectus are not an offer to sell and are not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer and sale is
not permitted. 

 
Subject to Completion

Preliminary Prospectus Supplement dated , 20
 

[FORM OF PRELIMINARY PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT TO BE USED IN CONJUNCTION WITH FUTURE RETAIL NOTES
OFFERINGS]1

 
PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

(To Prospectus dated                , 20       )
$                                               

OFS Capital Corporation
% [Senior]2 Notes due

 
We are an externally managed, non-diversified, closed-end management investment company that has elected to be treated as a business development

company under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, or the 1940 Act. Our investment objective is to provide our shareholders with both current
income and capital appreciation primarily through debt investments and, to a lesser extent, equity investments.

 
We are offering $    in aggregate principal amount of    % notes due 20  , which we refer to as the “Notes” The Notes will mature on   , 20  . We will pay

interest on the Notes on   ,    ,    and    of each year, beginning on   , 20  . We may redeem the Notes in whole or in part at any time, or from time to time on or
after    , 20  , at the redemption price of par, plus accrued interest, as discussed under the caption “Description of the Notes — Optional Redemption.” The
Notes will be issued in minimum denominations of $    and integral multiples of $   in excess thereof.

 
The Notes will be our direct unsecured obligations and rank pari passu, or equal, with all outstanding and future unsecured unsubordinated indebtedness

issued by OFS Capital Corporation. The Notes will be effectively subordinated to our future secured indebtedness and structurally subordinated to all existing
and future indebtedness and other obligations of any of our subsidiaries, including the outstanding debentures of our wholly owned SBIC subsidiary.

 
The Notes have been approved for listing on the                   and we expect trading to commence thereon within 30 days of the original issue date under the

trading symbol “    .” We do not intend to have the Notes rated by any rating agency and, as a result, the Notes may be subject to greater volatility than debt
with an investment grade rating. The Notes are expected to trade “flat.” This means that purchasers will not pay, and sellers will not receive, any accrued and
unpaid interest on the Notes that is not included in the trading price. Currently, there is no public market for the Notes and there can be no assurance that one
will develop.

 
THE NOTES ARE NOT DEPOSITS OR OTHER OBLIGATIONS OF A BANK AND ARE NOT INSURED BY THE FEDERAL DEPOSIT

INSURANCE CORPORATION OR ANY OTHER GOVERNMENT AGENCY.
 
 

(1) In addition to the information provided in this form of prospectus supplement, each prospectus supplement actually used in connection with an offering
conducted pursuant to the registration statement to which this form of prospectus supplement is attached will be updated to include such other information as
may then be required to be disclosed therein pursuant to applicable law or regulation as in effect as of the date of each such prospectus supplement, including,
without limitation, additional information particular to the terms of each security offered thereby and any additional related risk factors or tax considerations
pertaining thereto. The terms of the Notes or the provisions of the indenture governing the Notes may differ from the information provided in this form of
prospectus supplement. This form of prospectus supplement is intended only to provide a rough approximation of the nature and type of disclosure that may
appear in any actual prospectus supplement used for the purposes of offering securities pursuant to the registration statement to which this form of prospectus
supplement is attached and, accordingly, the terms and description of the retail notes for which this form of prospectus supplement is to be used may differ
from the information provided in this form of prospectus supplement. This form of prospectus supplement is not intended to and does not contain all of the
information that would appear in any such actual prospectus supplement, and should not be used or relied upon in connection with any offer or sale of
securities.
(2) Notes will be denominated as “senior notes” if we have subordinated debt outstanding at issuance.
 

 



 

  
Please read this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus before investing and keep it for future reference. It contains important

information about us that a prospective investor ought to know before investing in our securities. We file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy
statements and other information about us with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The information is available free of charge by contacting Investor
Relations of OFS Capital Corporation, 10 S. Wacker Drive, Suite 2500, Chicago, IL 60606, or by calling us at (847) 734-2000 or on our website at
www.ofscapital.com. The Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC, maintains a website at www.sec.gov where such information is available without
charge. Information contained on our website is not incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement, and you should not consider information
contained on our website to be part of this prospectus supplement.

 
We qualify as an emerging growth company, as that term is used in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (the “JOBS Act”). An emerging

growth company may take advantage of specified reduced reporting and other burdens that are otherwise applicable generally to public companies. However,
we are choosing to “opt out” of such extended transition period, and as a result, we will comply with new or revised accounting standards on the relevant
dates on which adoption of such standards is required for non-emerging growth companies. Our decision to opt out of the extended transition period for
complying with new or revised accounting standards is irrevocable.

 
Substantially all of the debt securities in which we invest are below investment grade debt securities and are often referred to as “high yield” or “junk”

securities. Exposure to below investment grade securities involves certain risk, and those securities are viewed as having predominately speculative
characteristics with respect to the issuer’s capacity to pay interest and repay principal. A material amount of our debt investments contain floating interest rate
provisions that may make it more difficult for the borrowers to make debt repayments. Further, our debt investments generally will not pay down principal
during their term, which could result in a substantial loss to us if the portfolio company is unable to refinance or repay the debt at maturity.

 
An investment in our Notes is subject to risks and involves a heightened risk of total loss of investment. In addition, the companies in which we

invest are subject to special risks. See “Supplementary Risk Factors” beginning on page [ ] of this prospectus supplement and “Risk Factors”
beginning on page 16 of the accompanying prospectus to read about factors you should consider, including the risk of leverage, before investing in
our Notes.

 
Neither the SEC nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or determined if this prospectus is truthful

or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.
 

  Per Note   Total  
Public Offering Price  $    $   
Sales Load (Underwriting Discounts and Commissions)  $    $   
Proceeds to us (before expenses)(1)  $    $   
 
 

(1) Before deducting expenses related to this offering, estimated at $                .
 
[To the extent that the underwriters sell more than [         ] Notes, the underwriters have the option to purchase up to an additional [           ] Notes at

the public offering price, less the sales load, within [ ] days of the date of this prospectus. If the underwriters exercise this option in full, the total public
offering price, sales load and proceeds to us will be $                  , $                  and $                  , respectively. ]

 
 Delivery of the Notes in book entry form only through The Depository Trust Company will be made on or about         , 20     .
 

The date of this prospectus supplement is                    , 20  . 
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ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT
 

You should rely only on the information contained in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. Neither we nor the
underwriters have authorized any other person to provide you with different information from that contained in this prospectus supplement or
the accompanying prospectus. If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent information, you should not rely on it. This prospectus
supplement and the accompanying prospectus do not constitute an offer to sell, or a solicitation of an offer to buy, any of our Notes by any person
in any jurisdiction where it is unlawful for that person to make such an offer or solicitation or to any person in any jurisdiction to whom it is
unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation. The information contained in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus is
complete and accurate only as of their respective dates, regardless of the time of their delivery or sale of our Notes. This prospectus supplement
supersedes the accompanying prospectus to the extent it contains information different from or additional to the information in that prospectus.

 
This document is in two parts. The first part is this prospectus supplement, which describes the terms of this offering of Notes and also adds to and

updates information contained in the accompanying prospectus. The second part is the accompanying prospectus, which gives more general information
and disclosure. To the extent the information contained in this prospectus supplement differs from the information contained in the accompanying
prospectus, the information in this prospectus supplement shall control. Please carefully read this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus
together with any exhibits and the additional information described under “Available Information” before you make an investment decision.
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PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT SUMMARY
 
This summary highlights some of the information in this prospectus supplement. It is not complete and may not contain all of the information that you

may want to consider before investing in our securities. Throughout this prospectus supplement, we refer to OFS Capital Corporation and its consolidated
subsidiaries as the “Company,” “we,” “us” or “our;” OFS Capital Management, LLC as “OFS Advisor” or the “Advisor;” and OFS Capital Services,
LLC as “OFS Services” or the “Administrator.”
 
OFS Capital Corporation

 
We are an externally managed, closed-end, non-diversified management investment company formed in March 2001. Our investment objective is to

provide our shareholders with both current income and capital appreciation primarily through debt investments and, to a lesser extent, equity investments.
Our investment strategy focuses primarily on investments in middle-market companies in the United States. We use the term “middle-market” to refer to
companies which may exhibit one or more of the following characteristics: number of employees between 150 and 2,000; revenues between $15 million
and $300 million; annual earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, or EBITDA, between $3 million and $50 million; generally, private
companies owned by private equity firms or owners/operators; and enterprise value between $10 million and $500 million. For additional information
about how we define the middle-market, see “The Company — Investment Criteria/Guidelines” in the accompanying prospectus.

 
In connection with our initial public offering, or IPO, on November 7, 2012, we converted from a limited liability company to a corporation, as a result

of which the sole membership interest held by Orchard First Source Asset Management, LLC, or OFSAM, prior to the conversion was exchanged for
2,912,024 shares of our common stock. In connection with our IPO, we elected to be treated as a business development company, or BDC, under the 1940
Act. On November 14, 2012, we completed our IPO, selling 6,666,667 shares of our common stock at a public offering price of $15 per share and raising
$100 million in gross proceeds. We incurred approximately $6.2 million of sales load and $5.8 million of offering related costs in connection with our IPO.
We utilized approximately $90 million of our IPO proceeds to pay down the senior secured revolving credit facility, which OFS Capital WM, LLC, or OFS
Capital WM, our wholly owned subsidiary, entered into with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., or Wells Fargo, and Madison Capital Funding LLC, a subsidiary of
New York Life Investments, or Madison Capital, to finance its business.

 
As of September 30, 2014, our investment portfolio consisted of outstanding loans of approximately $262.7 million in aggregate principal amount in 57

portfolio companies, of which $123.2 million in aggregate principal amount was held by OFS SBIC I, LP (formerly known as Tamarix Capital Partners,
L.P.), or SBIC I LP, our wholly-owned SBIC subsidiary, in 18 portfolio companies. As of that date, 88% of our investment portfolio was comprised of
senior secured loans, 7% of subordinated loans and 5% of equity investments, at fair value.

 
As of September 30, 2014, our net asset value was approximately $137.1 million, or approximately $14.22 per share.
 
While our investment strategy focuses primarily on middle-market companies in the United States, including senior secured loans, which includes first-

lien, second-lien and unitranche loans as well as subordinated loans and, to a lesser extent, warrants and other minority equity securities, we also may
invest up to 30% of our portfolio in opportunistic investments of non-eligible portfolio companies. Specifically, as part of this 30% basket, we may
consider investments in investment funds that are operating pursuant to certain exceptions to the 1940 Act and in advisers to similar investment funds, as
well as in debt of middle-market companies located outside of the United States and debt and equity of public companies that do not meet the definition of
eligible portfolio companies because their market capitalization of publicly traded equity securities exceeds the levels provided for in the 1940 Act.

 
Our investment strategy includes SBIC I LP, which received a small business investment company, or SBIC, license from the U.S. Small Business

Administration, or SBA, in May 2012. On December 4, 2013, we received approval from the SBA to acquire all of the limited partnership interests in SBIC
I LP and all of the ownership interests of its general partner, OFS SBIC I GP, LLC (formerly known as Tamarix Capital G.P. LLC), or SBIC I GP, that were
owned or subscribed for by other persons (the “SBIC Acquisitions”, or the “Tamarix Acquisitions”). We acquired the interests on December 4, 2013, which
resulted in SBIC I LP becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary. The transaction was finalized in January 2014. For additional information on the acquisition of
SBIC I LP and SBIC I GP, see our consolidated financial statements and the related notes thereto included in the accompanying prospectus. The SBIC
license allows SBIC I LP to receive SBA-guaranteed debenture funding, subject to the issuance of a leverage commitment by the SBA and other customary
procedures. SBA leverage funding is subject to SBIC I LP’s payment of certain fees to the SBA, and the ability of SBIC I LP to draw on the leverage
commitment is subject to its compliance with SBA regulations and policies, including an audit by the SBA. For additional information regarding the
regulation of SBIC I LP, see “Regulation  — Small Business Investment Company Regulations” in the accompanying prospectus.
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On November 26, 2013, we received an exemptive order from the SEC to permit us to exclude the debt of SBIC I LP guaranteed by the SBA from the
definition of senior securities in the statutory 200% asset coverage ratio under the 1940 Act, allowing for greater capital deployment.

 
Our investment activities are managed by OFS Capital Management, LLC, or OFS Advisor, and supervised by our board of directors, a majority of

whom are independent of us, OFS Advisor and its affiliates. Under the investment advisory and management agreement between us and OFS Advisor, or
the Investment Advisory Agreement, we have agreed to pay OFS Advisor an annual base management fee based on the average value of our total assets
(other than cash and cash equivalents and certain non-cash items resulting from the SBIC Acquisitions but including assets purchased with borrowed
amounts and including assets owned by any consolidated entity) as well as an incentive fee based on our investment performance. On May 5, 2014, OFS
Advisor agreed to reduce its base management fee by two-thirds for the nine months commencing April 1, 2014 and ending December 31, 2014. For
additional information regarding the fees paid to OFS Advisor, see “Management and Other Agreements — Investment Advisory Agreement” in the
accompanying prospectus.

 
We have also entered into an administration agreement, or Administration Agreement, with OFS Capital Services, LLC, or OFS Services, our

Administrator. Under our Administration Agreement, we have agreed to reimburse OFS Services for our allocable portion (subject to the review and
approval of our independent directors) of overhead and other expenses incurred by OFS Services in performing its obligations under the Administration
Agreement.

 
As a BDC, we must not acquire any assets other than “qualifying assets” specified in the 1940 Act unless, at the time the acquisition is made, at least

70% of our total assets are qualifying assets (with certain limited exceptions). Qualifying assets include investments in “eligible portfolio companies.”
Under the relevant SEC rules, the term “eligible portfolio company” includes all private companies, companies whose securities are not listed on a national
securities exchange, and certain public companies that have listed their securities on a national securities exchange and have a market capitalization of less
than $250 million, in each case organized in the United States.

 
We are permitted to borrow money from time to time within the levels permitted by the 1940 Act (which generally allows us to incur leverage for up to

50% of our asset base). We may borrow money when the terms and conditions available are favorable to do so and are aligned with our investment strategy
and portfolio composition. The use of borrowed funds or the proceeds from issuing our preferred stock to make investments would have its own specific
benefits and risks, and all of the costs of borrowing funds or issuing preferred stock would be borne by holders of our common stock.

 
We have elected to be treated for tax purposes as a regulated investment company, or RIC, under Subchapter M of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,

or the Code. To qualify as a RIC, we must, among other things, meet certain source-of-income and assets diversification requirements. Pursuant to these
elections, we generally will not have to pay corporate-level taxes on any income we distribute to our shareholders.

 
On September 28, 2010, OFS Capital WM entered into a $180.0 million secured revolving credit facility (as amended from time to time, the “OFS

Capital WM Credit Facility”) with Wells Fargo and Madison Capital, with the Class A lenders (initially Wells Fargo) providing up to $135.0 million in
Class A loans (“Class A Facility”) and the Class B lenders (initially Madison Capital) providing up to $45.0 million in Class B loans (“Class B Facility”).
The OFS Capital WM Credit Facility is secured by all current and future eligible loans acquired by OFS Capital WM. The loan facilities with Wells Fargo
and Madison Capital had five- and six-year terms, respectively, and both facilities provided a one-year option for extension upon the approval of the
lenders. The loan facilities had a reinvestment period of two years after the closing date of the OFS Capital WM Credit Facility, which could be extended
by one year with the consent of each lender. Outstanding borrowings on the loan facilities were limited to the lesser of (1) $180.0 million and (2) the
borrowing base as defined by the OFS Capital WM Credit Facility loan documents. OFS Capital WM is obligated to pay interest on the outstanding loans
on each quarterly payment date. The Class B Facility was terminated in January 2013. In connection with the closing of the OFS Capital WM Credit
Facility, OFS Capital WM incurred financing costs of approximately $3.5 million were deferred and amortized over the term of OFS Capital WM Credit
Facility. As a result of the amendments to OFS Capital WM Credit Facility in 2012 (“WM 2012 Credit Facility Amendments”), we have substantial
additional input into certain key management decisions with respect to OFS Capital WM’s portfolio companies, including decisions with respect to
amendments to or modifications of the investments in these entities, or noticing or waiving of defaults or accelerating portfolio loans.

 
As a result of certain amendments through July 24, 2014, the OFS Capital WM Credit Facility’s borrowing base was adjusted and the minimum equity

requirement was lowered from $65.0 million to $35.0 million, resulting in additional liquidity for the Company. In addition, the maximum facility was
reduced from $180.0 million to $125.0 million.
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On November 18, 2014, OFS Capital WM elected to further reduce the maximum borrowing capacity on the OFS Capital WM Credit Facility from
$125.0 million to $100.0 million.
 
Organizational Structure
 

 
About OFS and Our Adviser

 
OFS (which refers to the collective activities and operations of OFSAM and its subsidiaries and certain affiliates) is an investment platform focused on

meeting the capital needs of middle-market companies. OFS is the successor to First Source Financial Inc., which was founded in 1995 as a joint venture
between Dominion Capital, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Dominion Resources, Inc., or Dominion, and Household Commercial Financial Services
Inc., a unit of Household International, or Household. Household sold its interest in First Source Financial Inc. to Dominion in 1997. In 2003, Orchard
Paladin Management, LLC, our predecessor, acquired from Dominion a portfolio of performing and non-performing loans of approximately $625 million
in aggregate commitment amount, plus additional investments in equity securities. Shortly thereafter, in 2004, Orchard Paladin Management, LLC acquired
Dominion’s interest in First Source Financial Inc. Most of the loan workouts and special situations investments managed by our senior managers since
2003 involved loans in the portfolio acquired from Dominion and loans acquired as a result of the purchase of Dominion’s interest in First Source Financial
Inc.

 
As of September 30, 2014, OFS had 35 full-time employees and one part-time employee. OFS is headquartered in Chicago, Illinois, with additional

offices in New York, New York and Los Angeles, California.
 
Our investment activities are managed by OFS Advisor, our investment adviser. OFS Advisor is responsible for sourcing potential investments,

conducting research and diligence on potential investments and equity investors, analyzing investment opportunities, structuring our investments and
monitoring our investments and portfolio companies on an ongoing basis. OFS Advisor is a subsidiary of OFSAM, our parent company prior to the
completion of our IPO, and is a registered investment adviser under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, or the Advisers Act.
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Our relationship with OFS Advisor is governed by and dependent on the Investment Advisory Agreement and may be subject to conflicts of interest.
We have entered into the Investment Advisory Agreement, pursuant to which OFS Advisor provides us with advisory services in exchange for a base
management fee and incentive fee. See “Management and Other Agreements — Investment Advisory Agreement” in the accompanying prospectus for a
discussion of the base management fee and incentive fee payable by us to OFS Advisor. The base management fee is based on our total assets (other than
cash and cash equivalents and the intangible asset and goodwill resulting from the SBIC Acquisitions but including assets purchased with borrowed
amounts and including assets owned by any consolidated entity) and, therefore, OFS Advisor will benefit when we incur debt or use leverage. Our board of
directors is charged with protecting our interests by monitoring how OFS Advisor addresses these and other conflicts of interest associated with its
management services and compensation. While our board of directors is not expected to review or approve each borrowing or incurrence of leverage, our
independent directors will periodically review OFS Advisor’s services and fees as well as its portfolio management decisions and portfolio performance.

 
OFS Advisor has entered into a staffing agreement, or the Staffing Agreement, with Orchard First Source Capital, Inc., or OFSC, a wholly-owned

subsidiary of OFSAM. With the exception of Richard Ressler, OFSC employs all of OFS’s investment professionals. Under the Staffing Agreement, OFSC
will make experienced investment professionals available to OFS Advisor and provide access to the senior investment personnel of OFS and its affiliates.
The Staffing Agreement provides OFS Advisor with access to deal flow generated by OFS and its affiliates in the ordinary course of their businesses and
commits the members of OFS Advisor’s investment committee to serve in that capacity. As our investment adviser, OFS Advisor is obligated to allocate
investment opportunities among us and any other clients fairly and equitably over time in accordance with its allocation policy.

 
OFS Advisor capitalizes on the significant deal origination and sourcing, credit underwriting, due diligence, investment structuring, execution, portfolio

management and monitoring experience of OFS’s professionals. The senior management team of OFS, including Bilal Rashid, Jeff Cerny and Mark
Hauser, provides services to OFS Advisor. These managers have developed a broad network of contacts within the investment community, averaging over
20 years of experience investing in debt and equity securities of middle-market companies. In addition, these managers have gained extensive experience
investing in assets that will constitute our primary focus and have expertise in investing across all levels of the capital structure of middle-market
companies.

 
OFS Advisor’s investment committee, or the Advisor Investment Committee, which is comprised of Richard Ressler (Chairman), Jeffrey Cerny, Peter

Fidler, Mark Hauser, Bilal Rashid, and Peter Rothschild, is responsible for our overall asset allocation decisions, as well as approval of all investments
made by us directly or through OFS Capital WM. Certain members of the Advisor Investment Committee perform a similar role for other investments
managed by OFS and its affiliates.

 
The investment committee for SBIC I LP, or the SBIC Investment Committee (and, together with the Advisor Investment Committee, the Investment

Committees), which is comprised of Peter Fidler, Mark Hauser, Glenn Pittson, and Peter Rothschild, is responsible for approval of all of investments made
by SBIC I LP. Any investment decision on the part of SBIC I LP requires the unanimous approval of the SBIC Investment Committee.
 
Our Administrator

 
OFS Services, an affiliate of OFS Advisor, provides the administrative services necessary for us to operate. OFS Services furnishes us with officers and

their staffs, office facilities and equipment, necessary software licenses and subscriptions and clerical, bookkeeping and recordkeeping services at such
facilities. OFS Services oversees our financial reporting as well as prepares our reports to shareholders and all other reports and materials required to be
filed with the SEC or any other regulatory authority. OFS Services also manages the determination and publication of our net asset value and the
preparation and filing of our tax returns and generally monitors the payment of our expenses and the performance of administrative and professional
services rendered to us by others. OFS Services may retain third parties to assist in providing administrative services to us.
 
Market Opportunity

 
Our investment strategy is focused primarily on investments in middle-market companies in the United States. We find the middle-market attractive for

the following reasons:
 
Large Target Market.  We believe that these middle-market companies represent a significant growth segment of the U.S. economy and often require

substantial capital investments to grow.
 
Specialized Lending Requirements with High Barriers to Entry.  We believe that several factors render many U.S. financial institutions ill-suited to

lend to U.S. middle-market companies. As a result, middle-market companies historically have been served by a limited segment of the lending
community. As a result of the unique challenges facing lenders to middle-market companies, there are high barriers to entry that a new lender must
overcome.

 
Robust Demand for Debt Capital.  We believe that private equity firms have significant committed but uncalled capital, a large portion of which is still

available for investment in the United States.
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Competitive Strengths and Core Competencies

 
Deep Management Team Experienced in All Phases of Investment Cycle and Across All Levels of the Capital Structure.  We are managed by OFS

Advisor, which has access through the Staffing Agreement with OFSC to the resources and expertise of OFS’s investment professionals. As of September
30, 2014, OFS’s credit and investment professionals (including all investment committee members) employed by OFSC had an average of over 15 years of
investment experience with strong institutional backgrounds.

 
Significant Investment Capacity.  The net proceeds of equity and debt offerings and borrowing capacity under our credit facilities will provide us with

a substantial amount of capital available for deployment into new investment opportunities in our targeted asset class.
 
Scalable Infrastructure Supporting the Entire Investment Cycle.  We believe that our loan acquisition, origination and sourcing, underwriting,

administration and management platform is highly scalable (that is, it can be expanded on a cost efficient basis within a timeframe that meets the demands
of business growth). Our platform extends beyond origination and sourcing and includes a regimented credit monitoring system. We believe that our
careful approach, which involves ongoing review and analysis by an experienced team of professionals, should enable us to identify problems early and to
assist borrowers before they face difficult liquidity constraints.

 
Extensive Loan Sourcing Capabilities.  OFS Advisor gives us access to the deal flow of OFS. We believe OFS’s 19-year history as a middle-market

lending platform and its market position make it a leading lender to many sponsors and other deal sources, especially in the currently under-served lending
environment, and we have extensive relationships with potential borrowers and other lenders.

 
Structuring with a High Level of Service and Operational Orientation.  We provide client-specific and creative financing structures to our portfolio

companies. Based on our experience in lending to and investing in middle-market companies, we believe that the middle-market companies we target, as
well as sponsor groups we may pursue, require a higher level of service, creativity and knowledge than has historically been provided by other service
providers more accustomed to participating in commodity-like loan transactions.

 
Rigorous Credit Analysis and Approval Procedures.  OFS Advisor utilizes the established, disciplined investment process of OFS for reviewing

lending opportunities, structuring transactions and monitoring investments. Using OFS’s disciplined approach to lending, OFS Advisor seeks to minimize
credit losses through effective underwriting, comprehensive due diligence investigations, structuring and, where appropriate, the implementation of
restrictive debt covenants.
 
Structure of Investments

 
We anticipate that our loan portfolio will continue to contain investments of the following types:
 
First-Lien Senior Secured Loans.  First-lien senior secured loans comprise a significant portion of our investment portfolio.
 
Senior Secured Unitranche Loans.  Unitranche loans are loans that combine both senior and subordinated debt into one loan under which the borrower

pays a single blended interest rate that is intended to reflect the relative risk of the secured and unsecured components.
 
Second-lien Senior Secured Loans.  We obtain security interests in the assets of these portfolio companies as collateral in support of the repayment of

such loans. This collateral typically takes the form of second-priority liens on the assets of a portfolio company, and we may enter into an intercreditor
agreement with the holders of the portfolio company’s first-lien senior secured debt.

 
Unsecured Subordinated (“Mezzanine”) Loans.  We structure these investments as unsecured, subordinated loans that typically provide for relatively

high, fixed interest rates that provide us with significant current interest income.
 
Warrants and Other Minority Equity Securities.  In some cases, we will also acquire a minority equity interest in the portfolio company in connection

with making a loan, or receive nominally priced warrants or options to buy a minority equity interest in the portfolio company in connection with making a
loan. As a result, as a portfolio company appreciates in value, we may achieve additional investment return from our equity interest.
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General Structuring Considerations.  We tailor the terms of each investment to the facts and circumstances of the transaction and the prospective
portfolio company, negotiating a structure that protects our rights and manages our risk while creating incentives for the portfolio company to achieve its
business plan and improve its operating results.

 
We expect to hold most of our investments to maturity or repayment, but we may sell some of our investments earlier if a liquidity event occurs, such as

a sale, recapitalization or worsening of the credit quality of the portfolio company.
 
Conflicts of Interests

 
Subject to certain 1940 Act restrictions on co-investments with affiliates, OFS Advisor will offer us the right to participate in investment opportunities

that it determines are appropriate for us in view of our investment objective, policies and strategies and other relevant factors. Such offers will be subject to
the exception that, in accordance with OFS Advisor’s allocation policy, we might not participate in each individual opportunity but will, on an overall
basis, be entitled to participate fairly and equitably with other entities managed by OFS Advisor and its affiliates.

 
To the extent that we compete with entities managed by OFS Advisor or any of its affiliates for a particular investment opportunity, OFS Advisor will

allocate investment opportunities across the entities for which such opportunities are appropriate, consistent with (a) its internal allocation policy, (b) the
requirements of the Advisers Act, and (c) certain restrictions under the 1940 Act and rules thereunder regarding co-investments with affiliates. OFS
Advisor’s allocation policy is intended to ensure that we may generally share fairly and equitably with other investment funds or other investment vehicles
managed by OFS Advisor or its affiliates in investment opportunities that OFS Advisor determines are appropriate for us in view of our investment
objective, policies and strategies and other relevant factors, particularly those involving a security with limited supply or involving differing classes of
securities of the same issuer that may be suitable for us and such other investment funds or other investment vehicles. Under this allocation policy, if two or
more investment vehicles with similar or overlapping investment strategies are in their investment periods, an available opportunity will be allocated based
on the provisions governing allocations of such investment opportunities in the relevant organizational, offering or similar documents, if any, for such
investment vehicles. In the absence of any such provisions, OFS Advisor will consider the following factors and the weight that should be given with
respect to each of these factors:

 
• investment guidelines and/or restrictions, if any, set forth in the applicable organizational, offering or similar documents for the investment

vehicles;
 
• risk and return profile of the investment vehicles;
 
• suitability/priority of a particular investment for the investment vehicles;
 
• if applicable, the targeted position size of the investment for the investment vehicles;
 
• level of available cash for investment with respect to the investment vehicles;
 
• total amount of funds committed to the investment vehicles; and

 
• the age of the investment vehicles and the remaining term of their respective investment periods, if any.
 
In situations where co-investment with such other accounts is not permitted or appropriate, such as when there is an opportunity to invest in different

securities of the same issuer, OFS Advisor will need to decide which account will proceed with the investment. The decision by OFS Advisor to allocate an
opportunity to another entity could cause us to forego an investment opportunity that we otherwise would have made. See “Related-Party Transactions and
Certain Relationships” in the accompanying prospectus
 
Corporate Information

 
Our principal executive offices are located at 10 S. Wacker Drive, Suite 2500, Chicago, IL, 60606, and our telephone number is (847) 734-2000. Our

corporate website is located at http://www.ofscapital.com. Information on our website is not incorporated into or a part of this prospectus supplement.
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Implications of Being an Emerging Growth Company

 
We qualify as an emerging growth company, as that term is used in the JOBS Act. An emerging growth company may take advantage of specified

reduced reporting and other burdens that are otherwise applicable generally to public companies. These provisions include:
 
• An exemption from the auditors attestation requirement in the assessment of the emerging growth company’s internal control over financial

reporting under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “Sarbanes-Oxley Act”);
 
• No non-binding advisory votes on executive compensation or golden parachute arrangements; and
 
• Reduced financial statement and executive compensation requirements.
 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, we have complied with Section 404(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act regarding auditor attestation for the fiscal year ended

December 31, 2013.
 
In addition, Section 107 of the JOBS Act also provides that an emerging growth company can take advantage of the extended transition period provided

in Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), for complying with new or revised accounting standards. However,
we are choosing to “opt out” of such extended transition period, and as a result, we will comply with new or revised accounting standards on the relevant
dates on which adoption of such standards is required for non-emerging growth companies. Our decision to opt out of the extended transition period for
complying with new or revised accounting standards is irrevocable.

 
We could remain an emerging growth company for up to five years, or until the earliest of (a) the last day of the first fiscal year in which our annual

gross revenues exceed $1 billion, (b) the date that we become a “large accelerated filer” as defined in Rule 12b-2 under the Exchange Act, which would
occur if the market value of our common stock that is held by non-affiliates exceeds $700 million as of the last business day of our most recently completed
second fiscal quarter, or (c) the date on which we have issued more than $1 billion in non-convertible debt during the preceding three year period.
 
Risks

 
Investing in our securities may be speculative and involves certain risks relating to our structure and our investment objective that you should consider

before deciding whether to invest. Certain of these risks are referenced below:
 
Capital markets are currently functional, but may experience periods of disruption and instability, which could have a negative impact on our business

and operations.
 

There are numerous risks relating to our business, including credit losses on our investments, the risk of loss associated with leverage, illiquidity and
valuation uncertainties in our investments, possible lack of appropriate investments, the lack of experience in operating a BDC of our investment adviser
and our dependence on such investment adviser.

 
There are also numerous risks relating to our investments, including the risky nature of the securities in which we invest, the subordinated nature of

select investments, our potential lack of control over our portfolio companies, our limited ability to invest in public or foreign companies and the potential
incentives in our investment adviser to invest more speculatively than it would if it did not have an opportunity to earn incentive fees.

 
We also have various risks relating to our status as a BDC, including limitations on raising additional capital, failure to qualify as a BDC and loss of tax

status as a RIC. In addition, SBIC I LP has the risk of losing its SBIC status.
 
There are also risks relating to this offering, including volatility in our stock price and the anti-takeover effect of certain provisions in our certificate of

incorporation.
 
See “Supplementary Risk Factors” on page of this prospectus supplement and “Risk Factors” beginning on page 16 of the of the accompanying

prospectus for a more detailed discussion of these and other material risks you should carefully consider before deciding to invest in our securities.
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SPECIFIC TERMS OF THE NOTES AND THE OFFERING

 
This prospectus supplement sets forth certain terms of the Notes that we are offering pursuant to this prospectus supplement and supplements the

accompanying prospectus that is attached to this prospectus supplement. This section outlines the specific legal and financial terms of the Notes. You should
read this section together with the more general description of the Notes in the accompanying prospectus under the heading “Description of Our Debt
Securities” before investing in the Notes. Capitalized terms used in this prospectus supplement and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings ascribed to
them in the accompanying prospectus or in the indenture governing the Notes.

 
Issuer  OFS Capital Corporation

 
Title of the securities  % [Senior](1) Notes due

 
Initial aggregate principal amount being
offered

 $

 
Overallotment option  The underwriters may also purchase from us up to an additional $   aggregate principal amount of Notes

solely to cover overallotments, if any, within   days of the date of this prospectus.
 

Initial public offering price    % of the aggregate principal amount.
 

Principal payable at maturity    % of the aggregate principal amount; the principal amount of each Note will be payable on its stated
maturity date at the office of the Trustee, Paying Agent, and Security Registrar for the Notes or at such
other office in New York City as we may designate.

 
Type of Note  Fixed-rate note

 
Listing  The Notes have been approved for listing on the               and we expect trading to commence thereon

within    days of the original issue date under the symbol “   ”
 

Interest Rate  % per year
 

Day count basis  360-day year of twelve 30-day months
 
Original issue date    , 20

 
Stated maturity date     ,20

 
Date interest starts accruing     ,20

 
Interest payment dates  Each        and      commencing   ,20  . If an interest payment date falls on a non-business day, the

applicable interest payment will be made on the next business day and no additional interest will accrue
as a result of such delayed payment.

 
Interest periods  The initial interest period will be the period from and including   , 20  , to, but excluding, the initial

interest payment date, and the subsequent interest periods will be the periods from and including an
interest payment date to, but excluding, the next interest payment date or the stated maturity date, as the
case may be.

 
Regular record dates for interest  Each   and  beginning  , 20

 
Specified currency  U.S. dollars

 
Place of payment  New York City and/or such other places that may be specified in the indenture or a notice to holders.

 
Ranking of Notes  The Notes will be our direct unsecured obligations and will rank:

 
  •  pari passu, or equal, with our future unsecured indebtedness;

 
  •  senior to any of our future indebtedness that expressly provides it is subordinated to the Notes;

 
  •  effectively subordinated to all of our future secured indebtedness (including indebtedness that is

initially unsecured to which we subsequently grant security); and
 

 

(1) Notes will be denominated as “senior notes” if we have subordinated debt outstanding at issuance.
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  •  structurally subordinated to all existing and future indebtedness and other obligations of any of

our subsidiaries, including without limitation, the indebtedness of SBIC I LP.
 

  In the event that one of our subsidiaries becomes insolvent, liquidates, reorganizes, dissolves or
otherwise winds up, its assets will be used first to satisfy the claims of its creditors. Consequently, any
claim by us or our creditors, including holders of our Notes, against any subsidiary will be structurally
subordinated to all of the claims of the creditors of such subsidiary. We cannot assure holders of our
Notes that they will receive any payments required to be made under the terms of the Notes.

 
  The indenture does not contain any provisions that give you protection in the event we issue a large

amount of debt or we are acquired by another entity.
 

Denominations  We will issue the Notes in denominations of $  and integral multiples of $   in excess thereof.
 

Business Day  Each Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday and Friday that is not a day on which banking
institutions in New York City are authorized or required by law or executive order to close.

 
Optional redemption  The Notes may be redeemed in whole or in part at any time or from time to time at our option on or

after  , 20   , upon not less than    days nor more than 60 days written notice by mail prior to the date
fixed for redemption thereof, at a redemption price of    % of the outstanding principal amount thereof
plus accrued and unpaid interest payments otherwise payable for the then-current quarterly interest
period accrued to but not including the date fixed for redemption.

 
  You may be prevented from exchanging or transferring the Notes when they are subject to redemption.

In case any Notes are to be redeemed in part only, the redemption notice will provide that, upon
surrender of such Note, you will receive, without a charge, a new Note or Notes of authorized
denominations representing the principal amount of your remaining unredeemed Notes.

 
  Any exercise of our option to redeem the Notes will be done in compliance with the 1940 Act, to the

extent applicable.
 

  If we redeem only some of the Notes, the Trustee will determine the method for selection of the
particular Notes to be redeemed, in accordance with the indenture governing the Notes, and in
accordance with the rules of any national securities exchange or quotation system on which the Notes
are listed. Unless we default in payment of the redemption price, on and after the date of redemption,
interest will cease to accrue on the Notes called for redemption.

 
Sinking Fund  The Notes will not be subject to any sinking fund.

 
Repayment at option of Holders  Holders will not have the option to have the Notes repaid prior to the stated maturity date.

 
Defeasance  The Notes are subject to defeasance by us. “Defeasance” means that, by depositing with a trustee an

amount of cash and/or government securities sufficient to pay all principal and interest, if any, on the
Notes when due and satisfying any additional conditions required under the indenture and the Notes, we
will be deemed to have been discharged from our obligations under the Notes.

 
Covenant defeasance  The Notes are subject to covenant defeasance by us. In the event of a “covenant defeasance,” upon

depositing such funds and satisfying conditions similar to those for defeasance we would be released
from certain covenants under the indenture relating to the Notes. The consequences to the holders of the
Notes would be that, while they would no longer benefit from certain covenants under the indenture,
and while the Notes could not be accelerated for any reason, the holders of Notes nonetheless would be
guaranteed to receive the principal and interest owed to them.
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Form of Notes  The Notes will be represented by global securities that will be deposited and registered in the name of

The Depository Trust Company, or DTC, or its nominee. Except in limited circumstances, you will not
receive certificates for the Notes. Beneficial interests in the Notes will be represented through book-
entry accounts of financial institutions acting on behalf of beneficial owners as direct and indirect
participants in DTC. Investors may elect to hold interests in the Notes through either DTC, if they are a
participant, or indirectly through organizations that are participants in DTC.

 
Trustee, Paying Agent, and Security Registrar   U.S. Bank, National Association  

 
Other Covenants  In addition to any other covenants described in this prospectus, the following covenants shall apply to

the Notes:
 

  •  We agree that for the period of time during which the Notes are outstanding, we will not violate
Section 18(a)(1)(A) as modified by Section 61(a)(1) of the 1940 Act or any successor provisions,
whether or not we continue to be subject to such provisions of the 1940 Act, but giving effect, in
either case, to any exemptive relief granted to us by the SEC. Currently, these provisions
generally prohibit us from incurring additional borrowings, including through the issuance of
additional debt securities, unless our asset coverage, as defined in the 1940 Act, equals at least
200% after such borrowings. See “Risk Factors — Risks Relating to our Business and
Structure — Pending legislation may allow us to incur additional leverage.”

   
  •  [We agree that for the period of time during which the Notes are outstanding, we will not violate

Section 18(a)(1)(B) as modified by Section 61(a)(1) of the 1940 Act or any successor provisions,
giving effect to (i) any exemptive relief granted to us by the SEC and (ii) no-action relief granted
by the SEC to another BDC (or to the Company if it determines to seek such similar no-action or
other relief) permitting the BDC to declare any cash dividend or distribution notwithstanding the
prohibition contained in Section 18(a)(1)(B) as modified by Section 61(a)(1) of the 1940 Act in
order to maintain the BDC's status as a regulated investment company under Subchapter M of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. These provisions generally prohibit us from declaring any
cash dividend or distribution upon any class of our capital stock, or purchasing any such capital
stock if our asset coverage, as defined in the 1940 Act, is below 200% at the time of the
declaration of the dividend or distribution or the purchase and after deducting the amount of such
dividend, distribution or purchase.]1

  
  •  If, at any time, we are not subject to the reporting requirements of Sections 13 or 15(d) of the

Exchange Act to file any periodic reports with the SEC, we agree to furnish to holders of the
Notes and the Trustee, for the period of time during which the Notes are outstanding, our audited
annual consolidated financial statements, within 90 days of our fiscal year end, and unaudited
interim consolidated financial statements, within 45 days of our fiscal quarter end (other than our
fourth fiscal quarter). All such financial statements will be prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with applicable U.S. GAAP.

 
Events of Default  You will have rights if an Event of Default occurs with respect to the Notes and is not cured.

 
The term “Event of Default” in respect of the Notes means any of the following:

 
  •  We do not pay the principal of, or premium on, any Note within five days of its due date.

 
  •  We do not pay interest on any Note when due, and such default is not cured within 30 days.

 
  •  We remain in breach of any other covenant with respect to the Notes for 60 days after we receive

a written notice of default stating we are in breach. The notice must be sent by either the Trustee
or holders of at least 25.0% of the principal amount of the Notes.

 
 

1 This covenant will not apply in the event that we use all of the proceeds of any offering of notes to repay outstanding indebtedness.
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  •  We file for bankruptcy or certain other events of bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization occur

and in the case of certain orders or decrees entered against us under any bankruptcy law, such
order or decree remains undischarged or unstayed for a period of 90 days.

   
  •  On the last business day of each of twenty-four consecutive calendar months, the Notes have an

asset coverage, as defined in the 1940 Act, of less than 100% after giving effect to any exemptive
relief granted to us by the SEC.

  
Further Issuances  We have the ability to issue additional debt securities under the indenture with terms different from the

Notes and, without consent of the holders thereof, to reopen the Notes and issue additional Notes. If we
issue additional debt securities, these additional debt securities could have a lien or other security
interest greater than that accorded to the holders of the Notes, which are unsecured.

 
Global Clearance and Settlement Procedures  Interests in the Notes will trade in DTC’s Same Day Funds Settlement System, and any permitted

secondary market trading activity in such Notes will, therefore, be required by DTC to be settled in
immediately available funds. None of the issuer, the Trustee or the paying agent will have any
responsibility for the performance by DTC or its participants or indirect participants of their respective
obligations under the rules and procedures governing their operations.

 
Use of Proceeds  We plan to use the net proceeds of this offering for new investments in portfolio companies in

accordance with our investment objective and strategies described in this prospectus and for general
working capital purposes. We will also pay operating expenses, including advisory and administrative
fees and expenses, and may pay other expenses such as due diligence expenses of potential new
investments, from the net proceeds of this offering. We anticipate that substantially all of the net
proceeds of this offering will be used for the above purposes within three to nine months from the
consummation of this offering, depending on the availability of appropriate investment opportunities
consistent with our investment objective and market conditions. We expect that it may take more than
three months to invest all of the net proceeds of this offering, in part because investments in private
companies often require substantial research and due diligence. Pending such investments, we will
invest the net proceeds primarily in cash, cash equivalents, U.S. government securities and other high-
quality temporary investments that mature in one year or less from the date of investment. See “Use of
Proceeds.”

 
[Update for any other terms applicable to the Notes to the extent required to be disclosed by applicable law or regulation.]
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

 
In addition to factors previously identified elsewhere in this prospectus supplement and in the accompanying prospectus, including the “Supplementary

Risk Factors” section of this prospectus supplement and “Risk Factors” section of the accompanying prospectus, the following factors, among others, could
cause actual results to differ materially from forward-looking statements or historical performance:

 
• the introduction, withdrawal, success and timing of business initiatives and strategies;
 
• changes in political, economic or industry conditions, the interest rate environment or financial and capital markets, which could result in changes in

the value of our assets;
 
• the relative and absolute investment performance and operations of our investment adviser;
 
• the impact of increased competition;
 
• the impact of future acquisitions and divestitures;
 
• the unfavorable resolution of legal proceedings;
 
• our business prospects and the prospects of our portfolio companies;
 
• the impact, extent and timing of technological changes and the adequacy of intellectual property protection;
 
• the impact of legislative and regulatory actions and reforms and regulatory, supervisory or enforcement actions of government agencies relating to us

or OFS Advisors;
 
• the ability of OFS Advisors to identify suitable investments for us and to monitor and administer our investments;
 
• our contractual arrangements and relationships with third parties;
 
• any future financings by us;
 
• the ability of OFS Advisors to attract and retain highly talented professionals;
 
• fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates; and
 
• the impact of changes to tax legislation and, generally, our tax position.
 
This prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, and other statements that we may make, may contain forward-looking statements with

respect to future financial or business performance, strategies or expectations. Forward-looking statements are typically identified by words or phrases such as
“trend,” “opportunity,” “pipeline,” “believe,” “comfortable,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “current,” “intention,” “estimate,” “position,” “assume,” “potential,”
“outlook,” “continue,” “remain,” “maintain,” “sustain,” “seek,” “achieve” and similar expressions, or future or conditional verbs such as “will,” “would,”
“should,” “could,” “may” or similar expressions.

 
Forward-looking statements are subject to numerous assumptions, risks and uncertainties, which change over time. Forward-looking statements speak

only as of the date they are made, and we assume no duty to and do not undertake to update forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements do
not meet the safe harbor for forward-looking statements pursuant to Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Act or Section
21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in forward-looking statements and future results
could differ materially from historical performance.
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SUPPLEMENTARY RISK FACTORS

 
You should carefully consider the risk factors described below and under the caption “Risk Factors” in the accompanying prospectus, together with

all of the other information included in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, including our consolidated financial statements and the
related notes thereto, before you decide whether to make an investment in our securities. The risks set out below are not the only risks we face. Additional
risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently deem to be immaterial also may materially adversely affect our business, financial
condition and/or operating results. If any of the following events occur, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be materially
adversely affected.

 
The Notes will be unsecured and therefore will be effectively subordinated to any secured indebtedness we may incur in the future.

 
The Notes will not be secured by any of our assets or any of the assets of our subsidiaries. As a result, the Notes are effectively subordinated to any

secured indebtedness we or our subsidiaries may incur in the future (or any indebtedness that is initially unsecured to which we subsequently grant security).
In any liquidation, dissolution, bankruptcy or other similar proceeding, the holders of any of our future secured indebtedness and the future secured
indebtedness of our subsidiaries may assert rights against the assets pledged to secure that indebtedness in order to receive full payment of their indebtedness
before the assets may be used to pay other creditors, including the holders of the Notes.
 
The Notes will be structurally subordinated to the indebtedness and other liabilities of our subsidiaries.

 
The Notes are obligations exclusively of OFS Capital Corporation and not of any of our subsidiaries. None of our subsidiaries is a guarantor of the Notes

and the Notes are not required to be guaranteed by any subsidiaries we may acquire or create in the future. Currently, and without giving effect to this
offering, substantially all of the indebtedness required to be consolidated on our balance sheet is held through SBIC I LP. For example, as of      , 20    , SBIC I
LP had approximately $       million of outstanding debentures guaranteed by the SBA. Any assets of our subsidiaries will not be directly available to satisfy
the claims of our creditors, including holders of the Notes.
 

Except to the extent we are a creditor with recognized claims against our subsidiaries, all claims of creditors (including trade creditors) and holders of
preferred stock, if any, of our subsidiaries will have priority over our equity interests in such subsidiaries (and therefore the claims of our creditors, including
holders of the Notes) with respect to the assets of such subsidiaries. Even if we are recognized as a creditor of one or more of our subsidiaries, our claims
would still be effectively subordinated to any security interests in the assets of any such subsidiary and to any indebtedness or other liabilities of any such
subsidiary senior to our claims. Consequently, the Notes will be structurally subordinated to all indebtedness and other liabilities (including trade payables) of
any of our subsidiaries and any subsidiaries that we may in the future acquire or establish as financing vehicles or otherwise including the outstanding SBA-
guaranteed debentures of SBIC I LP.
 
The indenture under which the Notes will be issued will contain limited protection for holders of the Notes.

 
The indenture under which the Notes will be issued offers limited protection to holders of the Notes. The terms of the indenture and the Notes do not

restrict our or any of our subsidiaries’ ability to engage in, or otherwise be a party to, a variety of corporate transactions, circumstances or events that could
have a material adverse impact on your investment in the Notes. In particular, the terms of the indenture and the Notes will not place any restrictions on our or
our subsidiaries’ ability to:

 
• issue securities or otherwise incur additional indebtedness or other obligations, including (1) any indebtedness or other obligations that would be equal

in right of payment to the Notes, (2) any indebtedness or other obligations that would be secured and therefore rank effectively senior in right of
payment to the Notes, (3) indebtedness of ours that is guaranteed by one or more of our subsidiaries and which therefore is structurally senior to the
Notes and (4) securities, indebtedness or obligations issued or incurred by our subsidiaries that would be senior to our equity interests in our
subsidiaries and therefore rank structurally senior to the Notes with respect to the assets of our subsidiaries, in each case other than an incurrence of
indebtedness or other obligation that would cause a violation of Section 18(a)(1)(A) as modified by Section 61(a)(1) of the 1940 Act or any successor
provisions, whether or not we continue to be subject to such provisions of the 1940 Act, but giving effect, in either case, to any exemptive relief
granted to us by the SEC (currently, these provisions generally prohibit us from making additional borrowings, including through the issuance of
additional debt or the sale of additional debt securities, unless our asset coverage, as defined in the 1940 Act, equals at least 200% after such
borrowings);
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• [pay dividends on, or purchase or redeem or make any payments in respect of, capital stock or other securities ranking junior in right of payment to

the Notes, including subordinated indebtedness, in each case other than dividends, purchases, redemptions or payments that would cause a violation of
Section 18(a)(1)(B) as modified by Section 61(a)(1) of the 1940 Act or any successor provisions giving effect to (i) any exemptive relief granted to us
by the SEC and (ii) no-action relief granted by the SEC to another BDC (or to the Company if it determines to seek such similar no-action or other
relief) permitting the BDC to declare any cash dividend or distribution notwithstanding the prohibition contained in Section 18(a)(1)(B) as modified
by Section 61(a)(1) of the 1940 Act in order to maintain the BDC's status as a regulated investment company under Subchapter M of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986 (these provisions generally prohibit us from declaring any cash dividend or distribution upon any class of our capital stock, or
purchasing any such capital stock if our asset coverage, as defined in the 1940 Act, is below 200% at the time of the declaration of the dividend or
distribution or the purchase and after deducting the amount of such dividend, distribution or purchase);]1

 
• sell assets (other than certain limited restrictions on our ability to consolidate, merge or sell all or substantially all of our assets);
 
• enter into transactions with affiliates;
 
• create liens (including liens on the shares of our subsidiaries) or enter into sale and leaseback transactions;
 
• make investments; or
 
• create restrictions on the payment of dividends or other amounts to us from our subsidiaries.
 
In addition, the indenture will not require us to offer to purchase the Notes in connection with a change of control or any other event.
 
Furthermore, the terms of the indenture and the Notes do not protect holders of the Notes in the event that we experience changes (including significant

adverse changes) in our financial condition, results of operations or credit ratings, as they do not require that we or our subsidiaries adhere to any financial
tests or ratios or specified levels of net worth, revenues, income, cash flow or liquidity.

 
Our ability to recapitalize, incur additional debt and take a number of other actions that are not limited by the terms of the Notes may have important

consequences for you as a holder of the Notes, including making it more difficult for us to satisfy our obligations with respect to the Notes or negatively
affecting the trading value of the Notes.

 
Other debt we issue or incur in the future could contain more protections for its holders than the indenture and the Notes, including additional covenants

and events of default. The issuance or incurrence of any such debt with incremental protections could affect the market for and trading levels and prices of the
Notes.
 
There is no existing trading market for the Notes and an active trading market for the Notes may not develop, which could limit your ability to sell the
Notes or affect the market price of the Notes.

 
The Notes will be a new issue of debt securities for which there initially will not be a trading market. The Notes have been approved for listing on

the                  and we expect trading to commence thereon within 30 days of the original issue date under the symbol “   .” Moreover, we cannot provide any
assurances that an active trading market will develop for the Notes or that you will be able to sell your Notes. If the Notes are traded after their initial
issuance, they may trade at a discount from their initial offering price depending on prevailing interest rates, the market for similar securities, our credit
ratings, if any, general economic conditions, our financial condition, performance and prospects and other factors. The underwriters have advised us that they
may make a market in the Notes, but they are not obligated to do so. The underwriters may discontinue any market-making in the Notes at any time at their
sole discretion. Accordingly, we cannot assure you that a liquid trading market will develop for the Notes, that you will be able to sell your Notes at a
particular time or that the price you receive when you sell will be favorable. To the extent an active trading market does not develop, the liquidity and trading
price for the Notes may be harmed. Accordingly, you may be required to bear the financial risk of an investment in the Notes for an indefinite period of time.
 
 

1 This covenant will not apply in the event that we use all of the proceeds of any offering of notes to repay outstanding indebtedness.
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If we default on our obligations to pay other indebtedness that we may incur in the future, we may not be able to make payments on the Notes.

 
In the future, we may enter into agreements to incur additional indebtedness, including a secured credit facility. A default under such agreements to which

we may be a party that is not waived by the required lenders or holders, and the remedies sought by the holders of such indebtedness could prohibit us from
paying principal, premium, if any, and interest on the Notes and substantially decrease the market value of the Notes. If we are unable to generate sufficient
cash flow and are otherwise unable to obtain funds necessary to meet required payments of principal, premium, if any, and interest on such future additional
indebtedness, or if we otherwise fail to comply with the various covenants, including financial and operating covenants, in the instruments governing such
future additional indebtedness, we could be in default under the terms of the agreements governing such indebtedness. In the event of such default, the holders
of such indebtedness could elect to declare all the funds borrowed thereunder to be due and payable, together with accrued and unpaid interest, the lenders of
other debt we may incur in the future could elect to terminate their commitments, cease making further loans and institute foreclosure proceedings against our
assets, and we could be forced into bankruptcy or liquidation. If we are unable to repay debt, lenders having secured obligations could proceed against the
collateral securing the debt. Because any future credit facilities will likely have customary cross-default provisions, if the indebtedness under any future credit
facility is accelerated, we may be unable to repay or finance the amounts due.
 
We may choose to redeem the Notes when prevailing interest rates are relatively low.

 
On or after          , 20      , we may choose to redeem the Notes from time to time, especially when prevailing interests rates are lower than the interest rate

on the Notes. If prevailing rates are lower at the time of redemption, you would not be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds in a comparable security at an
effective interest rate as high as the interest rate on the Notes being redeemed. Our redemption right also may adversely impact your ability to sell the Notes
as the optional redemption date or period approaches.

 
[Update for any other risk factors applicable to the Notes, e.g., any impact of default in payment of other outstanding indebtedness, and any additional
relevant risk factors not included in the base prospectus to the extent required to be disclosed by applicable law or regulation.]
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USE OF PROCEEDS

 
We estimate that the net proceeds we will receive from the sale of the $          million aggregate principal amount of Notes in this offering will be

approximately $      million (or approximately $     million if the underwriters fully exercise their option to purchase additional Notes), in each case assuming
a public offering price of 100% of par, after deducting the underwriting discounts and commissions of $      million (or approximately $ million if the
underwriters fully exercise their option to purchase additional Notes) payable by us and estimated offering expenses of approximately $     million payable by
us.

 
We intend to use the net proceeds from the sale of our securities for general corporate purposes, which include investing in debt and equity securities,

repayment of any outstanding indebtedness, acquisitions and other general corporate purposes.
 
We anticipate that substantially all of the net proceeds from any offering of our securities will be used as described above within twelve months, but in no

event longer than two years, depending on the availability of attractive opportunities and market conditions. However, there can be no assurance that we will
be able to achieve this goal.

 
Pending such uses and investments, we will invest the remaining net proceeds primarily in cash, cash equivalents, U.S. government securities or high-

quality debt securities maturing in one year or less from the time of investment. The management fee payable by us to our investment adviser will not be
reduced while our assets are invested in such securities. Our ability to achieve our investment objective may be limited to the extent that the net proceeds of
any offering, pending full investment, are held in lower yielding short-term instruments.

 
[Describe use of proceeds and include any other relevant information to the extent required to be disclosed by applicable law or regulation.]
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CAPITALIZATION

 
The following table sets forth our capitalization as of              , 20      :

 
• on an actual basis; and
 
• our pro forma capitalization to reflect the effects of the sale of $         aggregate principal amount of Notes assuming a public offering price of

100% of par, after deducting the underwriting discounts and commissions of $          and estimated offering expenses of approximately
$           payable by us.

 
You should read this table together with “Use of Proceeds” and financial statements and related notes thereto included elsewhere in this prospectus

supplement.
 

  
As of
 , 20  

  Actual   
Proforma

(unaudited)  
  (in thousands)  
Assets:         
Cash and cash equivalents  $    $   
Investments at fair value         
Other assets         
Total assets  $    $   
 

        

Liabilities:         
SBA-guaranteed debentures payable  $    $   
Revolving line of credit  $    $   
Notes  $    $   
[outstanding debt securities as of period reported]  $    $   
Other liabilities  $    $   
 

        

Total liabilities  $    $   
Net assets  $    $   
 

        

Shareholders’ equity:         
Common stock, par value $0.01 per share; 100,000,000 shares authorized,              shares outstanding  $    $   
Capital in excess of par value  $    $   
     

    

Total shareholders’ equity  $    $   
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RATIOS OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

 
The following table contains our ratio of earnings to fixed charges for the periods indicated, computed as set forth below. You should read these ratios of

earnings to fixed charges in connection with our consolidated financial statements, including the notes to those statements, included in the accompanying
prospectus.

 

  

For The
Months Ended ,

20   

For The Year
Ended

December 31,
20   

For The Year
Ended

December 31,
20   

For The Year
Ended

December 31,
20  

Earnings to Fixed Charges(1)         
 
(1) Earnings include net realized and unrealized gains or losses. Net realized and unrealized gains or losses can vary substantially from period to period.

 
For purposes of computing the ratios of earnings to fixed charges, earnings represent net increase in net assets resulting from operations plus (or minus)

income tax expense (benefit) including excise tax expense plus fixed charges. Fixed charges include interest and amortization of debt issuance costs.
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MATERIAL U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

 
The following summary describes the material U.S. federal income tax considerations (and, in the case of a non-U.S. holder (as defined below), the

material U.S. federal estate tax consequences) applicable to an investment in the Notes. This summary does not purport to be a complete description of the
income and estate tax considerations applicable to such an investment. This summary is based upon the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the
“Code”), U.S. Treasury regulations, and administrative and judicial interpretations, each as of the date of this prospectus and all of which are subject to
change, potentially with retroactive effect, or to differing interpretations. You should consult your own tax advisor with respect to tax considerations that
pertain to your acquisition, ownership and disposition of our Notes.

 
This summary discusses only Notes held as capital assets within the meaning of Section 1221 of the Code (generally, property held for investment

purposes) and does not purport to address persons in special tax situations, such as financial institutions, insurance companies, controlled foreign
corporations, passive foreign investment companies and regulated investment companies (and shareholders of such corporations), dealers in securities or
currencies, traders in securities, former citizens of the United States, persons holding the Notes as a hedge against currency risks or as a position in a
“straddle,” “hedge,” “constructive sale transaction” or “conversion transaction” for U.S. federal income tax purposes, entities that are tax-exempt for U.S.
federal income tax purposes, retirement plans, individual retirement accounts, tax-deferred accounts, persons subject to the alternative minimum tax, pass-
through entities (including partnerships and entities and arrangements classified as partnerships for U.S. federal income tax purposes) and beneficial owners
of pass-through entities, or persons whose functional currency (as defined in Section 985 of the Code) is not the U.S. dollar. It also does not address beneficial
owners of the Notes other than original purchasers of the Notes who acquire the Notes in this offering for a price equal to their original issue price (i.e., the
first price at which a substantial amount of the Notes are sold other than to bond houses, brokers, or similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity of
underwriters, placement agents or wholesalers).

 
For purposes of this discussion, the term “U.S. holder” means a beneficial owner of a Note that is, for U.S. federal income tax purposes:
 
• an individual who, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, is citizen or resident of the United States;
 
• a corporation or other entity treated as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, created or organized in or under the laws of the United

States, any state thereof, or the District of Columbia;
 
• a trust (a) subject to the control of one or more United States persons and the primary supervision of a court in the United States, or (b) that existed on

August 20, 1996 and has made a valid election (under applicable U.S. Treasury regulations) to be treated as a domestic trust; or
 
• an estate, the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of its source.
 
The term “non-U.S. holder” means a beneficial owner of a Note that is neither a U.S. holder nor a partnership (including an entity or arrangement treated

as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes). An individual may, subject to exceptions, be deemed to be a resident alien, as opposed to a non-
resident alien, by, among other ways, being present in the United States (i) on at least 31 days in the calendar year, and (ii) for an aggregate of at least 183
days during a three-year period ending in the current calendar year, counting for such purposes all of the days present in the current year, one-third of the days
present in the immediately preceding year, and one-sixth of the days present in the second preceding year. Resident aliens are subject to U.S. federal income
tax as if they were United States citizens.

 
If a partnership (including an entity or arrangement treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes) holds any Notes, the U.S. federal

income tax treatment of a partner of the partnership generally will depend upon the status of the partner, the activities of the partnership and certain
determinations made at the partner level. Partners of partnerships holding Notes should consult their own tax advisors.

 
If you are considering purchasing the Notes, you should consult your own tax advisor concerning the application of the U.S. federal income tax laws to

you in light of your particular situation, as well as any consequences to you of acquiring, owning and disposing of the Notes under the laws of any state, local,
foreign or other taxing jurisdiction.
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Taxation of U.S. Holders
 
Payments of Interest

 
Payments or accruals of interest on a Note generally will be taxable to a U.S. holder as ordinary interest income at the time they are received (actually or

constructively) or accrued, in accordance with the U.S. holder’s regular method of tax accounting.
 
Sale, Exchange, Redemption or Other Taxable Disposition of a Note

 
Upon the sale, exchange, redemption or other taxable disposition of a Note, a U.S. holder generally will recognize capital gain or loss equal to the

difference between the amount realized on the sale, exchange, redemption or other taxable disposition (excluding amounts representing accrued and unpaid
interest, which are treated as ordinary income to the extent not previously included in income) and the U.S. holder’s adjusted tax basis in the Note. A U.S.
holder’s adjusted tax basis in a Note generally will equal the U.S. holder’s initial investment in the Note. Capital gain or loss generally will be long-term
capital gain or loss if the Note was held for more than one year. Long-term capital gains recognized by individuals and certain other non-corporate U.S.
holders generally are eligible for reduced rates of taxation. The distinction between capital gain or loss and ordinary income or loss is also important in other
contexts; for example, for purposes of the limitations on a U.S. holder’s ability to offset capital losses against ordinary income.
 
Unearned Income Medicare Contribution

 
A tax of 3.8% is imposed on certain “net investment income” (or “undistributed net investment income”, in the case of estates and trusts) received by

certain taxpayers with adjusted gross income above certain threshold amounts. “Net investment income” as defined for United States federal Medicare
contribution purposes generally includes interest payments and gain recognized from the sale, exchange, redemption or other taxable disposition of the Notes.
Tax-exempt trusts, which are not subject to income taxes generally, and foreign individuals will not be subject to this tax. U.S. holders should consult their
own tax advisors regarding the effect, if any, of this tax on their ownership and disposition of the Notes.
 
Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

 
In general, a U.S. holder that is not an “exempt recipient” will be subject to U.S. federal backup withholding tax at the applicable rate (currently 28%)

with respect to payments on the Notes and the proceeds of a sale, exchange, redemption or other taxable disposition of the Notes, unless the U.S. holder
provides its taxpayer identification number to the paying agent and certifies, under penalty of perjury, that it is not subject to backup withholding on an IRS
Form W-9 (Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification) or a suitable substitute form (or other applicable certificate) and otherwise
complies with the applicable requirements of the backup withholding rules. Backup withholding is not an additional tax. The amount of any backup
withholding from a payment to a U.S. holder may be allowed as a credit against such U.S. holder’s U.S. federal income tax liability and may entitle such U.S.
holder to a refund, provided the required information is furnished to the IRS in a timely manner. In addition, payments on the Notes made to, and the proceeds
of a sale, exchange, redemption or other taxable disposition by, a U.S. holder generally will be subject to information reporting requirements, unless such U.S.
holder is an exempt recipient and appropriately establishes that exemption.
 
Taxation of Non-U.S. Holders
 
Payments of Interest

 
Subject to the discussion below under “— Information Reporting and Backup Withholding,” a non-U.S. holder generally will not be subject to U.S.

federal income or withholding tax on interest paid on the Notes as long as that interest is not “effectively connected” with the non-U.S. holder’s conduct of a
trade or business within the United States and:

 
• the non-U.S. holder does not, directly or indirectly, actually or constructively own 10% or more of the total combined voting power of all classes of

our stock entitled to vote;
 
• the non-U.S. holder is not a “controlled foreign corporation” for U.S. federal income tax purposes that is related to us, actually or by attribution,

through stock ownership;
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• the non-U.S. holder is not a bank receiving the interest pursuant to a loan agreement entered into in the ordinary course of the non-U.S. holder’s trade

or business; and
 
• either (i) the non-U.S. holder certifies under penalties of perjury on IRS Form W-8BEN (Certificate of Foreign Status of Beneficial Owner for United

States Tax Withholding and Reporting (Individuals)), IRS Form W-8BEN-E (Certificate of Status of Beneficial Owner for United States Tax
Withholding and Reporting (Entities)) or a suitable substitute form (or other applicable certificate) that it is not a U.S. person, and provides its name,
address and certain other required information or (ii) a securities clearing organization, bank or other financial institution that holds customers’
securities in the ordinary course of its trade or business and holds the Notes on behalf of the non-U.S. holder, certifies under penalties of perjury that
the certification referred to in clause (i) has been received from the non-U.S. holder or an intermediate financial institution and furnishes to us a copy
thereof.

 
A non-U.S. holder that does not qualify for exemption from withholding as described above will generally be subject to withholding of U.S. federal

income tax at a rate of 30% on payments of interest on the Notes (except as described below with respect to effectively connected income). A non-U.S. holder
may be entitled to the benefits of an income tax treaty under which interest on the Notes is subject to a reduced rate of withholding tax or is exempt from U.S.
withholding tax, provided the non-U.S. holder furnishes us with a properly executed IRS Form W-8BEN, IRS Form W-8BEN-E, or a suitable substitute form
(or other applicable certificate) claiming the reduction or exemption and the non-U.S. holder complies with any other applicable procedures.
 
Sale, Exchange, Redemption or Other Taxable Disposition of a Note

 
Generally, a non-U.S. holder will not be subject to U.S. federal income or withholding taxes on any amount that constitutes capital gain upon the sale,

exchange, redemption, or other taxable disposition of a Note, provided that:
 
• the gain is not effectively connected with the conduct of a trade or business in the United States by the non-U.S. holder (or, if required by an

applicable income tax treaty, is not attributable to a United States “permanent establishment” maintained by the non-U.S. holder); and
 
 
• the non-U.S. holder is not an individual who is present in the U.S. for 183 days or more in the taxable year of the sale, exchange, or other taxable

disposition and meets certain other conditions (unless such holder is eligible for relief under an applicable income tax treaty).
 
Certain other exceptions may be applicable, and a non-U.S. holder should consult its tax advisor in this regard.

 
Effectively Connected Income

 
In the case of a non-U.S. holder that is a corporation and that receives income that is effectively connected with the conduct of a United States trade or

business, such income may also be subject to a branch profits tax (which is generally imposed on a non-U.S. corporation on the actual or deemed repatriation
from the United States of earnings and profits attributable to a United States trade or business) at a 30% rate. The branch profits tax may not apply (or may
apply at a reduced rate) if the non-U.S. holder is a qualified resident of a country with which the United States has an income tax treaty.

 
To claim the benefit of an income tax treaty or to claim exemption from withholding because income is effectively connected with a United States trade or

business, the non-U.S. holder must timely provide the appropriate, properly executed IRS forms. The non-U.S. holder must inform the recipient of any
changes on these forms within 30 days of such change. These forms may be required to be periodically updated. Also, a non-U.S. holder who is claiming the
benefits of a treaty may be required to obtain a United States taxpayer identification number and to provide certain documentary evidence issued by foreign
governmental authorities to prove residence in the foreign country.
 
Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

 
Under current U.S. Treasury regulations, we must report annually to the IRS and to each non-U.S. holder the amount of interest paid to the non-U.S.

holder and the amount of tax withheld, if any, from those payments. These reporting requirements apply regardless of whether U.S. withholding tax on such
payments was reduced or eliminated by any applicable tax treaty or otherwise. Copies of the information returns reporting those payments and the amounts
withheld may also be made available to the tax authorities in the country where a non-U.S. holder is a resident under the provisions of an applicable income
tax treaty or agreement.
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Under some circumstances, U.S. Treasury regulations require backup withholding and additional information reporting on payments of interest and other

“reportable payments.” Such backup withholding and additional information reporting will not apply to payments on the Notes made by us or our paying
agent to a non-U.S. holder if the certification described above under “— Payments of Interest” is received from the non-U.S. holder.

 
Backup withholding and information reporting will generally not apply to payments of proceeds from the sale, exchange, redemption or other taxable

disposition of a Note made to a non-U.S. holder by or through the foreign office of a broker. However, information reporting requirements, and possibly
backup withholding, will apply if such broker is, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, a “United States person” (as defined in the Code) or has certain other
enumerated connections with the United States, unless such broker has documentary evidence in its records that the non-U.S. holder is not a “U.S. person” (as
defined in the Code) and certain other conditions are met, or the non-U.S. holder otherwise establishes an exemption. Payments of proceeds from the sale,
exchange, redemption or other taxable disposition of a Note made to a non-U.S. holder by or through the U.S. office of a broker are subject to information
reporting and backup withholding at the applicable rate unless the non-U.S. holder certifies, under penalties of perjury, that it is not a “United States person”
(as defined in the Code) and it satisfies certain other conditions, or the non-U.S. holder otherwise establishes an exemption. Backup withholding is not an
additional tax. The amount of any backup withholding from a payment to a non-U.S. holder may be allowed as a credit against such non-U.S. holder’s U.S.
federal income tax liability and may entitle such non-U.S. holder to a refund, provided the required information is furnished to the IRS in a timely manner.

 
Non-U.S. holders are urged to consult their tax advisors regarding the application of information reporting and backup withholding in their particular

situations, the availability of an exemption therefrom, and the procedures for obtaining such an exemption, if available.
 
Estate Tax

 
A Note that is held by an individual who, at the time of death, is not a citizen or resident of the United States (as specially defined for U.S. federal estate

tax purposes) generally will not be subject to the U.S. federal estate tax, unless, at the time of death, (i) such individual directly or indirectly, actually or
constructively, owns ten percent or more of the total combined voting power of all classes of our stock entitled to vote within the meaning of Section 871(h)
(3) of the Code and the U.S. Treasury regulations thereunder or (ii) such individual’s interest in the Notes is effectively connected with the individual’s
conduct of a U.S. trade or business.
 
Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act

 
Sections 1471 through 1474 of the Code (“FATCA”) generally impose a U.S. federal withholding tax of 30% on payments of interest or gross proceeds

from the disposition of a debt instrument to certain non-U.S. entities, including certain foreign financial institutions and investment funds, unless such non-
U.S. entity complies with certain reporting requirements regarding its U.S. account holders and its U.S. owners. Pursuant to U.S. Treasury regulations and
other Treasury guidance, these rules generally are not effective for payments of interest until July 1, 2014, and, in the case of payments of gross proceeds,
until January 1, 2017, and, even after such effective dates, the new withholding obligations will not apply to payments on, or with respect to, obligations that
are outstanding on July 1, 2014 unless such obligations are significantly modified (and thus are treated as being reissued for U.S. federal income tax purposes)
after such date.

 
Holders should consult their own tax advisors regarding FATCA and whether it may be relevant to their acquisition, ownership and disposition of the

Notes.
 
You should consult your own tax advisor with respect to the particular tax consequences to you of an investment in the Notes, including the possible effect of
any pending legislation or proposed regulations.
 
Election to be Taxed as a RIC

 
As a BDC, we intend to elect to be treated effective as of our taxable year ended August 31, 2014, and qualify annually thereafter, as a RIC under

Subchapter M of the Code. As a RIC, we generally will not have to pay corporate-level U.S. federal income taxes on any income that we distribute to our
shareholders as dividends. To qualify as a RIC, we must, among other things, meet certain source-of-income and asset diversification requirements (as
described below). In addition, to qualify for RIC tax treatment we must distribute to our shareholders, for each taxable year, at least 90% of our “investment
company taxable income,” which generally is our ordinary income plus the excess of our realized net short-term capital gains over our realized net long-term
capital losses (the “Annual Distribution Requirement”).
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Taxation as a Regulated Investment Company

 
For any taxable year in which we:
 
• qualify as a RIC; and
 
• satisfy the Annual Distribution Requirement,
 
we generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax on the portion of our income we distribute (or are deemed to distribute) to shareholders. We

will be subject to U.S. federal income tax at the regular corporate rates on any income or capital gains not distributed (or deemed distributed) to our
shareholders.

 
We will be subject to a 4% nondeductible U.S. federal excise tax on certain undistributed income unless we distribute in a timely manner an amount at

least equal to the sum of (1) 98% of our net ordinary income for each calendar year, (2) 98.2% of our capital gain net income for the one-year period ending
October 31 in that calendar year and (3) any income recognized, but not distributed, in preceding years and on which we paid no corporate-level U.S. federal
income tax (the “Excise Tax Avoidance Requirement”). We generally will endeavor in each taxable year to make sufficient distributions to our shareholders to
avoid any U.S. federal excise tax on our earnings.

 
In order to qualify as a RIC for U.S. federal income tax purposes, we must, among other things:
 
• continue to qualify as a BDC under the 1940 Act at all times during each taxable year;
 
• derive in each taxable year at least 90% of our gross income from dividends, interest, payments with respect to loans of certain securities, gains from

the sale of stock or other securities, net income from certain “qualified publicly traded partnerships,” or other income derived with respect to our
business of investing in such stock or securities (the “90% Income Test”); and

 
• diversify our holdings so that at the end of each quarter of the taxable year:
 

• at least 50% of the value of our assets consists of cash, cash equivalents, U.S. Government securities, securities of other RICs, and other securities
if such other securities of any one issuer do not represent more than 5% of the value of our assets or more than 10% of the outstanding voting
securities of the issuer; and

 
• no more than 25% of the value of our assets is invested in the securities, other than U.S. government securities or securities of other RICs, of one

issuer, of two or more issuers that are controlled, as determined under applicable Code rules, by us and that are engaged in the same or similar or
related trades or businesses or of certain “qualified publicly traded partnerships” (the “Diversification Tests”).

 
Qualified earnings may exclude such income as management fees received in connection with our SBIC subsidiaries or other potential outside managed

funds and certain other fees.
 
In accordance with certain applicable Treasury regulations and private letter rulings issued by the IRS, a RIC may treat a distribution of its own stock as

fulfilling its RIC distribution requirements if each shareholder may elect to receive his or her entire distribution in either cash or stock of the RIC, subject to a
limitation that the aggregate amount of cash to be distributed to all shareholders must be at least 20% of the aggregate declared distribution. If too many
shareholders elect to receive cash, each shareholder electing to receive cash must receive a pro rata amount of cash (with the balance of the distribution paid
in stock). In no event will any shareholder, electing to receive cash, receive less than 20% of his or her entire distribution in cash. If these and certain other
requirements are met, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, the amount of the dividend paid in stock will be equal to the amount of cash that could have been
received instead of stock. We have no current intention of paying dividends in shares of our stock in accordance with these Treasury regulations or private
letter rulings.
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We may be required to recognize taxable income in circumstances in which we do not receive cash. For example, if we hold debt obligations that are

treated under applicable tax rules as having original issue discount (such as debt instruments with PIK interest or, in certain cases, increasing interest rates or
issued with warrants), we must include in income each year a portion of the original issue discount that accrues over the life of the obligation, regardless of
whether cash representing such income is received by us in the same taxable year. We may also have to include in income other amounts that we have not yet
received in cash, such as PIK interest, deferred loan origination fees that are paid after origination of the loan or are paid in non-cash compensation such as
warrants or stock, or certain income with respect to equity investments in foreign corporations. Because any original issue discount or other amounts accrued
will be included in our investment company taxable income for the year of accrual, we may be required to make a distribution to our shareholders in order to
satisfy the Annual Distribution Requirement, even though we will not have received any corresponding cash amount.

 
Gain or loss realized by us from the sale or exchange of warrants acquired by us as well as any loss attributable to the lapse of such warrants generally

will be treated as capital gain or loss. Such gain or loss generally will be long-term or short-term, depending on how long we held a particular warrant.
 
Although we do not presently expect to do so, we are authorized to borrow funds and to sell assets in order to satisfy distribution requirements. However,

under the 1940 Act, we are not permitted to make distributions to our shareholders while our debt obligations and other senior securities are outstanding
unless certain “asset coverage” tests are met. Moreover, our ability to dispose of assets to meet our distribution requirements may be limited by (1) the illiquid
nature of our portfolio and/or (2) other requirements relating to our status as a RIC, including the Diversification Tests. If we dispose of assets in order to
meet the Annual Distribution Requirement or the Excise Tax Avoidance Requirement, we may make such dispositions at times that, from an investment
standpoint, are not advantageous. If we are prohibited from making distributions or are unable to obtain cash from other sources to make the distributions, we
may fail to qualify as a RIC, which would result in us becoming subject to corporate-level U.S. federal income tax.

 
In addition, we will be partially dependent on our SBIC subsidiaries for cash distributions to enable us to meet the RIC distribution requirements. Our

SBIC subsidiaries may be limited by the Small Business Investment Act of 1958, and SBA regulations governing SBICs, from making certain distributions to
us that may be necessary to maintain our status as a RIC. We may have to request a waiver of the SBA’s restrictions for our SBIC subsidiaries to make certain
distributions to maintain our RIC status. We cannot assure you that the SBA will grant such waiver. If our SBIC subsidiaries are unable to obtain a waiver,
compliance with the SBA regulations may cause us to fail to qualify as a RIC, which would result in us becoming subject to corporate-level U.S. federal
income tax.

 
The remainder of this discussion assumes that we qualify as a RIC and have satisfied the Annual Distribution Requirement.
 
Any transactions in options, futures contracts, constructive sales, hedging, straddle, conversion or similar transactions, and forward contracts will be

subject to special tax rules, the effect of which may be to accelerate income to us, defer losses, cause adjustments to the holding periods of our investments,
convert long-term capital gains into short-term capital gains, convert short-term capital losses into long-term capital losses or have other tax consequences.
These rules could affect the amount, timing and character of distributions to shareholders. We do not currently intend to engage in these types of transactions.

 
A RIC is limited in its ability to deduct expenses in excess of its “investment company taxable income” (which is, generally, ordinary income plus net

realized short-term capital gains in excess of net realized long-term capital losses). If our expenses in a given year exceed gross taxable income (e.g., as the
result of large amounts of equity-based compensation), we would experience a net operating loss for that year. However, a RIC is not permitted to carry
forward net operating losses to subsequent years. In addition, expenses can be used only to offset investment company taxable income, not net capital gain.
Due to these limits on the deductibility of expenses, we may for tax purposes have aggregate taxable income for several years that we are required to
distribute and that is taxable to our shareholders even if such income is greater than the aggregate net income we actually earned during those years. Such
required distributions may be made from our cash assets or by liquidation of investments, if necessary. We may realize gains or losses from such liquidations.
In the event we realize net capital gains from such transactions, you may receive a larger capital gain distribution than you would have received in the absence
of such transactions.

 
Investment income received from sources within foreign countries, or capital gains earned by investing in securities of foreign issuers, may be subject to

foreign income taxes withheld at the source. In this regard, withholding tax rates in countries with which the United States does not have a tax treaty are often
as high as 35% or more. The United States has entered into tax treaties with many foreign countries that may entitle us to a reduced rate of tax or exemption
from tax on this related income and gains. The effective rate of foreign tax cannot be determined at this time since the amount of our assets to be invested
within various countries is not now known. We do not anticipate being eligible for the special election that allows a RIC to treat foreign income taxes paid by
such RIC as paid by its shareholders.
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If we acquire stock in certain foreign corporations that receive at least 75% of their annual gross income from passive sources (such as interest, dividends,

rents, royalties or capital gain) or hold at least 50% of their total assets in investments producing such passive income (“passive foreign investment
companies”), we could be subject to U.S. federal income tax and additional interest charges on “excess distributions” received from such companies or gain
from the sale of stock in such companies, even if all income or gain actually received by us is timely distributed to our shareholders. We would not be able to
pass through to our shareholders any credit or deduction for such a tax. Certain elections may, if available, ameliorate these adverse tax consequences, but any
such election requires us to recognize taxable income or gain without the concurrent receipt of cash. We intend to limit and/or manage our holdings in passive
foreign investment companies to minimize our tax liability.

 
Foreign exchange gains and losses realized by us in connection with certain transactions involving non-dollar debt securities, certain foreign currency

futures contracts, foreign currency option contracts, foreign currency forward contracts, foreign currencies, or payables or receivables denominated in a
foreign currency are subject to Code provisions that generally treat such gains and losses as ordinary income and losses and may affect the amount, timing
and character of distributions to our shareholders. Any such transactions that are not directly related to our investment in securities (possibly including
speculative currency positions or currency derivatives not used for hedging purposes) could, under future Treasury regulations, produce income not among
the types of “qualifying income” from which a RIC must derive at least 90% of its annual gross income.
 
Acquisition of Portfolio Assets of the Legacy Funds

 
We believe that our acquisition of the Legacy Funds’ portfolio assets in exchange for shares of our common stock generally was tax free to us and the

Legacy Funds. As a result, our initial adjusted basis in the Legacy Funds’ portfolio assets was equal to the Legacy Funds’ adjusted basis in such assets
immediately prior to our acquisition of such assets increased by any gain recognized by the Legacy Funds as a result of such transaction. Such adjusted basis
will be used in determining the amount of our taxable gain or loss upon a sale or other disposition of such assets. To the extent that such assets had built-in
gain (i.e., assets whose fair market value exceeds our tax basis at the time we acquired them) on the date of acquisition, when such gain is recognized by us
upon a sale or other disposition such assets, we will be required to distribute such gain to our shareholders in order to eliminate our liability for corporate-
level U.S. federal income tax on such gain and possibly to maintain our qualification as a RIC under the Code. Investors will be subject to tax on the
distribution even though such gain accrued prior to our acquisition of such assets and even though the distribution effectively represents a return of their
investment.

 
In addition, to the extent that any beneficial owner of interests in the Legacy Funds on the date of our acquisition of the Legacy Funds’ portfolio assets

was a C corporation (a “corporate partner”), we will be required to pay a corporate-level tax on the net amount of any such built-in gains attributable to the
corporate partners that we recognize during the ten-year period (or shorter applicable period) beginning on the date of acquisition. Alternatively, we may
make a special election to cause the gain to be recognized at the time of the acquisition. In that event, the Legacy Funds would be required to recognize such
built-in gain as if a proportionate share of such Funds’ assets were sold at the time of the acquisition. We do not anticipate making this election at this time.
Any corporate-level built-in gain tax is payable at the time the built-in gains are recognized (which generally will be the years in which the built-in gain assets
are sold in a taxable transaction). The amount of this tax will vary depending on the assets that are actually sold by us in this 10-year period (or shorter
applicable period), the actual amount of net built-in gain or loss present in those assets as of the acquisition date and effective tax rates. The payment of any
such corporate-level tax on built-in gains will be a company expense that will be borne by all shareholders (not just any former corporate partners) and will
reduce the amount available for distribution to shareholders.
 
Failure to Qualify as a Regulated Investment Company

 
If we fail to satisfy the 90% Income Test or the Diversification Tests for any taxable year, we may nevertheless continue to qualify as a RIC for such year

if certain relief provisions are applicable (which may, among other things, require us to pay certain corporate-level U.S. federal income taxes or to dispose of
certain assets).
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If we were unable to qualify for treatment as a RIC and the foregoing relief provisions are not applicable, we would be subject to tax on all of our taxable

income at regular corporate rates, regardless of whether we make any distributions to our shareholders. Distributions would not be required, and any
distributions would be taxable to our shareholders as ordinary dividend income to the extent of our current and accumulated earnings and profits and, subject
to certain limitations, may be eligible for the 20% maximum rate for noncorporate taxpayers provided certain holding period and other requirements were
met. Subject to certain limitations under the Code, corporate distributees would be eligible for the dividends-received deduction. Distributions in excess of
our current and accumulated earnings and profits would be treated first as a return of capital to the extent of the shareholder’s tax basis, and any remaining
distributions would be treated as a capital gain. To requalify as a RIC in a subsequent taxable year, we would be required to satisfy the RIC qualification
requirements for that year and dispose of any earnings and profits from any year in which we failed to qualify as a RIC. Subject to a limited exception
applicable to RICs that qualified as such under the Code for at least one year prior to disqualification and that requalify as a RIC no later than the second year
following the nonqualifying year, we could be subject to tax on any unrealized net built-in gains in the assets held by us during the period in which we failed
to qualify as a RIC that are recognized within the subsequent 10 years (five years for taxable years beginning prior to December 31, 2013), unless we made a
special election to pay corporate-level tax on such built-in gain at the time of our requalification as a RIC.

 

S-29



 

  
UNDERWRITING

 
[ ], [ ] and [ ], are acting as representatives of each of the underwriters named below. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in an underwriting

agreement, dated the date hereof, among us, our investment adviser, our administrator and the underwriters, we have agreed to sell to the underwriters, and
each of the underwriters has agreed, severally and not jointly, to purchase from us, the aggregate principal amount of Notes set forth opposite its name below.

 
Underwriter  Principal Amount

  
     
     
     

Total  $  
 
Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the underwriting agreement, the underwriters have agreed, severally and not jointly, to purchase all of the

Notes sold under the underwriting agreement if any of these Notes are purchased. If an underwriter defaults, the underwriting agreement provides that the
purchase commitments of the nondefaulting underwriters may be increased or the underwriting agreement may be terminated.

 
We, our investment adviser and our administrator have agreed to indemnify the underwriters against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the

Securities Act, or to contribute to payments the underwriters may be required to make in respect of those liabilities.
 
The underwriters are offering the Notes, subject to prior sale, when, as and if issued to and accepted by them, subject to approval of legal matters by their

counsel, including the validity of the shares, and other conditions contained in the underwriting agreement, such as the receipt by the underwriters of officer’s
certificates and legal opinions. The underwriters reserve the right to withdraw, cancel or modify offers to the public and to reject orders in whole or in part.
 
Commissions and Discounts

 
[Describe any other specific transactions and compensation related thereto to the extent required to be disclosed by applicable law or regulation.]
 
[Describe if underwriters receiving proceeds of offering, if required by FINRA.]
 

The expenses of the offering, not including the underwriting discount, are estimated at $     and are payable by us.
 
No Sales of Similar Securities

 
We, our investment adviser and our administrator have agreed not to directly or indirectly, offer, pledge, sell, contract to sell, grant any option for the sale

of, or otherwise transfer or dispose of any debt securities issued or guaranteed by the Company or any securities convertible into or exercisable or
exchangeable for debt securities issued or guaranteed by the Company or file any registration statement under the Securities Act with respect to any of the
foregoing for a period of 30 days after the date of this prospectus without first obtaining the written consent of the representatives. This consent may be given
at any time.
 
Listing

 
The Notes are a new issue of securities with no established trading market. The Notes have been approved for listing on the                          under the

symbol “     .” We expect trading in the Notes on the       to begin within 30 days after the original issue date. Currently there is no public market for the Notes.
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We have been advised by the underwriters that they presently intend to make a market in the Notes after completion of the offering as permitted by

applicable laws and regulations. The underwriters are not obligated, however, to make a market in the Notes and any such market-making may be
discontinued at any time in the sole discretion of the underwriters without any notice. Accordingly, no assurance can be given as to the liquidity of, or
development of a public trading market for, the Notes. If an active public trading market for the Notes does not develop, the market price and liquidity of the
Notes may be adversely affected.
 
Settlement

 
We expect that delivery of the Notes will be made to investors on or about     , 20    , which will be the third business day following the date of this

prospectus (such settlement being referred to as “T+3”).
 
Price Stabilization, Short Positions

 
In connection with the offering, the underwriters may purchase and sell Notes in the open market. These transactions may include covering transactions

and stabilizing transactions. Covering transactions involve purchases of the securities in the open market after the distribution has been completed in order to
cover short positions. Stabilizing transactions consist of certain bids or purchases of securities made for the purpose of preventing or retarding a decline in the
market price of the securities while the offering is in progress.

 
The underwriters may also impose a penalty bid. This occurs when a particular underwriter repays to the underwriters a portion of the underwriting

discount received by it because the representatives have repurchased Notes sold by or for the account of such underwriter in stabilizing or short covering
transactions.

 
Any of these activities may cause the price of the Notes to be higher than the price that otherwise would exist in the open market in the absence of such

transactions. These transactions may be effected in the over-the-counter market or otherwise and, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time without any
notice relating thereto.
 
Electronic Offer, Sale and Distribution of Notes

 
The underwriters may make prospectuses available in electronic (PDF) format. A prospectus in electronic (PDF) format may be made available on a web

site maintained by the underwriters, and the underwriters may distribute such prospectuses electronically. The underwriters may allocate a limited principal
amount of the Notes for sale to their online brokerage customers. Any such allocation for online distributions will be made by the underwriters on the same
basis as other allocations. Other than the prospectus in electronic format, information on the underwriters’ web sites and any information contained in any
other web site maintained by any of the underwriters or selling group members is not part of this prospectus or the registration statement of which this
prospectus forms a part, has not been approved and/or endorsed by us or the underwriters and should not be relied on by investors.
 
Other Relationships

 
The underwriters or their affiliates may also trade in our securities, securities of our portfolio companies or other financial instruments related thereto for

their own accounts or for the account of others and may extend loans or financing directly or through derivative transactions to us, our investment adviser or
any of our portfolio companies.

 
We may purchase securities of third parties from the underwriters or their affiliates after the offering. However, we have not entered into any agreement or

arrangement regarding the acquisition of any such securities, and we may not purchase any such securities. We would only purchase any such securities
if — among other things — we identified securities that satisfied our investment needs and completed our due diligence review of such securities.

 
After the date of this prospectus, the underwriters and their affiliates may from time to time obtain information regarding specific portfolio companies or

us that may not be available to the general public. Any such information is obtained by the underwriters and their affiliates in the ordinary course of their
businesses and not in connection with the offering of the Notes. In addition, after the offering period for the sale of the Notes, the underwriters or their
affiliates may develop analyses or opinions related to us or our portfolio companies and buy or sell interests in one or more of our portfolio companies on
behalf of their proprietary or client accounts and may engage in competitive activities. There is no obligation on behalf of these parties to disclose their
respective analyses, opinions or purchase and sale activities regarding any portfolio company or regarding us to our noteholders or any other persons.
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In the ordinary course of their business activities, the underwriters and their respective affiliates may make or hold a broad array of investments and

actively trade debt and equity securities (or related derivative securities) and financial instruments (including bank loans) for their own account and for the
accounts of their customers. Such investments and securities activities may involve securities and/or instruments of ours or our affiliates. Certain of the
underwriters and their affiliates that may in the future have a lending relationship with us may routinely hedge their credit exposure to us consistent with their
customary risk management policies. Typically, such underwriters and their affiliates would hedge such exposure by entering into transactions which consist
of either the purchase of credit default swaps or the creation of short positions in our securities, including potentially the Notes. Any such short positions
could adversely affect future trading prices of the Notes. The underwriters and their respective affiliates may also make investment recommendations and/or
publish or express independent research views in respect of such securities or financial instruments and may hold, or recommend to clients that they acquire,
long and/or short positions in such securities and instruments. Certain of the underwriters and their affiliates were underwriters in connection with our initial
public offering, for which they received customary fees.

 
[Insert principal business addresses of underwriters.]
 

Other Jurisdictions
 

[Insert applicable legends for jurisdictions in which offers and sales may be made.]
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LEGAL MATTERS

 
Certain legal matters in connection with the securities offered hereby will be passed upon for us by Sutherland Asbill & Brennan LLP, Washington,

District of Columbia. Certain legal matters in connection with the securities offered hereby will be passed upon for the underwriters by             ,            
,             ..

 
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

 
[Include information regarding OFS Capital Corporation’s independent registered public accounting firm to the extent required to be disclosed by applicable
law or regulation.]

 
AVAILABLE INFORMATION

 
We have filed with the SEC a registration statement on Form N-2, together with all amendments and related exhibits, under the Securities Act, with

respect to our securities offered by this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. The registration statement contains additional information
about us and our securities being offered by this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus.

 
We will file with or submit to the SEC periodic and current reports, proxy statements and other information meeting the informational requirements of the

Exchange Act. You may inspect and copy these reports, proxy statements and other information, as well as the registration statement and related exhibits and
schedules, at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549-0102. You may obtain information on the operation of the
Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at (800) SEC-0330. We maintain a website at http://www.ofscapitalcorp.com and make all of our periodic and
current reports, proxy statements and other publicly filed information available, free of charge, on or through our website. Information contained on our
website is not incorporated into this prospectus supplement, and you should not consider information on our website to be part of this prospectus supplement.
You may also obtain such information by contacting us in writing at 10 S. Wacker Drive, Suite 2500, Chicago, IL, 60606, Attention: Investor Relations. The
SEC maintains a website that contains reports, proxy and information statements and other information we file with the SEC at www.sec.gov. Copies of these
reports, proxy and information statements and other information may also be obtained, after paying a duplicating fee, by electronic request at the following e-
mail address: publicinfo@sec.gov, or by writing the SEC’s Public Reference Section, 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549-0102.
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PRELIMINARY PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

 
 

 
[Underwriters]

 
 

(1) Notes will be denominated as “senior notes” if we have subordinated debt outstanding at issuance.
 

 



 
Exhibit (s)(4)

 
This preliminary prospectus supplement relates to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, but the
information in this preliminary prospectus supplement is not complete and may be changed. This preliminary prospectus supplement and the
accompanying prospectus are not an offer to sell and are not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer and sale is
not permitted.

 
[FORM OF PRELIMINARY PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT TO BE USED IN

CONJUNCTION WITH FUTURE RIGHTS OFFERINGS](1)

 
PRELIMINARY PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

(to Prospectus dated                 , 20    )
 

Up to                    Shares
 

OFS Capital Corporation
 

Common Stock
 

Issuable Upon
 

Exercise of Rights
 

We are an externally managed, non-diversified, closed-end management investment company that has elected to be treated as a business development
company under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, or the 1940 Act. Our investment objective is to provide our shareholders with both current
income and capital appreciation primarily through debt investments and, to a lesser extent, equity investments.  

 
We are issuing [transferable/non-transferable] rights to our shareholders of record, or record date shareholders, as of    p.m., New York City time, on     ,

20 , or the record date. The rights entitle holders of rights, or rights holders, to subscribe for an aggregate of up to   shares of our common stock. Record date
shareholders will receive   right(s) for each share of common stock owned on the record date. The rights entitle the holder to purchase   new share(s) of
common stock for every rights held, which we refer to as the basic subscription right[, and record date shareholders who fully exercise their rights will be
entitled to subscribe, subject to certain limitations and pro-rata allocation, for additional shares that remain unsubscribed as a result of any unexercised rights.]
[In addition, any non-record date shareholder who exercises rights will be entitled to subscribe, subject to certain limitations and pro-rata allocation, for any
remaining shares that are not otherwise subscribed for by record date shareholders.]

 
The subscription price per share will be [describe means of computing subscription price]. Because the subscription price will be determined

on the expiration date, shareholders who elect to exercise their rights will not know the subscription price per share at the time they exercise such
rights. The rights will expire if they are not exercised by    p.m., New York City time, on     , 20 , the expiration date of this offering, unless extended.
We, in our sole discretion, may extend the period for exercising the rights. You will have no right to rescind your subscription after receipt of your
payment of the estimated subscription price or a notice of guaranteed delivery except as described in this prospectus supplement or accompanying
prospectus.

 
This offering will dilute the ownership interest and voting power of our common stock owned by shareholders who do not fully exercise their

subscription rights. Shareholders who do not fully exercise their subscription rights should expect, upon completion of the offering, to own a smaller
proportional interest in us than before the offering. Further, if the net proceeds per share from the offering are at a discount to our net asset value per share,
this offering will reduce our net asset value per share.

 
 
 

(1) In addition to the sections outlined in this form of prospectus supplement, each prospectus supplement actually used in connection with an offering
conducted pursuant to the registration statement to which this form of prospectus supplement is attached will be updated to include such other information as
may then be required to be disclosed therein pursuant to applicable law or regulation as in effect as of the date of each such prospectus supplement, including,
without limitation, information particular to the terms of each security offered thereby and any related risk factors or tax considerations pertaining thereto.
This form of prospectus supplement is intended only to provide a rough approximation of the nature and type of disclosure that may appear in any actual
prospectus supplement used for the purposes of offering securities pursuant to the registration statement to which this form of prospectus supplement is
attached, and is not intended to and does not contain all of the information that would appear in any such actual prospectus supplement, and should not be
used or relied upon in connection with any offer or sale of securities.

 

 



 

 
Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol “OFS.” On , the last reported sales price on the NASDAQ Global

Select Market for our common stock was $ per share. We are required to determine the net asset value per share of our common stock on a quarterly basis.
Our net asset value per share of our common stock as of was $ .

 
We qualify as an emerging growth company, as that term is used in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (the “JOBS Act”). An emerging

growth company may take advantage of specified reduced reporting and other burdens that are otherwise applicable generally to public companies. However,
we are choosing to “opt out” of such extended transition period, and as a result, we will comply with new or revised accounting standards on the relevant
dates on which adoption of such standards is required for non-emerging growth companies. Our decision to opt out of the extended transition period for
complying with new or revised accounting standards is irrevocable.

 
Substantially all of the debt securities in which we invest are below investment grade debt securities and are often referred to as “high yield” or “junk”

securities. Exposure to below investment grade securities involves certain risk, and those securities are viewed as having predominately speculative
characteristics with respect to the issuer’s capacity to pay interest and repay principal. A material amount of our debt investments contain floating interest rate
provisions that may make it more difficult for the borrowers to make debt repayments. Further, our debt investments generally will not pay down principal
during their term, which could result in a substantial loss to us if the portfolio company is unable to refinance or repay the debt at maturity.

 
Investing in our securities involves a high degree of risk, including credit risk and the risk of the use of leverage. Before buying any of our

securities, you should read the discussion of the material risks of investing in our securities in “Supplementary Risk Factors” in this prospectus
supplement and “Risk Factors” in the accompanying prospectus.

 
Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities, or

determined if this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal
offense.

 
Please read this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus before investing and keep it for future reference. It contains important

information about us that a prospective investor ought to know before investing in our securities. We file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy
statements and other information about us with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The information is available free of charge by contacting Investor
Relations of OFS Capital Corporation, 10 S. Wacker Drive, Suite 2500, Chicago, IL 60606, or by calling us at (847) 734-2000 or on our website at
www.ofscapital.com. The Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC, maintains a website at www.sec.gov where such information is available without
charge. Information contained on our website is not incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement, and you should not consider information
contained on our website to be part of this prospectus supplement.

 
  Per Share   Total(4)  
Estimated subscription price(1)  $     $  
Sales Load (Underwriting Discounts and Commissions)(2)(3)  $   $  
Proceeds to us (before expenses)(1)(3)  $   $    
 
 
 

(1) Estimated on the basis of [describe means of computing subscription price]. See “The Offer—Subscription Price.”.
(2) [In connection with this offering, , the dealer manager for this offering, will receive a fee for its financial advisory, marketing and soliciting services equal
to % of the subscription price per share for each share issued pursuant to the exercise of rights[, including pursuant to the over-subscription privilege.]
(3) We estimate that we will incur offering expenses of approximately $ in connection with this offering. We estimate that net proceeds to us after expenses
will be $ assuming all of the rights are exercised at the estimated subscription price.
(4) Assumes all rights are exercised at the estimated subscription price.
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ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

 
You should rely only on the information contained in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. Neither we nor the

underwriters have authorized any other person to provide you with different information from that contained in this prospectus supplement or the
accompanying prospectus. If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent information, you should not rely on it. This prospectus supplement
and the accompanying prospectus do not constitute an offer to sell, or a solicitation of an offer to buy, any shares of our common stock by any person
in any jurisdiction where it is unlawful for that person to make such an offer or solicitation or to any person in any jurisdiction to whom it is
unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation. The information contained in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus is
complete and accurate only as of their respective dates, regardless of the time of their delivery or sale of our common stock. This prospectus
supplement supersedes the accompanying prospectus to the extent it contains information different from or additional to the information in that
prospectus.

 
This document is in two parts. The first part is this prospectus supplement, which describes the terms of this offering of [transferable/non-transferable]

rights to our shareholders of record and also adds to and updates information contained in the accompanying prospectus. The second part is the accompanying
prospectus, which gives more general information and disclosure. To the extent the information contained in this prospectus supplement differs from the
information contained in the accompanying prospectus, the information in this prospectus supplement shall control. Please carefully read this prospectus
supplement and the accompanying prospectus together with any exhibits and the additional information described under “Available Information” before you
make an investment decision..

 

 



 

 
PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT SUMMARY

 
This summary highlights some of the information in this prospectus supplement. It is not complete and may not contain all of the information that you

may want to consider before investing in our securities. Throughout this prospectus supplement, we refer to OFS Capital Corporation and its consolidated
subsidiaries as the “Company,” “we,” “us” or “our;” OFS Capital Management, LLC as “OFS Advisor” or the “Advisor;” and OFS Capital Services,
LLC as “OFS Services” or the “Administrator.”

 
OFS Capital Corporation
 

We are an externally managed, closed-end, non-diversified management investment company formed in March 2001. Our investment objective is to
provide our shareholders with both current income and capital appreciation primarily through debt investments and, to a lesser extent, equity investments.
Our investment strategy focuses primarily on investments in middle-market companies in the United States. We use the term “middle-market” to refer to
companies which may exhibit one or more of the following characteristics: number of employees between 150 and 2,000; revenues between $15 million
and $300 million; annual earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, or EBITDA, between $3 million and $50 million; generally,
private companies owned by private equity firms or owners/operators; and enterprise value between $10 million and $500 million. For additional
information about how we define the middle-market, see “The Company — Investment Criteria/Guidelines” in the accompanying prospectus.

 
In connection with our initial public offering, or IPO, on November 7, 2012, we converted from a limited liability company to a corporation, as a result

of which the sole membership interest held by Orchard First Source Asset Management, LLC, or OFSAM, prior to the conversion was exchanged for
2,912,024 shares of our common stock. In connection with our IPO, we elected to be treated as a business development company, or BDC, under the 1940
Act. On November 14, 2012, we completed our IPO, selling 6,666,667 shares of our common stock at a public offering price of $15 per share and raising
$100 million in gross proceeds. We incurred approximately $6.2 million of sales load and $5.8 million of offering related costs in connection with our IPO.
We utilized approximately $90 million of our IPO proceeds to pay down the senior secured revolving credit facility, which OFS Capital WM, LLC, or
OFS Capital WM, our wholly owned subsidiary, entered into with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., or Wells Fargo, and Madison Capital Funding LLC, a
subsidiary of New York Life Investments, or Madison Capital, to finance its business.

 
As of September 30, 2014, our investment portfolio consisted of outstanding loans of approximately $262.7 million in aggregate principal amount in

57 portfolio companies, of which $123.2 million in aggregate principal amount was held by OFS SBIC I, LP (formerly known as Tamarix Capital Partners,
L.P.), or SBIC I LP, our wholly-owned SBIC subsidiary, in 18 portfolio companies. As of that date, 88% of our investment portfolio was comprised of
senior secured loans, 7% of subordinated loans and 5% of equity investments, at fair value.

 
As of September 30, 2014, our net asset value was approximately $137.1 million, or approximately $14.22 per share.
 
While our investment strategy focuses primarily on middle-market companies in the United States, including senior secured loans, which includes

first-lien, second-lien and unitranche loans as well as subordinated loans and, to a lesser extent, warrants and other minority equity securities, we also may
invest up to 30% of our portfolio in opportunistic investments of non-eligible portfolio companies. Specifically, as part of this 30% basket, we may
consider investments in investment funds that are operating pursuant to certain exceptions to the 1940 Act and in advisers to similar investment funds, as
well as in debt of middle-market companies located outside of the United States and debt and equity of public companies that do not meet the definition of
eligible portfolio companies because their market capitalization of publicly traded equity securities exceeds the levels provided for in the 1940 Act.

 
Our investment strategy includes SBIC I LP, which received a small business investment company, or SBIC, license from the U.S. Small Business

Administration, or SBA, in May 2012. On December 4, 2013, we received approval from the SBA to acquire all of the limited partnership interests in
SBIC I LP and all of the ownership interests of its general partner, OFS SBIC I GP, LLC (formerly known as Tamarix Capital G.P. LLC), or SBIC I GP,
that were owned or subscribed for by other persons (the “SBIC Acquisitions”, or the “Tamarix Acquisitions”). We acquired the interests on December 4,
2013, which resulted in SBIC I LP becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary. The transaction was finalized in January 2014. For additional information on the
acquisition of SBIC I LP and SBIC I GP, see our consolidated financial statements and the related notes thereto included in the accompanying prospectus.
The SBIC license allows SBIC I LP to receive SBA-guaranteed debenture funding, subject to the issuance of a leverage commitment by the SBA and other
customary procedures. SBA leverage funding is subject to SBIC I LP’s payment of certain fees to the SBA, and the ability of SBIC I LP to draw on the
leverage commitment is subject to its compliance with SBA regulations and policies, including an audit by the SBA. For additional information regarding
the regulation of SBIC I LP, see “Regulation  — Small Business Investment Company Regulations” in the accompanying prospectus.
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On November 26, 2013, we received an exemptive order from the SEC to permit us to exclude the debt of SBIC I LP guaranteed by the SBA from the

definition of senior securities in the statutory 200% asset coverage ratio under the 1940 Act, allowing for greater capital deployment.
 
Our investment activities are managed by OFS Capital Management, LLC, or OFS Advisor, and supervised by our board of directors, a majority of

whom are independent of us, OFS Advisor and its affiliates. Under the investment advisory and management agreement between us and OFS Advisor, or
the Investment Advisory Agreement, we have agreed to pay OFS Advisor an annual base management fee based on the average value of our total assets
(other than cash and cash equivalents and certain non-cash items resulting from the SBIC Acquisitions but including assets purchased with borrowed
amounts and including assets owned by any consolidated entity) as well as an incentive fee based on our investment performance. On May 5, 2014, OFS
Advisor agreed to reduce its base management fee by two-thirds for the nine months commencing April 1, 2014 and ending December 31, 2014. For
additional information regarding the fees paid to OFS Advisor, see “Management and Other Agreements — Investment Advisory Agreement” in the
accompanying prospectus.

 
We have also entered into an administration agreement, or Administration Agreement, with OFS Capital Services, LLC, or OFS Services, our

Administrator. Under our Administration Agreement, we have agreed to reimburse OFS Services for our allocable portion (subject to the review and
approval of our independent directors) of overhead and other expenses incurred by OFS Services in performing its obligations under the Administration
Agreement.

 
As a BDC, we must not acquire any assets other than “qualifying assets” specified in the 1940 Act unless, at the time the acquisition is made, at least

70% of our total assets are qualifying assets (with certain limited exceptions). Qualifying assets include investments in “eligible portfolio companies.”
Under the relevant SEC rules, the term “eligible portfolio company” includes all private companies, companies whose securities are not listed on a
national securities exchange, and certain public companies that have listed their securities on a national securities exchange and have a market
capitalization of less than $250 million, in each case organized in the United States.

 
We are permitted to borrow money from time to time within the levels permitted by the 1940 Act (which generally allows us to incur leverage for up to

50% of our asset base). We may borrow money when the terms and conditions available are favorable to do so and are aligned with our investment
strategy and portfolio composition. The use of borrowed funds or the proceeds from issuing our preferred stock to make investments would have its own
specific benefits and risks, and all of the costs of borrowing funds or issuing preferred stock would be borne by holders of our common stock.

 
We have elected to be treated for tax purposes as a regulated investment company, or RIC, under Subchapter M of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,

or the Code. To qualify as a RIC, we must, among other things, meet certain source-of-income and assets diversification requirements. Pursuant to these
elections, we generally will not have to pay corporate-level taxes on any income we distribute to our shareholders.

 
On September 28, 2010, OFS Capital WM entered into a $180.0 million secured revolving credit facility (as amended from time to time, the “OFS

Capital WM Credit Facility”) with Wells Fargo and Madison Capital, with the Class A lenders (initially Wells Fargo) providing up to $135.0 million in
Class A loans (“Class A Facility”) and the Class B lenders (initially Madison Capital) providing up to $45.0 million in Class B loans (“Class B Facility”).
The OFS Capital WM Credit Facility is secured by all current and future eligible loans acquired by OFS Capital WM. The loan facilities with Wells Fargo
and Madison Capital had five- and six-year terms, respectively, and both facilities provided a one-year option for extension upon the approval of the
lenders. The loan facilities had a reinvestment period of two years after the closing date of the OFS Capital WM Credit Facility, which could be extended
by one year with the consent of each lender. Outstanding borrowings on the loan facilities were limited to the lesser of (1) $180.0 million and (2) the
borrowing base as defined by the OFS Capital WM Credit Facility loan documents. OFS Capital WM is obligated to pay interest on the outstanding loans
on each quarterly payment date. The Class B Facility was terminated in January 2013. In connection with the closing of the OFS Capital WM Credit
Facility, OFS Capital WM incurred financing costs of approximately $3.5 million were deferred and amortized over the term of OFS Capital WM Credit
Facility. As a result of the amendments to OFS Capital WM Credit Facility in 2012 (“WM 2012 Credit Facility Amendments”), we have substantial
additional input into certain key management decisions with respect to OFS Capital WM’s portfolio companies, including decisions with respect to
amendments to or modifications of the investments in these entities, or noticing or waiving of defaults or accelerating portfolio loans.

 
As a result of certain amendments through July 24, 2014, the OFS Capital WM Credit Facility’s borrowing base was adjusted and the minimum equity

requirement was lowered from $65.0 million to $35.0 million, resulting in additional liquidity for the Company. In addition, the maximum facility was
reduced from $180.0 million to $125.0 million.
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On November 18, 2014, OFS Capital WM elected to further reduce the maximum borrowing capacity on the OFS Capital WM Credit Facility from

$125.0 million to $100.0 million.
 

Organizational Structure
 

 
 

About OFS and Our Adviser
 

OFS (which refers to the collective activities and operations of OFSAM and its subsidiaries and certain affiliates) is an investment platform focused on
meeting the capital needs of middle-market companies. OFS is the successor to First Source Financial Inc., which was founded in 1995 as a joint venture
between Dominion Capital, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Dominion Resources, Inc., or Dominion, and Household Commercial Financial Services
Inc., a unit of Household International, or Household. Household sold its interest in First Source Financial Inc. to Dominion in 1997. In 2003, Orchard
Paladin Management, LLC, our predecessor, acquired from Dominion a portfolio of performing and non-performing loans of approximately $625 million
in aggregate commitment amount, plus additional investments in equity securities. Shortly thereafter, in 2004, Orchard Paladin Management, LLC
acquired Dominion’s interest in First Source Financial Inc. Most of the loan workouts and special situations investments managed by our senior managers
since 2003 involved loans in the portfolio acquired from Dominion and loans acquired as a result of the purchase of Dominion’s interest in First Source
Financial Inc.

 
As of September 30, 2014, OFS had 35 full-time employees and one part-time employee. OFS is headquartered in Chicago, Illinois, with additional

offices in New York, New York and Los Angeles, California.
 
Our investment activities are managed by OFS Advisor, our investment adviser. OFS Advisor is responsible for sourcing potential investments,

conducting research and diligence on potential investments and equity investors, analyzing investment opportunities, structuring our investments and
monitoring our investments and portfolio companies on an ongoing basis. OFS Advisor is a subsidiary of OFSAM, our parent company prior to the
completion of our IPO, and is a registered investment adviser under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, or the Advisers Act.

 
Our relationship with OFS Advisor is governed by and dependent on the Investment Advisory Agreement and may be subject to conflicts of interest.

We have entered into the Investment Advisory Agreement, pursuant to which OFS Advisor provides us with advisory services in exchange for a base
management fee and incentive fee. See “Management and Other Agreements — Investment Advisory Agreement” in the accompanying prospectus for a
discussion of the base management fee and incentive fee payable by us to OFS Advisor. The base management fee is based on our total assets (other than
cash and cash equivalents and the intangible asset and goodwill resulting from the SBIC Acquisitions but including assets purchased with borrowed
amounts and including assets owned by any consolidated entity) and, therefore, OFS Advisor will benefit when we incur debt or use leverage. Our board
of directors is charged with protecting our interests by monitoring how OFS Advisor addresses these and other conflicts of interest associated with its
management services and compensation. While our board of directors is not expected to review or approve each borrowing or incurrence of leverage, our
independent directors will periodically review OFS Advisor’s services and fees as well as its portfolio management decisions and portfolio performance.
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OFS Advisor has entered into a staffing agreement, or the Staffing Agreement, with Orchard First Source Capital, Inc., or OFSC, a wholly-owned

subsidiary of OFSAM. With the exception of Richard Ressler, OFSC employs all of OFS’s investment professionals. Under the Staffing Agreement, OFSC
will make experienced investment professionals available to OFS Advisor and provide access to the senior investment personnel of OFS and its affiliates.
The Staffing Agreement provides OFS Advisor with access to deal flow generated by OFS and its affiliates in the ordinary course of their businesses and
commits the members of OFS Advisor’s investment committee to serve in that capacity. As our investment adviser, OFS Advisor is obligated to allocate
investment opportunities among us and any other clients fairly and equitably over time in accordance with its allocation policy.

 
OFS Advisor capitalizes on the significant deal origination and sourcing, credit underwriting, due diligence, investment structuring, execution,

portfolio management and monitoring experience of OFS’s professionals. The senior management team of OFS, including Bilal Rashid, Jeff Cerny and
Mark Hauser, provides services to OFS Advisor. These managers have developed a broad network of contacts within the investment community, averaging
over 20 years of experience investing in debt and equity securities of middle-market companies. In addition, these managers have gained extensive
experience investing in assets that will constitute our primary focus and have expertise in investing across all levels of the capital structure of middle-
market companies.

 
OFS Advisor’s investment committee, or the Advisor Investment Committee, which is comprised of Richard Ressler (Chairman), Jeffrey Cerny, Peter

Fidler, Mark Hauser, Bilal Rashid, and Peter Rothschild, is responsible for our overall asset allocation decisions, as well as approval of all investments
made by us directly or through OFS Capital WM. Certain members of the Advisor Investment Committee perform a similar role for other investments
managed by OFS and its affiliates.

 
The investment committee for SBIC I LP, or the SBIC Investment Committee (and, together with the Advisor Investment Committee, the Investment

Committees), which is comprised of Peter Fidler, Mark Hauser, Glenn Pittson, and Peter Rothschild, is responsible for approval of all of investments made
by SBIC I LP. Any investment decision on the part of SBIC I LP requires the unanimous approval of the SBIC Investment Committee.

 
Our Administrator
 

OFS Services, an affiliate of OFS Advisor, provides the administrative services necessary for us to operate. OFS Services furnishes us with officers
and their staffs, office facilities and equipment, necessary software licenses and subscriptions and clerical, bookkeeping and recordkeeping services at such
facilities. OFS Services oversees our financial reporting as well as prepares our reports to shareholders and all other reports and materials required to be
filed with the SEC or any other regulatory authority. OFS Services also manages the determination and publication of our net asset value and the
preparation and filing of our tax returns and generally monitors the payment of our expenses and the performance of administrative and professional
services rendered to us by others. OFS Services may retain third parties to assist in providing administrative services to us.

 
Market Opportunity
 

Our investment strategy is focused primarily on investments in middle-market companies in the United States. We find the middle-market attractive for
the following reasons:

 
Large Target Market.  We believe that these middle-market companies represent a significant growth segment of the U.S. economy and often require

substantial capital investments to grow.
 
Specialized Lending Requirements with High Barriers to Entry.  We believe that several factors render many U.S. financial institutions ill-suited to

lend to U.S. middle-market companies. As a result, middle-market companies historically have been served by a limited segment of the lending
community. As a result of the unique challenges facing lenders to middle-market companies, there are high barriers to entry that a new lender must
overcome.

 
Robust Demand for Debt Capital.  We believe that private equity firms have significant committed but uncalled capital, a large portion of which is still

available for investment in the United States.
 

S-8



 

 
Competitive Strengths and Core Competencies
 

Deep Management Team Experienced in All Phases of Investment Cycle and Across All Levels of the Capital Structure.  We are managed by OFS
Advisor, which has access through the Staffing Agreement with OFSC to the resources and expertise of OFS’s investment professionals. As of September
30, 2014, OFS’s credit and investment professionals (including all investment committee members) employed by OFSC had an average of over 15 years of
investment experience with strong institutional backgrounds.

 
Significant Investment Capacity.  The net proceeds of equity and debt offerings and borrowing capacity under our credit facilities will provide us with

a substantial amount of capital available for deployment into new investment opportunities in our targeted asset class.
 
Scalable Infrastructure Supporting the Entire Investment Cycle.  We believe that our loan acquisition, origination and sourcing, underwriting,

administration and management platform is highly scalable (that is, it can be expanded on a cost efficient basis within a timeframe that meets the demands
of business growth). Our platform extends beyond origination and sourcing and includes a regimented credit monitoring system. We believe that our
careful approach, which involves ongoing review and analysis by an experienced team of professionals, should enable us to identify problems early and to
assist borrowers before they face difficult liquidity constraints.

 
Extensive Loan Sourcing Capabilities.  OFS Advisor gives us access to the deal flow of OFS. We believe OFS’s 19-year history as a middle-market

lending platform and its market position make it a leading lender to many sponsors and other deal sources, especially in the currently under-served lending
environment, and we have extensive relationships with potential borrowers and other lenders.

 
Structuring with a High Level of Service and Operational Orientation.  We provide client-specific and creative financing structures to our portfolio

companies. Based on our experience in lending to and investing in middle-market companies, we believe that the middle-market companies we target, as
well as sponsor groups we may pursue, require a higher level of service, creativity and knowledge than has historically been provided by other service
providers more accustomed to participating in commodity-like loan transactions.

 
Rigorous Credit Analysis and Approval Procedures.  OFS Advisor utilizes the established, disciplined investment process of OFS for reviewing

lending opportunities, structuring transactions and monitoring investments. Using OFS’s disciplined approach to lending, OFS Advisor seeks to minimize
credit losses through effective underwriting, comprehensive due diligence investigations, structuring and, where appropriate, the implementation of
restrictive debt covenants.

 
Structure of Investments
 

We anticipate that our loan portfolio will continue to contain investments of the following types:
 
First-Lien Senior Secured Loans.  First-lien senior secured loans comprise a significant portion of our investment portfolio.
 
Senior Secured Unitranche Loans.  Unitranche loans are loans that combine both senior and subordinated debt into one loan under which the

borrower pays a single blended interest rate that is intended to reflect the relative risk of the secured and unsecured components.
 
Second-lien Senior Secured Loans.  We obtain security interests in the assets of these portfolio companies as collateral in support of the repayment of

such loans. This collateral typically takes the form of second-priority liens on the assets of a portfolio company, and we may enter into an intercreditor
agreement with the holders of the portfolio company’s first-lien senior secured debt.

 
Unsecured Subordinated (“Mezzanine”) Loans.  We structure these investments as unsecured, subordinated loans that typically provide for relatively

high, fixed interest rates that provide us with significant current interest income.
 
Warrants and Other Minority Equity Securities.  In some cases, we will also acquire a minority equity interest in the portfolio company in connection

with making a loan, or receive nominally priced warrants or options to buy a minority equity interest in the portfolio company in connection with making a
loan. As a result, as a portfolio company appreciates in value, we may achieve additional investment return from our equity interest.
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General Structuring Considerations.  We tailor the terms of each investment to the facts and circumstances of the transaction and the prospective

portfolio company, negotiating a structure that protects our rights and manages our risk while creating incentives for the portfolio company to achieve its
business plan and improve its operating results.

 
We expect to hold most of our investments to maturity or repayment, but we may sell some of our investments earlier if a liquidity event occurs, such

as a sale, recapitalization or worsening of the credit quality of the portfolio company.
 

Conflicts of Interests
 

Subject to certain 1940 Act restrictions on co-investments with affiliates, OFS Advisor will offer us the right to participate in investment opportunities
that it determines are appropriate for us in view of our investment objective, policies and strategies and other relevant factors. Such offers will be subject
to the exception that, in accordance with OFS Advisor’s allocation policy, we might not participate in each individual opportunity but will, on an overall
basis, be entitled to participate fairly and equitably with other entities managed by OFS Advisor and its affiliates.

 
To the extent that we compete with entities managed by OFS Advisor or any of its affiliates for a particular investment opportunity, OFS Advisor will

allocate investment opportunities across the entities for which such opportunities are appropriate, consistent with (a) its internal allocation policy, (b) the
requirements of the Advisers Act, and (c) certain restrictions under the 1940 Act and rules thereunder regarding co-investments with affiliates. OFS
Advisor’s allocation policy is intended to ensure that we may generally share fairly and equitably with other investment funds or other investment vehicles
managed by OFS Advisor or its affiliates in investment opportunities that OFS Advisor determines are appropriate for us in view of our investment
objective, policies and strategies and other relevant factors, particularly those involving a security with limited supply or involving differing classes of
securities of the same issuer that may be suitable for us and such other investment funds or other investment vehicles. Under this allocation policy, if two
or more investment vehicles with similar or overlapping investment strategies are in their investment periods, an available opportunity will be allocated
based on the provisions governing allocations of such investment opportunities in the relevant organizational, offering or similar documents, if any, for
such investment vehicles. In the absence of any such provisions, OFS Advisor will consider the following factors and the weight that should be given with
respect to each of these factors:

 
 • investment guidelines and/or restrictions, if any, set forth in the applicable organizational, offering or similar documents for the investment

vehicles;
 

 • risk and return profile of the investment vehicles;
 

 • suitability/priority of a particular investment for the investment vehicles;
 

 • if applicable, the targeted position size of the investment for the investment vehicles;
 

 • level of available cash for investment with respect to the investment vehicles;
 

 • total amount of funds committed to the investment vehicles; and
 

 • the age of the investment vehicles and the remaining term of their respective investment periods, if any.
 
In situations where co-investment with such other accounts is not permitted or appropriate, such as when there is an opportunity to invest in different

securities of the same issuer, OFS Advisor will need to decide which account will proceed with the investment. The decision by OFS Advisor to allocate
an opportunity to another entity could cause us to forego an investment opportunity that we otherwise would have made. See “Related-Party Transactions
and Certain Relationships” in the accompanying prospectus

 
Corporate Information
 

Our principal executive offices are located at 10 S. Wacker Drive, Suite 2500, Chicago, IL, 60606, and our telephone number is (847) 734-2000. Our
corporate website is located at http://www.ofscapital.com. Information on our website is not incorporated into or a part of this prospectus supplement.
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Implications of Being an Emerging Growth Company
 

We qualify as an emerging growth company, as that term is used in the JOBS Act. An emerging growth company may take advantage of specified
reduced reporting and other burdens that are otherwise applicable generally to public companies. These provisions include:

 
 • An exemption from the auditors attestation requirement in the assessment of the emerging growth company’s internal control over financial reporting

under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “Sarbanes-Oxley Act”);
 

 • No non-binding advisory votes on executive compensation or golden parachute arrangements; and
 

 • Reduced financial statement and executive compensation requirements.
 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, we have complied with Section 404(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act regarding auditor attestation for the fiscal year ended

December 31, 2013.
 
In addition, Section 107 of the JOBS Act also provides that an emerging growth company can take advantage of the extended transition period provided

in Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), for complying with new or revised accounting standards. However, we
are choosing to “opt out” of such extended transition period, and as a result, we will comply with new or revised accounting standards on the relevant dates
on which adoption of such standards is required for non-emerging growth companies. Our decision to opt out of the extended transition period for complying
with new or revised accounting standards is irrevocable.

 
We could remain an emerging growth company for up to five years, or until the earliest of (a) the last day of the first fiscal year in which our annual gross

revenues exceed $1 billion, (b) the date that we become a “large accelerated filer” as defined in Rule 12b-2 under the Exchange Act, which would occur if
the market value of our common stock that is held by non-affiliates exceeds $700 million as of the last business day of our most recently completed second
fiscal quarter, or (c) the date on which we have issued more than $1 billion in non-convertible debt during the preceding three year period.

 
Risks
 

Investing in our securities may be speculative and involves certain risks relating to our structure and our investment objective that you should consider
before deciding whether to invest. Certain of these risks are referenced below:

 
Capital markets are currently functional, but may experience periods of disruption and instability, which could have a negative impact on our business

and operations.
 
There are numerous risks relating to our business, including credit losses on our investments, the risk of loss associated with leverage, illiquidity and

valuation uncertainties in our investments, possible lack of appropriate investments, the lack of experience in operating a BDC of our investment adviser and
our dependence on such investment adviser.

 
There are also numerous risks relating to our investments, including the risky nature of the securities in which we invest, the subordinated nature of select

investments, our potential lack of control over our portfolio companies, our limited ability to invest in public or foreign companies and the potential
incentives in our investment adviser to invest more speculatively than it would if it did not have an opportunity to earn incentive fees.

 
We also have various risks relating to our status as a BDC, including limitations on raising additional capital, failure to qualify as a BDC and loss of tax

status as a RIC. In addition, SBIC I LP has the risk of losing its SBIC status.
 
There are also risks relating to this offering, including volatility in our stock price and the anti-takeover effect of certain provisions in our certificate of

incorporation.
 
See “Risk Factors” beginning on page 16 of the of the accompanying prospectus for a more detailed discussion of these and other material risks you

should carefully consider before deciding to invest in our securities.
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THE RIGHTS OFFERING

 
The Offer

 
We are issuing to shareholders of record, or record date shareholders, on           , 20   , or the record date, [transferable/non-transferable] right(s) for

each share of our common stock held on the record date. Each holder of the rights, or rights holder, is entitled to subscribe for        share(s) of our common
stock for every rights held [ , which we refer to as the primary subscription right]. We will not issue fractional shares of our common stock upon the exercise
of rights; accordingly, rights may be exercised only in multiples of      .

 
[The rights are transferable and will be listed for trading on        under the symbol “      ” during the course of this offer. See “The Offer.”]

 
Subscription Price

 
The subscription price per share will be [describe means of computing subscription price]. [Because the subscription price will be determined on the

expiration date, rights holders who decide to acquire shares pursuant to the primary subscription right or pursuant to the over-subscription privilege will not
know the actual purchase price of those shares when they make that decision.] See “The Offer—Subscription Price.”

 
[Over-Subscription Privilege

 
Record date shareholders who fully exercise all rights issued to them (other than those rights which cannot be exercised because they represent the

right to acquire less than share(s)) are entitled to subscribe for additional shares of our common stock which were not subscribed for by other shareholders,
which we refer to as the remaining shares. If sufficient remaining shares of our common stock are available, all record date shareholders’ over-subscription
requests will be honored in full. In addition, any non-record date shareholder who exercises rights is entitled to subscribe for remaining shares that are not
otherwise subscribed for by record date shareholders. Shares acquired pursuant to the over-subscription privilege are subject to certain limitations and pro-rata
allocations. See “The Offer—Over-Subscription Privilege.”]

 
Purpose of the Offer

 
[Our Board of Directors has determined that it would be in our best interest and the best interest of our shareholders to increase the capital available

for making additional investments, as well as to pay operating expenses, temporarily repay debt and generally enhance our liquidity. We believe that we must
have sufficient liquidity available to remain a credible source of capital. This offering will increase the capital available for us to make additional
investments.] This offering gives existing shareholders the right to purchase additional shares at a price that is expected to be below market without incurring
any commission or charge, while providing us access to additional capital resources. In connection with the approval of this rights offering, our board of
directors considered, among other things, the following factors:

 
· the subscription price relative to the market price and to our net asset value per share, including the likelihood that the subscription price will be

below our net asset value per share;
· the increased capital to be available upon completion of this rights offering for us to make additional investments consistent with our investment

objective;
· the dilution to be experienced by non-exercising shareholders;
· the dilutive effect the offering will have on the dividends per share we distribute subsequent to completion of the offering;
· [the terms and expenses in connection with the offering relative to other alternatives for raising capital, including fees payable to the dealer

manager;]
· the size of the offering in relation to the number of shares outstanding;
· [the fact that the rights will be listed on during the subscription period;]
· the market price of our common stock, both before and after the announcement of the rights offering;
· the general condition of the securities markets; and
· any impact on operating expenses associated with an increase in capital, including an increase in fees payable to the Investment Adviser.

 
There can be no assurance of the amount of dilution that a shareholder will experience or that the rights offering will be successful.
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[The purpose of setting the determination of the subscription price upon the expiration of the offer is to attract the maximum participation of

shareholders in the offer, with minimum dilution to non-participating shareholders.]
 
[The transferable rights will allow non-participating shareholders the potential of receiving cash payment upon the sale of the rights, receipt of

which may be viewed as partial compensation for the dilution of their interests.]
 
We cannot assure you that this offering will be successful, or that by increasing the amount of our available capital, our aggregate expenses and,

correspondingly, our expense ratio will be lowered. In addition, the management fee we pay to the Investment Adviser is based upon the average value of our
gross assets at the end of the two most recently completed calendar quarters, and appropriately adjusted for any share issuances or repurchases during the
current calendar quarter.

 
[In determining that this offer is in our best interest and in the best interests of our shareholders, we have retained , the dealer manager for this offer,

to provide us with financial advisory, marketing and soliciting services relating to this offer, including advice with respect to the structure, timing and terms of
the offer. In this regard, our board of directors considered, among other things, using a fixed pricing versus variable pricing mechanism, the benefits and
drawbacks of conducting a non-transferable versus a transferable rights offering, the effect on us if this offer is not fully subscribed and the experience of the
dealer manager in conducting rights offerings.]

 
[Although we have no present intention to do so, we may, in the future and in our discretion, choose to make additional rights offerings from time to

time for a number of shares and on terms which may or may not be similar to this offer, provided that our Board of Directors must determine that each
subsequent rights offering is in the best interest of our shareholders. Any such future rights offering will be made in accordance with the 1940 Act.]

 
[Sale of Rights]

 
The rights are evidenced by a subscription certificate and are transferable until , (or if the offer is extended, until the extended expiration date). The

rights will be listed for trading on under the symbol “ ”. We and the dealer manager will use our best efforts to ensure that an adequate trading market for the
rights will exist. However, no assurance can be given that a market for the rights will develop. Trading in the rights on may be conducted until close of trading
on , (or, if the offer is extended, until the extended expiration date). See “The Offer—Sale of Rights.”]

 
Use of Proceeds

 
We plan to use the net proceeds from this offering for new investments in portfolio companies in accordance with our investment objective and

strategies described in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus and for general working capital purposes. We will also pay operating
expenses, including advisory and administrative fees and expenses, and may pay other expenses such as due diligence expenses of potential new investments,
from the net proceeds from this offering. We are continuously identifying, reviewing and, to the extent consistent with its investment objective, funding new
investments. As a result, we typically raise capital as we deem appropriate to fund such new investments. See “Use of Proceeds.”

 
Amendments and Termination

 
We reserve the right to amend the terms and conditions of this offering, whether the amended terms are more or less favorable to you. We will

comply with all applicable laws, including the federal securities laws, in connection with any such amendment. In addition, we may, in our sole discretion,
terminate the rights offering at any time prior to delivery of the shares of our common stock offered hereby, if the subscription price is less than [ ]% of the
net asset value attributable to a share of common stock disclosed in the most recent periodic report we filed with the SEC. If this rights offering is terminated,
all rights will expire without value and the subscription agent
will return as soon as practicable all exercise payments, without interest. [No amounts paid to acquire rights on [insert name of any applicable exchange on
which rights are listed] or otherwise will be returned.]

 
Dilutive Effects

 
Any shareholder who chooses not to participate in the offering should expect to own a smaller interest in us upon completion of the offering. The

offering will dilute the ownership interest and voting power of shareholders who do not fully exercise their basic subscription rights. Further, because the net
proceeds per share from the offering may be lower than our net asset value per share, the offering may reduce our net asset value per share. The amount of
dilution that a shareholder will experience could be substantial.
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How to Obtain Subscription Information

 
· Contact your broker-dealer, trust company, bank or other nominee where your rights are held, or

 
· Contact the information agent,   , at    . Broker-dealers and nominees may call     ..

 
How to Subscribe

 
· Deliver a completed subscription certificate and payment to the subscription agent by the expiration date of the rights offering, or

 
· If your shares are held in an account with your broker-dealer, trust company, bank or other nominee, which qualifies as an Eligible Guarantor

Institution under Rule 17Ad-15 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Exchange Act”), have your Eligible Guarantor Institution
deliver a notice of guaranteed delivery to the subscription agent by the expiration date of the rights offering.
 

Subscription Agent
 
will act as the subscription agent in connection with this offer.
 

Information Agent
 
will act as the information agent in connection with this offer. You may contact toll-free with questions at . Broker-dealers and nominees may call     

.
 

[Distribution Arrangements
 
will act as dealer manager for the offer. Under the terms and subject to the conditions contained in the dealer manager agreement, the dealer manager

will provide financial advisory services and marketing assistance in connection with the offer and will solicit the exercise of rights and participation in the
over-subscription privilege by our shareholders. The offer is not contingent upon any number of rights being exercised. We have agreed to pay the dealer
manager a fee for its financial advisory, marketing and soliciting services equal to % of the subscription price per share for shares issued pursuant to the
exercise of rights, including pursuant to the over-subscription privilege. The dealer manager may reallow a portion of its fees to other broker-dealers that have
assisted in soliciting the exercise of rights.]

 
Important Dates to Remember

 
Record Date     
Subscription Period   (1)
Measurement Period for Subscription Price(2)   (1)
Expiration Date   (1)
Deadline for Delivery of Subscription Certificates and Payment for Shares(3)   (1)
Deadline for Delivery of Notice of Guaranteed Delivery(3)   (1)
Deadline for Delivery of Subscription Certificates and Payment for Shares pursuant to Notice of Guaranteed

Delivery   (1)
Confirmations Mailed to Participants   (1)
Final Payment for Shares   (1)

 
 

(1) Unless the offer is extended.
(2) The subscription price will be [describe means of computing subscription price].
(3) Participating rights holders must, by the expiration date of the offer (unless the offer is extended), either (a) deliver a subscription certificate and payment

for shares or (b) cause to be delivered on their behalf a notice of guaranteed delivery.
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FEES AND EXPENSES

 
The following table is intended to assist you in understanding the costs and expenses that you will bear directly or indirectly. We caution you that some

of the percentages indicated in the table below are estimates and may vary. Except where the context suggests otherwise, whenever this prospectus
supplement contains a reference to fees or expenses paid by “us,” “the Company” or “OFS Capital,” or that “we” will pay fees or expenses, you will
indirectly bear such fees or expenses as an investor in OFS Capital.
 
Shareholder transaction expenses:     
Sales load (as a percentage of offering price)    %(1)

Offering expenses (as a percentage of offering price)    %(2)

Dividend reinvestment plan expenses    %(3)

Total shareholder transaction expenses (as a percentage of offering price)   %
Annual expenses (as a percentage of net assets attributable to common stock):     
Base management fee payable under Investment Advisory Agreement   3.46%(4)

Loan management fee payable   0.50%(5)

Incentive fees payable under Investment Advisory Agreement   0.43%(6)

Interest payments on borrowed funds   2.92%(7)

Other expenses   3.31%(8)(9)

Acquired fund fees and expenses   —%(10)

Total annual expenses   10.62%(4)(9)

 
 

(1) The Company has agreed to pay the dealer manager a fee for its financial advisory, marketing and soliciting services equal to     % of the aggregate
subscription price for the shares issued pursuant to the offer. See “The Offer – Distribution Arrangements.”

 
(2) Amount reflects estimated offering expenses of approximately $   , which assumes that the offer is fully subscribed. This amount excludes the fee that we

have agreed to pay to the subscription agent, but includes reimbursement for its out of pocket expenses related to the offer, estimated to be $[ ]. See “The
Offer – Distribution Arrangements.”

 
(3) The expenses of the dividend reinvestment plan are included in “other expenses.” For additional information, see “Dividend Reinvestment Plan” in the

accompanying prospectus.
 

(4) Commencing November 1, 2013 through March 31, 2014, our base management fee, under the Investment Advisory Agreement was 1.75% per year of
our total assets (other than cash and cash equivalents and goodwill and intangible assets relating to the SBIC Acquisitions but including assets purchased
with borrowed amounts and including assets owned by any consolidated entity). On May 5, 2014, OFS Advisor agreed to reduce its base management
fee by two-thirds for the nine months commencing April 1, 2014 and ending December 31, 2014. Accordingly, the effective annual base management fee
for the 2014 fiscal year will be equal to or less than 50% of the 1.75% required by our Investment Advisory Agreement with OFS Advisor, or not greater
than 0.875%. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the above table assumes that the base management fee is 1.75% per annum in all cases, and does not reflect
the reduction in place for the balance of 2014. We may from time to time decide it is appropriate to change the terms of the agreement. Under the 1940
Act, any material change to our Investment Advisory Agreement must be submitted to shareholders for approval. See “Management and Other
Agreements — Investment Advisory Agreement” in the accompanying prospectus.
 
The 3.46% fee reflected in the table is calculated by determining the ratio that the base management fee bears to our net assets attributable to common
stock (rather than our total assets). The estimate of our base management fee referenced in the table is based on our total assets (other than cash and cash
equivalents and goodwill and intangible assets relating to the SBIC Acquisitions but including assets purchased with borrowed money and assets of any
consolidated entity) as of September 30, 2014.

 
(5) Represents the management fee OFS Capital WM pays to MCF Capital Management LLC, which is the loan manager and also an affiliated entity of

Madison Capital (“Loan Manager”).
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(6) Assumes an incentive fee of $149 thousand, which was calculated based on our statement of operations for the three months ended September 30, 2014,

except that the base management fee was assumed to be 1.75% per annum. For the three months ended September 30, 2014, we incurred an actual
incentive fee expense of $723 thousand, which was $574 thousand higher than the incentive fee expense we would have incurred assuming our base
management fee rate was at 1.75% per annum. Notwithstanding the reduced base management fee in the second quarter of 2014, we did not incur any
incentive fee expense for the first and second quarters of 2014, however, based on the increase in investments and investment income we began incurring
incentive fee expense in third quarter of 2014. For the three months ended September 30, 2014, we incurred an actual base management fee expense of
$370 thousand, which would have been $1.1 million assuming our base management fee rate was at 1.75% per annum. For more detailed information
about incentive fees related to capital gains incurred by us that are not payable to the Advisor under the terms of the Investment Management Agreement,
please see Note 4 to our consolidated financial statements for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 as well as Note 5 to our consolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2013, included in the accompanying prospectus.
 
The incentive fee consists of two parts:
 
The first, payable quarterly in arrears, equals 20.0% of our pre-incentive fee net investment income initially calculated based on values at the closing of
this offering (including income that is accrued but not yet received in cash), subject to a 2.0% quarterly (8.0% annualized) hurdle rate and a “catch-up”
provision measured as of the end of each calendar quarter. Under this provision, in any calendar quarter, OFS Advisor receives no incentive fee until our
pre-incentive fee net investment income equals the hurdle rate of 2.0% but then receives, as a “catch-up,” 100% of our pre-incentive fee net investment
income with respect to that portion of such pre-incentive fee net investment income, if any, that exceeds the hurdle rate but is less than 2.5%. The effect
of this provision is that, if pre-incentive fee net investment income exceeds 2.5% in any calendar quarter, OFS Advisor will receive 20.0% of our pre-
incentive fee net investment income as if a hurdle rate did not apply.
 
The hurdle rate is fixed at 2.0% quarterly (8% annualized), which means that, if interest rates rise, it will be easier for our pre-incentive fee net
investment income to surpass the hurdle rate, which could lead to the payment of fees to OFS Advisor in an amount greater than expected. There is no
accumulation of amounts on the hurdle rate from quarter to quarter and accordingly there is no clawback of amounts previously paid if subsequent
quarters are below the quarterly hurdle rate and there is no delay of payment if prior quarters are below the quarterly hurdle rate.
 
The second part, payable annually in arrears, equals 20.0% of our realized capital gains on a cumulative basis as of the closing of this offering through
the end of the year, if any (or upon the termination of the Investment Advisory Agreement, as of the termination date), computed net of all realized
capital losses and unrealized capital depreciation on a cumulative basis, less the aggregate amount of any previously paid capital gain incentive fees. The
incentive fee is determined on a consolidated basis and, as such, will apply to the operations of SBIC I LP and OFS Capital WM if and for so long as
their financial statements are consolidated with ours. See “Management and Other Agreements — Investment Advisory Agreement” in the
accompanying prospectus.

 
(7) Interest payments on borrowed funds represents an estimate of our annualized interest expenses based on actual interest and credit facility expenses

incurred for the nine months ended September 30, 2014. Under the OFS Capital WM Credit Facility, our wholly-owned subsidiary, OFS Capital WM,
had debt in the amount of $84.8 million outstanding as of September 30, 2014. In addition, at September 30, 2014, SBIC I LP had SBA debentures
payable in the amount of $61.4 million.
 
We may borrow additional funds from time to time to make investments to the extent we determine that the economic situation is conducive to doing
so. We also anticipate that SBIC I LP will incur additional leverage which has been approved by the SBA. Our shareholders will bear directly or
indirectly the costs of borrowings under any debt instruments we may enter into.

  
(8) Includes our overhead expenses, including payments under the Administration Agreement based on our allocable portion of overhead and other

expenses incurred by OFS Services. See “Management and Other Agreements — Administration Agreement” in the accompanying prospectus. These
expenses are based on estimated amounts for the current fiscal year.

 
(9) Estimated.

 
(10) Our shareholders indirectly bear the expenses of underlying funds or other investment vehicles that would be investment companies under section 3(a)

of the 1940 Act but for the exceptions to that definition provided for in sections 3(c)(1) and 3(c)(7) of the 1940 Act (“Acquired Funds”) in which we
invest. We do not currently invest in underlying funds or other investment companies.

 
Example
 

The following example demonstrates the projected dollar amount of total cumulative expenses over various periods with respect to a hypothetical
investment in our common stock. In calculating the following expense amounts, we have assumed we would have no additional leverage and that our annual
operating expenses would remain at the levels set forth in the table above. The expense amounts assume an annual base management fee 1.75% for each year.
Transaction expenses are included in the following example.
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  1 year   3 years   5 years   10 years  
You would pay the following expenses on a $1,000 investment,

assuming a 5% annual return  $ 106  $ 301  $ 473  $ 821 
You would pay the following expenses on a $1,000 investment,

assuming a 5% annual return from realized capital gains  $ 106  $ 318  $ 501  $ 860 
 
The foregoing table is to assist you in understanding the various costs and expenses that an investor in our common stock will bear directly or indirectly.

While the example assumes, as required by the SEC, a 5% annual return, our performance will vary and may result in a return greater or less than 5%. The
incentive fee under the Investment Advisory Agreement, which, assuming a 5% annual return, would either not be payable or have an insignificant impact on
the expense amounts shown above, is not included in the example. In addition, while the example assumes reinvestment of all dividends and distributions at
net asset value, if our board of directors authorizes and we declare a cash dividend, participants in our dividend reinvestment plan who have not otherwise
elected to receive cash will receive a number of shares of our common stock, determined by dividing the total dollar amount of the dividend payable to a
participant by the market price per share of our common stock at the close of trading on the valuation date for the dividend. See “Dividend Reinvestment
Plan” in the accompanying prospectus for additional information regarding our dividend reinvestment plan.

 
This example and the expenses in the table above should not be considered a representation of our future expenses, and actual expenses

(including the cost of debt, if any, and other expenses) may be greater or less than those shown.
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

 
In addition to factors previously identified elsewhere in this prospectus supplement and in the accompanying prospectus, including the “Risk Factors”

section of the accompanying prospectus, the following factors, among others, could cause actual results to differ materially from forward-looking statements
or historical performance:

 
 • the introduction, withdrawal, success and timing of business initiatives and strategies;
 
 • changes in political, economic or industry conditions, the interest rate environment or financial and capital markets, which could result in changes in

the value of our assets;
 
 • the relative and absolute investment performance and operations of our investment adviser;
 
 • the impact of increased competition;
 
 • the impact of future acquisitions and divestitures;
 
 • the unfavorable resolution of legal proceedings;
 
 • our business prospects and the prospects of our portfolio companies;
 
 • the impact, extent and timing of technological changes and the adequacy of intellectual property protection;
 
 • the impact of legislative and regulatory actions and reforms and regulatory, supervisory or enforcement actions of government agencies relating to us

or OFS Advisors;
 
 • the ability of OFS Advisors to identify suitable investments for us and to monitor and administer our investments;
 
 • our contractual arrangements and relationships with third parties;
 
 • any future financings by us;
 
 • the ability of OFS Advisors to attract and retain highly talented professionals;
 
 • fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates; and
 
 • the impact of changes to tax legislation and, generally, our tax position.

 
This prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, and other statements that we may make, may contain forward-looking statements with

respect to future financial or business performance, strategies or expectations. Forward-looking statements are typically identified by words or phrases such as
“trend,” “opportunity,” “pipeline,” “believe,” “comfortable,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “current,” “intention,” “estimate,” “position,” “assume,” “potential,”
“outlook,” “continue,” “remain,” “maintain,” “sustain,” “seek,” “achieve” and similar expressions, or future or conditional verbs such as “will,” “would,”
“should,” “could,” “may” or similar expressions.

 
Forward-looking statements are subject to numerous assumptions, risks and uncertainties, which change over time. Forward-looking statements speak

only as of the date they are made, and we assume no duty to and do not undertake to update forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements do
not meet the safe harbor for forward-looking statements pursuant to Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Act or Section
21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in forward-looking statements and future results
could differ materially from historical performance.
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SUPPLEMENTARY RISK FACTORS

 
Investing in our common stock involves a number of significant risks. Before you invest in our common stock, you should be aware of various risks,

including those described below and those set forth in the accompanying prospectus. You should carefully consider these risk factors, together with all of the
other information included in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, before you decide whether to make an investment in our
securities. The risks set out below are not the only risks we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or not presently deemed
material by us may also impair our operations and performance. If any of the following events occur, our business, financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows could be materially and adversely affected. In such case, our net asset value and the trading price of our common stock could decline, and you
may lose all or part of your investment. The risk factors described below, together with those set forth in the accompanying prospectus, are the principal risk
factors associated with an investment in us as well as those factors generally associated with an investment company with investment objectives, investment
policies, capital structure or trading markets similar to ours.

 
Your interest in OFS Capital Corporation may be diluted if you do not fully exercise your subscription rights in this offering.
 

Shareholders who do not fully exercise their rights should expect that they will, at the completion of the offer, own a smaller proportional interest in
OFS Capital Corporation than would otherwise be the case if they fully exercised their rights. We cannot state precisely the amount of any such dilution in
share ownership because we do not know at this time what proportion of the shares will be purchased as a result of the offer.

 
In addition, if the subscription price is less than our net asset value per share, then our shareholders would experience an immediate dilution of the

aggregate net asset value of their shares as a result of the offer. The amount of any decrease in net asset value is not predictable because it is not known at this
time what the subscription price and net asset value per share will be on the expiration date of the rights offering or what proportion of the shares will be
purchased as a result of the offer. Such dilution could be substantial.

 
[Insert risk factors applicable to the rights offering and any additional relevant risk factors not included in the base prospectus to the extent
required to be disclosed by applicable law or regulation.]
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CAPITALIZATION

 
The following table sets forth our capitalization as of              , 20 :

 
 •  on an actual basis; and

 

 
•  on an as adjusted basis to give effect to the sale of              shares of our common stock in this offering at an assumed public offering price of $        

per share (the last reported closing price of our common stock on                 , 20 ), after deducting the estimated underwriting discounts and
commissions of approximately $         and estimated offering expenses of approximately $         payable by us.

 
You should read this table together with “Use of Proceeds” and financial statements and related notes thereto included elsewhere in this prospectus

supplement and the accompanying prospectus.
 

  
As of 
, 20  

  Actual   
As Adjusted
(unaudited)  

  (in thousands)  
Assets:         
Cash and cash equivalents  $       $       
Investments at fair value         
Other assets       
Total assets  $   $  
         
Liabilities:         
SBA-guaranteed debentures payable  $   $  
Revolving line of credit  $   $  
Other liabilities  $   $  
         
Total liabilities  $   $  
         
Net assets  $   $  
         
Shareholders’ equity:         
Preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share, 2,000,000 shares authorized, 0 shares issued and outstanding         
Common stock, par value $0.01 per share; 100,000,000 shares authorized,              shares outstanding  $   $  
Capital in excess of par value  $   $  
         
Total shareholders’ equity  $   $  
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USE OF PROCEEDS

 
If shares of our common stock are sold at the estimated subscription price of $ , the net proceeds of the offer will be approximately $ , after deducting

dealer manager fees of approximately $ and other expenses related to this offer payable by us estimated at approximately $ . There can be no assurance that
all the rights will be exercised in full.

 
We intend to use the net proceeds from the sale of our securities for general corporate purposes, which include investing in debt and equity securities,

repayment of any outstanding indebtedness, acquisitions and other general corporate purposes.
 
We anticipate that substantially all of the net proceeds from any offering of our securities will be used as described above within twelve months, but in no

event longer than two years, depending on the availability of attractive opportunities and market conditions. However, there can be no assurance that we will
be able to achieve this goal.

 
Pending such uses and investments, we will invest the remaining net proceeds primarily in cash, cash equivalents, U.S. government securities or high-

quality debt securities maturing in one year or less from the time of investment. The management fee payable by us to our investment adviser will not be
reduced while our assets are invested in such securities. Our ability to achieve our investment objective may be limited to the extent that the net proceeds of
any offering, pending full investment, are held in lower yielding short-term instruments.
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DILUTION

 
As of , , our net assets were $    million, or approximately $    per share. After giving effect to the sale of shares of our common stock in this offering,

assuming all rights are exercised at the estimated subscription price of $    per share, and our receipt of the estimated net proceeds from that sale, our pro
forma net asset value would have been approximately $    million, or approximately $    per share, representing an immediate dilution of approximately $   
per share to our existing shareholders.

 
The following table illustrates the dilutive effects of this offering on a per share basis, assuming all rights are exercised at the estimated subscription

price of $ per share:
 

  As of ,  

  Actual   
As

Adjusted  
Net asset value per common share  $      $     

 
  Months Ended ,  

  Actual   
As

Adjusted  
Net increase in net assets resulting from net investment income per common share  $    (1) $    (2)
Net decrease in net assets resulting from operations per common share  $ (1) $ (2)
Distributions per common share  $   $ (3)
 
 

(1) Basic and diluted, weighted average number of shares outstanding is .
(2) Assumes that on , , the beginning of the indicated period, (a) all rights were exercised at the estimated subscription price of $ per share and (b) shares of

our common stock were issued upon exercise of such rights.
(3) Assumes actual cash distributions divided by adjusted shares, including shares issued upon exercise of rights.
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THE OFFER

 
Purpose of the Offer
 

Our Board of Directors has determined that it would be in our best interest and the best interest of our shareholders to increase the capital available
for making additional investments, as well as to pay operating expenses and generally enhance our liquidity. We believe that we must have sufficient liquidity
available to remain a credible source of capital. The offering will increase the capital available for us to make additional investments. The current offering
gives existing shareholders the right to purchase additional shares at a price that is expected to be below market without incurring any commission or charge,
while providing us access to such additional capital resources. In connection with the approval of this rights offering, our Board of Directors considered,
among other things, the following factors:

 
· the subscription price relative to the market price and to our net asset value per share, including the likelihood that the subscription price will be below

our net asset value per share;
· the increased capital to be available upon completion of the rights offering for us to make additional investments consistent with our investment

objective;
· the dilution to be experienced by non-exercising shareholders;
· the dilutive effect the offering will have on the dividends per share we distribute subsequent to completion of the offering;
· [the terms and expenses in connection with the offering relative to other alternatives for raising capital, including fees payable to the dealer manager;]
· the size of the offering in relation to the number of shares outstanding;
· [the fact that the rights will be listed on during the subscription period;]
· the market price of our common stock, both before and after the announcement of the rights offering;
· the general condition of the securities markets; and
· any impact on operating expenses associated with an increase in capital, including an increase in fees payable to the Investment Adviser.

 
There can be no assurance of the amount of dilution that a shareholder will experience or that the rights offering will be successful.
 
The purpose of setting the determination of the subscription price upon the expiration of the offer is to attract the maximum participation of

shareholders in the offer, with minimum dilution to non-participating shareholders.
 
[The transferable rights will allow non-participating shareholders the potential of receiving cash payment upon the sale of the rights, receipt of

which may be viewed as partial compensation for the dilution of their interests.]
 
We cannot assure you that the current offering will be successful, or that by increasing the size of our available equity capital, our aggregate

expenses and, correspondingly, our expense ratio will be lowered. In addition, the management fee we pay to the Investment Adviser is based upon the
average value of our gross assets at the end of the two most recently completed calendar quarters, and appropriately adjusted for any share issuances or
repurchases during the current calendar quarter.

 
[In determining that this offer was in our best interest and in the best interests of our shareholders, we have retained , the dealer manager for this

offering, to provide us with financial advisory, marketing and soliciting services relating to this offer, including advice with respect to the structure, timing
and terms of the offer. In this regard, our Board of Directors considered, among other things, using a fixed pricing versus variable pricing mechanism, the
benefits and drawbacks of conducting a non-transferable versus a transferable rights offering, the effect on us if this offer is not fully subscribed and the
experience of the dealer manager in conducting rights offerings.]

 
[Although we have no present intention to do so, we may, in the future and in our discretion, choose to make additional rights offerings from time to

time for a number of shares and on terms which may or may not be similar to this offer, provided that our board of directors must determine that each
subsequent rights offering is in the best interest of our shareholders. Any such future rights offering will be made in accordance with the 1940 Act.]

 
Terms of the Offer

 
We are issuing to record date shareholders [transferable/non-transferable] rights to subscribe for up to approximately shares. Each record date

shareholder is being issued [transferable/non-transferable] right(s) for each whole share owned on the record date. The rights entitle each holder, or rights
holder, to acquire at the subscription price share(s) for every rights held , which we refer to as the primary subscription right. Rights may be exercised at any
time during the subscription period, which commences on , , the record date, and ends at  p.m., New York City time, on , 20 , the expiration date, unless
extended by us.
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The rights are [transferable and will be listed for trading on   under the symbol “ ” during the course of the offer/non-transferable]. The shares of our

common stock issued pursuant to an exercise of rights will be listed on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol “OFS.” The rights will be
evidenced by subscription certificates which will be mailed to shareholders, except as discussed below under “—Foreign Shareholders.”

 
We will not issue fractional shares upon the exercise of rights; accordingly, rights may be exercised only in multiples of    .
 
The rights are [transferable/non-transferable]. [Rights holders who are not record date shareholders may purchase shares as described above, which

we refer to as the primary subscription, and may be entitled to subscribe for shares pursuant to the over-subscription privilege (as described below).]
 
[Shares for which there is no subscription during the primary subscription will be offered, by means of the over-subscription privilege, first to

record date shareholders who fully exercise the rights issued to them pursuant to this offering (other than those rights that cannot be exercised because they
represent in the aggregate the right to acquire less than share(s)) and who wish to acquire more than the number of shares they are entitled to purchase
pursuant to the exercise of their rights. In addition, any non-record date rights holder who exercises rights is entitled to subscribe for remaining shares that are
not otherwise subscribed for by record date shareholders. Shares acquired pursuant to the over-subscription privilege are subject to certain limitations and
pro-rata allocations. See “—Over-Subscription Privilege” below.]

 
For purposes of determining the number of shares a record date shareholder may acquire pursuant to the offer, broker-dealers, trust companies, banks

or others whose shares are held of record by or by any other depository or nominee will be deemed to be the holders of the rights that are issued to or the
other depository or nominee on their behalf.

 
There is no minimum number of rights which must be exercised in order for the offer to close.
 

[Over-Subscription Privilege
 

Shares not subscribed for by rights holders, which we refer to as remaining shares, will be offered, by means of the over-subscription privilege, first
to record date shareholders who have fully exercised the rights issued to them and who wish to acquire more than the number of shares they are entitled to
purchase pursuant to the basic subscription. Rights holders should indicate on the subscription certificate that they submit with respect to the exercise of the
rights issued to them how many additional shares they are willing to acquire pursuant to the over-subscription privilege. If there are sufficient remaining
shares, all record date shareholders’ over-subscription requests will be honored in full. If record date shareholder requests for shares pursuant to the over-
subscription privilege exceed the remaining shares available, the available remaining shares will be allocated pro-rata among record date shareholders who
over-subscribe based on the number of shares held on the record date. The percentage of remaining shares each over-subscribing shareholder may acquire will
be rounded down to result in delivery of whole shares. The allocation process may involve a series of allocations to assure that the total number of remaining
shares available for over-subscriptions is distributed on a pro-rata basis. The formula to be used in allocating the remaining shares is as follows:

 
Shareholder’s Record Date Position × Remaining Shares

Total Record Date Position of All Over-Subscribers   
 

Any rights holder, other than a record date shareholder, who exercises rights is entitled to subscribe for remaining shares that are not otherwise over-
subscribed for by record date shareholders. These non-record date rights holders should indicate in the subscription certificate submitted with respect to the
exercise of any rights how many shares they are willing to acquire pursuant to the over-subscription privilege. We cannot assure non-record date rights
holders that they will receive shares pursuant to the over-subscription privilege.

 
If sufficient remaining shares are available after the over-subscription privileges for the record date shareholders have been allotted, then all over-

subscriptions by non-record date rights holders will be honored in full. If the remaining shares are insufficient to permit such allocation, the remaining shares
will be allocated pro-rata among the non-record date rights holders who wish to exercise their over-subscription privilege, based on the number of rights held
by such rights holders on the expiration date. However, if this pro-rata allocation results in any holder being allocated a greater number of shares than the
holder subscribed for pursuant to the exercise of the over-subscription privilege, then such holder will be allocated only such number of shares pursuant to the
over-subscription privilege as such holder subscribed for. The formula to be used in allocating the shares available to non-record date rights holders exercising
their over-subscription privilege is as follows:
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Non-Record Date Rights Holder’s Rights   

Ownership as of the Expiration Date   
Total Rights Ownership as of the Expiration 

Date of Non-Record
×  

Date Rights Holders Exercising Their Over-
Subscription Privilege

 Shares Available for Non-Record Date Rights Holders Exercising
Their Over-Subscription Privilege

 
Banks, brokers, trustees and other nominee holders of rights will be required to certify to the subscription agent, before any over-subscription

privilege may be exercised with respect to any particular beneficial owner, as to the aggregate number of rights exercised pursuant to the primary subscription
and the number of shares subscribed for pursuant to the over-subscription privilege by such beneficial owner and that such beneficial owner’s primary
subscription was exercised in full. We will not offer or sell in connection with this offer any shares that are not subscribed for pursuant to the primary
subscription or the over-subscription privilege.]

 
Subscription Price
 

The subscription price for the shares to be issued pursuant to the offer will be [describe means of computing subscription price]. [Since the expiration
date will be , (unless we extend the subscription period), rights holders will not know the subscription price at the time of exercise and will be required
initially to pay for both the shares subscribed for pursuant to the primary subscription right and, if eligible, any additional shares subscribed for pursuant to
the over-subscription privilege at the estimated subscription price of $ per share.] See “—Payment for Shares” below. Rights holders who exercise their rights
will have no right to rescind a purchase after receipt of their completed subscription certificates together with payment for shares by the subscription agent.
We do not have the right to withdraw the rights or cancel this offer after the rights have been distributed.

 
Expiration of the Offer
 

The offer will expire at       p.m., New York City time, on , 20 , the expiration date, unless extended by us. The rights will expire on the expiration
date of the rights offering and may not be exercised thereafter.

 
Our Board of Directors may determine to extend the subscription period, and thereby postpone the expiration date, to the extent our board of

directors determines that doing so is in the best interest of our shareholders. For example, our Board of Directors may elect to extend the subscription period
in the event there is substantial instability or volatility in the trading price of our common stock or the rights on       at or near the expiration date, or if any
event occurs which causes trading to cease or be suspended on        or the financial markets generally. The foregoing are not the only circumstances under
which this offer may be extended, and our Board of Directors is free to extend the subscription period at its discretion, provided it determines that doing so is
in the best interests of our shareholders.

 
Any extension of the offer will be followed as promptly as practicable by announcement thereof, and in no event later than       a.m., New York City

time, on the next business day following the previously scheduled expiration date. Without limiting the manner in which we may choose to make such
announcement, we will not, unless otherwise required by law, have any obligation to publish, advertise or otherwise communicate any such announcement
other than by issuing a press release or such other means of announcement as we deem appropriate.

 
Amendments and Waivers; Termination

 
We reserve the right to amend the terms and conditions of the offering, whether the amended terms are more or less favorable to you. We will

comply with all applicable laws, including the federal securities laws, in connection with any such amendment.
 
We will decide all questions as to the validity, form and eligibility (including times of receipt, beneficial ownership and compliance with other

procedural matters) in our sole discretion, and our determination shall be final and binding. The acceptance of subscription certificates and the subscription
price also will be determined by us. Alternative, conditional or contingent subscriptions will not be accepted. We reserve the right to reject any exercise if
such exercise is not in accordance with the terms of the offering or not in proper form or if the acceptance thereof or the issuance of shares of our common
stock thereto could be deemed unlawful. We, in our sole discretion, may waive any defect or irregularity, or permit a defect or irregularity to be corrected
within such time as we may determine, or reject the purported exercise of any right. Subscriptions will not be deemed to have been received or accepted until
all irregularities have been waived or cured within such time as we determine in our sole discretion.

 
We will not be under any duty to give notification of any defect or irregularity in connection with the submission of subscription certificates or incur

any liability for failure to give such notification.
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We may, in our sole discretion, terminate the rights offering at any time prior to delivery of the shares of our common stock offered hereby if the

subscription price is less than [ ]% of the net asset value attributable to a share of common stock disclosed in the most recent periodic report we filed with the
SEC by giving oral or written notice thereof to the subscription agent and making a public announcement thereof. If the offering is terminated, all rights will
expire without value and we will promptly arrange for the refund, without interest, of all funds received from holders of rights. All monies received by the
subscription agent in connection with the offering will be held by the subscription agent, on our behalf, in a segregated interest-bearing account at a
negotiated rate. All such interest shall be payable to us even if we determine to terminate the offering and return your subscription payment. [In addition, no
amounts paid to acquire rights on [insert name of any applicable exchange on which rights are listed] or otherwise will be returned.]

 
Dilutive Effects
 

Any shareholder who chooses not to participate in the offering should expect to own a smaller interest in us upon completion of the offering. The
offering will dilute the ownership interest and voting power of shareholders who do not fully exercise their basic subscription rights. Further, because the net
proceeds per share from the offering may be lower than our net asset value per share, the offering may reduce our net asset value per share. The amount of
dilution that a shareholder will experience could be substantial.

 
Shares of closed-end investment companies have in the past frequently traded at discounts to their net asset values. This characteristic of closed-end

investment companies is separate and distinct from the risk that our net asset value per share may decline. We cannot predict whether our shares will trade
above, at or below our net asset value.
 

[The transferable feature of the rights will afford non-participating shareholders the potential of receiving cash payment upon the sale of rights,
receipt of which may be viewed as partial compensation for the dilution of their interests.]

 
Information Agent
 

will act as the information agent in connection with the offering. The information agent will receive for its services a fee estimated to be
approximately $    plus reimbursement of all out-of-pocket expenses related to the offering.                   can be contacted at the below address:

 
Subscription Agent
 

will act as the subscription agent in connection with this offer. The subscription agent will receive for its administrative, processing,
invoicing and other services a fee estimated to be approximately $    , plus reimbursement for all out-of-pocket expenses related to the offer.

 
Completed subscription certificates must be sent together with full payment of the subscription price for all shares subscribed for in the primary

subscription and pursuant to over-subscription privilege to the subscription agent by one of the methods described below. Alternatively, an Eligible Guarantor
Institution may send notices of guaranteed delivery by facsimile to which must be received by the subscription agent at or prior to   p.m., New York City time,
on the expiration date of the rights offering. Facsimiles should be confirmed by telephone at . We will accept only properly completed and duly executed
subscription certificates actually received at any of the addresses listed below, at or prior to  p.m., New York City time, on the expiration date of the rights
offering or by the close of business on the third business day after the expiration date of the rights offering following timely receipt of a notice of guaranteed
delivery. See “—Payment for Shares” below. In this prospectus supplement, close of business means  p.m., New York City time, on the relevant date.

 
Subscription Certificate
Delivery Method  Address/Number
By Notice of Guaranteed Delivery:

 

Contact an Eligible Guarantor Institution, which may include a commercial bank or
trust company, a member firm of a domestic stock exchange or a savings bank or
credit union, to notify us of your intent to exercise the rights.

   
By First Class Mail Only (Not Overnight /Express Mail):   
   
By Overnight Delivery:   
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Delivery to an address other than one of the addresses listed above will not constitute valid delivery.

 
Any questions or requests for assistance concerning the method of subscribing for shares or for additional copies of this prospectus or subscription

certificates or notices of guaranteed delivery may be directed to the information agent at its telephone number and address listed below:
 
Shareholders may also contact their broker-dealers or nominees for information with respect to the offer.
 

[Sale of Rights
 
The Rights are Transferable
 

The rights will be listed for trading on        under the symbol “ “ subject to notice of issuance. We and the dealer manager will use our best efforts to
ensure that an adequate trading market for the rights will exist, although no assurance can be given that a market for the rights will develop. Trading in the
rights on       is expected to be conducted beginning on or about , , and continuing until , (or if the offer is extended, until the extended expiration date). Rights
holders are encouraged to contact their broker-dealer, bank, trustee or other nominees for more information about trading of the rights.

 
Sales Through Subscription Agent and Dealer Manager
 

Shareholders who do not wish to exercise any or all of their rights may instruct the subscription agent to sell any rights they do not intend to exercise
themselves through or to the dealer manager. Subscription certificates representing the rights to be sold through or to the dealer manager must be received by
the subscription agent on or before , (or if the offer is extended, on or before two business days prior to the extended expiration date). Upon the timely receipt
by the subscription agent of appropriate instructions to sell rights, the subscription agent will ask the dealer manager either to purchase or to use its best
efforts to complete the sale and the subscription agent will remit the proceeds of the sale to the selling shareholders. If the rights can be sold, sales of such
rights will be deemed to have been effected at the weighted-average price received by the dealer manager on the day such rights are sold. The sale price of
any rights sold to the dealer manager will be based upon the then current market price for the rights. The dealer manager will also attempt to sell all rights
which remain unclaimed as a result of subscription certificates being returned by the postal authorities to the subscription agent as undeliverable as of the
fourth business day prior to the expiration date of the rights offering. The subscription agent will hold the proceeds from those sales for the benefit of such
non-claiming shareholders until such proceeds are either claimed or revert to the state pursuant to applicable state law. There can be no assurance that the
dealer manager will purchase or be able to complete the sale of any such rights, and neither we nor the dealer manager has guaranteed any minimum sales
price for the rights. If a shareholder does not utilize the services of the subscription agent and chooses to use another broker-dealer or other financial
institution to sell rights, then the other broker-dealer or financial institution may charge a fee to sell the rights.

 
Other Transfers
 

The rights evidenced by a subscription certificate may be transferred in whole by endorsing the subscription certificate for transfer in accordance
with the accompanying instructions. A portion of the rights evidenced by a single subscription certificate (but not fractional rights) may be transferred by
delivering to the subscription agent a subscription certificate properly endorsed for transfer, with instructions to register such portion of the rights evidenced
thereby in the name of the transferee and to issue a new subscription certificate to the transferee evidencing such transferred rights. In such event, a new
subscription certificate evidencing the balance of the rights, if any, will be issued to the shareholder or, if the shareholder so instructs, to an additional
transferee. The signature on the subscription certificate must correspond to the name as written upon the face of the subscription certificate in every particular,
without alteration or enlargement, or any change. A signature guarantee must be provided by an Eligible Guarantor Institution as that term is defined in
Rule 17Ad-15 under the Exchange Act, subject to the standards and procedures adopted by us.

 
Shareholders wishing to transfer all or a portion of their rights should allow at least five business days prior to the expiration date of the rights

offering for (1) the transfer instructions to be received and processed by the subscription agent, (2) a new subscription certificate to be issued and transmitted
to the transferee or transferees with respect to transferred rights, and to the transferor with respect to retained rights, if any, and (3) the rights evidenced by
such new subscription certificate to be exercised or sold by the recipients thereof. Neither we nor the subscription agent nor the dealer manager shall have any
liability to a transferee or transferor of rights if subscription certificates are not received in time for exercise or sale prior to the expiration date (or if the offer
is extended, on or before two business days prior to the extended expiration date) of the rights offering.

 
Except for the fees charged by the subscription agent [and dealer manager], which will be paid by us, all commissions, fees and other expenses

(including brokerage commissions and transfer taxes) incurred or charged in connection with the purchase, sale or exercise of rights will be for the account of
the transferor of the rights, and none of those commissions, fees or expenses will be paid by us, the subscription agent or the dealer manager.
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We anticipate that the rights will be eligible for transfer through, and that the exercise of the primary subscription and the over-subscription privilege

may be effected through, the facilities of the (“     ”). Holders of exercised rights may exercise the over-subscription privilege in respect of such        exercised
rights by properly completing and duly executing and delivering to the subscription agent, at or prior to      p.m., New York City time, on the day prior to the
expiration date of the rights offering, a nominee holder over-subscription certificate or a substantially similar form satisfactory to the subscription agent,
together with payment of the subscription price for the number of shares for which the over-subscription privilege is to be exercised.]

 
Methods for Exercising Rights
 

Rights are evidenced by subscription certificates that, except as described below under “—Foreign Shareholders,” will be mailed to record date
shareholders or, if a record date shareholder’s shares are held by or any other depository or nominee on their behalf, to or such depository or nominee. Rights
may be exercised by completing and signing the subscription certificate that accompanies this prospectus and mailing it in the envelope provided, or
otherwise delivering the completed and duly executed subscription certificate to the subscription agent, together with payment in full for the shares at the
estimated subscription price by the expiration date of the rights offering. Rights may also be exercised by contacting your broker, trustee or other nominee,
who can arrange, on your behalf, to guarantee delivery of payment and delivery of a properly completed and duly executed subscription certificate pursuant to
a notice of guaranteed delivery by the close of business on the third business day after the expiration date. A fee may be charged for this service. Completed
subscription certificates and related payments must be received by the subscription agent prior to   p.m., New York City time, on or before the expiration date
(unless payment is effected by means of a notice of guaranteed delivery as described below under “—Payment for Shares”) at the offices of the subscription
agent at the address set forth above. Fractional shares will not be issued upon the exercise of rights.

 
[Exercise of the Over-Subscription Privilege
 

Record date shareholders who fully exercise all rights issued to them and rights holders other than record date shareholders, may both participate in
the over-subscription privilege by indicating on their subscription certificate the number of shares they are willing to acquire. If sufficient remaining shares
are available after the primary subscription, all over-subscriptions will be honored in full; otherwise remaining shares will be allocated first to record date
shareholders and then (if any remaining shares are still available) to non-record date rights holders, and the number of remaining shares issued to some or all
rights holders participating in the over-subscription privilege may be reduced as described under “—Over-Subscription Privilege” above. ]

 
Record Date Shareholders Whose Shares Are Held By a Nominee
 

Record date shareholders whose shares are held by a nominee, such as a bank, broker-dealer or trustee, must contact that nominee to exercise their
rights. In that case, the nominee will complete the subscription certificate on behalf of the record date shareholder and arrange for proper payment by one of
the methods set forth under “—Payment for Shares” below.

 
Nominees

 
Nominees, such as brokers, trustees or depositories for securities, who hold shares for the account of others, should notify the respective beneficial

owners of the shares as soon as possible to ascertain the beneficial owners’ intentions and to obtain instructions with respect to the rights. If the beneficial
owner so instructs, the nominee should complete the subscription certificate and submit it to the subscription agent with the proper payment as described
under “—Payment for Shares” below.

 
All questions as to the validity, form, eligibility (including times of receipt and matters pertaining to beneficial ownership) and the acceptance of

subscription forms and the subscription price will be determined by us, which determinations will be final and binding. No alternative, conditional or
contingent subscriptions will be accepted. We reserve the right to reject any or all subscriptions not properly submitted or the acceptance of which would, in
the opinion of our counsel, be unlawful.

 
We reserve the right to reject any exercise if such exercise is not in accordance with the terms of this rights offering or not in proper form or if the

acceptance thereof or the issuance of shares of our common stock thereto could be deemed unlawful. We reserve the right to waive any deficiency or
irregularity with respect to any subscription certificate. Subscriptions will not be deemed to have been received or accepted until all irregularities have been
waived or cured within such time as we determine in our sole discretion. We will not be under any duty to give notification of any defect or irregularity in
connection with the submission of subscription certificates or incur any liability for failure to give such notification.

 
Foreign Shareholders
 

Subscription certificates will not be mailed to foreign shareholders. Foreign shareholders will receive written notice of this offer. The subscription
agent will hold the rights to which those subscription certificates relate for these shareholders’ accounts until instructions are received to exercise the rights,
subject to applicable law. If no instructions have been received by the expiration date, such rights will expire.
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Payment for Shares
 

Participating rights holders may choose between the following methods of payment:
 

(1) A participating rights holder may send the subscription certificate together with payment for the shares acquired in the primary subscription and any
additional shares subscribed for pursuant to the over-subscription privilege to the subscription agent based on the estimated subscription price of    $
per share [( % of $ , the last reported sale price of a share on   on , )]. To be accepted, the payment, together with a properly completed and executed
subscription certificate, must be received by the subscription agent at one of the subscription agent’s offices set forth above, at or prior to   p.m., New
York City time, on the expiration date.

 
(2) A participating rights holder may request an Eligible Guarantor Institution as that term is defined in Rule 17Ad-15 under the Exchange Act to send a

notice of guaranteed delivery by facsimile or otherwise guaranteeing delivery of (a) payment of the full subscription price for the shares subscribed
for in the primary subscription and any additional shares subscribed for pursuant to the over-subscription privilege and (b) a properly completed and
duly executed subscription certificate. The subscription agent will not honor a notice of guaranteed delivery unless a properly completed and duly
executed subscription certificate and full payment for the shares is received by the subscription agent at or prior to   p.m., New York City time, on ,
(or, if the offer is extended, by the close of business on the third business day after the extended expiration date).

 
All payments by a participating rights holder must be in U.S. dollars by money order or check or bank draft drawn on a bank or branch located in the

U.S. and payable to . The subscription agent will deposit all funds received by it prior to the final payment date into a segregated account pending pro-ration
and distribution of the shares.

 
The method of delivery of subscription certificates and payment of the subscription price to us will be at the election and risk of the

participating rights holders, but if sent by mail it is recommended that such certificates and payments be sent by registered mail, properly insured,
with return receipt requested, and that a sufficient number of days be allowed to ensure delivery to the subscription agent and clearance of payment
prior to   p.m., New York City time, on the expiration date or the date guaranteed payments are due under a notice of guaranteed delivery (as
applicable). Because uncertified personal checks may take at least five business days to clear, you are strongly urged to pay, or arrange for payment,
by means of certified or cashier’s check or money order.

 
On a date within business days following the expiration date, the subscription agent will send to each participating rights holder (or, if rights are held

by or any other depository or nominee, to or such other depository or nominee) a confirmation showing (1) the number of shares purchased pursuant to the
primary subscription, (2) the number of shares, if any, acquired pursuant to the over-subscription privilege, (3) the per share and total purchase price for the
shares, and (4) any additional amount payable to us by the participating rights holder or any excess to be refunded by us to the participating rights holder, in
each case based on the subscription price as determined on the expiration date. Any additional payment required from a participating rights holder must be
received by the subscription agent within ten business days after the confirmation date. Any excess payment to be refunded by us to a participating rights
holder will be mailed by the subscription agent to the rights holder as promptly as practicable. No interest will be paid on any amounts refunded.

 
Whichever of the two methods described above is used, issuance of the shares purchased is subject to collection of checks and actual

payment. If a participating rights holder who subscribes for shares pursuant to the primary subscription or over-subscription privilege does not make payment
of any amounts due by the expiration date, the date guaranteed payments are due under a notice of guaranteed delivery or within ten business days of the
confirmation date, as applicable, the subscription agent reserves the right to take any or all of the following actions: (1) reallocate the shares to other
participating rights holders in accordance with the over-subscription privilege; (2) apply any payment actually received by it from the participating rights
holder toward the purchase of the greatest whole number of shares which could be acquired by such participating rights holder upon exercise of the primary
subscription and/or the over-subscription privilege; and/or (3) exercise any and all other rights or remedies to which it may be entitled, including the right to
set off against payments actually received by it with respect to such subscribed for shares.

 
All questions concerning the timeliness, validity, form and eligibility of any exercise of rights will be determined by us, whose determinations will

be final and binding. We in our sole discretion may waive any defect or irregularity, or permit a defect or irregularity to be corrected within such time as we
may determine, or reject the purported exercise of any right. Subscriptions will not be deemed to have been received or accepted until all irregularities have
been waived or cured within such time as we determine in our sole discretion. The subscription agent will not be under any duty to give notification of any
defect or irregularity in connection with the submission of subscription certificates or incur any liability for failure to give such notification.
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Participating rights holders will have no right to rescind their subscription after receipt of their payment for shares by the subscription agent, except
as provided below under “—Notice of Net Asset Value Decline.”
 
Notice of Net Asset Value Decline
 

We will suspend the offer until we amend this prospectus if, subsequent to the effective date of this prospectus, our net asset value declines more
than          % from our net asset value as of that date. Accordingly, the expiration date would be extended and we would notify record date shareholders of the
decline and permit participating rights holders to cancel their exercise of rights.

 
Delivery of Stock Certificates
 

Participants in our dividend reinvestment plan will have any shares that they acquire pursuant to the offer credited to their shareholder dividend
reinvestment accounts in the plan. Shareholders whose shares are held of record by       or by any other depository or nominee on their behalf or their broker-
dealers’ behalf will have any shares that they acquire credited to the account of         or the other depository or nominee. With respect to all other
shareholders, stock certificates for all shares acquired will be mailed after payment for all the shares subscribed for has cleared, which may take up to
       days from the date of receipt of the payment.

 
Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Offer
 

For federal income tax purposes, neither the receipt nor the exercise of the rights by record date shareholders will result in taxable income to such
shareholders, and no loss will be realized if the rights expire without exercise.

 
A record date shareholder’s basis in a right will be zero unless either (1) the fair market value of the right on the date of distribution is      % or more

of the fair market value of the shares with respect to which the right was distributed or (2) the record date shareholder elects, in his or her federal income tax
return for the taxable year in which the right is received, to allocate part of the basis of the shares to the right. If either of clauses (1) or (2) is applicable, then
if the right is exercised, the record date shareholder will allocate his or her basis in the shares with respect to which the right was distributed between the
shares and the right in proportion to the fair market values of each on the date of distribution.

 
The holding period of a right received by a record date shareholder includes the holding period of the shares with regard to which the right is issued.

If the right is exercised, the holding period of the shares acquired begins on the date the right is exercised.
 
[If a right is sold, a gain or loss will be realized by the rights holder in an amount equal to the difference between the basis of the right sold and the

amount realized on its disposition.]
 

A record date shareholder’s basis for determining gain or loss upon the sale of a share acquired upon the exercise of a right will be equal to the sum
of the record date shareholder’s basis in the right, if any, and the subscription price per share. A record date shareholder’s gain or loss recognized upon a sale
of a share acquired upon the exercise of a right will be capital gain or loss (assuming the share was held as a capital asset at the time of sale) and will be long-
term capital gain or loss if the share is held for more than one year.

 
The foregoing is a general summary of the material U.S. federal income tax consequences of the offer under the provisions of the Code and Treasury

regulations in effect as of the date of the prospectus that are generally applicable to record date shareholders who are U.S. persons within the meaning of the
Code, and does not address any foreign, state or local tax consequences. The Code and Treasury regulations are subject to change or differing interpretations
by legislative or administrative action, which may be retroactive. Participating rights holders should consult their tax advisors regarding specific questions as
to foreign, federal, state or local taxes.

 
ERISA Considerations
 

Shareholders who are employee benefit plans subject to the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, or ERISA (including corporate
savings and 401(k) plans), Keogh or H.R. 10 plans of self-employed individuals and individual retirement accounts should be aware that additional
contributions of cash to a retirement plan (other than rollover contributions or trustee-to-trustee transfers from other retirement plans) in order to exercise
rights would be treated as contributions to the retirement plan and, when taken together with contributions previously made, may result in, among other
things, excise taxes for excess or nondeductible contributions. In the case of retirement plans qualified under Section 401(a) of the Code and certain other
retirement plans, additional cash contributions could cause the maximum contribution limitations of Section 415 of the Code or other qualification rules to be
violated. It may also be a reportable distribution and there may be other adverse tax and ERISA consequences if rights are sold or transferred by a retirement
plan.
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Retirement plans and other tax exempt entities, including governmental plans, should also be aware that if they borrow in order to finance their

exercise of rights, they may become subject to the tax on unrelated business taxable income under Section 511 of the Code. If any portion of an individual
retirement account is used as security for a loan, the portion so used is also treated as distributed to the IRA depositor. ERISA contains fiduciary
responsibility requirements, and ERISA and the Code contain prohibited transaction rules that may impact the exercise of rights. Due to the complexity of
these rules and the penalties for noncompliance, retirement plans should consult with their counsel and other advisers regarding the consequences of their
exercise of rights under ERISA and the Code.

 
[Distribution Arrangements
 

, which is a broker-dealer and member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, will act as dealer manager for this offer. Under the terms and
subject to the conditions contained in the dealer management agreement, the dealer manager will provide financial advisory and marketing services in
connection with this offer and will solicit the exercise of rights and participation in the over-subscription privilege. This offer is not contingent upon any
number of rights being exercised. We have agreed to pay the dealer manager a fee for its financial advisory, marketing and soliciting services equal to    % of
the aggregate subscription price for shares issued pursuant to this offer. In addition, we have agreed to reimburse the dealer manager an aggregate amount up
to $ for its expenses incurred in connection with this offer.

 
The dealer manager will reallow to other broker-dealers that have executed and delivered a soliciting dealer agreement and have solicited the

exercise of rights, solicitation fees equal to    % of the subscription price per share for each share issued pursuant to the exercise of rights as a result of their
soliciting efforts, subject to a maximum fee based on the number of shares held by each broker-dealer through     on the record date. Fees will be paid by us to
the broker-dealer designated on the applicable portion of the subscription certificates or, in the absence of such designation, to the dealer manager.

 
We have agreed to indemnify the dealer manager for, or contribute to losses arising out of, certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities

Act. The dealer manager agreement also provides that the dealer manager will not be subject to any liability to us in rendering the services contemplated by
the dealer manager agreement except for any act of bad faith, willful misfeasance, or gross negligence of the dealer manager or reckless disregard by the
dealer manager of its obligations and duties under the dealer manager agreement. We have also agreed not to directly or indirectly sell, offer to sell, enter into
any agreement to sell, or otherwise dispose of, any of our equity or equity related securities or securities convertible into such securities, other than the rights,
the shares and the common stock issued in connection with the reinvestment of dividends or distributions, for a period of days from the date hereof without
the prior consent of the dealer manager.

 
The principal business address of the dealer manager is                  ..
 
Prior to the expiration of this offer, the dealer manager may independently offer for sale shares, including shares acquired through purchasing and

exercising the rights, at prices it sets. The dealer manager may realize profits or losses independent of any fees described in this prospectus.
 
This offering is being conducted in compliance with Rule 5110 of the Conduct Rules of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority.]
 

Additional Dealer Manager Compensation
 

The dealer manager and/or its affiliates have from time to time performed and may in the future perform various commercial banking, financial
advisory and investment banking services for us and our affiliates for which they have received or will receive customary compensation. [Describe any
specific transactions and compensation related thereto required to be disclosed by applicable law or regulation.]

 
Certain Effects of this Offer
 

the Investment Adviser will benefit from this offer because a portion of the investment advisory fee we pay to the Investment Adviser is based on our
gross assets. See “Management—Investment Advisory Agreement” in the accompanying prospectus. It is not possible to state precisely the amount of
additional compensation the Investment Adviser will receive as a result of this offer because it is not known how many shares will be subscribed for and
because a substantial portion of the proceeds of the offer are expected to be used to repay outstanding indebtedness. However, assuming (1) all rights are
exercised, (2) the average value of our gross assets, excluding proceeds from this offer, remains at approximately $ million, (3) the estimated subscription
price is $ per share, and (4) all of the proceeds from the offer are invested in additional portfolio companies, and after giving effect to dealer manager fees and
other expenses related to this offer, the Investment Adviser would receive additional annualized advisory fees of approximately $ , and the amount of the
administrative fees received by the Administrator would not change. [ ] of our directors who voted to authorize this offer are interested persons of the
Investment Adviser. The other directors who approved this offer are not affiliated with the Investment Adviser.
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As a result of the terms of this offer, shareholders who do not fully exercise their rights will own, upon completion of this offer, a smaller

proportional interest in us than they owned prior to the offer, including with respect to voting rights. [In addition, because the subscription price per share will
likely be less than the net asset value per share, based on our current market price, the offer will likely result in an immediate dilution of net asset value per
share for all of our shareholders. If the subscription price per share is substantially less than the current net asset value per share, such dilution could be
substantial. Any such dilution will disproportionately affect non-exercising shareholders. If the subscription price is less than our net asset value per share,
then all shareholders will experience a decrease in the net asset value per share held by them, irrespective of whether they exercise all or any portion of their
rights. This offering will also cause dilution in the dividends per share we are able to distribute subsequent to completion of the offering. See “Dilution.”
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LEGAL MATTERS

 
Certain legal matters in connection with the securities offered hereby will be passed upon for us by Sutherland Asbill & Brennan LLP, Washington,

District of Columbia. Certain legal matters in connection with the securities offered hereby will be passed upon for the underwriters by             ,            
,             ..

 
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

 
[Include information regarding OFS Capital Corporation’s independent registered public accounting firm to the extent required to be disclosed by applicable
law or regulation.]
 

AVAILABLE INFORMATION
 

We have filed with the SEC a registration statement on Form N-2, together with all amendments and related exhibits, under the Securities Act, with
respect to our securities offered by this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. The registration statement contains additional information
about us and our securities being offered by this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus.

 
We will file with or submit to the SEC periodic and current reports, proxy statements and other information meeting the informational requirements of the

Exchange Act. You may inspect and copy these reports, proxy statements and other information, as well as the registration statement and related exhibits and
schedules, at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549-0102. You may obtain information on the operation of the
Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at (800) SEC-0330. We maintain a website at http://www.ofscapitalcorp.com and make all of our periodic and
current reports, proxy statements and other publicly filed information available, free of charge, on or through our website. Information contained on our
website is not incorporated into this prospectus supplement, and you should not consider information on our website to be part of this prospectus supplement.
You may also obtain such information by contacting us in writing at 10 S. Wacker Drive, Suite 2500, Chicago, IL, 60606, Attention: Investor Relations. The
SEC maintains a website that contains reports, proxy and information statements and other information we file with the SEC at www.sec.gov. Copies of these
reports, proxy and information statements and other information may also be obtained, after paying a duplicating fee, by electronic request at the following e-
mail address: publicinfo@sec.gov, or by writing the SEC’s Public Reference Section, 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549-0102.
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PRELIMINARY PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

 
, 20     

 
 

 
[Dealer Manager]

 

 



  
Exhibit (s)(5)

 
This preliminary prospectus supplement relates to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, but the
information in this preliminary prospectus supplement is not complete and may be changed. This preliminary prospectus supplement and the
accompanying prospectus are not an offer to sell and are not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer and sale is
not permitted.

 
 [FORM OF PRELIMINARY PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT TO BE USED IN

CONJUNCTION WITH FUTURE WARRANT OFFERINGS](1)

 
PRELIMINARY PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

(to Prospectus dated     , 20  )
 

                 Shares
 

OFS Capital Corporation
Warrants to Purchase Up to                [Type of Security]

 
We are an externally managed, non-diversified, closed-end management investment company that has elected to be treated as a business development

company under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, or the 1940 Act. Our investment objective is to provide our shareholders with both current
income and capital appreciation primarily through debt investments and, to a lesser extent, equity investments.

 
We are offering for sale warrants to purchase up to             [type of security]. Each warrant entitles the holder to purchase                 [type of security].

  
The exercise price will be $          per warrant. The warrants will be exercisable beginning on          , 20 , and will expire on       , 20 , or earlier upon

redemption.
  

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol “OFS.” On , the last reported sales price on the NASDAQ Global
Select Market for our common stock was $ per share. We are required to determine the net asset value per share of our common stock on a quarterly basis.
Our net asset value per share of our common stock as of was $ .

 
We qualify as an emerging growth company, as that term is used in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (the “JOBS Act”). An emerging

growth company may take advantage of specified reduced reporting and other burdens that are otherwise applicable generally to public companies. However,
we are choosing to “opt out” of such extended transition period, and as a result, we will comply with new or revised accounting standards on the relevant
dates on which adoption of such standards is required for non-emerging growth companies. Our decision to opt out of the extended transition period for
complying with new or revised accounting standards is irrevocable.

 
Substantially all of the debt securities in which we invest are below investment grade debt securities and are often referred to as “high yield” or “junk”

securities. Exposure to below investment grade securities involves certain risk, and those securities are viewed as having predominately speculative
characteristics with respect to the issuer’s capacity to pay interest and repay principal. A material amount of our debt investments contain floating interest rate
provisions that may make it more difficult for the borrowers to make debt repayments. Further, our debt investments generally will not pay down principal
during their term, which could result in a substantial loss to us if the portfolio company is unable to refinance or repay the debt at maturity.

 
Investing in our securities involves a high degree of risk, including credit risk and the risk of the use of leverage. Before buying any of our

securities, you should read the discussion of the material risks of investing in our securities in “Supplementary Risk Factors” in this prospectus
supplement and “Risk Factors” in the accompanying prospectus.
 
 

1 In addition to the sections outlined in this form of prospectus supplement, each prospectus supplement actually used in connection with an offering
conducted pursuant to the registration statement to which this form of prospectus supplement is attached will be updated to include such other information as
may then be required to be disclosed therein pursuant to applicable law or regulation as in effect as of the date of each such prospectus supplement, including,
without limitation, information particular to the terms of each security offered thereby and any related risk factors or tax considerations pertaining thereto.
This form of prospectus supplement is intended only to provide a rough approximation of the nature and type of disclosure that may appear in any actual
prospectus supplement used for the purposes of offering securities pursuant to the registration statement to which this form of prospectus supplement is
attached, and is not intended to and does not contain all of the information that would appear in any such actual prospectus supplement, and should not be
used or relied upon in connection with any offer or sale of securities.

 

 



 

   
Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities, or

determined if this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal
offense.

 
Please read this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus before investing and keep it for future reference. It contains important

information about us that a prospective investor ought to know before investing in our securities. We file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy
statements and other information about us with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The information is available free of charge by contacting Investor
Relations of OFS Capital Corporation, 10 S. Wacker Drive, Suite 2500, Chicago, IL 60606, or by calling us at (847) 734-2000 or on our website at
www.ofscapital.com. The Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC, maintains a website at www.sec.gov where such information is available without
charge. Information contained on our website is not incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement, and you should not consider information
contained on our website to be part of this prospectus supplement.
 
  Per Share   Total  
Public Offering Price  $    $   
Sales Load (Underwriting Discounts and Commissions)  $    $   
Proceeds to us (before expenses)  $    $   
 
 

(1) We will incur approximately $[            ] of estimated expenses, excluding the sales load, in connection with this offering. Our shareholders will bear such
expenses, including the sales load.
 
(2) To the extent that the underwriters sell more than [            ] warrants, the underwriters have the option to purchase up to an additional [            ] warrants at
the public offering price, less the sales load, within [ ] days of the date of this prospectus supplement. If the underwriters exercise this option in full, the total
public offering price, sales load and proceeds to us will be $            , $ and $            , respectively.

 
The underwriters expect to deliver the warrants against payment in New York, New York on or about                 , 20    .

 
                            , 20
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ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

 
You should rely only on the information contained in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. Neither we nor the

underwriters have authorized any other person to provide you with different information from that contained in this prospectus supplement or the
accompanying prospectus. If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent information, you should not rely on it. This prospectus supplement
and the accompanying prospectus do not constitute an offer to sell, or a solicitation of an offer to buy, any of our warrants by any person in any
jurisdiction where it is unlawful for that person to make such an offer or solicitation or to any person in any jurisdiction to whom it is unlawful to
make such an offer or solicitation. The information contained in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus is complete and
accurate only as of their respective dates, regardless of the time of their delivery or sale of our warrants. This prospectus supplement supersedes the
accompanying prospectus to the extent it contains information different from or additional to the information in that prospectus.

 
This document is in two parts. The first part is this prospectus supplement, which describes the terms of this offering of the warrants and also adds to

and updates information contained in the accompanying prospectus. The second part is the accompanying prospectus, which gives more general information
and disclosure. To the extent the information contained in this prospectus supplement differs from the information contained in the accompanying prospectus,
the information in this prospectus supplement shall control. Please carefully read this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus together with
any exhibits and the additional information described under “Available Information” before you make an investment decision.

 

 



 

  

 
PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT SUMMARY

 
This summary highlights some of the information in this prospectus supplement. It is not complete and may not contain all of the information that you

may want to consider before investing in our securities. Throughout this prospectus supplement, we refer to OFS Capital Corporation and its consolidated
subsidiaries as the “Company,” “we,” “us” or “our;” OFS Capital Management, LLC as “OFS Advisor” or the “Advisor;” and OFS Capital Services,
LLC as “OFS Services” or the “Administrator.”

  
OFS Capital Corporation

 
We are an externally managed, closed-end, non-diversified management investment company formed in March 2001. Our investment objective is to

provide our shareholders with both current income and capital appreciation primarily through debt investments and, to a lesser extent, equity investments.
Our investment strategy focuses primarily on investments in middle-market companies in the United States. We use the term “middle-market” to refer to
companies which may exhibit one or more of the following characteristics: number of employees between 150 and 2,000; revenues between $15 million
and $300 million; annual earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, or EBITDA, between $3 million and $50 million; generally,
private companies owned by private equity firms or owners/operators; and enterprise value between $10 million and $500 million. For additional
information about how we define the middle-market, see “The Company — Investment Criteria/Guidelines” in the accompanying prospectus.

 
In connection with our initial public offering, or IPO, on November 7, 2012, we converted from a limited liability company to a corporation, as a result

of which the sole membership interest held by Orchard First Source Asset Management, LLC, or OFSAM, prior to the conversion was exchanged for
2,912,024 shares of our common stock. In connection with our IPO, we elected to be treated as a business development company, or BDC, under the 1940
Act. On November 14, 2012, we completed our IPO, selling 6,666,667 shares of our common stock at a public offering price of $15 per share and raising
$100 million in gross proceeds. We incurred approximately $6.2 million of sales load and $5.8 million of offering related costs in connection with our IPO.
We utilized approximately $90 million of our IPO proceeds to pay down the senior secured revolving credit facility, which OFS Capital WM, LLC, or
OFS Capital WM, our wholly owned subsidiary, entered into with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., or Wells Fargo, and Madison Capital Funding LLC, a
subsidiary of New York Life Investments, or Madison Capital, to finance its business.

 
As of September 30, 2014, our investment portfolio consisted of outstanding loans of approximately $262.7 million in aggregate principal amount in

57 portfolio companies, of which $123.2 million in aggregate principal amount was held by OFS SBIC I, LP (formerly known as Tamarix Capital Partners,
L.P.), or SBIC I LP, our wholly-owned SBIC subsidiary, in 18 portfolio companies. As of that date, 88% of our investment portfolio was comprised of
senior secured loans, 7% of subordinated loans and 5% of equity investments, at fair value.

 
As of September 30, 2014, our net asset value was approximately $137.1 million, or approximately $14.22 per share.
 
While our investment strategy focuses primarily on middle-market companies in the United States, including senior secured loans, which includes

first-lien, second-lien and unitranche loans as well as subordinated loans and, to a lesser extent, warrants and other minority equity securities, we also may
invest up to 30% of our portfolio in opportunistic investments of non-eligible portfolio companies. Specifically, as part of this 30% basket, we may
consider investments in investment funds that are operating pursuant to certain exceptions to the 1940 Act and in advisers to similar investment funds, as
well as in debt of middle-market companies located outside of the United States and debt and equity of public companies that do not meet the definition of
eligible portfolio companies because their market capitalization of publicly traded equity securities exceeds the levels provided for in the 1940 Act.

 
Our investment strategy includes SBIC I LP, which received a small business investment company, or SBIC, license from the U.S. Small Business

Administration, or SBA, in May 2012. On December 4, 2013, we received approval from the SBA to acquire all of the limited partnership interests in
SBIC I LP and all of the ownership interests of its general partner, OFS SBIC I GP, LLC (formerly known as Tamarix Capital G.P. LLC), or SBIC I GP,
that were owned or subscribed for by other persons (the “SBIC Acquisitions”, or the “Tamarix Acquisitions”). We acquired the interests on December 4,
2013, which resulted in SBIC I LP becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary. The transaction was finalized in January 2014. For additional information on the
acquisition of SBIC I LP and SBIC I GP, see our consolidated financial statements and the related notes thereto included in the accompanying prospectus.
The SBIC license allows SBIC I LP to receive SBA-guaranteed debenture funding, subject to the issuance of a leverage commitment by the SBA and other
customary procedures. SBA leverage funding is subject to SBIC I LP’s payment of certain fees to the SBA, and the ability of SBIC I LP to draw on the
leverage commitment is subject to its compliance with SBA regulations and policies, including an audit by the SBA. For additional information regarding
the regulation of SBIC I LP, see “Regulation  — Small Business Investment Company Regulations” in the accompanying prospectus.
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On November 26, 2013, we received an exemptive order from the SEC to permit us to exclude the debt of SBIC I LP guaranteed by the SBA from the

definition of senior securities in the statutory 200% asset coverage ratio under the 1940 Act, allowing for greater capital deployment.
 
Our investment activities are managed by OFS Capital Management, LLC, or OFS Advisor, and supervised by our board of directors, a majority of

whom are independent of us, OFS Advisor and its affiliates. Under the investment advisory and management agreement between us and OFS Advisor, or
the Investment Advisory Agreement, we have agreed to pay OFS Advisor an annual base management fee based on the average value of our total assets
(other than cash and cash equivalents and certain non-cash items resulting from the SBIC Acquisitions but including assets purchased with borrowed
amounts and including assets owned by any consolidated entity) as well as an incentive fee based on our investment performance. On May 5, 2014, OFS
Advisor agreed to reduce its base management fee by two-thirds for the nine months commencing April 1, 2014 and ending December 31, 2014. For
additional information regarding the fees paid to OFS Advisor, see “Management and Other Agreements — Investment Advisory Agreement” in the
accompanying prospectus.

 
We have also entered into an administration agreement, or Administration Agreement, with OFS Capital Services, LLC, or OFS Services, our

Administrator. Under our Administration Agreement, we have agreed to reimburse OFS Services for our allocable portion (subject to the review and
approval of our independent directors) of overhead and other expenses incurred by OFS Services in performing its obligations under the Administration
Agreement.

 
As a BDC, we must not acquire any assets other than “qualifying assets” specified in the 1940 Act unless, at the time the acquisition is made, at least

70% of our total assets are qualifying assets (with certain limited exceptions). Qualifying assets include investments in “eligible portfolio companies.”
Under the relevant SEC rules, the term “eligible portfolio company” includes all private companies, companies whose securities are not listed on a
national securities exchange, and certain public companies that have listed their securities on a national securities exchange and have a market
capitalization of less than $250 million, in each case organized in the United States.

 
We are permitted to borrow money from time to time within the levels permitted by the 1940 Act (which generally allows us to incur leverage for up to

50% of our asset base). We may borrow money when the terms and conditions available are favorable to do so and are aligned with our investment
strategy and portfolio composition. The use of borrowed funds or the proceeds from issuing our preferred stock to make investments would have its own
specific benefits and risks, and all of the costs of borrowing funds or issuing preferred stock would be borne by holders of our common stock.

 
We have elected to be treated for tax purposes as a regulated investment company, or RIC, under Subchapter M of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,

or the Code. To qualify as a RIC, we must, among other things, meet certain source-of-income and assets diversification requirements. Pursuant to these
elections, we generally will not have to pay corporate-level taxes on any income we distribute to our shareholders.

 
On September 28, 2010, OFS Capital WM entered into a $180.0 million secured revolving credit facility (as amended from time to time, the “OFS

Capital WM Credit Facility”) with Wells Fargo and Madison Capital, with the Class A lenders (initially Wells Fargo) providing up to $135.0 million in
Class A loans (“Class A Facility”) and the Class B lenders (initially Madison Capital) providing up to $45.0 million in Class B loans (“Class B Facility”).
The OFS Capital WM Credit Facility is secured by all current and future eligible loans acquired by OFS Capital WM. The loan facilities with Wells Fargo
and Madison Capital had five- and six-year terms, respectively, and both facilities provided a one-year option for extension upon the approval of the
lenders. The loan facilities had a reinvestment period of two years after the closing date of the OFS Capital WM Credit Facility, which could be extended
by one year with the consent of each lender. Outstanding borrowings on the loan facilities were limited to the lesser of (1) $180.0 million and (2) the
borrowing base as defined by the OFS Capital WM Credit Facility loan documents. OFS Capital WM is obligated to pay interest on the outstanding loans
on each quarterly payment date. The Class B Facility was terminated in January 2013. In connection with the closing of the OFS Capital WM Credit
Facility, OFS Capital WM incurred financing costs of approximately $3.5 million were deferred and amortized over the term of OFS Capital WM Credit
Facility. As a result of the amendments to OFS Capital WM Credit Facility in 2012 (“WM 2012 Credit Facility Amendments”), we have substantial
additional input into certain key management decisions with respect to OFS Capital WM’s portfolio companies, including decisions with respect to
amendments to or modifications of the investments in these entities, or noticing or waiving of defaults or accelerating portfolio loans.

 
As a result of certain amendments through July 24, 2014, the OFS Capital WM Credit Facility’s borrowing base was adjusted and the minimum equity

requirement was lowered from $65.0 million to $35.0 million, resulting in additional liquidity for the Company. In addition, the maximum facility was
reduced from $180.0 million to $125.0 million.
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On November 18, 2014, OFS Capital WM elected to further reduce the maximum borrowing capacity on the OFS Capital WM Credit Facility from

$125.0 million to $100.0 million.
 
Organizational Structure

 
 
About OFS and Our Adviser

 
OFS (which refers to the collective activities and operations of OFSAM and its subsidiaries and certain affiliates) is an investment platform focused on

meeting the capital needs of middle-market companies. OFS is the successor to First Source Financial Inc., which was founded in 1995 as a joint venture
between Dominion Capital, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Dominion Resources, Inc., or Dominion, and Household Commercial Financial Services
Inc., a unit of Household International, or Household. Household sold its interest in First Source Financial Inc. to Dominion in 1997. In 2003, Orchard
Paladin Management, LLC, our predecessor, acquired from Dominion a portfolio of performing and non-performing loans of approximately $625 million
in aggregate commitment amount, plus additional investments in equity securities. Shortly thereafter, in 2004, Orchard Paladin Management, LLC
acquired Dominion’s interest in First Source Financial Inc. Most of the loan workouts and special situations investments managed by our senior managers
since 2003 involved loans in the portfolio acquired from Dominion and loans acquired as a result of the purchase of Dominion’s interest in First Source
Financial Inc.

 
As of September 30, 2014, OFS had 35 full-time employees and one part-time employee. OFS is headquartered in Chicago, Illinois, with additional

offices in New York, New York and Los Angeles, California.
 
Our investment activities are managed by OFS Advisor, our investment adviser. OFS Advisor is responsible for sourcing potential investments,

conducting research and diligence on potential investments and equity investors, analyzing investment opportunities, structuring our investments and
monitoring our investments and portfolio companies on an ongoing basis. OFS Advisor is a subsidiary of OFSAM, our parent company prior to the
completion of our IPO, and is a registered investment adviser under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, or the Advisers Act.

 
Our relationship with OFS Advisor is governed by and dependent on the Investment Advisory Agreement and may be subject to conflicts of interest.

We have entered into the Investment Advisory Agreement, pursuant to which OFS Advisor provides us with advisory services in exchange for a base
management fee and incentive fee. See “Management and Other Agreements — Investment Advisory Agreement” in the accompanying prospectus for a
discussion of the base management fee and incentive fee payable by us to OFS Advisor. The base management fee is based on our total assets (other than
cash and cash equivalents and the intangible asset and goodwill resulting from the SBIC Acquisitions but including assets purchased with borrowed
amounts and including assets owned by any consolidated entity) and, therefore, OFS Advisor will benefit when we incur debt or use leverage. Our board
of directors is charged with protecting our interests by monitoring how OFS Advisor addresses these and other conflicts of interest associated with its
management services and compensation. While our board of directors is not expected to review or approve each borrowing or incurrence of leverage, our
independent directors will periodically review OFS Advisor’s services and fees as well as its portfolio management decisions and portfolio performance.
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OFS Advisor has entered into a staffing agreement, or the Staffing Agreement, with Orchard First Source Capital, Inc., or OFSC, a wholly-owned

subsidiary of OFSAM. With the exception of Richard Ressler, OFSC employs all of OFS’s investment professionals. Under the Staffing Agreement, OFSC
will make experienced investment professionals available to OFS Advisor and provide access to the senior investment personnel of OFS and its affiliates.
The Staffing Agreement provides OFS Advisor with access to deal flow generated by OFS and its affiliates in the ordinary course of their businesses and
commits the members of OFS Advisor’s investment committee to serve in that capacity. As our investment adviser, OFS Advisor is obligated to allocate
investment opportunities among us and any other clients fairly and equitably over time in accordance with its allocation policy.

 
OFS Advisor capitalizes on the significant deal origination and sourcing, credit underwriting, due diligence, investment structuring, execution,

portfolio management and monitoring experience of OFS’s professionals. The senior management team of OFS, including Bilal Rashid, Jeff Cerny and
Mark Hauser, provides services to OFS Advisor. These managers have developed a broad network of contacts within the investment community, averaging
over 20 years of experience investing in debt and equity securities of middle-market companies. In addition, these managers have gained extensive
experience investing in assets that will constitute our primary focus and have expertise in investing across all levels of the capital structure of middle-
market companies.

 
OFS Advisor’s investment committee, or the Advisor Investment Committee, which is comprised of Richard Ressler (Chairman), Jeffrey Cerny, Peter

Fidler, Mark Hauser, Bilal Rashid, and Peter Rothschild, is responsible for our overall asset allocation decisions, as well as approval of all investments
made by us directly or through OFS Capital WM. Certain members of the Advisor Investment Committee perform a similar role for other investments
managed by OFS and its affiliates.

 
The investment committee for SBIC I LP, or the SBIC Investment Committee (and, together with the Advisor Investment Committee, the Investment

Committees), which is comprised of Peter Fidler, Mark Hauser, Glenn Pittson, and Peter Rothschild, is responsible for approval of all of investments made
by SBIC I LP. Any investment decision on the part of SBIC I LP requires the unanimous approval of the SBIC Investment Committee.
 
Our Administrator

 
OFS Services, an affiliate of OFS Advisor, provides the administrative services necessary for us to operate. OFS Services furnishes us with officers

and their staffs, office facilities and equipment, necessary software licenses and subscriptions and clerical, bookkeeping and recordkeeping services at such
facilities. OFS Services oversees our financial reporting as well as prepares our reports to shareholders and all other reports and materials required to be
filed with the SEC or any other regulatory authority. OFS Services also manages the determination and publication of our net asset value and the
preparation and filing of our tax returns and generally monitors the payment of our expenses and the performance of administrative and professional
services rendered to us by others. OFS Services may retain third parties to assist in providing administrative services to us.
 
Market Opportunity

 
Our investment strategy is focused primarily on investments in middle-market companies in the United States. We find the middle-market attractive for

the following reasons:
 
Large Target Market.  We believe that these middle-market companies represent a significant growth segment of the U.S. economy and often require

substantial capital investments to grow.
 
Specialized Lending Requirements with High Barriers to Entry.  We believe that several factors render many U.S. financial institutions ill-suited to

lend to U.S. middle-market companies. As a result, middle-market companies historically have been served by a limited segment of the lending
community. As a result of the unique challenges facing lenders to middle-market companies, there are high barriers to entry that a new lender must
overcome.

 
Robust Demand for Debt Capital.  We believe that private equity firms have significant committed but uncalled capital, a large portion of which is still

available for investment in the United States.
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Competitive Strengths and Core Competencies

 
Deep Management Team Experienced in All Phases of Investment Cycle and Across All Levels of the Capital Structure.  We are managed by OFS

Advisor, which has access through the Staffing Agreement with OFSC to the resources and expertise of OFS’s investment professionals. As of September
30, 2014, OFS’s credit and investment professionals (including all investment committee members) employed by OFSC had an average of over 15 years of
investment experience with strong institutional backgrounds.

 
Significant Investment Capacity.  The net proceeds of equity and debt offerings and borrowing capacity under our credit facilities will provide us with

a substantial amount of capital available for deployment into new investment opportunities in our targeted asset class.
 
Scalable Infrastructure Supporting the Entire Investment Cycle.  We believe that our loan acquisition, origination and sourcing, underwriting,

administration and management platform is highly scalable (that is, it can be expanded on a cost efficient basis within a timeframe that meets the demands
of business growth). Our platform extends beyond origination and sourcing and includes a regimented credit monitoring system. We believe that our
careful approach, which involves ongoing review and analysis by an experienced team of professionals, should enable us to identify problems early and to
assist borrowers before they face difficult liquidity constraints.

 
Extensive Loan Sourcing Capabilities.  OFS Advisor gives us access to the deal flow of OFS. We believe OFS’s 19-year history as a middle-market

lending platform and its market position make it a leading lender to many sponsors and other deal sources, especially in the currently under-served lending
environment, and we have extensive relationships with potential borrowers and other lenders.

 
Structuring with a High Level of Service and Operational Orientation.  We provide client-specific and creative financing structures to our portfolio

companies. Based on our experience in lending to and investing in middle-market companies, we believe that the middle-market companies we target, as
well as sponsor groups we may pursue, require a higher level of service, creativity and knowledge than has historically been provided by other service
providers more accustomed to participating in commodity-like loan transactions.

 
Rigorous Credit Analysis and Approval Procedures.  OFS Advisor utilizes the established, disciplined investment process of OFS for reviewing

lending opportunities, structuring transactions and monitoring investments. Using OFS’s disciplined approach to lending, OFS Advisor seeks to minimize
credit losses through effective underwriting, comprehensive due diligence investigations, structuring and, where appropriate, the implementation of
restrictive debt covenants.
 
Structure of Investments

 
We anticipate that our loan portfolio will continue to contain investments of the following types:
 
First-Lien Senior Secured Loans.  First-lien senior secured loans comprise a significant portion of our investment portfolio.
 
Senior Secured Unitranche Loans.  Unitranche loans are loans that combine both senior and subordinated debt into one loan under which the

borrower pays a single blended interest rate that is intended to reflect the relative risk of the secured and unsecured components.
 
Second-lien Senior Secured Loans.  We obtain security interests in the assets of these portfolio companies as collateral in support of the repayment of

such loans. This collateral typically takes the form of second-priority liens on the assets of a portfolio company, and we may enter into an intercreditor
agreement with the holders of the portfolio company’s first-lien senior secured debt.

 
Unsecured Subordinated (“Mezzanine”) Loans.  We structure these investments as unsecured, subordinated loans that typically provide for relatively

high, fixed interest rates that provide us with significant current interest income.
 
Warrants and Other Minority Equity Securities.  In some cases, we will also acquire a minority equity interest in the portfolio company in connection

with making a loan, or receive nominally priced warrants or options to buy a minority equity interest in the portfolio company in connection with making a
loan. As a result, as a portfolio company appreciates in value, we may achieve additional investment return from our equity interest.
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General Structuring Considerations.  We tailor the terms of each investment to the facts and circumstances of the transaction and the prospective

portfolio company, negotiating a structure that protects our rights and manages our risk while creating incentives for the portfolio company to achieve its
business plan and improve its operating results.

 
We expect to hold most of our investments to maturity or repayment, but we may sell some of our investments earlier if a liquidity event occurs, such

as a sale, recapitalization or worsening of the credit quality of the portfolio company.
 
Conflicts of Interests

 
Subject to certain 1940 Act restrictions on co-investments with affiliates, OFS Advisor will offer us the right to participate in investment opportunities

that it determines are appropriate for us in view of our investment objective, policies and strategies and other relevant factors. Such offers will be subject
to the exception that, in accordance with OFS Advisor’s allocation policy, we might not participate in each individual opportunity but will, on an overall
basis, be entitled to participate fairly and equitably with other entities managed by OFS Advisor and its affiliates.

 
To the extent that we compete with entities managed by OFS Advisor or any of its affiliates for a particular investment opportunity, OFS Advisor will

allocate investment opportunities across the entities for which such opportunities are appropriate, consistent with (a) its internal allocation policy, (b) the
requirements of the Advisers Act, and (c) certain restrictions under the 1940 Act and rules thereunder regarding co-investments with affiliates. OFS
Advisor’s allocation policy is intended to ensure that we may generally share fairly and equitably with other investment funds or other investment vehicles
managed by OFS Advisor or its affiliates in investment opportunities that OFS Advisor determines are appropriate for us in view of our investment
objective, policies and strategies and other relevant factors, particularly those involving a security with limited supply or involving differing classes of
securities of the same issuer that may be suitable for us and such other investment funds or other investment vehicles. Under this allocation policy, if two
or more investment vehicles with similar or overlapping investment strategies are in their investment periods, an available opportunity will be allocated
based on the provisions governing allocations of such investment opportunities in the relevant organizational, offering or similar documents, if any, for
such investment vehicles. In the absence of any such provisions, OFS Advisor will consider the following factors and the weight that should be given with
respect to each of these factors:

 
 • investment guidelines and/or restrictions, if any, set forth in the applicable organizational, offering or similar documents for the investment

vehicles;
 

 • risk and return profile of the investment vehicles;
 • suitability/priority of a particular investment for the investment vehicles;

 
 • if applicable, the targeted position size of the investment for the investment vehicles;

 
 • level of available cash for investment with respect to the investment vehicles;

 
 • total amount of funds committed to the investment vehicles; and

 
 • the age of the investment vehicles and the remaining term of their respective investment periods, if any.

 
In situations where co-investment with such other accounts is not permitted or appropriate, such as when there is an opportunity to invest in different

securities of the same issuer, OFS Advisor will need to decide which account will proceed with the investment. The decision by OFS Advisor to allocate
an opportunity to another entity could cause us to forego an investment opportunity that we otherwise would have made. See “Related-Party Transactions
and Certain Relationships” in the accompanying prospectus
 
Corporate Information

 
Our principal executive offices are located at 10 S. Wacker Drive, Suite 2500, Chicago, IL, 60606, and our telephone number is (847) 734-2000. Our

corporate website is located at http://www.ofscapital.com. Information on our website is not incorporated into or a part of this prospectus supplement.
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Implications of Being an Emerging Growth Company

 
We qualify as an emerging growth company, as that term is used in the JOBS Act. An emerging growth company may take advantage of specified

reduced reporting and other burdens that are otherwise applicable generally to public companies. These provisions include:
 

 • An exemption from the auditors attestation requirement in the assessment of the emerging growth company’s internal control over financial
reporting under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “Sarbanes-Oxley Act”);

 
 • No non-binding advisory votes on executive compensation or golden parachute arrangements; and

 
 • Reduced financial statement and executive compensation requirements.

 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, we have complied with Section 404(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act regarding auditor attestation for the fiscal year ended

December 31, 2013.
 
In addition, Section 107 of the JOBS Act also provides that an emerging growth company can take advantage of the extended transition period

provided in Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), for complying with new or revised accounting standards.
However, we are choosing to “opt out” of such extended transition period, and as a result, we will comply with new or revised accounting standards on the
relevant dates on which adoption of such standards is required for non-emerging growth companies. Our decision to opt out of the extended transition
period for complying with new or revised accounting standards is irrevocable.

 
We could remain an emerging growth company for up to five years, or until the earliest of (a) the last day of the first fiscal year in which our annual

gross revenues exceed $1 billion, (b) the date that we become a “large accelerated filer” as defined in Rule 12b-2 under the Exchange Act, which would
occur if the market value of our common stock that is held by non-affiliates exceeds $700 million as of the last business day of our most recently
completed second fiscal quarter, or (c) the date on which we have issued more than $1 billion in non-convertible debt during the preceding three year
period.
 
Risks

 
Investing in our securities may be speculative and involves certain risks relating to our structure and our investment objective that you should consider

before deciding whether to invest. Certain of these risks are referenced below:
 
Capital markets are currently functional, but may experience periods of disruption and instability, which could have a negative impact on our business

and operations.
 
There are numerous risks relating to our business, including credit losses on our investments, the risk of loss associated with leverage, illiquidity and

valuation uncertainties in our investments, possible lack of appropriate investments, the lack of experience in operating a BDC of our investment adviser
and our dependence on such investment adviser.

 
There are also numerous risks relating to our investments, including the risky nature of the securities in which we invest, the subordinated nature of

select investments, our potential lack of control over our portfolio companies, our limited ability to invest in public or foreign companies and the potential
incentives in our investment adviser to invest more speculatively than it would if it did not have an opportunity to earn incentive fees.

 
We also have various risks relating to our status as a BDC, including limitations on raising additional capital, failure to qualify as a BDC and loss of

tax status as a RIC. In addition, SBIC I LP has the risk of losing its SBIC status.
 
There are also risks relating to this offering, including volatility in our stock price and the anti-takeover effect of certain provisions in our certificate of

incorporation.
 
See “Risk Factors” beginning on page 16 of the of the accompanying prospectus for a more detailed discussion of these and other material risks you

should carefully consider before deciding to invest in our securities.
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SPECIFIC TERMS OF OUR WARRANTS AND THE OFFERING

 
This prospectus supplement sets forth certain terms of our warrants that we are offering pursuant to this prospectus supplement and supplements the

accompanying prospectus that is attached to the back of this prospectus supplement. This section outlines the specific legal and financial terms of our
warrants. You should read this section together with the more general description of our warrants in this prospectus supplement under the heading
“Description of Our Warrants” and in the accompanying prospectus under the heading “Description of Our Warrants” before investing in our warrants.
Capitalized terms used in this prospectus supplement and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the accompanying prospectus.

 
[Insert material terms of our warrants in tabular form to the extent required to be disclosed by applicable law or regulation.]

 

S-9



 

   
FEES AND EXPENSES

 
The following table is intended to assist you in understanding the costs and expenses that you will bear directly or indirectly. We caution you that some

of the percentages indicated in the table below are estimates and may vary. Except where the context suggests otherwise, whenever this prospectus
supplement contains a reference to fees or expenses paid by “us,” “the Company” or “OFS Capital,” or that “we” will pay fees or expenses, you will
indirectly bear such fees or expenses as an investor in OFS Capital.

 
Shareholder transaction expenses:    
Sales load (as a percentage of offering price)   %(1)

Offering expenses (as a percentage of offering price)   %(2)

Dividend reinvestment plan expenses   %(3)

Total shareholder transaction expenses (as a percentage of offering price)   %
Annual expenses (as a percentage of net assets attributable to common stock):     
Base management fee payable under Investment Advisory Agreement   3.46%(4)

Loan management fee payable   0.50%(5)

Incentive fees payable under Investment Advisory Agreement   0.43%(6)

Interest payments on borrowed funds   2.92%(7)

Other expenses   3.31%(8)(9)

Acquired fund fees and expenses   —%(10)

Total annual expenses   10.62%(4)(9)
 

(1)  Represents the commission with respect to the shares of our warrants being sold in this offering, which we will pay to in connection with sales of
shares of our warrants effected by in this offering.

 
(2) The offering expenses of this offering are estimated to be approximately $            .

 
(3) The expenses of the dividend reinvestment plan are included in “other expenses.” For additional information, see “Dividend Reinvestment Plan” in the

accompanying prospectus.
 

(4) Commencing November 1, 2013 through March 31, 2014, our base management fee, under the Investment Advisory Agreement was 1.75% per year of
our total assets (other than cash and cash equivalents and goodwill and intangible assets relating to the SBIC Acquisitions but including assets
purchased with borrowed amounts and including assets owned by any consolidated entity). On May 5, 2014, OFS Advisor agreed to reduce its base
management fee by two-thirds for the nine months commencing April 1, 2014 and ending December 31, 2014. Accordingly, the effective annual base
management fee for the 2014 fiscal year will be equal to or less than 50% of the 1.75% required by our Investment Advisory Agreement with OFS
Advisor, or not greater than 0.875%. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the above table assumes that the base management fee is 1.75% per annum in all
cases, and does not reflect the reduction in place for the balance of 2014. We may from time to time decide it is appropriate to change the terms of the
agreement. Under the 1940 Act, any material change to our Investment Advisory Agreement must be submitted to shareholders for approval. See
“Management and Other Agreements — Investment Advisory Agreement” in the accompanying prospectus.
The 3.46% fee reflected in the table is calculated by determining the ratio that the base management fee bears to our net assets attributable to common
stock (rather than our total assets). The estimate of our base management fee referenced in the table is based on our total assets (other than cash and
cash equivalents and goodwill and intangible assets relating to the SBIC Acquisitions but including assets purchased with borrowed money and assets
of any consolidated entity) as of September 30, 2014.
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(5) Represents the management fee OFS Capital WM pays to MCF Capital Management LLC, which is the loan manager and also an affiliated entity of

Madison Capital (“Loan Manager”).
 
(6) Assumes an incentive fee of $149 thousand, which was calculated based on our statement of operations for the three months ended September 30, 2014,

except that the base management fee was assumed to be 1.75% per annum. For the three months ended September 30, 2014, we incurred an actual
incentive fee expense of $723 thousand, which was $574 thousand higher than the incentive fee expense we would have incurred assuming our base
management fee rate was at 1.75% per annum. Notwithstanding the reduced base management fee in the second quarter of 2014, we did not incur any
incentive fee expense for the first and second quarters of 2014, however, based on the increase in investments and investment income we began
incurring incentive fee expense in third quarter of 2014. For the three months ended September 30, 2014, we incurred an actual base management fee
expense of $370 thousand, which would have been $1.1 million assuming our base management fee rate was at 1.75% per annum. For more detailed
information about incentive fees related to capital gains incurred by us that are not payable to the Advisor under the terms of the Investment
Management Agreement, please see Note 4 to our consolidated financial statements for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 as well as Note 5 to
our consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2013, included in the accompanying prospectus.
 
The incentive fee consists of two parts:
 
The first, payable quarterly in arrears, equals 20.0% of our pre-incentive fee net investment income initially calculated based on values at the closing of
this offering (including income that is accrued but not yet received in cash), subject to a 2.0% quarterly (8.0% annualized) hurdle rate and a “catch-up”
provision measured as of the end of each calendar quarter. Under this provision, in any calendar quarter, OFS Advisor receives no incentive fee until
our pre-incentive fee net investment income equals the hurdle rate of 2.0% but then receives, as a “catch-up,” 100% of our pre-incentive fee net
investment income with respect to that portion of such pre-incentive fee net investment income, if any, that exceeds the hurdle rate but is less than
2.5%. The effect of this provision is that, if pre-incentive fee net investment income exceeds 2.5% in any calendar quarter, OFS Advisor will receive
20.0% of our pre-incentive fee net investment income as if a hurdle rate did not apply.
 
The hurdle rate is fixed at 2.0% quarterly (8% annualized), which means that, if interest rates rise, it will be easier for our pre-incentive fee net
investment income to surpass the hurdle rate, which could lead to the payment of fees to OFS Advisor in an amount greater than expected. There is no
accumulation of amounts on the hurdle rate from quarter to quarter and accordingly there is no clawback of amounts previously paid if subsequent
quarters are below the quarterly hurdle rate and there is no delay of payment if prior quarters are below the quarterly hurdle rate.
 
The second part, payable annually in arrears, equals 20.0% of our realized capital gains on a cumulative basis as of the closing of this offering through
the end of the year, if any (or upon the termination of the Investment Advisory Agreement, as of the termination date), computed net of all realized
capital losses and unrealized capital depreciation on a cumulative basis, less the aggregate amount of any previously paid capital gain incentive fees.
The incentive fee is determined on a consolidated basis and, as such, will apply to the operations of SBIC I LP and OFS Capital WM if and for so long
as their financial statements are consolidated with ours. See “Management and Other Agreements — Investment Advisory Agreement” in the
accompanying prospectus.

 
(7) Interest payments on borrowed funds represents an estimate of our annualized interest expenses based on actual interest and credit facility expenses

incurred for the nine months ended September 30, 2014. Under the OFS Capital WM Credit Facility, our wholly-owned subsidiary, OFS Capital WM,
had debt in the amount of $84.8 million outstanding as of September 30, 2014. In addition, at September 30, 2014, SBIC I LP had SBA debentures
payable in the amount of $61.4 million.
We may borrow additional funds from time to time to make investments to the extent we determine that the economic situation is conducive to doing
so. We also anticipate that SBIC I LP will incur additional leverage which has been approved by the SBA. Our shareholders will bear directly or
indirectly the costs of borrowings under any debt instruments we may enter into.

 
(8) Includes our overhead expenses, including payments under the Administration Agreement based on our allocable portion of overhead and other

expenses incurred by OFS Services. See “Management and Other Agreements — Administration Agreement” in the accompanying prospectus. These
expenses are based on estimated amounts for the current fiscal year.

 
(9) Estimated.
 
(10) Our shareholders indirectly bear the expenses of underlying funds or other investment vehicles that would be investment companies under section 3(a)

of the 1940 Act but for the exceptions to that definition provided for in sections 3(c)(1) and 3(c)(7) of the 1940 Act (“Acquired Funds”) in which we
invest. We do not currently invest in underlying funds or other investment companies.
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Example

The following example demonstrates the projected dollar amount of total cumulative expenses over various periods with respect to a hypothetical
investment in our common stock. In calculating the following expense amounts, we have assumed we would have no additional leverage and that our annual
operating expenses would remain at the levels set forth in the table above. The expense amounts assume an annual base management fee 1.75% for each year.
Transaction expenses are included in the following example.

 

  1 year   3 years   5 years   
10

years  
You would pay the following expenses on a $1,000 investment,

assuming a 5% annual return  $ 106  $ 301  $ 473  $ 821 
You would pay the following expenses on a $1,000 investment,

assuming a 5% annual return from realized capital gains  $ 106  $ 318  $ 501  $ 860 
 
The foregoing table is to assist you in understanding the various costs and expenses that an investor in our common stock will bear directly or indirectly.

While the example assumes, as required by the SEC, a 5% annual return, our performance will vary and may result in a return greater or less than 5%. The
incentive fee under the Investment Advisory Agreement, which, assuming a 5% annual return, would either not be payable or have an insignificant impact on
the expense amounts shown above, is not included in the example. In addition, while the example assumes reinvestment of all dividends and distributions at
net asset value, if our board of directors authorizes and we declare a cash dividend, participants in our dividend reinvestment plan who have not otherwise
elected to receive cash will receive a number of shares of our common stock, determined by dividing the total dollar amount of the dividend payable to a
participant by the market price per share of our common stock at the close of trading on the valuation date for the dividend. See “Dividend Reinvestment
Plan” in the accompanying prospectus for additional information regarding our dividend reinvestment plan.

 
This example and the expenses in the table above should not be considered a representation of our future expenses, and actual expenses

(including the cost of debt, if any, and other expenses) may be greater or less than those shown.
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

 
In addition to factors previously identified elsewhere in this prospectus supplement and in the accompanying prospectus, including the “Risk Factors”

section of the accompanying prospectus, the following factors, among others, could cause actual results to differ materially from forward-looking statements
or historical performance:

 
 • the introduction, withdrawal, success and timing of business initiatives and strategies;
 
 • changes in political, economic or industry conditions, the interest rate environment or financial and capital markets, which could result in changes in

the value of our assets;
 
 • the relative and absolute investment performance and operations of our investment adviser;
 
 • the impact of increased competition;
 
 • the impact of future acquisitions and divestitures;
 
 • the unfavorable resolution of legal proceedings;
 
 • our business prospects and the prospects of our portfolio companies;
 
 • the impact, extent and timing of technological changes and the adequacy of intellectual property protection;
 
 • the impact of legislative and regulatory actions and reforms and regulatory, supervisory or enforcement actions of government agencies relating to us

or OFS Advisors;
 
 • the ability of OFS Advisors to identify suitable investments for us and to monitor and administer our investments;
 
 • our contractual arrangements and relationships with third parties;
 
 • any future financings by us;
 
 • the ability of OFS Advisors to attract and retain highly talented professionals;
 
 • fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates; and
 
 • the impact of changes to tax legislation and, generally, our tax position.

 
This prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, and other statements that we may make, may contain forward-looking statements with

respect to future financial or business performance, strategies or expectations. Forward-looking statements are typically identified by words or phrases such as
“trend,” “opportunity,” “pipeline,” “believe,” “comfortable,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “current,” “intention,” “estimate,” “position,” “assume,” “potential,”
“outlook,” “continue,” “remain,” “maintain,” “sustain,” “seek,” “achieve” and similar expressions, or future or conditional verbs such as “will,” “would,”
“should,” “could,” “may” or similar expressions.

 
Forward-looking statements are subject to numerous assumptions, risks and uncertainties, which change over time. Forward-looking statements speak

only as of the date they are made, and we assume no duty to and do not undertake to update forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements do
not meet the safe harbor for forward-looking statements pursuant to Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Act or Section
21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in forward-looking statements and future results
could differ materially from historical performance.
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SUPPLEMENTARY RISK FACTORS

 
Investing in our warrants involves a number of significant risks. Before you invest in our warrants, you should be aware of various risks, including

those described below and those set forth in the accompanying prospectus. You should carefully consider these risk factors, together with all of the other
information included in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, before you decide whether to make an investment in our warrants. The
risks set out below are not the only risks we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or not presently deemed material by us may
also impair our operations and performance. If any of the following events occur, our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows could
be materially and adversely affected. In such case, our net asset value and the trading price of our common stock could decline, and you may lose all or part
of your investment. The risk factors described below, together with those set forth in the accompanying prospectus, are the principal risk factors associated
with an investment in us as well as those factors generally associated with an investment company with investment objectives, investment policies, capital
structure or trading markets similar to ours.

 
[If you exercise your warrants, you may be unable to sell any [type of security] you purchase at a profit.

 
The public trading market price of our [type of security] may decline after you elect to exercise your warrants. If that occurs, you will have

committed to buy [type of security] at a price above the prevailing market price and you will have an immediate unrealized loss. Moreover, we cannot assure
you that following the exercise of warrants you will be able to sell your [type of security] at a price equal to or greater than the exercise price.

 
The exercise price is not necessarily an indication of our value.

 
The exercise price of the warrants does not necessarily bear any relationship to any established criteria for valuation of business development

companies. You should not consider the exercise price an indication of our value or any assurance of future value. After the date of this prospectus
supplement, our [type of security] may trade at prices above or below the subscription price.]

 
[Insert any additional relevant risk factors not included in the base prospectus to the extent required to be disclosed by applicable law or regulation.]
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CAPITALIZATION
 
The following table sets forth our capitalization as of             , 20    :

 
 •  on an actual basis; and

 

 
•  on an as adjusted basis to give effect to the sale of              shares of our common stock in this offering at an assumed public offering price of $        

per share (the last reported closing price of our common stock on                 , 20 ), after deducting the estimated underwriting discounts and
commissions of approximately $         and estimated offering expenses of approximately $         payable by us.

 
You should read this table together with “Use of Proceeds” and financial statements and related notes thereto included elsewhere in this prospectus

supplement and the accompanying prospectus.
 

  
As of

     , 20  

  Actual   
As Adjusted
(unaudited)  

  (in thousands)  
Assets:         
Cash and cash equivalents  $    $   
Investments at fair value         
Other assets         
         
Total assets  $    $   
         
Liabilities:         
SBA-guaranteed debentures payable  $    $   
Revolving line of credit  $    $   
Other liabilities  $    $   
         
Total liabilities  $    $   
         
Net assets  $    $   
         
Shareholders’ equity:         
Preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share, 2,000,000 shares authorized, 0 shares issued and outstanding         
Common stock, par value $0.01 per share; 100,000,000 shares authorized,              shares outstanding  $    $   
Capital in excess of par value  $    $   
         
Total shareholders’ equity  $    $   
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USE OF PROCEEDS

 
We estimate that we will receive net proceeds from the sale of the          shares of our warrants in this offering of approximately $         million, or

approximately $         million if the underwriters exercise their option to purchase additional warrants in full, after deducting estimated offering expenses of
approximately $  payable by us.

 
We intend to use the net proceeds from the sale of our securities for general corporate purposes, which include investing in debt and equity securities,

repayment of any outstanding indebtedness, acquisitions and other general corporate purposes.
 
We anticipate that substantially all of the net proceeds from any offering of our securities will be used as described above within twelve months, but in no

event longer than two years, depending on the availability of attractive opportunities and market conditions. However, there can be no assurance that we will
be able to achieve this goal.

 
Pending such uses and investments, we will invest the remaining net proceeds primarily in cash, cash equivalents, U.S. government securities or high-

quality debt securities maturing in one year or less from the time of investment. The management fee payable by us to our investment adviser will not be
reduced while our assets are invested in such securities. Our ability to achieve our investment objective may be limited to the extent that the net proceeds of
any offering, pending full investment, are held in lower yielding short-term instruments.
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DESCRIPTION OF OUR WARRANTS

 
This prospectus supplement sets forth certain terms of our warrants that we are offering pursuant to this prospectus supplement and the

accompanying prospectus. This section outlines the specific legal and financial terms of our warrants. You should read this section together with the more
general description of our warrants in the accompanying prospectus under the heading “Description of Our Warrants” before investing in our warrants. This
summary is not necessarily complete and is subject to and entirely qualified by reference to [insert relevant documents].

 
[Insert material terms of our warrants to the extent required to be disclosed by applicable law or regulation.]
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UNDERWRITING

 
are acting as representatives of the underwriters named below. Subject to the terms and conditions stated in the underwriting agreement dated the date

of this prospectus supplement, each underwriter named below has agreed to purchase, and we have agreed to sell to that underwriter, the number of shares set
forth opposite the underwriter’s name.

 

Underwriter  
Number of
Warrants  

    
     
    
     
     
     

Total     
 
The underwriters are committed to take and pay for all of the warrants being offered, if any are taken, other than the warrants covered by the option

described below unless and until this option is exercised.
 
If the underwriters sell more warrants than the total number set forth in the table above, the underwriters have an option to buy up to an

additional         warrants. They may exercise that option for    days. If any warrants are purchased pursuant to this option, the underwriters will severally
purchase warrants in approximately the same proportion as set forth in the table above.

 
The following table shows the per share and total underwriting discounts and commissions (sales load) to be paid to the underwriters by us. Such

amounts are shown assuming both no exercise and full exercise of the underwriters’ option to purchase          additional warrants. This offering will conform
with the requirements set forth in Financial Industry Regulatory Authority Rule 2310. In compliance with such requirements, the underwriting discounts and
commissions in connection with the sale of securities will not exceed 10% of gross proceeds of this offering.

 
  No Exercise   Full Exercise  
Per Warrant  $   $  
Total  $   $  

 
Warrants sold by the underwriters to the public will initially be offered at the public offering price set forth on the cover of this prospectus

supplement. Any warrants sold by the underwriters to securities dealers may be sold at a discount of up to $            per warrant from the public offering price.
If all the warrants are not sold at the initial offering price, the representatives may change the public offering price and the other selling terms. The offering of
the warrants by the underwriters is subject to receipt and acceptance and subject to the underwriters’ right to reject any order in whole or in part.

  
We and each of our directors and officers has agreed that, for a period of days from the date of this Prospectus Supplement (the “Lock-up Period”),

such party will not, without the prior written consent of , and , on behalf of the underwriters, offer, pledge, sell, contract to sell or otherwise dispose of or
agree to sell or otherwise dispose of, directly or indirectly or hedge any shares or any securities convertible into or exchangeable for warrants, provided,
however, that we may issue and sell shares of common stock pursuant to our dividend reinvestment plan and other limited exceptions. , and in their sole
discretion may release any of the securities subject to these lock-up agreements at any time.

 
Our warrants are listed on the   under the symbol “ ”.
 
In connection with the offering, the underwriters may purchase and sell warrants in the open market. These transactions may include short sales,

stabilizing transactions and purchases to cover positions created by short sales. Short sales involve the sale by the underwriters of a greater number of
warrants than they are required to purchase in the offering. “Covered” short sales are sales made in an amount not greater than the underwriters’ option to
purchase additional warrants from us in the offering. The underwriters may close out any covered short position by either exercising their option to purchase
additional warrants or purchasing warrants in the open market. In determining the source of warrants to close out the covered short position, the underwriters
will consider, among other things, the price of warrants available for purchase in the open market as compared to the price at which they may purchase
additional warrants pursuant to the option granted to them. “Naked” short sales are any sales in excess of such option. The underwriters must close out any
naked short position by purchasing warrants in the open market. A naked short position is more likely to be created if the underwriters are concerned that
there may be downward pressure on the price of the warrants in the open market after pricing that could adversely affect investors who purchase in the
offering. Stabilizing transactions consist of various bids for or purchases of warrants made by the underwriters in the open market prior to the completion of
the offering.
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The underwriters may also impose a penalty bid. This occurs when a particular underwriter repays to the underwriters a portion of the underwriting

discount received by it because the representatives have repurchased warrants sold by or for the account of such underwriter in stabilizing or short covering
transactions.

 
Purchases to cover a short position and stabilizing transactions, as well as other purchases by the underwriters for their own account, may have the

effect of preventing or retarding a decline in the market price of the company’s stock, and together with the imposition of the penalty bid, may stabilize,
maintain or otherwise affect the market price of the warrants. As a result, the price of the warrants may be higher than the price that otherwise might exist in
the open market. If these activities are commenced, they may be discontinued at any time. These transactions may be effected on the NASDAQ Global Select
Market, in the over-the-counter market or otherwise.

 
The underwriters do not expect sales to discretionary accounts to exceed five percent of the total number of warrants offered.
 
We estimate that our share of the total expenses of the offering, excluding underwriting discounts and commissions, will be approximately $           ..
 
We have agreed to indemnify the several underwriters against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act of 1933.
 
The underwriters and their respective affiliates are full-service financial institutions engaged in various activities, which may include securities

trading, commercial and investment banking, financial advisory, investment management, investment research, principal investment, hedging, financing and
brokerage activities. Certain of the underwriters and their respective affiliates may, from time to time, perform various financial advisory and investment
banking services for the company, for which they will receive customary fees and expenses.

 
In the ordinary course of their various business activities, the underwriters and their respective affiliates may make or hold a broad array of

investments and actively trade debt and equity securities (or related derivative securities) and financial instruments (including bank loans) for their own
account and for the accounts of their customers and such investment and securities activities may involve securities and/or instruments of the issuer. The
underwriters and their respective affiliates may also make investment recommendations and/or publish or express independent research views in respect of
such securities or instruments and may at any time hold, or recommend to clients that they acquire, long and/or short positions in such securities and
instruments.

 
The principal business address of             ,          ,            ,    and             ..
 
Each of the underwriters may arrange to sell warrants offered hereby in certain jurisdictions outside the United States, either directly or through

affiliates, where they are permitted to do so.
 
[Describe any other specific transactions and compensation related thereto to the extent required to be disclosed by applicable law or regulation.]
 
[Describe if underwriters receiving proceeds of offering, if required by FINRA.]
 
[Insert principal business addresses of underwriters.]
 
[Insert applicable legends for jurisdictions in which offers and sales may be made.]
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LEGAL MATTERS

 
Certain legal matters in connection with the securities offered hereby will be passed upon for us by Sutherland Asbill & Brennan LLP, Washington,

District of Columbia. Certain legal matters in connection with the securities offered hereby will be passed upon for the underwriters by             ,            
,             ..

 
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

 
[Include information regarding OFS Capital Corporation’s independent registered public accounting firm to the extent required to be disclosed by applicable
law or regulation.]

 
AVAILABLE INFORMATION

 
We have filed with the SEC a registration statement on Form N-2, together with all amendments and related exhibits, under the Securities Act, with

respect to our securities offered by this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. The registration statement contains additional information
about us and our securities being offered by this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus.

 
We will file with or submit to the SEC periodic and current reports, proxy statements and other information meeting the informational requirements of the

Exchange Act. You may inspect and copy these reports, proxy statements and other information, as well as the registration statement and related exhibits and
schedules, at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549-0102. You may obtain information on the operation of the
Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at (800) SEC-0330. We maintain a website at http://www.ofscapitalcorp.com and make all of our periodic and
current reports, proxy statements and other publicly filed information available, free of charge, on or through our website. Information contained on our
website is not incorporated into this prospectus supplement, and you should not consider information on our website to be part of this prospectus supplement.
You may also obtain such information by contacting us in writing at 10 S. Wacker Drive, Suite 2500, Chicago, IL, 60606, Attention: Investor Relations. The
SEC maintains a website that contains reports, proxy and information statements and other information we file with the SEC at www.sec.gov. Copies of these
reports, proxy and information statements and other information may also be obtained, after paying a duplicating fee, by electronic request at the following e-
mail address: publicinfo@sec.gov, or by writing the SEC’s Public Reference Section, 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549-0102.
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